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Chapter 1:

Introduction and overview
1.1 Mayor’s Foreword
The presentation of the Annual Report concludes
our current term of office as elected representatives
of the Sol Plaatje Municipality before communities
have an opportunity to renew our mandate for the
next term, and indeed a march towards the centenary celebrations of the ANC with hope. Solomon
Tshekisho Plaatje would not expect anything different.
The provision of quality service to our community
has been our priority while we sought to address
the legacy of the past under-development especially
in the previously marginalised areas.
As we conclude our term, we made progress in
the provision of services delivery despite major
challenges to our bulk infrastructure services. Our
developmental success has also placed a burden
downstream regarding our infrastructure.
We have housed more families with additional
low cost houses, our water quality has improved,
and there was a major drive to resurface and reseal
roads, including the improvement of our finances.

through the municipal turnaround strategy especially with operation clean audit.
As Executive Mayor, we approved the bulk infrastructure intervention plan. Once the plan is
implemented development will be allowed to
continue without any restriction or overburdening
the infrastructure.
Of critical importance remains our collective resolve
to implement the Service Delivery Budget Implementation Plan together we will achieve the noble
vision of a sustainable development in a sufficient
and healthy environment through our integrated
development plan.
In presenting our annual report to you, I wish to
thank my colleagues, Councillors from parties
represented in Council, the Executive Management
Team and the entire Municipal staff of Sol Plaatje
Municipality.
Together we can build better communities.
I thank you

The appointment of a head of Administration has
allowed us to embark on a huge intervention
to ensure that we obtain an unqualified audit

Patrick Everyday
EXECUTIVE MAYOR
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1.2 Municipal Manager’s
Overview of Reporting Year
The primary function of the Sol Plaatje Municipality is to address the
needs and demands of its citizenry, be it the provision of basic essential
services, or creation of an environment that would stimulate economic
development and growth. To that end, the Sol Plaatje Municipality had
made considerable strides over the years.
Several negatives such as poor audit outcomes, inadequate long term
planning and lower income streams influenced the rendering of these
services.
The focus for the 2009/2010 financial year was principally to restore
practices of good governance, financial viability and laying the basis for
capital investment that would seek to unlock development.
To that end IDP targets were reviewed to be better aligned to available
resources, a renewed focus on debt recovery and rebuilding of cash reserves, improvements in financial management and a strategy to eradicate
the root causes of poor audit outcomes. Urgent capital projects were
implemented in water and sanitation, whilst others were identified that
would see a substantial capital investment in the renewal of bulk infrastructure in water, electricity and sewerage over the next two years.
Ultimately, these interventions have proven successful in terms of both
implementation and outcomes achieved. Income streams had improved,
reserves rebuilt, decision making streamlined, capital spending having
drastically increased (e.g. MIG funds 100% spent), services expanded to
areas previously untouched including housing developments and refuse
removal, to name but a few examples.
Thanks to improved governance and financial management, the Municipality’s credit worthiness will improve substantially and should enable
loan funds being availed for much needed capital projects
All of these were achieved in addition to the usual service delivery
demands of our citizenry.
This annual report provides the detail of such projects, programmes and
services in sufficient detail to enable an assessment of the outcomes
achieved.

Goolam Akharwaray
MUNICIPAL MANAGER
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1.3 Corporate Governance Statement
Introduction
The Sol Plaatje Municipality is committed to the
concept and principles of good corporate governance. As a Municipality, we are guided by the
principles of the Code of Corporate Practices and
Conduct as contained in the Report on Corporate
Governance for South Africa 2002 and augmented
by the statutory duties, Municipal Systems Act, Act
32 of 2000, and the Municipal Finance Management Act, Act 56 of 2003, (MFMA). In all our dealings, Council strives to ensure that the interests of
our communities and stakeholders are met.

Delegation of Authority
The power and authority to lead, control, manage
and conduct our business is in accordance with
the following Acts and White Paper, as amended
where applicable:
• Constitution of 1996, (Act 108 of 1996)
• Municipal Systems Act, (Act 32 of 2000)
• Municipal Financial Management Act, (Act 56
of 2003)
• Municipal Structures Act, (Act 117 of 1998)
• White Paper on Local Government 1998
• Local Government Demarcation Act of 1998,
(Act 27 of 1998)
• Local Government Municipal Property Rates
Act, (Act 6 of 2004)
• Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act,
(Act 13 of 2005)

Governance Committees
Several governance committees were constituted
to assist the Municipal Manager in discharging
his duties. Each committee operates within the
ambit of its delegated terms of reference that set
out the composition, role, responsibilities, delegated authority and requirements for convening
meetings.

• Executive Management Team (EMT)
The Municipal Manager chairs the Executive
Management Team. Its membership consists
of the Executive Directors and selected invitees and meets on a weekly basis as and when
required.
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• Audit and Risk Management Committee
An independent and non-executive professional
chairs the Audit and Risk Management Committee, which is comprised of external members.
The Audit Committee meets quarterly with senior management, which includes the Municipal Manager, Chief Financial Officer and the
Chief Internal Auditor. The external and internal auditors attend these meetings and have
unrestricted access to the Audit Committee
and its Chairperson.
The Audit Committee serves in an advisory capacity to Council and assists to discharge its
duties relating to the safeguarding of assets,
the operation of adequate systems, risk management and controls, the review of financial
information and the preparation of the annual
financial statements. This includes satisfying
Council that adequate internal, operating and
financial controls are in place.
Sol Plaatje Municipality has an in-house internal
audit function and uses outsourced service
providers when necessary. It has a specific
mandate from the Audit Committee and independently appraises the internal controls and
accounting records, reporting its findings to
management as well as the Audit Committee.
As part of the system of internal control, the
internal audit function conducts operational,
financial and specific audits and co-ordinates
audit coverage with the external auditors.

• Performance Audit Committee
An independent specialist chairs the Performance Audit Committee, which is comprised of
two members of the Audit and Risk Committee.
The Performance Audit Committee operates
in terms of written terms of reference, which
deals adequately with its membership, authority and responsibilities. The Performance Audit
Committee is an oversight function with no executive status and works in an advisory capacity to the Accounting Officer.
The overall purpose/role of the Performance
Audit Committee is to assist the Accounting
Officer in discharging his/her responsibilities
as stipulated in terms of section 45 of the Municipal Systems Act, (Act 32 of 2000).
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• Oversight Committee
The Oversight Committee was established in terms of sections 33
and 79 of the Municipal Structures Act, (Act 117 of 1998) during the
financial year 2008/2009. This committee provides oversight reports
on the annual activities of Council in accordance with section 129 of
the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003). The Oversight Committee performed its responsibilities in accordance with
the National Treasury Circular No 32 in conjunction with:
- MFMA Circular 11 – Annual reporting Guidelines; January 2005
- MFMA Circular 18 - New accounting standards; 23 June 2005
- MFMA Circular 28 - Budget Content and Format; 12 December 2005
Non-executive councillors constituted the Oversight Committee as
per the prescription of the regulations, the meeting and tabling of
the oversight reports was open to the public, with sufficient time
for discussion and debates. The Oversight Committee recommended
the approval of the annual report to Council.

• Standing Committees of Council
There are ten portfolio-based Standing Committees, broadly resembling the executive management portfolios, known as Directorates,
assisting Council with its decision-making task. These Standing
Committees function as bodies making recommendations to Council or as working committees (e.g. Policy formulation), i.e. bodies
co-ordinating the execution of the work of Council. The Standing
Committees have monthly meetings prior to the Council meeting in
accordance with the year planner as determined by the Office of the
Speaker. Only items which have been agreed to at committee meetings
are put up for recommendation to Council. Formally, all decisionmaking resides with Council.
The Administration prepares and refers items to the various Standing
Committees, with the consent and approval of the Municipal Manager. The minutes of the Standing Committee meetings are referred to
Council which either approves, changes, approves as amended, the
proposed resolutions, or refers the item back to the relevant Standing
Committee.

• Internal Audit
In line with the requirements of the MFMA and good governance,
internal audit provides the Audit Committee and Management with
assurance on the appropriateness and effectiveness of internal controls in place. This is achieved by an independent, objective appraisal
and evaluation of risk management processes, internal controls and
governance processes, as well as by identifying corrective actions
and suggested enhancements to controls and processes. The riskbased audit plan covers major risks emanating from our integrated
risk management process. The audit plan responds to these risks.
The Council and Audit Committee supports the Internal Audit Department, which has unrestricted access to all organisational activities, records, property and personnel.

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report 2009/2010
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Every assignment includes a detailed report
to Management containing recommendations
for improvement. Significant business risks
and weaknesses in the operating and financial
control systems are highlighted and brought
to the attention of the Audit Committee, Senior
Management and the external Auditors.
The audit work plan is presented in advance to
the Audit Committee.
The internal audit function substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out
in section 165(2) of the MFMA.
The Internal Audit unit operates within an approved internal audit charter and the following
are included therein:
• Compliance with the standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing as
prescribed by the Institute of Internal Auditors.
• The appointment or dismissal of the Head
of Internal Audit takes place in consultation
with the audit committee.

• Risk Management
Effective risk management is critical to our operations. Nevertheless, responsible risk-taking is
an integral part of the business, which helps us
to achieve our strategic objectives. Our success
lies in identifying, understanding and managing the risks associated with our business
strategy and the execution of our activities.
Management’s objective is to deliver on service
while adhering to approved risk parameters
and limits. Management does this by identifying risks that may inhibit the Municipality from
achieving its objectives, analysing those risks,
avoiding certain risks and implementing plans
for mitigating risks that remain. We acknowledge that enterprise-wide risk management is
a driver of business performance rather than
an obligation created with a view to achieving
good governance.

• The responsibility to develop, implement
and report on risk based internal audit
plan.

• Risk Ownership

• The responsibility to maintain a professional
internal audit staff with sufficient skills,
knowledge, experience and qualifications.

• Fraud Risk Management

The Internal Audit Function has authority to:
• unrestricted access to all functions, records,
property and personnel
• full and uninhibited access to the Audit
Committee
• assist with the allocation of resources, frequencies, subject, scope of work to be performed, and apply the techniques required
to accomplish audit objectives

8

• obtain the necessary assistance of personnel
in Departments and functions of the Municipality where they perform audits, as well
as other specialised services from within or
outside the organisation.

The ownership of the risk management function
resides with Management.

We have a fraud prevention plan, which includes utilising the services of a toll free hotline feature. However, plans are in place to
enhance the fraud management function to
include prevention, detection, response and
investigation and a fraud prevention roll out
plan. Where serious fraud, corruption and irregularities are suspected and reported, investigations are undertaken to establish the facts
to enable management to deal appropriately
with the issues, and to prevent recurrence.
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1.4 Overview of Sol Plaatje
Municipality
Sol Plaatje Municipality (Local Municipality NC091) is on the northeastern border of the Northern Cape Province within the Frances Baard
District Municipality, almost in the centre of South Africa.
Sol Plaatje Municipality is named after a prolific writer and journalist
Solomon T. Plaatje. Sol Plaatje was one of the most gifted and versatile
Black South Africans of his generation. He made an outstanding contribution in the field of literature in both, his native tongue, Setswana, and
English. He was an accomplished linguist fluent in several languages,
the first Black South African to publish a novel in English, and the first
person to record Nkosi Sikelel’ iAfrika, now our national anthem.
He died in 1932, and was buried in the West End Cemetery in Kimberley.

The Municipality’s jurisdictional area includes the City of Kimberley, the
capital of the Northern Cape, and has good road, rail and air connections with the rest of South Africa. Ritchie, a small urban settlement, with
a total population of approximately 11,000 persons, is situated on the
most southern boundary of the municipal area approximately 30Km due
south of Kimberley. The rest of the municipal area comprises mainly private commercial farmland with extensive cattle and game farming and
small pockets of crop cultivation along the banks of the Vaal, Modder and
Riet Rivers. The total population of the rural area is approximately 8,000
persons.

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report 2009/2010
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The Sol Plaatje Municipality has a total population
of 245,606 persons made up of 52,120 households
and covers an area of 187,300Ha. In the ten-year
period 1996 to 2006, the population growth was
only 0.87%.

The population residing in the Municipal area is
relatively young with 28% of the population below
the age of 15 and 6% above the age 65. Only 8.1%
of the persons above the age of 20 have a higher
education, while 9.1% have no schooling at all.

Estimations are that 32.4% of the residents of SPM live in poverty.
Population by local municipality - Frances Baard
300,000
250,000
200,000
150,000
100,000
50,000
0
Census 2001
CS 2007
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NC091: Sol Plaatjie

NC092:Dikgatlong

NC093: Magareng

NC094 Phokwane

205,983
245,606

35,765
40,752

21,735
20,433

61,320
46,409
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Kimberley still holds the title ‘Diamond Capital of
the world’. In 1871, the discovery of an 83.5-carat
diamond on a farm close to the present location of
Kimberley, led to one of the biggest diamond rushes
in the world. After the diamond rush, Kimberley
became the world’s largest producer of diamonds.
Due to this diamond rush, Kimberley contributed
greatly toward South Africa’s economic development. The origins of this diamond rush, the Big
Hole, became a world famous tourist attraction,
which is now a world-class open-air museum.
The City holds an old-world charm, famous for its
high quality diamonds, and the rich history and
culture that it possesses. Although lacking the furious pace of South Africa’s larger urban areas today,
the Victorian grandeur of stately buildings still
complements the urban setup.
Although it has been a long time since the ‘diamond rush’ and the then economic boom of the
region, Sol Plaatje Municipality is still the largest
contributor to the economy of the Northern Cape.
It contributes 60.4% to the GDP of the Northern
Cape.

VITAL STATISTICS
Demographic
Total Area ............................................ 187,300Ha

*

Total Population .......................................245,606

**

Population growth rate (1996-2007) ..........0.87%

**

Number of Households..............................52,120

**

Average household income ................ R6,429 pm ***
Urbanisation rate ........................................99.2% ***

Household Services
Households residing in formal house ........83.8%

**

Households residing in informal structure ...11%

**

Households with electricity connection.....89.2%

**

Households with weekly waste removal ....91.8%

**

Households with flush toilet ......................84.4%

**

Households with piped water in dwelling/yard ...
.....................................................................92.3%

**

The four main contributing sectors to the economy
are Community Services (30.9%), Finance (21.6%),
Transport (16.5%) and Trade (11.3%). Mining now
only contributes 8.6% to the local economy.

Economic Indicators

Total number of people employed in both the formal
and informal sectors is 63,335 (29,4% of the population) while the number of persons unemployed,
according to the expanded definition of unemployment, are 31,584 (14,7% of the population).
Between 1996 and 2007 the unemployment rate
increased by 4.3% and in 2007 stood at 38.8%.

People employed ........................................63.335 ***

Sol Plaatje has historically developed sound basic
infrastructure, which has accommodated large
mines and industries. Kimberley has many pleasant
neighbourhoods, a school system that performs
above national norms and a relative compact layout
that locates former “township” areas close to the
city centre. In addition, the Municipality has one of
the highest accesses to and service levels of South
African cities, allowing it to address its backlogs
realistically. However, consistent underinvestment
in the city’s existing infrastructure threatens the
foundations of the local economy, and the high
level of service is a huge challenge to the financial
sustainability of the Municipality.

Persons over 20 with no schooling ..............9.1% ***
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Contribution to NC GDP .............................32.5% ***
Economic growth rate ..................................3.9% ***
People unemployed ...................................31,584 ***
Unemployment rate ...................................38.8% ***
Population aged between 20-64 ....................57% ***
Persons over 20 with higher education .......8.1% ***
Human Development Index ...........................0.67 ***
HIV Positive ......................................................9% ***
*

SPM own information

**

STATSSA – Community Survey 2007

***

Global Insight, August 2008
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The Space-economic Development
Strategy
Sol Plaatje is located within a weak economic region
and, considering the above challenges, had to creatively develop a strategy to ensure a long-term
sustainable development path.
This strategy is founded in the Municipality’s
“space-economy” - meaning the geographic distribution of settlements (large and small), the
activities within them (residential, commercial,
institutional, recreational, and so on), and the
relationship of these settlements and activities
to the infrastructure that connects and supports
them, and links in turn to surrounding agriculture
and nature areas.
At the heart of the refined strategy is institution
building. Without a strong, well-managed municipal institution, the Sol Plaatje Municipality will
not be able to meet its challenges.
The refined strategy further comprises seven key
points:

1. Strengthen critical connections
The first key point is for the Municipality to
strengthen critical connections between its
broader jurisdictional area and Kimberley specifically.
The Municipality is part of a broader settlement system, and will not sustain itself without strong connections to outlying settlements, their needs, or activities within them.

2. Maintain and enhance Kimberley and
existing outlying settlements as sustainable, attractive centres of living, services
and work within their existing footprints
Related to maintaining and strengthening critical connections to the Municipality is managing Kimberley and outlying settlements as
sustainable, attractive centres of living, services and work – with specific reference not only
to ensure the upgrading and maintenance of
existing infrastructure, but also the creation of
new infrastructure for growth.
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3. Strengthen the Kimberley Central Business District (CBD) as the heart of the
City and Municipality
The Kimberley CBD remains the economic and
institutional heart of the Sol Plaatje Municipality.
The viability of the CBD is critical in maintaining the role of Kimberley as a service centre
to surrounding settlements. The viability of the
CBD is also critical to the city’s ability to provide
opportunities for new enterprises to emerge.

4. Ensure good access to the CBD and between
neighbourhoods
Critical to maintaining the CBD is ensuring
convenient access to it, from and between surrounding neighbourhoods.

5. Strengthen neighbourhood centres for
convenience
Neighbourhood centres are necessary to provide for the daily needs of residents in defined
areas for commercial and social services. These
centres should not individually or collectively
compete with the CBD, harming Sol Plaatje’s
overall position as a service centre, or the Municipality’s ability to facilitate job creation.

6. Prioritise improvements to disadvantaged
areas while making the benefits of Kimberley more broadly available
The Municipality has made significant progress
in improving living conditions in disadvantaged
areas, ranging from the provision of housing,
to eradicating service backlogs and improving
the quality of public spaces. Nevertheless, it is
important to make the benefits of Kimberley
more broadly available to all residents, specifically through the provision of housing in areas
well located in relation to the CBD.

7. Maximise the capacity and economic
potential of the river valleys
The Municipality should stimulate appropriate
development in the river valleys and surrounding agricultural areas through incentives and
other measures.

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report 2009/2010

Governance Model
Sol Plaatje Municipality is governed through a
Mayoral Executive System consisting of an Executive Mayor, Speaker and ten mayoral committee
members who serve as chairpersons of Standing
Committees: The following Standing Committees
exist:
• Aesthetic Development and Planning
• Sports, Arts and Culture
• Finance
• Housing
• Local Economic Development
• Municipal Infrastructure Grant and Inter Governmental Relations
• Organisational Development

• Security and Traffic
• Social Development and Health
• Policy
The Municipal Council consists of a total of fiftyfive Councillors of which twenty-eight are elected
Ward Councillors (twenty-three ANC, four DA and
one Independent), and twenty-seven Proportional
Representative Councillors (seventeen ANC, seven
DA, one ACDP, one AZAPO, and one ID). The Municipality has twenty-eight wards with elected
Ward Committees.
The Council and Standing Committees meet on a
monthly basis. Twenty-six (26) Council Meetings
were held, inclusive of Special and Informal Council
Meetings.

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report 2009/2010
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Administrative Structures
The Municipal Manager heads the Administration, with five executive directors, each heading a directorate
and reporting directly to the Municipal Manager. The organogram below indicates the accounting lines as
well as the functional areas of each Directorate:

EXECUTIVE MAYOR
COUNCIL

Patrick Everyday
Mayor

Monica Thole
Speaker

Municipal Manager
(IDP, Internal Audit, Planning & Strategy Development, Legal Services)

Goolam Akharwaray
Municipal Manager

ED: Infrastructure
& Services

ED: Community
& Social
Development
Services

ED: Financial
Services

ED: Corporate
Services

ED: Strategy,
Economic
Development &
Planning

Khuza Bogacwi

Ruth Sebolecwe

Lydia Mahloko

Luanne Fouché

Nomonde
Tyabashe-Kesiamang

During the preparation of this report, three of the executive director positions were vacant with senior
managers acting in these positions. These positions should however be filled before the end of the 2010
calendar year.

Background of Management
Goolam Akharwaray
BProc (UCT); LLB (FS); Cert. in Management (GSB-UCT)

Municipal Manager, Sol Plaatje Municipality

Fiscal & Monetary Planning (LSE)(UK)

In 1994 elected to Northern Cape Provincial Legislature
and appointed in various capacities:
Speaker Northern Cape Provincial Legislature
MEC - Social Services
MEC - Finance & Economic Affairs

Macro Economic Planning (American University)
Basic Economics (US)
Debt Management (UWC)

Prior - Practising attorney
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Khuza Bogacwi

Luanne Fouché

•

BA Psychology, University of Zululand, 1988

•

Senior Teacher’s Diploma

•

University Education Diploma, University of Zululand, 1989

•

Certificate Programme in Management Development (Municipal Finance) (WITS University)

•

Bachelor of Education, Unisa, 1993

•

Executive Director Corporate Services

•

Post-Graduate Certificate in Municipal Leadership,
University of Durban-Westville, 2002

•

Sol Plaatje Municipality 2006 – To date.

•

Post-Graduate Certificate in Municipal Management,
University of Free State, 2005

Nomonde Tyabashe-Kesiamang

•

Post-Graduate Certificate in Municipal Finance, University of the Witwatersrand, 2009

•

Masters in City and Regional Planning (MCRP)
- University of Cape Town

•

In July 2000 joined Sol Plaatje Municipality as Executive Director of Technical Services, now known
as Infrastructure Services.

•

BA Hons - University of Transkei

•

BA - University of Transkei

•

Certificate Programme in Municipal Finance
CPMD (FM) - Wits University

•

Basic Course in Property - University of Pretoria

•

Higher Certificate in Project Management Damelin

•

Infrastructure Planning and Local Economic
Development - Harvard University Graduate
School of Design

•

Secondary Teachers’ Diploma - Transkei College of Education

•

Professional Town and Regional Planner with
the South African Council for Planners – SACPLAN.

•

Member of an Executive Committee for South
Africa Planning Institute (SAPI) Northern Cape/
Free State Board. This is a voluntary association for Town and Regional Planners

•

•

In 1993 was elected as a Northern Cape Senator at
National Parliament. In 1996 after the adoption of
the Constitution of South Africa I returned to the
Northern Cape Province and served as a Member of
the Provincial Legislature.
In 1983, an educator in Kimberley.

Ruth Sebolecwe
•

Advanced Diploma: Public Admin (Unisa – 1997)

•

BA: Public Admin & Political Science (Unisa – 2001)

•

BA Honour Degree: Public Admin (Unisa – 2003)

•

Certificate Programme in Management Development
- (Municipal Finance) (WITS University)

•

Sol Plaatje Municipality 1981 – To date

•

29 Years experience in the Municipality environment

•

Employment Equity Manager

•

•

Acting: Director Community & Social Development
Services from February 2007 to date.

Member of South African Property Owners Association - SAPOA

•

Trustee of Frances Baard SMME Development
Trust Board.

Lydia Mahloko
•

BCom Honours in Business Management

•

BCompt Degree – University of South Africa

•

BCom Degree – Vista University Bloemfontein Campus
(now known as University of Free State)

•

Acting Chief Financial Officer since March 2009

•

Appointed permanently from 1 June 2005 in the
Finance Directorate and progressed through the
ranks in the same directorate.

•

2003 joined Sol Plaatje Municipality as Municipal
Finance Intern.

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report 2009/2010
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1.5 Executive Summary
Municipal Vision
Sol Plaatje, a dynamic Municipality that provides
a comprehensive range of affordable services to
all its residents.

Mission of the Sol Plaatje Municipality
To be a dynamic, sustainable and efficient municipality by:
• Focusing on institutional transformation and
management systems.
• Ensuring access to quality, reliable and affordable
services.
• Strengthening relations with all stakeholders.
• Maximising income through responsible financial discipline.
• Providing a challenging and rewarding working
environment for all its employees.
This mission provides the foundation for the
achievement of the Municipality’s priorities.

Sol Plaatje Municipality’s Core Values
The Municipality has developed a set of value
statements, which govern and modify behaviour
across the organisation. These values will be portrayed throughout the organisation.

• Customer Focus
In everything that we do on a daily basis customer satisfaction will be our priority, and in
this regard the needs of the customer will be
paramount.

• Integrity
At every level of interface with our customers,
partners, peers and subordinates our conduct
will at all times be exemplary and constructive.

• Honesty
Regardless of the potential consequences,
honesty will always be the best policy.

• Openness and Transparency
Information and knowledge will be shared
willingly in an open manner. There will be no
hidden agendas.
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• Developmental Orientation
We recognise that the success of the Municipality does not depend on our own success
alone and we will actively seek participation of
the public, other spheres of government and
municipalities in our region and also link with
other municipalities nationally and internationally.

Linkage with National Key Performance
Areas (KPA) for Local Government
Sol Plaatje Municipality, through its IDP, endorsed
the five National Key Performance Areas, namely:

1. Local Economic Development
2. Basic and Sustainable Service Delivery and
Infrastructure Development
3. Municipal Financial Viability and Management
4. Municipal Institutional Development and
Transformation
5. Good Governance and Public Participation.
Within each of the KPAs, the Municipality developed
strategic objectives to address its own unique key
priority issues. These emphasis shifts were needed
on the one hand to make the objectives attainable
in the specific context of the SPM circumstances,
and on the other to emphasise the overarching
objectives related to the space-economy and longterm growth.
SPM will therefore focus on the following overarching strategic objectives within each of the national KPAs to ensure a sustainable growth path
for the City of Kimberley and the Municipality as
a whole:
• In terms of Local Economic Development SPM
will ensure that growth is infrastructure led
and driven.
• SPM will provide sustainable services to all
its residents, but will prioritise those areas in
greatest need.
• Infrastructure development will be done in
a planned, prioritised, costed and bankable
manner linked to effective operational and
maintenance plans.
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• In terms of Financial Management the Municipality was able, during
this reporting period, to stabilise its financial situation in such a
manner that it ended the financial year with a positive cash flow
situation. It will now ensure, through a well-defined financial strategy,
to establish and maintain future financial sustainability.
• The administration has also been stabilised, and an Institutional
Transformation Plan aimed at improved performance and service
delivery will be completed by the end of 2010. This will ensure:
•

sound leadership

•

management

•

systems

•

processes and procedures

•

human resource management

•

good staff morale and prevent confusion in respect of strategic
direction

•

organisational arrangements

•

teamwork

•

internal communications.

This transformation initiative will ensure a capable and capacitated
municipal organisation with improved performance on all levels, but
especially in service delivery.
• Good governance in the first instance is about achieving a clean audit report. This has received priority status during the latter half of
this reporting period through Operation Clean Audit Report (OPCAR).
SPM is also in the process, through the review of the municipal Governance Model, to ensure an effective interface between the Administration and the Political Offices – especially with regard to roles
and responsibilities as well as a pro-active Communications System
– both internally and externally. Public participation will also be
mainstreamed and a continuous Community Based Planning (and
monitoring) System will be developed.
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Chapter 2:

Municipal performance highlights
The following tables indicate the performance of the Sol Plaatje Municipality within the different Key Performance Areas against the high-level service delivery targets for the 2009/2010 financial year compared
to the 2008/2009 financial year’s performance. These targets were made public as part of the Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP) during July 2009.

2.1 Organisational Service Delivery Performance
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Local Economic
Development

Municipal Key
Performance Area

To facilitate
economic development, establish
relationships with
business community and key
national, provincial
and neighbouring
stakeholders and
monitor economic
indicators pro-actively with business
sector input

To provide a sound,
affordable and
predicable environment for business
to control its risks
and costs in order
to expand existing
economic activity
and to attract new
development

Alignment of the
SDF with the LED
policy to promote
economic
development

Key Performance
Indicator

IDP Strategic
Objective
2008/2009

Actual
Achieved

IDP, SDF and
Sectoral plans
aligned

100%

25%

100%

25%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

2009/2010

Actual
Achieved

Maintaining data
and quarterly
reporting on economic indicators
with business
community

Not a target
for 2009/2010

2009/2010

Annual
Target

Eight

Not a target in previous year

2008/2009

Annual
Target

Relationships
formalised and
Not a target in previous year Four
number of working
sessions

Socio-economic
survey completed
in 2010/2011

Measurement
unit

Report on Performance on Service Delivery Targets:
1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010

In terms of the strategic direction, Sol Plaatje
did not develop its IDP in isolation. A range of
national, provincial and district policy documents
informs IDP thinking and creates an important
context for its own plans and strategies

The process of refining the strategy accepts
the validity and urgency of the issues set out in
the past and current IDPs, but it argues that Sol
Plaatje Municipality should address these issues
from a strong base, or common starting point
(the Geographic Space-economy).

During the review of 2008/2009 the Municipality
began a process of refining the aligning of its
development strategy with the view to develop
its overall strategic objectives in such a way that
it provides a better framework for sector-specific
and joint work which is integrated and mutually
supportive (SDF, ITP, LED, WSDP etc).

Maintenance is done through EconoMonitor,
which updates information on quarterly basis.

Relationships were established with CIDB,
Mangaung Local Municipality, Matlosana Local
Municipality, Living Stone (Belgium) and NOCCI
(a CBD Association). A working relationship
was established with NUM, which needs to be
formalised through a MOU. In June, SPM hosted
an Investment summit, UDZ and LED Forum.

This should not have been included as a target
as the process is only planned for the 2010/2011
financial year. However, the target was achieved,
as the EconoMonitor is currently the tool used
for capturing socio-economic indicators.

Comment
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Local Economic
Development

Municipal Key
Performance Area

Number of jobs
created through
initiatives of the
SPM (including
EPWP, capital,
maintenance and
LED projects)

% of procurement
budget spend on
procuring from
local SMMEs and
BEEs

To ensure that the
Municipality annually spends 60%
of its procurement
budget on goods
and services provided by local BEE and
SMME enterprises

Create economic
growth by maintaining and
enhancing
Kimberley and
existing outlying
settlements as sustainable, attractive
centres of living,
services and work
within their existing
footprints

Key Performance
Indicator

To maximise the
number of jobs created through local
economic development initiatives and
projects by 2012

IDP Strategic
Objective
2008/2009

Annual
Target
2008/2009

Actual
Achieved
2009/2010

Annual
Target

% procurement

Man-days jobs
provided: Projects

Man-days jobs
provided: LED
initiatives

60%

72%

10,965

60%

800,000

100,000

% of Developmental plans with key
governmental and Not a target in previous year 50%
other stakeholders
completed

Measurement
unit

Report on Performance on Service Delivery Targets:
1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010

60%

388,700

113,592

50%

2009/2010

Actual
Achieved

The actual achieved referred to locality of business (local) and not BEE and SMME due to the
financial system not being able to generate the
required report

These jobs were mainly created through the
EPWP incentive programme. Due to budget
limitation, this target could not be achieved.

The majority of jobs created through LED initiatives are part of the National Skills Development
Strategy, Objective II.

Through the LED Unit, Sol Plaatje has a relationship with Northern Cape Department of Education through the National Skills Development
Strategy

Completion of developmental plans that have
an impact on Frances Baard district municipality
(with relevant municipalities), as contained in the
SDF.

Developmental plans in the form of Business
Cases were submitted to National Treasury, in
partnership with various provincial departments,
i.e. Correctional Services; Ministry of Transport,
Department. of Safety and Liaison, Department
of Economic Development and Tourism; South
African Police Services.
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Measurement
unit

Measure quality of
service delivery by
determining service
delivery gaps, levels % completed
and standards.
Measure against
set norms

Key Performance
Indicator
2008/2009

Actual
Achieved
2009/2010

Annual
Target

Not a target in previous year 40%

2008/2009

Annual
Target

To provide 1,215

Number of
households in
formal areas
provided with
a metered water
connection by June metered water
connections
2009/2010

725

Number of
households in forNumber of
mal areas provided
households
with sanitation
connections
Number of
households
connected to water Number of
households
in informal areas
Number of
households
Number of
connected with
households
sanitation services
in informal areas

To provide 5,645
households in
formal settlements
with basic sanitation by 2011/2012

To provide 8,400
households with
water connections
in informal areas
by 2011/2012

To provide 8,400
households with
water connections
in informal areas
by 2011/2012

-

425

381

Number of
households

72

420

529

303

1,750

1,750

1,250

400

To ensure
sustainable service
Differentiated serdelivery to the
residents of SPM vice delivery model
to enhance revenue and improve Plan completed by
Not a target in previous year 100%
service delivery to June 2010
residents submitted to Council for
consideration

IDP Strategic
Objective

households in
Sustainable
Service Delivery formal areas with

Municipal Key
Performance Area

Report on Performance on Service Delivery Targets:
1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010

0

2,640

560

560

50%

40%

2009/2010

Actual
Achieved

No funding allocated during the financial year to
address this target.

264 standpipes were provided which services
approximately 2,640 households.

The target for sanitation has been overstated as
it is directly linked to the target for water
connections.

Target exceeded due to additional funding
received.

Council has now approved the Bulk Infrastructure
Study, which deals with issues arising from this
KPI.

Service delivery levels, standards and backlogs
for water, electricity, sanitation and roads have
been determined against national norms.

Comment
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Key Performance
Indicator

To provide shelter
for all by 2014
based on current
demographic projections. (Backlog
14,794 units)

50kms of roads
are surfaced by
2011/2012. (Total
backlog 257 Km)
Number of Km

7Km

Preparation and
implementation of
a five-year
Integrated Human
Settlement Plan
(IHSP) align with
Growth and
Development
Strategy (GDS) by
July 2010
% progress

100%

Number of
Number of houses 397
subsidised houses
provided

Additional kms
roads surfaced

14%

To reduce
electricity losses to % electricity losses %
11% by 2010/2011

2008/2009

26%

Measurement
unit

Annual
Target

%

To reduce water
losses to 15%
% water losses
(from a base of
42%) by 2010/2011

IDP Strategic
Objective

Sustainable
Service Delivery To ensure that

Municipal Key
Performance Area

Report on Performance on Service Delivery Targets:
1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010

0%

187

8,9Km

12,26%

42%

2008/2009

Actual
Achieved

100%

3,358

10Km

12.00%

22%

2009/2010

Annual
Target

100%

1,277

3,5Km

16,43%

42%

2009/2010

Actual
Achieved

The Integrated Human Settlement Plan (IHSP) was
developed during the financial year. The plan is
awaiting Council approval.

This target depends on the number of subsidies approved by Provincial Human Settlement Department.
For this financial year, only 1,277 housing subsidies
were approved and not the original amount that was
the basis for planning.

Target not reached, due to overstating of the target,
and limited funding.

Due to the bypassing of prepayment, meters and old
Plessey sequence meters that need to be replaced
the electricity losses actually increased. As a result of
a court interdict, the Municipality could not replace
prepaid meters. This has now been resolved and a
process has been commenced to replace the pre-paid
meters. SPM replaced approximately 5,000 in this
financial year, which contributed towards stabilising
the losses during the year. This process is continuing.

The target was not reached due to ageing infrastructure, households that are not on the billing system,
defunct meters etc. However, a process to decrease
the water losses has commenced – the Non-Revenue
Water Minimisation (NRWM) study – which will show
visible results once the recommendations of this
study are implemented. DBSA sponsored this study,
which commenced in May 2010.
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Sustainable
Service Delivery

Municipal Key
Performance Area

To maximise the
number of indigent
households
receiving free
basic services by
2011/2012

To ensure that
all households
receive a weekly
solid waste removal
service

To provide 1,800
households with
electricity
connections in
the Sol Plaatje
municipal area by
2011/2012 (Total
backlog 7,686)

IDP Strategic
Objective

Number of
households

Measurement
unit

16,000

-

To maximise the
number of indigent Number of
households
households
receiving free basic receiving FBAE
alternative energy
by 2011/2012

16,000

New
households
added

155

2008/2009

Annual
Target

To maximise the
number of indigent Number of
households
households
receiving free
receiving FBE
basic electricity by
2011/2012

To maximise the
number of indigent Number of
households
households
receiving free basic receiving FBW
water by 2011/2012

Number of
additional
Number of
households
additional
provided with solid
households
waste removal
services

Number of
households
provided with
electricity connections

Key Performance
Indicator

Report on Performance on Service Delivery Targets:
1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010

-

6,589

6,589

859

94

2008/2009

Actual
Achieved

100

17,000

17,000

No new
numerical
target set

300

2009/2010

Annual
Target

0

8,956

8,956

2,000

136

2009/2010

Actual
Achieved

No free alternative basic energy is available at
this time and our efforts to introduce such a
scheme requires further investigation and
funding.

The revised policy, effective from 1 July 2010,
will greatly improve our reach to the indigent
community as well as ease the burden of
verification.

No indigent verification took place this year.
SPM decided to migrate to a different method
of indigent verification and subsidy provision in
the new financial year, which received Council
approval.

A weekly refuse collection service to 2,000
additional households was implemented.

136 Houses were electrified in Soul City (107)
and Greenpoint (29) with own municipal funding.
Applications are being prepared for sourcing of
funding for the remaining backlog.
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Infrastructure
Development

Municipal Key
Performance Area
Research
completed and
infrastructure
investment plan
and maintenance
plans updated

Research concerning infrastructure
and maintenance
needs in terms of
service delivery
needs identified.

2008/2009

Actual
Achieved
2009/2010

Annual
Target

Not a target in previous year 75%

2008/2009

Annual
Target

Integrated Bulk
Infrastructure
Rehabilitation and
Operations Plan
approved by
Council and
implemented
75%
100%

% progress in
implementing Plan

% Developed
during 2009/2010

Not a target in previous year
10%

100%

% progress in
Not a target in previous year 10%
implementing Plan

% Developed
Develop and
100%
during 2009/2010
implement
integrated Waste
Not a target in previous year
Management plan
% progress in
over next ten years
10%
implementing Plan

Develop and
implement an
integrated
environmental
management plan
over next ten years

100%

% progress in
Not a target in previous year 10%
implementing Plan

% Developed
during 2009/2010

Implement Integrated
Infrastructure
% progress in
Not a target in previous year 20%
Investment Plan by implementing plan
June 2011

Measurement
unit

Key Performance
Indicator

To ensure a
sustainable and
well-maintained
infrastructure
development
Integrated
programme for
Infrastructure
SPM by 2011/2012 and Assets
Maintenance and
Operations Plan
implemented

IDP Strategic
Objective

Report on Performance on Service Delivery Targets:
1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010

0%

75%

0%

10%

0%

0%

80%

0

50%

2009/2010

Actual
Achieved

Consultants were appointed to assist the Municipality
in preparing the IWMP. A first draft was completed by
end of August, and a workshop with relevant
stakeholders scheduled for the first week in
September 2010.
Consultants appointed. Awaiting first draft. Workshop
for draft scheduled for first week in September 2010.

Funding was only made available in April 2010
to procure the services of a service provider to
assist the Municipality to prepare an IEMP.

Implementation will only commence once funding has
been sourced for the KPI and is linked to the “Bigen
Africa Bulk Infrastructure Study”. The Municipality is in
the process of securing funds for this process to unfold.

Council has approved a feasibility study on the
bulk infrastructure investment plan as well as an
action plan. Funds are being sourced to
implement this plan.
The intention is to take up borrowing in the next
financial cycle.
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Financial
Viability and
Management

Infrastructure
Development

Municipal Key
Performance Area
2009/2010

2009/2010

85%

100%

% of the
operational budget % spend
spend annually

To spend 100%
of the operational
budget annually

80%

93MVA

% spend

Payment levels

MVA/% reduction
in electricity
consumption
93MVA

100%

85%

87%

94 MVA

90,53%

67%

77%

96 MVA

10%

% progress in
Not a target in previous year 10%
implementing Plan

100%

10Km

100%

100%

103,548m2

100%

% Developed
during 2009/2010

50,000m2

% of the capital
budget spend
annually

% increase in
payment levels

To realise at least
a 10% saving on
SPMs electricity
consumption by
July 2008

Development and
implementation
of a Sustainable
Energy and Climate
Change Strategy
(SPECCS)

Kms of roads
patched and
resealed
32.9Km

2008/2009

Actual
Achieved

Kms of road
patched and
resealed

2008/2009

Annual
Target

2%

Measurement
unit

Actual
Achieved

Implement
integrated
% progress in
Not a target in previous year 100%
transport plan over implementing Plan
next ten years

Key Performance
Indicator

Annual
Target

To spend at least
85% of the capital
budget annually

To increase the
payment level to
87% by 2010/2011
for current billing

IDP Strategic
Objective

Report on Performance on Service Delivery Targets:
1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010

Depreciation on assets decreased due to the
assets unbundling process. The low collection
rate and impairment of debt also increased.

After correcting the actual assets created, an
item will be taken to Council. This correction
entails taking off the maintenance expenditure,
housing development as well as Opex in the
capital Budget. After this correction actual capital
spend is 84,32%

Due to current economic conditions, payment
levels remain low. The Municipality, however,
focused on debt collection older than 90 days
which improved the payment levels to 81%

Demand from Eskom is 120 MVA; highest
demand in June 2010 is 107.71 MVA. Hot water
geysers switched off during peak demand to
realise saving. Notwithstanding the growth
in electricity demand, the target was almost
achieved

Additional funds were allocated by the
Department of Roads, Transport and Public
Works and COGHSTA.

Linking Green street & Nobengula project, linking
Phillip Mphiwa with Silson road project forms
part of the ITP. Target was overstated as no funds
were allocated this financial year to continue
with implementation.
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Financial
Viability and
Management

Municipal Key
Performance Area

Key Performance
Indicator

95%

100%

Not a target in previous year 100%

100%

1:1; or
maintain
current status

4:5

2:1

2009/2010

Annual
Target

% increase in own
funding to fund
Not a target in previous year 5%
capital programme

Develop long-term
financial plan for
% developed
Council approval by
Dec 2009

A fully functional
100% functional
electronic financial
financial system
system in operation
by 1 July 2008

Increase the
municipal reserves
by at least 1% per To increase own
funding to fund
annum
own municipal
social and
development
initiatives

To procure and
implement a
functional integrated
electronic financial
management
system to efficiently
manage the finances
of the Municipality in
compliance with the
MFMA by July 2008

Ratio

1:1; or
maintain
1:0.45
current status

Ratio of cost
coverage

Increase the cost
coverage ratio to
1:1 annually or
maintain the
current status

1:3.76

4:5

32.87:1

2008/2009

To reduce the
ratio of outstanding Ratio of
outstanding service Ratio
service debtors
debtors to revenue
to revenue by
2010/2011

2008/2009

Actual
Achieved

2:1

Measurement
unit

Annual
Target

Ratio

Maintain the debt
coverage ratio at
current levels or at Ratio of debt
coverage
least 2:1 against
net assets of the
Municipality

IDP Strategic
Objective

Report on Performance on Service Delivery Targets:
1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010

6,83%

25%

95%

1:0.84

1:292

2,54:1

2009/2010

Actual
Achieved

The framework as well as all the relevant
information is available and the financial plan
will be included in the IDP Review that
commences in September 2010.

The Intenda module and e-document system is
not yet fully functional.

The decrease in debtors is as a result of
impairment at year end
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Municipal
Institutional
Development
and
Transformation

Municipal Key
Performance Area
Alignment of the
budget with the
IDP and SDBIP
and the respective
reporting systems
by August 2009

Enhance financial
management and
reporting practices
to municipal
stakeholders

To enhance service
delivery with
efficient
institutional
support by June
2010

To improve
institutional
effectiveness
% achievement

Improvement on
turnaround time
on applications for
building plan
Turnaround time
approval from date
(weeks)
of receiving the
correct and
complete
application

Improve turnaround
Turnaround time
time of SCM
(weeks)
process

Effective delivery
against KPIs
identified as per
departmental
service delivery
plans

2008/2009

Annual
Target
2008/2009

Actual
Achieved
2009/2010

Annual
Target

70%

60%

3

8

3

8-12

2

8

Not a target in previous year 80%

70%

% aligned and
Not a target in previous year 90%
reporting alignment

Measurement
unit

To ensure that all
levels of personnel
on the organogram
of the SPM are
Representivity in
100% representative terms of the SPLM % Representivity
and in line with the Equity Plan
employment equity
plan of the Municipality by June 2011

Key Performance
Indicator

IDP Strategic
Objective

Report on Performance on Service Delivery Targets:
1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010

3

10

30%

70%

90%

2009/2010

Actual
Achieved

Moratorium on development has influenced the
slow progress in terms of processing building
plans.

The SCM structures and processes have been
reviewed and implementation commenced.
There will be visible improvement during the first
quarter of 2010/2011.

Service providers were appointed in May 2010
with one of the targets being the drafting of a HR
Strategy. Draft HR Plan envisaged by Sept 2010.

Most targets reached and being maintained
even on acting positions

Alignment achieved. There is an ongoing
process to enhance this alignment.
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Municipal
Institutional
Development
and
Transformation

Municipal Key
Performance Area

To design an
organisational
structure by
2009/2010

To ensure that all
Section 57 managers
comply with the
minimum
competency levels as
prescribed by the
Municipal Regulations
on Minimum
Competency Levels
by 2012

To ensure 100%
expenditure of the
allocated budget
to implement the
Workplace Skills
Plan annually

Measurement
unit

Design and
population of the
organisational
structure

Number of Section
57 Managers who
have attained the
necessary higher
qualification as
prescribed by the
Regulations

% expenditure of
budget
100%

100%

25

2008/2009

Annual
Target

% progress

100%

Number of
Managers attaining
40%
prescribed higher
qualification

% expenditure

% completion of
HR Strategy

Improvement on
turnaround time
on development
applications from
Turnaround time
date of receiving
(weeks)
the correct and
complete application
(excl. appeals,
EIAs, Traffic Impact
Studies, etc.)

Key Performance
Indicator

To ensure
completion of an
Integrated Human Council adopted
Resource Strategy, HR Strategy
aligned with the
IDP by 2010

IDP Strategic
Objective

Report on Performance on Service Delivery Targets:
1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010

95%

40%

100%

40%

25

2008/2009

Actual
Achieved

100%

60%

96%

100%

12

2009/2010

Annual
Target

25%

60%

0%

50%

16

2009/2010

Actual
Achieved

“As is” structure presented to Council, held in
abeyance. Service providers appointed to assist
SPM to assess existing structure and effect
changes where necessary. This process will be
completed by end August 2010.

No funding received for 2009/2010.

Service providers were appointed in May 2010
to assist SPM with the drafting of an integrated
HR Strategy. Draft HR Plan envisaged to be
completed by end Sept 2010.

Moratorium on development has influenced the
slow progress in terms of the process of
submitting items to the Development and
Planning Committee for recommendation to
Council for final decision.
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Good
Governance and
Public
Participation

Municipal
Institutional
Development
and
Transformation

Municipal Key
Performance Area

Number of ward
committees
Number of
functional and
committees
involved in planning
involved
and developmental
activities

To enhance s
tructured public
participation
processes for the
different levels
of planning and
development by
the Municipality by
2009/2010

To establish
comprehensive
corporate
branding for Sol
Plaatje Municipality

% of approved
posts on
organogram
competently filled

To populate the
organisational
structure by
2011/2012
45%

0%

2008/2009

Actual
Achieved

60%

100%

30%

Develop and
implement SPM
marketing strategy % completion and
to package the
implementation of Not a target in previous year 75%
offering and growth strategy
opportunities of the
municipal area

20%

18

75%

0%

2009/2010

Actual
Achieved

50%

100%

Annual
Target
2009/2010

Not a target in previous year 28

60%

100%

2008/2009

Annual
Target

100%

Council adopted
Comprehensive
% completion of
Communication
Communication
Strategy (including
strategy
corporate image
library)
implemented

% of posts
competently filled

% progress

Implementation of
the MIS

To ensure that the
Council adopted
Municipal Information
Systems (MIS)
Strategy is fully
implemented by
2009/2010

Measurement
unit

Key Performance
Indicator

IDP Strategic
Objective

Report on Performance on Service Delivery Targets:
1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010

Various initiatives are in process to complete
this strategy such as the Investment Incentive
Scheme, Urban Development Zone Tax Incentive,
Tourism initiatives etc which will eventually be
integrated into a complete marketing strategy.

Strategy in draft format. To be tabled to EMT
and Council.

The ten ward committees not functional are
reported to be due to political interference/
differences. In total 168 ward committee
meetings were held.

After approval by Council of the reviewed
structure, a process will be developed to
populate the structure.

Due to financial constraints, this project cannot
be completed within the 2009/2010 budget year.
If the necessary budget can be secured, this
project will be completed by 30 September 2010
as part of the Municipality’s IDP.
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Good
Governance and
Public
Participation

Municipal Key
Performance Area
Number of reports

Measurement
unit
2008/2009

Actual
Achieved

Annual
Target
2009/2010

Qualified

Disclaimer

100%

90%

16

2009/2010

Actual
Achieved

40%

Not a target in previous year 50%

40%

70%

20%

Qualified report Await AGs
Report

Not a target in previous year 100%

Not a target in previous year 100%

Not a target in previous year 14

2008/2009

Annual
Target

% implemented
and performance of Not a target in previous year 100%
team measured

% Performance
Integrated Performance management
Management System system
implemented

Re-introduce the
strategic leadership
governance structure

A qualified audit report;
leading up to an unqualified audit opinion
by fully implementing Audit opinion
operation audit cleanup
and conduct audit readiness reviews thereafter

Develop and roll out a
Fraud Prevention Plan % completion of
FPP
(FPP)

Develop and roll out an
% completion of
Enterprise Risk
ERM Strategy
Management Strategy

Audits in terms of
Internal Audit Plan

Key Performance
Indicator

Improve the satisfaction
of residents and
Customer satisfaction
Customer
councillors with
as measured according
satisfaction
front-line, face-to-face
to the Likert scale
and over-the counter
services by 2010

Enhance the system
of governance of Sol
Plaatje Municipality

To ensure an
unqualified audit
report for the
2010/2011
Financial Year

IDP Strategic
Objective

Report on Performance on Service Delivery Targets:
1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010

80% of the customer survey has been completed. The
remaining 20% comprises the analysis of the results and
presentation of the report. This will be completed by no
later than end of August 2010.

Integrated Performance Management Policy adopted by
Council. Organisational and S57 Managers Performance
System implemented. Individual performance
management for lower levels (level 6) to be implemented
from December 2010.

Service providers were appointed in June 2010 to assist
the Municipality with Institutional Building, including a
review of the Governance Model that will include the
administrative governance, interface with political
structures and capacitating EMT and Mayoral Committee
on governance issues including performance
management at the top level.

OPCAR process ongoing. At present overall progress is
62%. Target can only be measured once the AG submits
his Audit Report.

The Fraud Prevention Plan has been approved by Council,
and the implementation priorities identified by the EMT.
The plan now needs to be fully implemented.

Draft document completed - submitted to Audit
Committee on 21 July 2010 for approval and thereafter
to Policy Committee and Council for formal adoption and
implementation.

Sixteen reports were concluded during 2009/2010,
however there are three projects that were deferred to
2010/2011

Comment

2.2 Backlogs in Service Delivery
Although significant in-roads were made in eradicating backlogs in
terms of access to especially household services such as housing, water,
sanitation, electricity, solid waste as indicated in the table, various
service backlogs still exist that need be addressed. During the preparation of the Sims Municipal Turnaround Strategy in May/June 2010, an
in-depth investigation was done in terms of existing backlogs in order
to put plans in place to eradicate these backlogs in line with National
Government’s service delivery targets in the Local Government Turnaround Strategy.

Water Backlogs
Backlogs for the water service are based on the number of households
without access to this service. These backlogs include both formal and
informal areas within the municipal jurisdiction. At the beginning of the
financial year backlogs in terms of the water service were standing at an
estimate of 8,290 households. During the financial year 2009/2010, 560
households were provided with water services, these households are
located in the Donkerhoek (360) and Ikageng Ritchie (200) area of the
Municipality. The estimated backlog is now 7,730 households.

Sanitation Backlogs
Backlogs for the sanitation service are based on the number of households
without access to this service. These backlogs include both formal and
informal areas within the municipal jurisdiction. At the beginning of the
financial year backlogs in terms of the sanitation service were standing
at an estimate of 8,290 households. During the financial year 2009/2010,
560 households were provided with sanitation services, these households are located in Donkerhoek (360) and Ikageng Ritchie (200) area of
the Municipality. The estimated backlog is now 7,730 households.

Electricity Backlogs
Backlogs for the electricity service are linked to the number of households
without access to this service. These backlogs include both formal and
informal areas within the municipal jurisdiction. At the beginning of
the financial year backlogs in terms of the electrical service stood at an
estimate of 8,290 households. During the financial year 2009/2010, 136
households were provided with electricity connections, these households
are located in the Soul City (107) and Greenpoint (29) areas of the
Municipality. The estimated backlog is now 7,730 households.

Roads Backlogs
Backlogs on municipal roads are estimated based on the number of
kilometres of roads not surfaced in the municipal jurisdiction. These
backlogs include all dirt/earth and gravel roads within the residential areas
but exclude backlogs relating to surfaced roads, which are maintenance
related. At the beginning of the financial year the roads backlogs were
standing at an estimate of 257 kilometres. During the financial year
2009/2010, at least 3.5 kilometres of roads were constructed in various wards within the Municipality. The estimated backlog is now 253
kilometres.
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The tables below give a summary of the present
services and infrastructure backlogs

Table: Service Delivery Backlogs
The table indicates the updated backlogs as determined during SPMs Municipal Turnaround
Strategy (MTAS) during April 2010.
Service

Households

Access to Water and Sanitation

7,730

Access to Electricity

8,154

Housing

8,290
Approximately
10,000

Informal settlements to be formalised
Solid Waste Removal

4,300

Due to the serious challenge facing the Municipality
in terms of its bulk infrastructure backlogs, it cannot
provide households with these services, especially
electricity and sanitation, until the backlog in the bulk
infrastructure has been addressed. The Table below
indicates the backlog in the bulk infrastructure.

Linked to the above backlogs is old and ageing
infrastructure that hampers development and
service delivery and negatively influences the
Municipality’s revenue streams and possible new
investments. These are indicated in the table below:

Table: Maintenance backlogs and losses at
30 June 2010
Infrastructure
Streets (maintenance – potholes)

Backlog
84Km of surfaced
streets

Gravel Streets to be surfaced

205.5Km

Electricity losses

16.43%

Water losses

42%

Table: Bulk Infrastructure backlog
Bulk Infrastructure

Backlog

Homevale Waste Water
Treatment Works

10 – 15Ml per day

Beaconsfield Waste Water
2Ml per day
Treatment Works
Ritchie Sewerage
Oxidation Plant

1.5Ml per day

Ritchie Water Treatment
Plant

Refurbish existing
infrastructure to bring it to its
optimum operational capacity

Bulk Electricity Supply
(and network upgrade)

80MVA

Upgrade of key Electrical
substations/transformers

Various substations/
transformers to receive the
increased capacity

Riverton Water Treatment
Refurbish existing
Plant
infrastructure to bring it to its
Carters Ridge and Newton optimum operational capacity
Water Reservoirs
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2.3 Level and Standard of Service
There is an important difference between the level and standard of service
and this must be considered when calculating backlogs. A poor standard
of service should actually be seen as a backlog – piped water (house
connection) that cannot deliver water to a household due to pipe bursts
should therefore be considered as a backlog. A well-functioning communal standpipe should in fact not be considered as a backlog although
it is a much lower level of service as piped water. SPM has therefore calculated its backlogs according to the level of service described below.

Water Service
The Strategic Framework for Water Services of the former Department
of Water Affairs and Forestry (September 2003), defines a basic water
supply facility as:

“The infrastructure necessary to supply 25 litres of potable water per
person per day within 200 metres of a household and with a minimum flow of 10 litres per minute (in case of communal water points)
or 6,000 litres of potable water supplied per formal connection per
month (in case of yard or house connections).”
This would include the infrastructure necessary for the abstraction, conveyance, treatment and distribution of potable water, water intended for
conversion to potable water or water for commercial use, but not water
for industrial use.
There is a range of water supply service options that generally fall below
the minimum “RDP level”. This includes unimproved traditional sources,
tanker systems, and some forms of private water cartage and vending.
Levels that are at or above the minimum level are described as follows:
• Communal standpipes - Basic level of service (within 200 metres
from the dwelling i.e. RDP standard).
• Yard tanks - Basic level of service (where a supply is provided to a
tank on the ground, typically 250 litres) at the individual dwelling or
group of dwellings in a yard. The tank is filled daily).
• Roof tanks - Intermediate level of service (where the tank is located
on the roof in order to provide a semi-pressure supply).
• Yard taps - Basic level of service (where the supply is to a single tap
in the yard, possibly with a connection to an external toilet of flush
sanitation is used).
• House connections - Full level of service (supply connected to a pipe
work system, which runs to bathrooms and kitchen in the house).
Sol Plaatje Municipality has adopted the full level of service for all its
formal areas this consists of a house connection with a water supply
connected to a pipe work system, which runs to the bathrooms and
kitchen in the house. In the informal area the Municipality provides
communal standpipes which is a basic level of service, these standpipes
are 200 metres radius apart and in some instances may be at a lesser
radius.
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Sanitation Service
The Cabinet approved the Strategic Framework
for Water Services (2003), which defines a basic
sanitation facility as:

“The infrastructure necessary to provide a sanitation service which is safe, reliable, private,
protected from the weather, ventilated, keeps
smells to the minimum, is easy to keep clean,
minimises the risk of the spread of sanitationrelated diseases by facilitating the appropriate
control of disease carrying flies and pests, and
enables safe and appropriate treatment and/or
removal of human waste and wastewater in an
environmentally sound manner.”
A basic sanitation service is defined in the Strategic
Framework for Water Services as:

“The provision of a basic sanitation facility
which is easily accessible to a household, the
sustainable operation of the facility, including
the safe removal of human waste and wastewater from the premises where this is appropriate and necessary, and the communication
of good sanitation, hygiene and related practices.”
The final choice of the type of service rests with
the Water Services Authority (WSA). In order for
the WSA to take such a decision they must ensure
that it is practical as well as financially viable and
sustainable.
Several sanitation systems are widely applied in
South Africa, but do not meet the basic level of
service requirements. Bucket toilets and unimproved pit toilets are the most obvious, but problems have also been experienced with the operation and maintenance of other systems. Chemical
toilets are prohibitively expensive for continuous
use and should only be considered as a shortterm and temporary measure (3-5 months).
Adequate service level options for sanitation include:
• VIP toilets and other approved dry, on-site
sanitation systems.
• Low-flow on-site (LOFLOS) systems (seldom
used owing to bad experiences with certain
manufacturer’s proprietary models, but have
potential for more extensive use).
• Septic tanks (usually used in areas not serviced with sewers but where full flush systems
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are installed, may also be an upgradeable option or as an option where the household takes
over some of the treatment responsibility from
the municipal authority). These are suitable for
less densely populated areas with soil conditions that have good drainage properties.
• Septic tanks with solids-free sewers also referred to as septic tank effluent drainage
(STED) systems (appropriate for areas with
flush toilets but not serviced with conventional
sewers and where the soils are poorly drained
or areas with flush toilets that have become
densely populated where the potential of pollution from the effluent exists). The household
also takes on some of the responsibility for
sewage treatment and disposal.
• Full water-borne sanitation (the household
takes minimal responsibility for treatment and
disposal).
Sanitation service levels need to be planned in
conjunction with the availability of water resources and supply. Where flush systems are required,
there must be sufficient water available and the
viability of the system must take the cost of supplying water into account.
Sol Plaatje Municipality has adopted the full waterborne sanitation system that includes a toilet
structure with a flush toilet that is connected to
the municipal sewer reticulation network in all the
formal areas. In informal areas, portable toilets or
a bucket system is installed as a sanitation system
that is shared by several households.

Electricity Service
Electricity distribution (defined as electricity reticulation in the constitution) is a municipal function
and supplied by the Municipality, with Secom’s
distribution arm being a large-scale service provider serving a large proportion of South Africa’s
municipalities. The bulk supply up to the municipal boundary is not a municipal function but virtually the exclusive domain of Eskom. Costs for the
total reticulation have been aggregated by service
level and divided by the users served by a particular system hence the difference in cost of service.
The level of service referred to here concerns the
residential category that the Municipality supplies. In terms of the Department of Energy (DoE),
a basic provision of electricity that is subsidised
is 20 AMP per household and in relation to Free
Basic Electricity, the proposed levels of service are
50kWh per household per month for a grid-based
system for qualifying domestic consumers.
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Sol Plaatje Municipality took a resolution to provide each new household
with a 60 AMP grid connection. This may seem to be an expensive
option at the beginning of a project but may also be cost effective in the
long term especially where low-income areas are concerned. This decision was prompted by the fact that after developing low income areas,
households tend to upgrade their standard of living and therefore
require a higher level of service which the Municipality may not be ready
to provide at the time. To curb this the Municipality provides a higher
level of service to accommodate future upgrades.

Roads Service
Currently, there is not a national policy that defines a basic level of service
for roads serving households in residential areas. However, the Municipal Infrastructure Investment Framework refers to “all-weather access
to within 500 metres of the dwelling”. This could be interpreted as a
“basic level of service”. In urban areas, it is generally possible to improve upon this specification and to provide for vehicle access to each
erf. In some rural areas, where there are very small, scattered settlements, it may not be feasible to provide all-weather access to within 500
metres of every dwelling.
In the context of Sol Plaatje Municipality, a gravel road is not acceptable
as a basic service. This is due to the impact of operation and management costs and other urban road users applications (e.g. emergency
services, refuse removal, street sweeping by mechanical means), the
type of vehicles (e.g. taxis, buses), as well as the vehicle count per day.
Sol Plaatje Municipality has adopted the following level of service options for its residential roads:
• All-weather access to within 500 metres of the dwelling
• Paved width (intermediate or full level of service)
• Hot premix or other black top surfaces
• Access to each erf with graded or gravel-paved road (basic)
• Access to each erf with a narrow paved road or a wider road with a
narrow paved width (intermediate or full level of service).
Due to rainfall leading to surface run-off, high traffic volumes, gravel
roads are not recommended in the SPM area. Paved roads, constructed
using labour-intensive construction methods, are a preferable option.
The adaptability and suitability of the proposed road surface to the
storm water drainage to be used is considered as a there is a strong
linkage between roads and storm water service options (in a similar
manner that water and sanitation services are linked). Certain roads are
constructed in such a way that they carry storm water, thus serving a
dual purpose.
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2.4 Relating Backlogs to Municipal Spending on
Service Delivery Infrastructure
The Sol Plaatje Municipal Council faces a unique
challenge of capacity as well as ageing bulk infrastructure, which is unable to provide to the
needs of a growing city. The demand for growth
in housing, commercial developments and other
social and economic infrastructure has resulted
in the city’s infrastructural capacity being overstretched. This challenge in bulk infrastructure
backlogs have been summarised in the Table on
page ?..?.
From the above it is clear that current capacity is
below the desired need. In addition due to age,
lack of renewal and inadequate maintenance,
some of the reticulation infrastructure result in
considerable losses e.g. 41% losses in water.
Due to the above capacity constraints, the Sol
Plaatje Municipality placed a moratorium on further developments, which seek to densify (e.g.
housing, commercial projects) in August 2009
with considerable consequences to the city, its
growth, employment, etc.
Jointly with ABSA Bank, a feasibility study was
conducted, to determine the status quo and
programme of intervention for resolution of the
problem. Emanating from the study, a corrective
programme of action was mooted and approved
by Council on 9 June 2010.
In summary, the Council decision can be categorised into three phases:
a) Emergency Works: This involved improving
the functionality of the Homevale Waste Water
Treatment Works (WWTW). The project commenced in 2009 and will be complete by November 2010 at a cost of R60m (financed from
own, DWA and MIG funds).
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b) Embarking on certain priority projects which
will unlock development. These projects constitute projects ranging from water, electricity
to sewerage and will be implemented over 24
months.
c) Planning a long-term infrastructure improvement programme taking a 20-year development view.
Detailed project plans for the priority projects as
referred to in b) above have been prepared and
business plans were forwarded to possible funders.
Each of these projects, though standing alone and
are distinct, seek to achieve a collective outcome.
The bulk of these projects will commence immediately and be implemented over a 24-month period
whilst some aspects may run beyond this period.
It is submitted that by taking this approach the
Sol Plaatje Municipality would not only solve its
current capacity constraints, but also unlock its
growth potential, generating sufficient revenue for
the Municipality to finance future plans.
It is the intention of Sol Plaatje Municipality to finance its capital needs through national government grant funding (e.g. MIG) and/or loan financing, or a combination thereof. During the budget
preparation phase Sol Plaatje Municipality made
budgetary provision to service a long-term capital loan of R240m in the 2010/2011 financial year,
but based on revised cash flow needs does not intend taking up the full loan in the first year, but
rather in accordance with the approved cash flow
needs. The requisite notices (when taking up such
loans) were published in the local media prior to
the adoption by Council of the budget
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2.5 Relevance to the Municipal
IDP
The rolling five-year Integrated Development Plan (IDP) contains key
municipal plans and priorities for the current political term of office.
Central to the execution of the IDP is the need for economic growth
and job creation as well as the need to maintain, upgrade and extend
municipal infrastructure in order to facilitate much needed economic
development. These considerations impact on all choices and decisions
SPM has to make. Marketing the city and attracting international and
regional investment are also key elements in financing the execution of
Sol Plaatje’s IDP.
Consistent underinvestment in the city’s existing and new productive infrastructure is however threatening the foundations of the local economy,
and the provision of the agreed to level of service is a huge challenge to
the financial sustainability of the Municipality. Furthermore, Sol Plaatje
is located within a weak economic region . Considering the above challenges, SPM had to creatively develop a strategy to ensure a long-term
sustainable development path.
This strategy is founded in the Municipality’s “space-economy” - meaning
the geographic distribution of settlements (large and small), the activities within them (residential, commercial, institutional, recreational,
and so on), and the relationship of these settlements and activities to
the infrastructure that connects and supports them, and links in turn to
surrounding agriculture and nature areas.
Related to maintaining and strengthening critical connections, both
physical and non-physical, to the Municipality is managing Kimberley
and the existing outlying settlements as sustainable, attractive centres
of living, services and work. Kimberley will not prosper without critical connections in a broader settlement pattern, and it cannot hope to
maintain or strengthen these connections unless it is maintained as a
place worth living and working in. This aspect has a number of dimensions. The first relates to service infrastructure, the basis for activity of
all kinds in the city. Bulk infrastructure refurbishment, extension and
maintenance have been under severe stress in the Municipality for a
number of years, limiting opportunity for new investment and the viability of existing places of living, services and work. Creative partnerships will be required to plan, fund and implement the necessary work.
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2.6 Approval of Land Use Change and Building
Plans
Approval of Land Use Change Applications

Approval of Building Plans

In terms of legislation (Northern Cape Planning
and Development Act, No. 7 of 1998), an application for the amendment of the zoning scheme
should take approximately forty weeks on average. Due to the current moratorium on development imposed on 5 August 2009 and no control
over compilation of inter-sectoral consultation
comments, approval of all applications take more
than twelve months to process. In 2009/2010, 133
approvals were anticipated. Thirty-three land use
change applications were approved, while 102
residential businesses were approved.

In terms of legislation (National Building Regulations and Building Standards Act, No. 103 of
1977), a building plan must be approved within 21
working days after receipt thereof by the Municipality. Due to the current moratorium on development imposed on 5 August 2009 less approvals have taken place because of developments
that will have an impact on the current conditions
of the sanitation system of the Municipality. The
2009/2010 target for building plan approval was
900 but only 504 building plans were approved
due to the above-mentioned reason.

Table: Summary Zoning Plans 2009/2010

Applications
outstanding
1 July 2009
65

65

38

Number of new
applications received
2009/2010

Total value of
applications
received

Applications
outstanding
30 June 2010

Residential

16

R144,065

90

Suburban Business

8

Commercial

2

Resort 2

1

Institutional

1

Subdivision

7
R144,065

90

Category
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Total value of
applications
(Rand)

110,880,000

225,792,000

43,750,000

16,800,000

16,320,000

0

56,000,000

0

0

11,520,000

96,000,000

264

896

25

8

34

0

14

0

0

3

1

3
2
0
2

Office and
banking space
Shopping space
Schools, crèches,
hospitals and
libraries
Hospitals and
clinics

16

Townhouses

0

2

Church, sports,
and recreation
clubs

Tourism
accommodation
and casinos

6

Industrial and
warehouse space
and workshops

1

564

Additions to
Dwelling houses

Blocks of flats

111

Dwelling houses

Category

160,000,000

0

21,000,000

18,000,000

0

3,700,000

768,000

2,560,000

10,500,000

118,440,000

46,620,000

Number of new
Total value of
applications
application
submission
submissions
during the
(Rand)
2009/2010
financial year

Summary of Building Plans 2009/2010

Applications
outstanding at
the beginning of
the 2009/2010
financial year

Table:

3

3

2

2

0

1

12

3

3

487

102

Number of new
applications
approved during
the 2009/2010
financial year

256,000,000

11,520,000

21,000,000

12,000,000

0

3,700,000

5,760,000

5,328,000

21,000,000

122,724,000

51,408,000

Total value of
applications
approved
(Rand)

0

0

0

1

14

0

38

7

28

973

273

Applications
outstanding
during the ending
of the 2009/2010
financial year

0

0

0

6,000,000

56,000,000

0

13,328,000

14,032,000

332,500,000

221,508,000

106,092,000

Total value of
outstanding
applications
(Rand)

Chapter 3:

Human resource and other organisational management
3.1 General Information
Sol Plaatje Municipality has had a number of successive audit qualifications and queries. The Council
and Municipal Executive Management Team resolved to commence with a multi-disciplinary assignment
called Operation Clean Audit Report, as part of its Turnaround Strategy, aimed at achieving a clean audit
in respect of all institutional aspects raised in successive audit reports.
Following a review of the organisational structure in January 2006, five Directorates were created and
Executive Directors appointed as part of “Capacitating the Centre of the Organisation”.
These are the current directorates in the Municipality:
• Corporate Services
• Financial Services
• Community and Social Development Services
• Infrastructure and Services
• Strategy, Economic Development and Planning Services
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Security

Office of Exec Mayor

Councillor Support

Committee Services

Serv Del & Improvement















Social Development



Liaison (Labour Relations)

Chief Off Corp Services





 Chief Officer: Comm. Serv.

Sustainable Energy and
Climate Change Unit

Personal Health Services



Information Technology
Management



Environ. Health Services



Library Services

Emergency Services

Motor Registration and
Licensing

Traffic Services

Parks and Recreation






















Ass Elec Engineer
Housing

CEE: City Electrical Engineer

ED: Executive Director

Technical Support

Mechanical

Transport (CEE)

Dstribution (CEE)





GURP

Market

Property Services

Urban Planning

Local Economic Development

ED: Strategy, Economic
Development and Planning
Services

City Electrical Engineer

Roads and Stormwater

Water and Sanitation

ED: Community and Social
Development Services

Revenue Management

Debt Collection

Human Resources







 Supply Chain Management 

Expenditure Management

 Municipal Training Institute 

Risk Management





Contracts and Demand
Management

Credit control

Employee Relations







Gender & Spec Progr.



Payroll Administration

Employment Equity





Asset and Risk Management 



Communications




Budget and Treasury

ED: Infrastructure Services



Administration

ED: Financial Services

Legal Services

Internal Audit







ED: Corporate Services

Projects

Planning and Strategic Development

IDP

Municipal Manager
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3.2 Detail Information
The Sol Plaatje Municipality currently employs 1,848 officials, who individually and collectively contribute
to the achievement of Municipality’s objectives. The primary objective of Human Resource Management
is to render an innovative HR service that addresses both skills development and an administrative function.

Vacancy Rate
At present, a large number of vacancies as displayed in the table below challenges the Municipality:
Organisation Entity

Posts

Incumbents

Vacancies

Municipal Manager

29

24

5

Community and Social Development Services

895

700

195

Financial Services

283

234

49

Infrastructure

873

607

266

Strategy, Economic Development and Planning

135

86

49

Corporate Services

236

197

39

2 451

1 848

603

Overall Total

The large number of vacancies is ascribed to positions kept on the organogram, which has not been reviewed in five years. As mentioned previously, the organogram is currently under review. One of the outputs envisaged in this exercise, is to determine which of these vacant positions are in line with the IDP
and Budget of the organisation.

Skills Levels
The skills levels of the employees are reflected in the following table:
Employment Category

NQF1 NQF2 NQF3 NQF4 NQF5 NQF6 NQF7 NQF8

Directors and Corporate Managers
Professionals

6

22

21

9

1

11

21

9

2

1

Total
59
44

Technicians and Trade Workers

17

13

18

25

46

10

129

Community and Personal Service Workers

12

14

10

38

36

4

114

Clerical and Administrative Workers

21

35

33

171

102

12

374

Machine Operators and Drivers

71

25

4

5

1

106

Labourers

405

100

72

67

5

649

1

3

5

324

236

Apprentices
Total

1
526

188

138

56

11

1

1 480

According to the table above the skills levels reflected correlate with the minimum skills required to
perform duties.
Eight employees have qualifications below NQF1, 360 employees have been appointed on a contract
basis and no qualification records exist on them.
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Capacitating Human Resources
Skills development for both employees and residents of Sol Plaatje is critical and in line with the
IDP. Two employees are participating in the Electrical Apprenticeship learnership. This approach
maximises human development and capacitates
people for both present and future employment.
During the 2009/2010 financial year, 21 experiential training students received training in various
fields. A total of 371 employees received training in the 2009/2010 financial year, at a cost of
R817,307.45
The following table provides a breakdown of training beneficiaries as a percentage of the total per
group:
Occupational Group

Total

Legislators

51.79%

Directors and Corporate Managers

35.09%

Professionals

16.00%

Technicians and Trade Workers

22.15%

Community and Personal Service Workers

37.42%

Clerical and Administrative Workers

18.89%

Machine Operators and Drivers

16.67%

Labourers

12.98%

The Council recognises empowering officials is
essential to continued improved service delivery.
The following table indicates the number of employees trained per course:
Total number of beneficiaries ..........................371
Beneficiaries as % of total employees............19%
As a result, skills development of the employees
of Council is a top priority. Skills development is
aimed at developing skilled employees to perform
their jobs to acceptable standards.
The skills programme planned for 2009/2010
financial year targeted all employees from executive to elementary levels. Emphasis was placed on
the CPMD training for officials and Councillors,
Abet training, Basic Safety, Batho Pele/Client Services, First Aid, Security related training and Water
Purification.
Training Course

Number

Abet Level 1

2

Abet level 2

2

Abet Level 3

5

Abet Level 4

1

Analysing Water Samples and Treatment of Water

7

Basic Archives

1

Batho Pele

35

Coaching and Assessment

6

Conduct Security at Special Events

59

CPMD

2

ELMPD

7

Employee Rights and Obligations

38

First Aid Level 1

64

Health and Safety Representatives

30

Summary of Beneficiaries Trained Data:

Induction of Councillors

7

Total number of black beneficiaries ................342

Knowledge of Activated Sludge

1

Black beneficiaries as percentage of total
beneficiaries ....................................................92%

Knowledge of Waste Water Treatment

11

Employee Representatives

19

Total number of woman beneficiaries.............130

Presiding Officers

20

Woman beneficiaries as % of total
beneficiaries ....................................................35%

Problem Solving and Decision Making

8

Protocol and Etiquette for Officials

16

The Municipality’s External Capacity Development
and Skills Development Programmes all meet the
National Qualification’s Authority requirements.

Protocol and Etiquette for Councillors

28

Registry Workshops

33

A breakdown of ABET attendance is as follows:
Abet Levels

Number

Abet Level 1

2

Abet level 2

2

Abet Level 3

5

Abet Level 4

1
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Training Course

Number

Security Training Grade C

12

Security Training Grade D

24

Security Training Grade E

24

Supervisor Accredited Training

6

Support Group training HIV/Aids

13

Train the Trainer

4

Water and Waste Water Accredited training

7

Water Purification Instrumentation Workshops

12

Water Samples and Treatment

6

Workplace Communication
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Staff Movements
Staff movements – terminations and appointments for the financial year under review – are indicated in
the table below:
Male

Description

Female

African

Coloured

Indian

White

African

Coloured

Indian

White

50 Terminations

23

8

0

6

8

3

0

2

108 Appointments

57

15

1

1

27

5

0

2

14 Promotions

3

3

0

0

3

4

0

1

Pension Funds
The following table presents information on the pension funds in existence in Sol Plaatje Municipality:
Number

Council
Contribution Percentage

Defined Benefits

Defined Contributions

SALA

436

20,78%

All

-

CAPE JOINT

821

18%

144

677

SAMWU

45

18%

45

All

MEPF

66

15%

All

-

MCPF

36

28.75%

All

-

IMATU / SANLAM

2

18%

All

-

Name of Fund
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Medical Aid Schemes

Employment Equity

The following table illustrates information on the
medical aid schemes in operation in the Municipality:

The employment equity policy of the Municipality
aims to:
• Foster diversity in the workplace
• Eliminate all forms of discrimination
• Ensure that all people in the region are equitably represented with the municipal administration
• Prepare the ground for effective change
through appropriate and ongoing investment
in training and development
• Prohibit and combat unfair discrimination and
harassment among employees
• Provide reasonable accommodation of designated groups, and in particular people with
disabilities.

Scheme

Council’s Annual
Contribution (Rand)

LA Health

101,362.20

BONITAS

1,162,004.97

HOSMED

37,857.00

KEYHEALTH / MUNIMED

147,267.80

SAMWUMED

200,553.00

The above amounts reflect Councils’ monthly
portion of contribution.

HR Policies

The plan intends to address numerous affirmative
actions such as the auditing of policies for discriminatory clauses, diversity management interventions and an audit of the work environment
for “friendliness” to people with disabilities. All
employment policies and practice are reviewed to
be in line with best practices and legislative requirements.

All operations in the HR division are carried out
according to policies.
Currently all HR policies as well as the Conditions
of Service are being reviewed to ensure that policies are in line with collective agreements and relevant acts.
Occupational Categories

Male
African Coloured Indian

White

Female
African Coloured Indian

White

Total

Top Management

0

0

1

0

3

1

0

0

5

Senior Management

1

3

0

1

1

0

0

0

6

Professionally qualified and
experienced specialists and
middle management

19

6

0

27

7

3

1

10

73

Skilled technical and
academically qualified workers,
junior management,
supervisors, foremen and
superintendents

65

67

3

22

33

18

1

24

233

Semi-skilled and discretionary
decision making

147

106

2

6

97

56

1

33

448

Unskilled and defined
decision making

436

152

0

4

91

18

0

2

703

Total Permanent

668

334

6

60

232

96

3

69

1 468

Temporary employees

167

65

0

6

96

38

0

8

380

Grand Total

835

399

6

66

328

134

3

77

1 848

Currently, 100% of all managers accountable to the Municipal Manager (also acting managers) are from
the designated groups.
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Disclosure of salaries, allowances and benefits of Councillors, Directors and Senior Officials for the period
1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010.
Sol Plaatje Municipality Supporting Table SA23 salaries, allowances and benefits (political office bearers,
councillors, senior managers)

Disclosure of Salaries, Allowances &
Benefits 1.

Ref

Councillors

4

Speaker

5

No.
10

Salary

1

265,969

In-kind
Perform
Allowances
Benefits
Bonuses
2.
(Rand per annum)

Contrib.
1.

57,186

107,715

Total
Package
3.

430,870

Chief Whip

–

Executive Mayor

1

336,219

67,712

134,643

538,574

Deputy Executive Mayor

–

Executive Committee

10

1,298,620

367,594

555,400

2,221,614

Total for all other councillors
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3,975,224 1,356,604

1,963,114

7,294,942

56

5,876,032 1,849,096

2,760,872

10,486,000

Total Councillors

9

Senior Managers of the Municipality

6

Municipal Manager (MM)

1

441,168

160,861

196,014

798,043

Chief Finance Officer

1

386,376

162,324

170,340

719,040

Director - Strategy

1

363,048

121,181

170,340

654,569

Director -Infrastructure

1

386,388

130,092

170,344

686,824

Director Community Services

1

310,200

43,140

149,502

502,842

Director - Corporate services

1

286,376

128,478

170,340

585,194

List of each official with packages >= senior manager
Head: Internal Audit & Performance
Management

1

300,456

49,921

160,700

511,077

Head: IDP

1

278,209

23,843

167,545

469,597

Head Office of PMU

1

300,456

49,921

160,700

511,077

9

3,052,677

869,761

1,515,825

–

–

5,438,263

65

8,928,709 2,718,857

4,276,697

–

–

15,924,263

Total Senior Managers of the
Municipality
Total Cost of Councillor, Director
and Executive Remuneration

46
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Report on the debt for Councillors and Staff Members
Councillors:
Number of Debtors ......................

Staff:
60

Charges – Current ........................ R

0.00

Charges – Latest Account ............ R

28 442.34

30 days in arrears ........................ R

8 068.64

60 days in arrears ........................ R

6 302.36

90 days + in arrears .................... R

92 570.56

Value Added Tax ........................... R

15 381.95

Total.............................................. R

150 765.85

Number of Accounts ....................

1 464

Charges – Current ........................ R
(to appear on next account)

535.09

Charges – Latest Account ............ R

556 031.03

30 days in arrears ........................ R

169 781.37

60 days in arrears ........................ R

150 508.14

90 days + in arrears .................... R 2 296 690.38
Value Added Tax ........................... R

310 870.52

Total.............................................. R 3 484 416.53
NOTE: Some officials are living outside the borders of Sol Plaatje (e.g. Barkly West) and some in areas
where there is no service charges.

Employee Cost in relation to total expenditure
2007/2008

2008/2009

2009/2010

Employee cost

R227,546,000

R275,503,145

R304,106,014

Total Expenditure

R594,121,000

R778,930,566

R901,719,308

38.30%

35.37%

33.73%

Employee Cost as % of Total Expenditure

Structure
It is clear that the current structure needs to be
reviewed, especially in light of the recent council
resolution pertaining to external service delivery.
The following initial pointers emerged from the
consultations held with S57 managers, which are
concerns related to structure, capacity and skills.
A further round of consultations will be required
to refine some of the recommendations and generate a number of structural options.

1. Finance
• Supply Chain Management: Improve capacity
especially in relation to Contracts and Demand
Management, as this will have a direct impact
on the Municipality.
• Revenue Management: The capacity requirements require verification to ascertain how
this section fares when benchmarked against
other municipalities, especially in relation to
how services will be rendered in the future. Internal controls also need to be improved.
• Asset Management: It is critical for capacity to
be improved in this area.
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• Consider placement of IT/ICT function as a
corporate service. In addition, consider the
placement of the GIS function closer to Planning Services.

2. Corporate Services
• Labour Relations: Improvement in the capacity
of both line managers and current incumbents
to manage the myriad of labour relations issues in the Municipality, to resolve matters at
the lowest possible level.
• Risk Management: Consider a structural arrangement that has a comprehensive compliance, audit and risk function reporting to the
Municipal Manager, dealing with all risk management, compliance and audit functions of
the Municipality in an integrated fashion.
• Reconsider placement, alignment and responsibility for Gender and Special Programmes,
Employment Equity, and Youth portfolios currently spread out in the Municipality.
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3. Community Services

7. General observations

• Social Development: Consider combining Social Development with Economic Development or Personal Health in order to leverage
off the similar work done in both areas and
avoid duplication of resources.

• Over-dependency on key individuals needs to
be addressed due to increased risk and vulnerability.

• Avoid combining Traffic Services and Motor
Registration functions.
• Consider functional alignment of the new
commonage management responsibility e.g.
Property management.

4. Infrastructure
• Consider repositioning of Housing Function
within a Human Settlement Portfolio and its
placement within the SPM organogram, keeping in mind the possibility of SPM becoming
an accredited housing service provider.
• Water Works and Waste Water: Capacity pressures (including weak supervision and level of
skills) must be addressed as a matter of urgency.
• Address challenges of attraction and retention
of qualified electrical staff.
• Consider options for dedicated project management capacity in the form of e.g. project
co-ordinators reporting to PMU, placing PMU
in Infrastructure etc.

5. Strategy and Economic Development
• The insufficient internal legal capacity can be
seen as a possible risk to the Planning section
and should be addressed.
• As mentioned above, the realignment of the
Housing function is likely to address the issue
of lack of synergy of activities with the Infrastructure directorate.
• An attraction and retention strategy for skilled
town planners, surveyors, and building inspectors is required as a matter of urgency.

• Consider job level and reporting anomalies
created by SALGBC’s SPM Task Final Outcomes
Report.

Staffing
Key changes required in the management of Human Resources at Sol Plaatje include:
• The most critical HR deliverable must be a revised and consolidated organisation and staff
establishment that reconciles with the payroll
(without this proper HR management is impossible).
• The second most critical HR deliverable is a
properly structured skills development plan,
clearly indicating where the most critical skills
gaps are and how they will be addressed.
• Following closely on this a Succession Management Plan needs to be put in place, specifically if the age profile of key staff and managers are taken into account.
• Sol Plaatje Municipality is in desperate need of
culture change – the Municipality has slipped
into an inward and unproductive mode with a
general spirit of lethargy dominating the institutional mindset. A critical HR deliverable
is therefore a culture change programme that
reinvigorates the organisation, establishes a
new code of conduct at all levels and positively
enhances the profile of the Municipality.
• Teamwork – the Municipality needs to break
the silo mode by introducing teamwork within
and between directorates as a way of life. To
ensure that this form of teamwork is sustainable and becomes entrenched within the Municipality, a dedicated intervention is required.

6. Legal Services
• Increase the current capacity to deal with the
legal function and reduce dependency on external providers.
• Consider creation of Compliance Officer Post
in the office of the Municipal Manager.
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Chapter 4:

Audited statements and related financial information
4.1 General Overview
The South African economy is still recovering
from a major economic crisis and Reserve Bank
Governor, Gill Marcus says, “South Africa’s recovery from the global financial crisis remains fragile
and uneven. The recovery is taking place, but it is
hesitant, fragile and uneven.”

lower than the corresponding annual rate of 4.2%
in June 2010. On average, prices increased by
0.6% between June 2010 and July 2010. The provinces with an annual inflation rate lower or equal
to headline inflation were:

Although South Africa is well into a modest economic recovery, the country must work to create
an environment that is favourable to domestic
and foreign investment, says Finance Minister
Pravin Gordhan – the ultimate goal being inclusive, hence sustainable, economic growth.

• North West (3.0%)

At the launch of the Land Bank’s annual report
in Pretoria, Finance Minister Pravin Gordhan said:
“Economic growth came in at 4.6% during the first
quarter of this year, and growth for the second
quarter is expected to be at least three percent.”

• Limpopo (3.4%)

Inclusive economic growth
“What is crucial in South Africa”, Gordhan further
said, “is inclusive economic growth – growth that
creates jobs, reduces poverty and creates opportunities, especially for young people. Such growth
also generates taxes to pay for public services like
education.
It is therefore important that we remain focused
on getting South Africa’s economy on a higher
and much more sustainable growth trajectory. If
we are to grow faster, we must create an environment that is favourable to domestic and foreign
investment.
According to Statistics South Africa the unemployment rate for the first quarter of 2010 increased
by 0.9 of a percentage point to 25.2%, with the
national unemployment rate in the Northern Cape
at 38,8%. In the first quarter, the biggest job losses were in finances, which shed 126,000 jobs and
construction which shed 64,000 jobs.
According Statistics SA, the headline CPI (for all
urban areas) annual inflation rate in July 2010
was 3.7%. This rate was 0.5 of a percentage point
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• KwaZulu-Natal (2.9%)
• Northern Cape (3.1%)
• Mpumalanga (3.3%)
• Eastern Cape (3.4%)
• Free State (3.5%), and
• Gauteng (3.7%).
The province with an annual inflation rate higher
than headline inflation was Western Cape (4.0%).
The year ended 30 June 2010 was a challenging
year for the Sol Plaatje Municipality but indicated
below are some of the major achievements:

Review of policies
Supply Chain Management Policy approved 17 February 2010
Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy approved 31 May 2010
Indigent Management Policy –
approved 31 May 2010

The Local Government Turnaround
Strategy
On 02 December 2009, the South African Cabinet
approved a comprehensive Local Government
Turnaround Strategy. The Minister for Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs, Mr Sicelo
Shiceka, presented this Turnaround Strategy to
Cabinet.
It is underpinned by two important considerations:
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• The first is that a “one size fits all” approach to municipalities is
not useful or acceptable. Each municipality faces different social and
economic conditions and has different performance levels and support needs. Thus, a more segmented and differentiated approach
was required to address the various challenges of municipalities.
• Cabinet recognised that the problems in Local Government are both
a result of internal factors within the direct control of municipalities
as well as external factors over which municipalities do not have
much control.
The internal factors relate to issues such as quality of decision-making by
Councillors, quality of appointments, transparency of tender and procurement systems, and levels of financial management and accountability.
The external factors relate to revenue base and income generation potential, inappropriate legislation and regulation, demographic patterns
and trends, macro and micro-economic conditions, undue interference
by political parties and weaknesses in national policy, oversight and
Inter-Governmental Relations (IGR).
The (second) and twin over-arching aims of the Turnaround Strategy
are to:
• Restore the confidence of the majority of our people in our municipalities, as the primary delivery machine.
• Re-build and improve the basic requirements for a functional, responsive, accountable, effective, and efficient developmental local
government.
Municipalities had to submit tailor-made strategies alongside their IDPs
by end March 2010, while full implementation of the turnaround strategy is expected in July 2010.
The Sol Plaatje Municipality is happy to report that the Municipal Turnaround Strategy was developed and adopted in Council on 16 February
2010.
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4.2 Budget to Actual Comparison
Comparison Actual to Original Operating Budget
In terms of sections 24(1) and 24(2)(a) of the Municipal Finance Management Act, Act 56 of 2003, a Council
must consider the annual budget for approval at least 30 days before the start of the financial year and
approve the annual budget before the start of the financial year. On 25 May 2009, Council approved Sol
Plaatje Municipality’s budget for the 2009/2010 financial year, the total operating budget amounted to
R862,576,741 and the capital budget amounted to R113,199,216.

Operating Expenditure
The total operating expenditure for the year ended 30 June 2010 amounted to R901,719,308 in comparison with the original budget this constitutes a total over expenditure of 4.54%. As indicated in the table
below:
Original
Budget
(Rand)

Adjustment
Budget
(Rand)

YTD
Movement
(Rand)

295,269,021

300,269,021

304,106,014

102.99

-2.99

101.28

-1.28

13,023,385

11,523,385

11,469,985

88.07

11.93

99.53

0.47

1,095,000

1,095,000

265,302

24.23

75.77

24.23

75.77

Depreciation

31,291,482

48,191,482

29,803,795

95.25

4.75

61.84

38.16

Repairs & maintenance

47,084,307

53,097,340

53,826,249

114.32

-14.32

101.37

-1.37

Finance costs

13,781,964

12,221,964

8,930,826

64.80

35.20

73.07

26.93

207,000,000

202,000,000

196,224,388

94.79

5.21

97.14

2.86

1,350,000

1,350,000

350,000

25.93

74.07

25.93

74.07

163,681,582

183,029,582

192,049,294

117.33

-17.33

104.93

-4.93

89,000,000

89,000,000

104,693,453

117.63

-17.63

117.63

-17.63

862,576,741

901,777,774

901,719,308

104.54

-4.54

99.99

-0.01

Expenditure by Type
Total employee related cost
Remuneration councillors
Collection costs

Bulk purchases
Grants & subs paid
General expenses other
Impairment losses
Total operating expenditure

Below follows an explanation of the significant
variances on expenditure greater than 10% in relation to the original budget:

Repairs & Maintenance
The state of infrastructure for service delivery is
very critical. In the absence of maintenance plans,
it is very difficult to project maintenance requirements per asset class. The maintenance budget
is based on previous years’ spending history on
maintenance. It should be taken into account that
the major component in expenditure of maintenance is labour costs which increases have been
above inflation over the previous years. The costs
for fuel, materials and hire of machinery and
equipment have increased over the years as these
prices respond quickly to fuel price increases and
market changes.

52

%
%
%
%
Spent Variance Spent Variance
Original Budget Adjustment Budget

Interest on External Borrowing
For the 2008/2009 financial year new loans raised
amounted to R21,018,089 in comparison to
2009/2010 where new loans were raised amounted to only R10,463,371.
The repayment on these annuity loans was also
favourable for the 2009/2010 financial year
R10,557,701 (2009: R5,743,000). This resulted in
the Municipality having a substantial saving on interest for the current year.

Grants and Subsidies Paid
The subsidy was paid to the SPCA. This subsidy is
to assist the Municipality in caring for stray animals and other related tasks. The saving resulted
in public grants not being made.
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General Expenses
The over-expenditure on general expenses is attributable to two major items namely subsidy projects in respect of housing projects transferred to
the operational budget, and loss of income on bypassed prepaid meters amounting to R23,582,773
and R18,007,053 respectively.

Impairment Losses
The total amount on Impairment Losses was
overspent due to the impairment of debtors being

increased. The calculation of Impairment losses
was changed from a global to individual debtor
impairment as required by the GRAP standards.
To be able to reach a far wider community base
and in assisting indigents and providing at least
basic municipal services to the poor our Indigent
Policy was reviewed and the new Indigent Policy
was approved to make provision for an additional
class of indigent namely an asset indigent.

Graph: Expenditure by Type: Original budget vs Adjustment budget compared with actual

1,000,000,000
800,000,000
600,000,000
400,000,000
200,000,000

The graph above illustrates that the Municipality’s
major cost drivers are Employee Related costs,
Bulk purchases and General Expenses while Impairment losses also play an important role.
It also depicts that the current spending trends
of the Municipality are in line with its budget. It
should be noted, as depicted in the table, that the
actual expenditure compared to the original budget varies by 5.06% whilst in relation to the adjustment budget it varies by only 0.49%.
The personnel expenditure can be attributed to
the number of employees required to deliver an
efficient and effective service to the citizens of our
Municipality and taking into the account the an-
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Total Operating Expenditure

Impairment Losses

General Expenses Other

Grants & Subs Paid

Bulk Purchases

Finance Costs

Depreciation

Repairs & Maintenance

YDT
Movement

Collection costs

Adjustment
Budget

Remuneration councillors

Original
Budget

Total employee related cost

0

nual wage increases for 2009/2010 financial year.
The implementation of Post Retirement Provisions
also affected the operational budget expenditure.
The expenditure on Overtime was also highlighted
as a concern as indicated in a report compiled by
Internal Audit Unit. Management should implement clear measures and procedures on the management of overtime in the 2010/2011 financial
year.
The major portion of expenses on Bulk purchases is in respect of purchasing of electricity from
Eskom to further our mission to provide a value
added service to our community, and ensuring the
constant availability of electricity for resale.
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Thirdly, General expenses constitute mainly goods and services for the day-to-day running expenses, over
a wide scope, including inter alia professional fees, audit fees, subsidy for income indigent households as
well as various operational project expenditure and administrative costs. In relation to the original budget
and adjustment budget, the actual expenditure is more or less in line thus validating that the Municipality
is capable of having a credible and funded budget.

Operating Revenue
The total operating revenue for the year ended 30 June 2010 amounted to R991,068,134.
In comparison to the original budget this constitutes a total positive variance of 3,36%, as indicated in the
table below:

Expenditure by Type

Original
Budget
(Rand)

Adjustment
Budget
(Rand)

YTD
Movement
(Rand)

%
%
%
%
Spent Variance Spent Variance
Original Budget Adjustment Budget

Property Rates

-148,813,244

-190,313,244

-189,423,946

127.29

27.29

99.53

-0.47

Service Charges

-495,741,307

-488,541,307

-489,460,439

98.73

-1.27

100.18

0.18

Rent Facilities & Equipment

-12,722,508

-12,722,508

-11,126,139

87.45

-12.55

87.45

-12.55

Int Earned Ext Investments

-8,000,000

-4,000,000

-3,984,460

49.81

-50.19

99.61

-0.39

-43,250,000

-43,250,000

-39,476,418

91.27

-8.73

91.27

-8.73

Fines

-5,280,000

-5,280,000

-3,776,691

71.53

-28.47

71.52

-28.48

Licences & Permits

-2,491,100

-2,491,100

-3,089,183

124.01

24.01

124

24.00

Income For Agency Services

-2,322,800

-2,322,800

-3,244,760

139.69

39.69

139.69

39.69

Grants & Subs Operating

-99,726,016

-107,627,049

-131,107,128

131.47

31.47

121.81

21.81

Grants & Subs Capital

-96,274,000

-117,595,512

-87,532,827

90.92

9.08

74.44

25.56

0

0

-3,877,500

-44,229,766

-45,229,766

-24,968,641

56.45

-43.55

55.20

-44.80

-958,849,741

-1,019,373,286

-991,068,134

103.36

3.36

97.22

-2.78

Int Earned Out Debtors

Public Contribution & Donation
Other Revenue
Total Operating Revenue

Below follows an explanation of the significant
variances on revenue greater than 10% in relation
to the original budget:

Property Rates
Property rates are levied on an annual basis at the
beginning of the financial year. The movement on
property rates represents the subsequent adjustments made in respect of supplementary valuations, which are processed when necessary to
take into account changes in individual property
values due to alterations, subdivisions, etc.

Rental of Facilities and Equipment
Various factors including the current economic
climate and consumer spending trends resulted
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in revenue from Rental of facilities and equipment
not being realised.

Interest on External Investments
The declining interest rate and the state of investments necessitated Sol Plaatje Municipality to
adjust its budget on Interest from external investments downwards. In light of the adjustment, it
resulted in the Municipality falling just short of its
budgeted total of R4m.

Fines and Other Income
Revenue from Fines and Other Income did not
materialise as anticipated and various factors are
attributable to this under-collection.
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Graph: Revenue by source: Original budget vs Adjustment budget compared with actual
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Movement

Rent facilities & Equipment

Adjustment
Budget

Service Charges

Original
Budget

Property Rates

0

The graph above illustrates that the Municipality’s
major sources of revenue are property rates, service charges and grant & subsidies.

There is always room for improvement and the
following key areas are identified as priorities for
the Sol Plaatje management:

It also gives an indication of the performance of
the Municipality comparing the original budget to
the adjustment budget and actual.

• improve on the current collection rate
• reduce the outstanding debtor’s book
• build the Municipality’s reserves in order to
provide a sustainable service to the community we are serving
• utilise these resources cost effectively
• enhance the quality of life for all citizens.

The performance is good considering the current economic climate and the challenges facing
all municipalities to do be able to do more with
less and enhancing sound financial management,
building capacity and ensuring a motivated staff
complement who put the interest of the community first.
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Sources of information
Statistics South Africa
Mail & Guardian online
South Africa.info
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4.3 Intergovernmental Grants
Municipal Infrastructure Grant
Whilst the vision of the Municipal Infrastructure
Grant (MIG) programme is aimed at providing all
South Africans with at least the basic level of service by the year 2013, municipalities are responsible for planning municipal infrastructure and for
using MIG to deliver the infrastructure. Sol Plaatje
Municipality is one of the beneficiaries of such a
grant and the funds are focused on addressing
backlogs in water, sanitation, roads (including
storm water) and electricity (streetlights). All projects identified by the Municipality form part of
the IDP. Reporting relating to MIG issues confirms
with DoRA requirements and MIG conditions.
Project Name

An amount of R29,626,000 was initially allocated
at the beginning of the financial year. At midyear
an additional amount of R9,837,000 was allocated
which brought the total allocation to R39,463,000.
At year-end 100% expenditure was reported as
spent.
The Sol Plaatje Municipality has planned and
implemented projects ranging from; Streetlights;
Upgrading of Roads; Water and Sanitation.
The following projects were embarked on during
2009/2010 financial year:

Project Deliverables

Kimberley: Streetlights (Project 72)

Streetlights 14 and High Mast lights 1

Homevale Wastewater Treatment Works (Project 243)

The Rehabilitation of the Wastewater Treatment Works to its
original operating capacity. The bulk of the MIG funding was
allocated towards this project, due to the existing bulk
infrastructure challenge facing the Municipality.

Galeshewe Bus and Taxi Routes (Project 107)

This involves the provision of roads to surfaced standards. At the
end of the financial year the project was continuing.

Though not a project, the Project Management Unit set-up is financed from MIG funding which includes equipment,
personnel and other operational costs to make the unit fully functional.
The following outcomes benefited the community of
Sol Plaatje Municipality through this programme:
• Creation of jobs through the practice of labour
intensive methods of construction, which temporarily reduced the level of poverty
• Reduction in crime through installation of
high mast and streetlights in the identified
crime hot spots
• Access to residential and business areas
through upgrading of roads
• Enhancement of service delivery.
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Proposed MIG Multi-Year Plan: 2010/2013
Project Name

2010/2011
(Rand)

2011/2012
(Rand)

2012/2013
(Rand)

PMU

1,328,570

1,408,284

1,485,739

Streetlights (Projects 55 & 70)

1,500,000

1,500,000

1,500,000

0

12,373,178

Sanitation Lindale (Remainder) & Promise Land (797)
Water Promise Land (797)
Imaging Sanitation

6,867,246
0

0

Beaconsfield WWTW

1,500,000

12,085,740

Ritchie WWTW

8,500,000

1,614,000

Homevale WWTW

12,990,943

Roads and Storm Water MIG Projects
Community Services MIG Projects (Satellite Fire Station &
New Cemetery)

1,807,241

LED MIG Projects (Informal Stalls CBD & Other CBD Projects)
Total

34,494,000

29,777,261
7,021,580

8,000,000

4,034,178

7,760,000

1,449,040

1,920,000

41,486,000

50,443,000

Galeshewe Urban Renewal and
Neighbourhood Partnership
Development Grants
The Galeshewe Urban Renewal Programme
(GURP) receives funding from National Treasury
through the Neighbourhood Development Partnership Grant (NDPG), which is part of the Division of Revenue Act (DORA). The grant is twofold,
Technical Assistance (TA) and Capital Grant (CG),
with the initial allocation for TA being R5 million
and CG R30 million respectively. Both allocations
were adjusted to R2 million TA, and R15 million
until the end of 2009/2010. TA was mainly used to
finalise five business cases including project management, whilst CG could not be spent due to:
• Delays emanating from National Treasury on
how best projects could be implemented
• Approvals of business plans as submitted to
Treasury before any project can commence
• Limited time to go out on tender to secure appropriate service providers.
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The nature of NDPG is that unspent funds remain
in an ‘envelope’ and are only shifted once a project is ready for implementation. Thus, none of the
budget has been lost.
Through provincial COGHSTA, GURP had an allocation of R7 million and the entire allocation was
spent on the Resealing of Roads project.
All funds received from National Treasury have
met the grant conditions and all of the technical
assistance (TA) projects are at a final stage. The
rationale in developing these divergent business
plans will inform the roll out of projects in Galeshewe in a systematic way.
The R7 million received from COGHSTA had an
impact as most of the roads in the Sol Plaatje jurisdiction were resealed as part of the 2010 FIFA
World Cup legacy projects and created both professional and labour intensive type of jobs.
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4.4 The Annual Financial Statements
The Accounting Officer of the Municipality submitted the annual financial statements to the Auditor General on the 30th of August 2010 in line with the requirements of the Municipal Finance Management Act
(56 of 2003) section 126 (1)(a).
The audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2010 are as follows:
General Information .......................................................................................................................... 59
Declaration Accounting Officer ......................................................................................................... 60
Statement of Financial Position ........................................................................................................ 61
Statement of Financial Performance ................................................................................................. 62
Statement of Changes in Net Assets ................................................................................................. 63
Cash Flow Statement ......................................................................................................................... 64
Accounting Policies ............................................................................................................................ 65
Notes to the Financial Statements .................................................................................................... 89
Appendix A: Schedule of External Loans .............................................................................. 151
Appendix B: Analysis of Property, Plant and Equipment .................................................... 152
Appendix C: Segmental Analysis of Property, Plant and Equipment .................................. 154
Appendix D: Segmental Statement of Financial Performance ............................................. 156
Appendix E(1): Actual versus Budget (Revenue and Expenditure) ...................................... 157
Appendix E(2): Actual versus Budget (Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment) ....... 158
Appendix F: Disclosures of Grants and subsidies in Terms of the Municipal Finance
Management Act.................................................................................................................... 159
Appendix G: Disclosures of Deviations from procurement policy ....................................... 160
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Sol Plaatje Municipality
Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2010

I am accountable for the preparation of these annual financial statements, which are set out on pages 61
to 160, in terms of Section 126(1) of the Municipal Finance Management Act, and which I have signed on
behalf of the Municipality.
I certify that the salaries, allowances and benefits of Councillors as disclosed in note 30 of these annual
financial statements are within the upper limits of the framework envisaged in Section 219 of the Constitution, read with the Remuneration of Public Officer Bearers Act and the Minister of Provincial and Local
Government’s determination in accordance with this Act.

GH Akharwaray
Municipal Manager
31 August 2010
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2010
Note
ASSETS
Current Assets
Inventory
Non-current Assets Held-for-Sale
Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Trade Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Operating Lease Assets
Vat Receivable from Exchange Transactions
Current Portion of Long-term Receivables from
Exchange Transactions
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
Investment Property

2010
R

2009
R

2010 Budget
R

2
3
4
5
6
7
8

342,489,653
15,733,318
596,460
151,254,634
119,746,393
51,238,735
84,051
3,836,063

272,377,917
16,249,838
166,464,633
71,150,445
16,738,735
82,741
1,578,101

342,271,000
16,739,000
261,400,000
20,012,000
44,000,000
-

12

-

113,424

120,000

9
10
11

700,951,568
645,900,329
3,425,872
51,625,367

618,717,902
566,298,997
4,560,172
47,858,733

604,337,000
604,337,000

1,043,441,220

891,095,819

946,608,000

142,662,296
8,980,853
4,652,856
78,210,210
6,429,245
35,014,636
2,349,909
7,024,588

138,504,000
9,520,000
78,070,000
4,000,000
37,116,000
2,491,000
7,307,000

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Consumer Deposits
Provisions
Creditors
Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts
Vat Payable from Exchange Transactions
Bank Overdraft
Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities

13
14
15
16
17
6
18

200,993,134
10,225,457
5,299,684
107,135,888
3,436,299
41,664,918
25,067,445
8,163,443

Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term Liabilities
Retirement Benefit Liabilities
Non-current Provisions

18
19
20

212,525,202
63,609,046
114,140,484
34,775,672

207,859,464
64,842,231
110,790,735
32,226,498

73,400,000
73,400,000
-

Total Liabilities

413,518,336

350,521,760

211,904,000

Total Assets and Liabilities

629,922,885

540,574,058

734,704,000

NET ASSETS
Accumulated Surplus

629,922,885
629,922,885

540,574,058
540,574,058

734,704,000
734,704,000

629,922,885

540,574,058

734,704,000

21

Total Net Assets
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Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2010
Budget
2009
R

Budget
2010
R

132,000,000
4,533,300
2,260,000
2,100,000
161,906,368
-

190,313,244
5,280,000
2,491,100
2,322,800
225,222,561
-

408,882,947
10,451,635
8,000,000
42,800,000
27,873,687
-

488,541,307
12,722,508
4,000,000
43,250,000
45,229,766
-

800,807,937

1,019,373,286

Note
REVENUE
Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
Property Rates
Fines
Licences and Permits
Income for Agency Services
Government Grants and Subsidies Received
Public Contributions and Donations
Revenue from Exchange Transactions
Service Charges
Rental of Facilities and Equipment
Interest Earned - External Investments
Interest Earned - Outstanding Debtors
Other Income
Gains on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

22

26
27
24
25
23
23
28

Total Revenue

262,938,554
10,414,817
1,490,000
34,066,475
74,000,000
42,925,186
8,172,393
152,400,000
600,000
135,623,036

300,269,021
11,523,385
1,095,000
48,191,482
89,000,000
53,097,340
12,221,964
202,000,000
1,350,000
183,029,582

EXPENDITURE
Employee Related Costs
Remuneration of Councillors
Collection Costs
Depreciation and Amortisation
Impairment Losses
Repairs and Maintenance
Finance Costs
Bulk Purchases
Grants and Subsidies Paid
General Expenses

722,630,461

901,777,774

Total Expenditure

78,177,476

117,595,512

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36

Actual
2010
R

Actual
2009
R

422,052,035
189,423,946
3,776,691
3,089,183
3,244,760
218,639,955
3,877,500
569,016,098
489,460,439
11,126,139
3,984,460
39,476,418
24,968,641
-

297,834,723
132,441,486
4,187,923
2,269,357
4,155,900
154,780,058
491,011,571
411,835,609
10,786,956
5,916,648
36,334,394
26,137,964
-

991,068,134

788,846,294

304,106,014
11,469,985
265,302
29,803,795
104,693,453
53,826,250
8,930,826
196,224,388
350,000
192,049,294

275,503,145
9,573,995
1,407,348
26,375,808
99,997,538
50,773,987
8,870,789
143,146,442
300,000
162,981,515

901,719,308

778,930,566

89,348,826

9,915,728

Refer to Appendix E(1) for explanation of budget variances
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2010
Restated Balance
Surplus for the year
Transfer to Capital Replacement Reserve
Property, Plant and Equipment purchased
Contribution to Insurance Reserve
Balance at 30 June 2010

2009
Balance at 30 June 2008
Correction of Error
Restated Balance
Surplus for the year
Transfer to Capital Replacement Reserve
Property, Plant and Equipment purchased
Contribution to Insurance Reserve
Balance at 30 June 2009

Description

39

R

1,591,726
`

11,000,000
(9,483,124)

74,851

74,851

10,600,000
(18,323,674)

7,798,525

7,798,525

R

R

-

-

-

-

-

-

55,295,717 269,344,795
(55,295,717) (269,344,795)
-

R

Capital
Donations &
Replacement Capitalisation Government
Note
Reserve
Reserve
Grants
(CRR)
Reserve

Accumulated Surplus Account

84,064
16,817,826

16,733,761

121,956
16,733,761

16,611,805

16,611,805

R

Self
Insurance
Reserve
R

7,549,079 516,216,367
89,348,826
(11,000,000)
9,483,124
307,617
(391,681)
7,856,696 603,656,637

540,574,058
89,348,826
629,922,885

574,135,356
(43,477,026)
530,658,330
9,915,728
540,574,058

R

Total for
Accumulated Accumulated
Surplus
Surplus
Account

7,229,485 217,855,029
281,163,486
7,229,485 499,018,515
9,915,728
(10,600,000)
18,323,674
319,594
(441,550)
7,549,079 516,216,367

COID
Reserve

540,574,058
89,348,826
629,922,885

574,135,356
(43,477,026)
530,658,330
9,915,728
540,574,058

R

Total

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2010
Note

Actual
2010
R

Actual
2009
R

Budget
2010
R

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash receipts from Ratepayers, Government and Other
Cash paid to Suppliers and Employees

41
41

807,778,202
717,910,964

586,602,053
597,792,122

901,219,000
747,547,000

Cash generated from / (utilised in) Operations

41

89,867,238

(11,190,069)

153,672,000

Interest received
Interest paid

23
33

43,460,878
(8,930,826)

42,251,042
(8,870,789)

47,250,000
(12,479,000)

124,397,290

22,190,184

188,443,000

(108,627,968)
(128,453)
(3,877,500)
113,424

(68,300,408)
(1,506,883)
449,468

(161,693,000)

(112,520,497)

(69,357,823)

(161,693,000)

10,463,371
(10,557,701)

21,018,089
(5,743,000)

15,000,000
(6,557,000)

(94,330)

15,275,089

8,443,000

11,782,464

(31,892,550)

35,193,000

14,388,826
26,171,290

46,281,376
14,388,826

14,389,000
49,582,000

Net Cash Flows from/(used in) Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Purchase of Intangible Assets
Purchase of Investment Property
(Increase) / decrease in Long-term Receivables

9
10
11
12

Net Cash Flows from/(used in) Investing Activities

-

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
New Loans raised
Loans repaid
Net Cash Flows from/(used in) Financing Activities
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
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Accounting Policies to the Annual Financial
Statements for the year ended 30 June 2010
1.

Basis of Preparation

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are
in accordance with the historical cost convention,
except where indicated otherwise.
These Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice as prescribed
by the Minister of Finance in terms of Government
Gazette number 31021, Notice Number 516, dated
9 May 2008, and also in terms of the standards and
principles contained in Directives 3 and 5 issued
by the Accounting Standards Board. The principal
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these annual financial statements are set out below.

1.1 Changes in Accounting Policy and
Comparability
Accounting Policies have been consistently applied, except where otherwise indicated below:
For the years ended 30 June 2009 and 30 June
2010 the municipality adopted the accounting
framework as set out in point 1 above. The details
of any resulting changes in accounting policy and
comparative restatements are set out below.
The municipality changes an accounting policy
only in the following instances:
(a) where it is required by a Standard of GRAP; or
(b) results in the financial statements providing
reliable and more relevant information about
the effects of transactions, other events or
conditions on the entity’s financial position,
financial performance or cash flow.

1.2 Critical Judgements, Estimations and
Assumptions
In the application of the municipality’s accounting policies, as described below, management is
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
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other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates
The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
The following are the critical judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, that the management have made in the process of applying the
municipality’s Accounting Policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in Annual Financial Statements:

1.2.1

Revenue Recognition

Accounting Policy 10.2 on Revenue from Exchange
Transactions and Accounting Policy 10.3 on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions describes
the conditions under which revenue will be recorded by the management of the municipality.
In making their judgement, the management considered the detailed criteria for the recognition of
revenue as set out in GRAP 9: Revenue from Exchange Transactions and GAMAP 9: Revenue, as
far as Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions
is concerned (see Basis of Preparation Accounting
Policy 10). In particular, whether the municipality,
when goods are sold, had transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods and when service is rendered, whether
the service has been rendered. Also of importance
is the estimation process involved in initially
measuring revenue at the fair value thereof. The
management of the municipality is satisfied that
recognition of the revenue in the current year is
appropriate.

1.2.2

Financial assets and liabilities

The classification of financial assets and liabilities, into categories, is based on judgement by
management. Accounting Policy 6.1 on Financial
Assets Classification and Accounting Policy 6.2
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on Financial Liabilities Classification describe the
factors and criteria considered by the management of the municipality in the classification of
financial assets and liabilities.
In making the above-mentioned judgement, management considered the definition and recognition
criteria for the classification of financial instruments as set out in IAS 32: Financial Instruments
- Presentation and IAS 39: Financial Instruments
- Recognition and Measurement.

1.2.3

Impairment of Financial Assets

Accounting Policy 6.4 on Impairment of Financial
Assets describes the process followed to determine the value by which financial assets should
be impaired. In making the estimation of the impairment, the management of the municipality
considered the detailed criteria of impairment of
financial assets as set out in IAS 39: Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement, and
used its judgement to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.
The management of the municipality is satisfied
that the impairment of financial assets recorded
during the year is appropriate.

Impairment of trade receivables
The calculation in respect of the impairment of
debtors is based on an assessment of the extent
to which debtors have defaulted on payments
already due, and an assessment of their ability
to make payments based on their creditworthiness. This was performed across all classes of
debtors.

1.2.4

Useful lives of Property, Plant and
Equipment, Intangible Assets and
Investment Property

As described in Accounting Policies 3.3, 4 and 5
the municipality depreciates/amortises its property, plant and equipment, investment property and
intangible assets over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, taking into account the residual values of the assets at the end of their useful lives,
which is determined when the assets are available
for use.
The useful lives and residual values of the assets
are based on industry knowledge.
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1.2.5

Impairment: Write down of Property,
Plant and Equipment and Inventories

Accounting Policy 3.9 on PPE - Impairment of
assets and Accounting Policy 4.2 on Intangible
assets - Subsequent Measurement, Amortisation
and Impairment and Accounting Policy 8.2 on
Inventory - Subsequent measurement describes
the conditions under which non-financial assets
are tested for potential impairment losses by the
management of the municipality.
Significant estimates and judgements are made
relating to PPE impairment testing, Intangible
assets impairment testing and write down of Inventories to the lowest of Cost and Net Realisable
Values (NRV).
In making the above-mentioned estimates and
judgement, management considered the subsequent measurement criteria and indicators of potential impairment losses as set out in GRAP 17:
Property, Plant and Equipment, GRAP 12: Inventory and GRAP 102: Intangible assets. In particular,
the calculation of the recoverable service amount
for PPE and intangible assets and the NRV for inventories involves significant judgment by management.

1.2.6

Defined Benefit Plan Liabilities

As described in Accounting Policy 13, the municipality obtains actuarial valuations of its defined
benefit plan liabilities. The defined benefit obligations of the municipality that were identified are
Post-retirement Health Benefit Obligations, Longservice Awards and Ex-gratia Awards.
The estimated liabilities are recorded in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 (Employee
Benefits). Details of the liabilities and the key assumptions made by the actuaries in estimating the
liabilities are provided in Notes 19 and 20 to the
Annual Financial Statements.

1.2.7

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Management judgement is required when recognising and measuring provisions and when measuring contingent liabilities as set out in notes,
20 and 51 respectively. Provisions are discounted
where the effect of discounting is material using
actuarial valuations.

1.3 Presentation Currency
The Annual Financial Statements are presented in
South African Rand, rounded off to the nearest Rand,
which is the municipality’s functional currency.
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1.4 Going Concern Assumption
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.

1.5 Offsetting
Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses have not been offset except
when offsetting is required or permitted by a Standard of GRAP.

1.6

Standards, Amendments to Standards and Interpretations
Issued but not yet effective

The following GRAP standards and interpretations have been issued but
are not yet effective and have not earlier been adopted by the municipality:
GRAP 18 Segment Reporting
- issued March 2005
GRAP 21 Impairment of Non-cash-generating Assets
- issued March 2009
GRAP 23 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions
(Taxes and Transfers) - issued February 2008
GRAP 24 Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements
- issued November 2007
GRAP 25 Employee Benefits
- issued December 2009
GRAP 26 Impairment of Cash-generating Assets
- issued March 2009
GRAP 103 Heritage Assets
- issued July 2008
GRAP 104 Financial Instruments
- October 2009
IGRAP 2 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and
Similar Liabilities
- February 2010
Application of all of the above GRAP standards will be effective from a date to
be announced by the Minister of Finance. This date is not currently available.
The ASB Directive 5 paragraph 29 allows for the Municipality to select to
apply the principles established in a Standard of GRAP that has been issued,
but is not yet in effect, in developing an appropriate accounting policy dealing with a particular transaction or event before applying paragraph 12 of the
Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors.
The Municipality applied the principles established in the following Standards of GRAP that have been issued, but not yet in effect, in
developing an appropriate accounting policies dealing with the following transactions, and have not earlier adopted these Standards:
Impairment of Non-cash-generating Assets (GRAP 21 - issued March 2009)
Impairment of Cash-generating Assets (GRAP 26 - issued March 2009)
Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions (GRAP 23 - issued February
2008).
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The following standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued, but
are not yet effective, and have not earlier been
adopted by the municipality:

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - amended version effective 1 January 2010

Where an asset is acquired by the municipality for
no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange
transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal to the
fair value of that asset on the date acquired.

Management has considered all of the abovementioned GRAP standards issued but not yet effective and anticipates that the adoption of these
standards will not have a significant impact on
the financial position, financial performance or
cash flows of the municipality.

2.

Statutory Funds and Reserves

As part of Accumulated Surplus, the following is
disclosed:
-

Capital Replacement Reserve;

-

Self Insurance Reserve; and

-

Compensation for Occupational Injuries and
Diseases (COID) Reserve.

3.

Property, Plant and Equipment

3.1 Initial Recognition
Property, plant and equipment are tangible noncurrent assets (including infrastructure assets)
that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for
administrative purposes, and are expected to be
used during more than one year.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if it is
probable that future economic benefits or service
potential associated with the item will flow to the
municipality, and if the cost or fair value of the
item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost on its acquisition date or in the case
of assets acquired by grant or donation, deemed
cost, being the fair value of the asset on initial recognition. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the purchase price and other costs
attributable to bring the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the municipality.
Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. The cost also includes the necessary costs of dismantling and removing the asset
and restoring the site on which it is located.

68

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment acquired in exchange for a non-monetary
assets or monetary assets, or a combination of
monetary and non-monetary assets is measured
at its fair value. If the acquired item could not be
measured at its fair value, its cost was measured
at the carrying amount of the asset given up.
Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify
as property, plant and equipment when the municipality expects to use them during more than
one period. Similarly, if the major spare parts and
servicing equipment can be used only in connection with an item of property, plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.

3.2 Subsequent Measurement
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant
and equipment is capitalised if it is probable that
future economic benefits or potential service delivery associated with the subsequent expenditure
will flow to the entity and the cost or fair value of
the subsequent expenditure can be reliably measured. Subsequent expenditure incurred on an asset is only capitalised when it increases the capacity or future economic benefits associated with the
asset. Where the municipality replaces parts of an
asset, it derecognises the part of the asset being
replaced and capitalises the new component.
Subsequently all property plant and equipment,
including Infrastructure Assets, are measured at
cost (or deemed cost), less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Compensation from third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were impaired, lost
or given up is included in surplus or deficit when
the compensation becomes receivable.

3.3 Depreciation
Land is not depreciated as it is regarded as having an unlimited life. Depreciation on assets other
than land is calculated on cost, using the straight
line method, to allocate their cost to their residual
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values over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The depreciation
method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic
benefits or service potential are expected to be consumed by the municipality. Components of assets that are significant in relation to the whole
asset and that have different useful lives are depreciated separately. The
depreciation rates are based on the following estimated useful lives:

Infrastructure

Years

Roads and Paving

10 - 30

Electricity

15 - 30

Water

15 - 20

Sewerage

10 - 20

Landfill Sites

25 - 30

Community
Recreational Facilities

15 - 30

Public Safety
Buildings

3-5
30

Other
Specialist Vehicles

5 - 15

Other Vehicles

5

Office Equipment

3-7

Furniture and Fittings

10

Bins and Containers

5

Specialised Plant and Equipment

2 - 15

Other items of Plant and Equipment

2 - 15

Depreciation only commences when the asset is available for use, unless stated otherwise.
The assets’ residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed annually, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

3.4 Incomplete Construction Work
Incomplete construction work is stated at historical cost. Depreciation
only commences when the asset is available for use.

3.5 Finance Leases
Assets capitalised under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as PPE controlled by the entity or
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease if there is no reasonable
certainty that the municipality will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term.
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3.6 Heritage Assets
Heritage assets, which are culturally significant
resources of nature (examples are statues, graves,
memorial assets, libraries, canons, etc) and accordingly to GRAP 17 should be shown at cost and
are not depreciated owing to uncertainty regarding their estimated useful lives, however as GRAP
103 is not effective heritage assets are shown at a
zero value for the financial year under review.

3.7 Infrastructure Assets
Infrastructure Assets are any assets that are part
of a network of similar assets. Infrastructure assets are shown at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment. Infrastructure
assets are treated similarly to all other assets of
the municipality in terms of the asset management policy.

3.8 Derecognition of property, plant and
equipment
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant
and equipment is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of
an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. Gains are not classified as revenue.
Gains or losses are calculated as the difference
between the carrying value of assets (cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses) and the disposal proceeds is included in the Statement of Financial Performance as
a gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment.

3.9
3.9.1

Impairment of assets
Impairment of Cash generating assets

The municipality assesses at each reporting date
whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable amount of the
individual asset.
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of the individual asset, the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs is determined.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cashgenerating unit is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use.
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If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. That
reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less
any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is
recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating units if the recoverable amount of the unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit. The impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets of the unit as follows:
• To the assets of the unit, pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
The municipality assesses at each reporting date
whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for assets
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of
those assets are estimated.
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried
at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in surplus or
deficit.

3.9.2

Impairment of Non-Cash Generating
Assets

The municipality assesses at each reporting date
whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
municipality estimates the recoverable service
amount of the asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable service amount of the individual asset, the recoverable service amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is
determined.
The recoverable service amount is the higher of a
non-cash generating asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use. The value in use for a
non-cash generating asset is the present value of
the asset’s remaining service potential.
If the recoverable service amount of an asset is
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable service
amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.
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An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating units if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit.
The impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets of the unit as follows:
To the assets of the unit, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit.
The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any
indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for assets
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable service amounts of those assets are estimated.
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of
an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in surplus
or deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

4.

Intangible Assets

4.1 Initial Recognition
Identifiable non–monetary assets without physical substance are classified and recognised as intangible assets. The municipality recognises
an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial Position only when it is
probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential
that are attributable to the asset will flow to the municipality and the
cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
Internally generated intangible assets are subject to strict recognition
criteria before they are capitalised. Research expenditure is recognised
as an expense as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating to the design and testing of new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are fulfilled:
• it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use;
• management intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;
• there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
• it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;
• adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible asset are available;
and
• the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development can be reliably measured.
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Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised
as an expense are not recognised as an asset in
a subsequent period. Capitalised development
costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is ready
for use on a straight-line basis over its useful life,
not exceeding five years. Development assets are
tested for impairment annually, in accordance
with IPSAS 21/IAS 36.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
The cost of an intangible asset is the purchase
price and other costs attributable to bring the
intangible asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by the municipality, or where an
intangible asset is acquired at no cost, or for a
nominal cost, the cost shall be its fair value as
at the date of acquisition. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. Intangible assets acquired separately or internally
generated are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange
for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or
a combination of monetary and non-monetary
assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at
fair value (the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value was not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the
carrying amount of the assets given up.

4.2 Subsequent Measurement, Amortisation and Impairment
After initial recognition, an intangible asset are
carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
In terms of GRAP 102, intangible assets are distinguished between internally generated intangible
assets and other intangible assets. It is further
distinguished between indefinite or finite useful lives. Amortisation is charged on a straightline basis over the intangible assets’ useful lives,
which are estimated to be between three to five
years, the residual value of assets with finite useful lives is zero, unless an active market exists.
Where intangible assets are deemed to have an
indefinite useful life, such intangible assets are
not amortised, for example servitudes obtained
by the municipality give the municipality access
to land for specific purposes for an unlimited period. However, such intangible assets are subject
to an annual impairment test.
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Intangible assets are annually tested for impairment, including intangible assets not yet available for use. Where items of intangible assets
have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted
by the impairment loss, which is recognised as
an expense in the period that the impairment is
identified except where the impairment reverses a
previous revaluation. The impairment loss is the
difference between the carrying amount and the
recoverable amount.
The estimated useful life, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed annually at the
end of the financial year. Any adjustments arising
from the annual review are applied prospectively
as a change in accounting estimate in the Statement of Financial Performance.

4.3 Derecognition
Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset
is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from
the use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an intangible asset
is determined as the difference between the net
disposals proceeds and the carrying value and is
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

5.

Investment Property

5.1 Initial Recognition
Investment property includes property (land or
a building, or part of a building, or both land or
buildings held under a finance lease) held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
held to meet service delivery objectives, the production or supply of goods or services, or the sale
of an asset in the ordinary course of operations.
At initial recognition, the municipality measures
investment property at cost including transaction
costs once it meets the definition of investment
property. However, where an investment property
was acquired through a non-exchange transaction
(i.e. where it acquired the investment property for
no or a nominal value), its cost is its fair value as
at the date of acquisition.
The cost of self-constructed investment property
is the cost at date of completion.
Based on management’s judgement, the following
criteria have been applied to distinguish investment properties from owner occupied property or
property held for resale:
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• All properties held to earn market-related rentals or for capital appreciation or both and that
are not used for administrative purposes and
that will not be sold within the next 12 months
are classified as Investment Properties;
• Land held for a currently undetermined future
use. (If the Municipality has not determined
that it will use the land as owner-occupied
property or for short-term sale in the ordinary
course of business, the land is regarded as held
for capital appreciation);

5.2

Subsequent Measurement - Cost Model

Investment property is measured using the cost
model. Investment Property is stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on
cost, using the straight-line method over the useful life of the property, which is estimated at 20
- 30 years. Components of assets that are significant in relation to the whole asset and that have
different useful lives are depreciated separately.

• A building owned by the entity (or held by the
entity under a finance lease) and leased out
under one or more operating leases (this will
include the property portfolio rented out by the
Housing Board on a commercial basis on behalf of the municipality); and

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an investment property is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying value
and is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

• A building that is vacant but is held to be leased
out under one or more operating leases on a
commercial basis to external parties.

5.3 Derecognition

The following assets do not fall in the ambit of Investment Property and shall be classified as Property, Plant and Equipment, Inventory or Non-Current Assets Held for Sale, as appropriate:
• Property intended for sale in the ordinary
course of operations or in the process of construction or development for such sale;
• Property being constructed or developed on
behalf of third parties;
• Owner-occupied property, including (among
other things) property held for future use as
owner-occupied property, property held for
future development and subsequent use as
owner-occupied property, property occupied
by employees such as housing for personnel
(whether or not the employees pay rent at market rates) and owner-occupied property awaiting disposal;
• Property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property;
• Property that is leased to another entity under
a finance lease;
• Property held to provide a social service and
which also generates cash inflows, e.g. property rented out below market rental to sporting
bodies, schools, low income families, etc; and
• Property held for strategic purposes or service
delivery.

An investment property shall be derecognised
(eliminated from the statement of financial position) on disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits or service potential are expected from its disposal.

6.

Financial Instruments

The municipality has various types of financial instruments and these can be broadly categorised as
either financial assets, financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with the substance
of the contractual agreement. The municipality
only recognises a financial instrument when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Initial recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the entity’s Statement of Financial Position when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Entity does not offset a financial asset and a
financial liability unless a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts currently exist;
and the entity intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Fair value methods and assumptions
The fair values of financial instruments are determined as follows:

In accordance with IAS 39.09 the Financial Assets
of the municipality are classified as follows into
the four categories allowed by this standard:

The fair values of quoted investments are based
on current bid prices.

Loans and Receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market.

If the market for a financial asset is not active (and
for unlisted securities), the company establishes
fair value by using valuation techniques.

They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than twelve months, which are
classified as non-current assets.

These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that
are substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis, and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as
possible on entity-specific inputs.

Loans and receivables are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset.

The effective interest rate method

After initial recognition Financial Assets are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method less a provision for impairment.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
a financial liability and of allocating the interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period.

Held-to-Maturity Investments are financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity where the municipality has the positive
intent and ability to hold the investment to maturity.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
or financial liability.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets that meet either of the following conditions:

Amortised cost
Amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial
recognition minus principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between
that initial amount and the maturity amount, and
minus any reduction for impairment or uncollectibility.

6.1 Financial Assets - Classification
A financial asset is any asset that is cash or a contractual right to receive cash.
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• they are classified as held for trading; or
• upon initial recognition they are designated as
at fair value through the Statement of Financial Performance.
Available for sale investments are financial assets
that are designated as available for sale or are not
classified as:
• Loans and Receivables;
• Held-to-Maturity Investments; or
• Financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss.
The municipality has the following types of financial assets as reflected on the face of the Statement of Financial Position or in the notes thereto:
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Type of Financial Asset Classification in terms of IAS 39.09

Short-term Investment Deposits – Call

Available for sale

Bank Balances and Cash

Loans and receivables

Long-term Receivables

Loans and receivables

Consumer Debtors

Loans and receivables

Other Debtors

Loans and receivables

Investments in Fixed Deposits

Held-to-maturity investments

Cash includes cash on hand (including petty cash)
and cash with banks (including call deposits). Cash
equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments, readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, that are held with registered banking institutions with maturities of three months or less
and are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value.

through profit or loss are financial liabilities that
are essentially held for trading (i.e. purchased with
the intention to sell or repurchase in the short
term; derivatives other than hedging instruments
or are part of a portfolio of financial instruments
where there is recent actual evidence of shortterm profiteering or are derivatives).

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks, net of bank overdrafts.
The municipality categorises cash and cash equivalents as financial assets: loans and receivables.

6.2 Financial Liabilities - Classification
A financial liability is a contractual obligation to
deliver cash or another financial asset to another
entity. The municipality has the following types
of financial liabilities as reflected on the face of
the Statement of Financial Position or in the notes
thereto:
• Long-term Liabilities
• Certain Other Creditors
• Bank Overdraft
• Short-term loans
• Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities
• Consumer Deposits
There are three main categories of Financial Liabilities, the classification determining how they
are measured. Financial liabilities may be measured at:
(i) Fair value through profit or loss;
(ii) Other financial liabilities (Financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost); or
(iii) Financial guarantee contract.
Financial liabilities that are measured at fair value

Any other financial liabilities are classified as
“Other financial liabilities” in accordance with IAS
39.09.
Bank overdrafts are recorded based on the facility
utilised. Finance charges on bank overdrafts are
expensed as incurred.

6.3 Initial and Subsequent Measurement
6.3.1

Financial Assets

Held-to-maturity Investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
the financial asset. Subsequently, these assets are
measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Method less any impairment, with revenue
recognised on an effective yield basis.
Loans and Receivables are initially measured at
fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset. Subsequently, these assets are measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest
Method less any impairment, with interest recognised on an effective yield basis.
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets are initially
measured at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses
recognised directly in equity until the investment
is derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss recorded in equity is recognised in the
statement of financial performance, or determined
to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss
recorded in equity is recognised in the statement
of financial performance.
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6.3.2 Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with
any resulted gain or loss recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Financial Liabilities held at amortised cost
Any other financial liabilities are classified as
“Other financial liabilities” (All payables, loans
and borrowings are classified as other liabilities)
and are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs. Trade and other payables, interest bearing debt including finance lease liabilities,
non-interest bearing debt and bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest expense is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance by applying the effective interest rate.
Bank borrowings, consisting of interest-bearing
short-term bank loans, repayable on demand and
overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received.
Finance costs are accounted for using the accrual
basis and are added to the carrying amount of the
bank borrowing to the extent that they are not
settled in the period that they arise. Prepayments
are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Financial guarantee contract
Financial guarantee contracts represent contracts
that require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when they are contractually due. Financial guarantee contract liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. The subsequent measurement of financial guarantee contracts is the higher of the
amount determined in accordance with the policy
on provisions as set out below, or the amount initially recognised less when appropriate cumulative amortisation.

6.4 Impairment of Financial Assets
Financial assets, other than those at fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there
is objective evidence of impairment of Financial
Assets (such as the probability of insolvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtor). If
there is such evidence the recoverable amount is
estimated and an impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with IAS 39.
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Available-for-sale financial assets
When a decline in the fair value of an availablefor-sale financial asset has been recognised directly in net assets and there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that
had been recognised directly in net assets shall
be removed and recognised in the Statement of
Financial performance even though the financial
asset has not been derecognised. The amount of
the cumulative loss that is removed from net assets and recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in Statement of Financial Performance.
A significant or prolonged decline in fair value of
the instrument below cost is an indicator of impairment.
Impairment losses recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance for an investment in an
equity instrument classified as available-for-sale
are not reversed through the Statement of Financial Performance. If, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Performance, the impairment loss must
be reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Accounts receivables encompasses long term debtors, consumer debtors and other debtors.
Initially Accounts Receivable are valued at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. An estimate
is made for doubtful debt based on past default
experience of all outstanding amounts at yearend. Bad debts are written off the year in which
they are identified as irrecoverable. Amounts receivable within twelve months from the date of reporting are classified as current.
A provision for impairment of accounts receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the municipality will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. The provision is made in accordance with IAS 39.64 whereby the recoverability of accounts receivable is assessed individually
and then collectively after grouping the assets in
financial assets with similar credit risk character-
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istics. The amount of the provision is the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. Future cash
flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for
impairment are estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group. Cash
flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted where the
effect of discounting is immaterial.
Government accounts are not provided for as such accounts are regarded as receivable.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets carried at amortised cost with the
exception of consumer debtors, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When a consumer debtor is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.
With the exception of Available-for-Sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through the Statement of Financial Performance to the extent
that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

6.5 Derecognition of Financial Assets
The municipality derecognises Financial Assets only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity, except when Council approves the write-off
of Financial Assets due to non recoverability.
If the municipality neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the municipality recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the municipality retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the municipality continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

6.6 Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
The municipality derecognises Financial Liabilities when, and only
when, the municipality’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire.
The municipality recognises the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, in the Statement of
Financial Performance.
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7.

Risk Management of Financial
Assets and Liabilities

that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Municipality’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to the Municipality’s reputation.

It is the policy of the municipality to disclose information that enables the user of its financial statements to evaluate the nature and extent of risks
arising from financial instruments to which the
municipality is exposed on the reporting date.
The Municipality has exposure to the following
risks from its use of financial instruments:
- market risk
- credit risk
- liquidity risk
Risks and exposure are disclosed as follows:

• A maturity analysis for financial assets and liabilities that shows the remaining contractual
maturities.
• Liquidity risk is managed by ensuring that all
assets are reinvested at maturity at competitive interest rates in relation to cash flow requirements.

Market Risk
• Market risk is the risk that changes in market
prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Municipality’s income or the value of its holdings
of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
• The maximum exposure to cash flow and fair
value risk, price risk and foreign currency
risk.
• Sensitivity analysis for each of the market
risks.

Credit Risk
• Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the
Municipality if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from
the Group’s receivables from customers and
investment securities.
• Each class of financial instrument is disclosed
separately.
• Maximum exposure to credit risk not covered
by collateral is specified.
• Financial instruments covered by collateral
are specified.

Liquidity Risk
• Liquidity risk is the risk that the Municipality
will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
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Liabilities are managed by ensuring that all
contractual payments are met on a timeous
basis and, if required, additional new arrangements are established at competitive rates to
ensure that cash flow requirements are met.
• A maturity analysis for financial liabilities
(where applicable) that shows the remaining
undiscounted contractual maturities is disclosed in note 48.9 to the annual financial
statements.

8.

Inventories

8.1 Initial Recognition
Inventories comprise current assets held for sale,
current assets for consumption or distribution
during the ordinary course of business. Inventories are initially recognised at cost.
Cost generally refers to the purchase price, plus
taxes, transport costs and any other costs in bringing the inventories to their current location and
condition. Where inventory is manufactured, constructed or produced, the cost includes the cost of
labour, materials and overheads used during the
manufacturing process.
Where inventory is acquired by the municipality for
no or nominal consideration (i.e. a non-exchange
transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal to the
fair value of the item on the date acquired.
Direct costs relating to properties that will be sold
as inventory are accumulated for each separately identifiable development. Costs also include a
proportion of overhead costs.
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8.2 Subsequent Measurement
Consumable stores, raw materials, work-in-progress and finished
goods
Consumable stores, raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods
are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value (net amount
that an entity expects to realise from the sale on inventory in the ordinary course of business). In general, the basis of determining cost is the
weighted average cost of commodities. If inventories are to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge they are valued at the lower
of cost and current replacement cost.

Water inventory
Water is regarded as inventory when the municipality purchases water
in bulk with the intention to resell it to the consumers or to use it internally, or where the municipality has incurred purification costs on water
obtained from natural resources (rain, rivers, springs, boreholes etc.).
However, water in dams, that are filled by natural resources and that has
not yet been treated, and is under the control of the municipality but can
not be measured reliably as there is no cost attached to the water, and it
is therefore not recognised in the statement of financial position.
The basis of determining the cost of water purchased and not yet sold
at statement of financial position date comprises all costs of purchase,
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to
its present location and condition, net of trade discounts and rebates.
Water and purified effluent are valued by using the weighted average
method, at the lowest of purified cost and net realisable value, insofar
as it is stored and controlled in reservoirs at year-end.

Unsold properties
Unsold properties are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a weighted average cost basis. Direct costs are accumulated for
each separately identifiable development. Cost also includes a portion
of overhead costs, if this relates to development.
Redundant and slow-moving inventories are identified and written
down from cost to net realisable value with regard to their estimated
economic or realisable values and sold by public auction. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.
Differences arising on the valuation of inventory are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance in the year in which they arose.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories arising
from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
The carrying amount of inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period that the inventory was sold, distributed, written off or consumed,
unless that cost qualifies for capitalisation to the cost of another asset.

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report 2009/2010

79

9.

Non-current Assets held-for-sale

9.1 Initial Recognition
Non-current Assets and Disposal Groups are classified as held-for-sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable and the asset (or disposal group)
is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.

9.2 Subsequent Measurement
Non-current Assets (and Disposal Groups) classified as held-for-sale are measured at the lower of
their previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.
A non-current asset is not depreciated (or amortised) while it is classified as held for sale, or
while it is part of a disposal group classified as
held for sale.
Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for
sale are recognised in surplus or deficit.
The gain or loss on the eventual sale of non-current assets held for sale is included in the Statement of Financial Performance as gain or loss on
sale of assets. The gain or loss on the eventual
sale of non-current assets held for sale, is calculated on the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the individual asset or the disposal group.

10. Revenue Recognition
10.1 General
Revenue, excluding value-added taxation where
applicable, is derived from a variety of sources
which include rates levied, grants from other tiers
of government and revenue from trading activities, interest and other services provided. Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential will
flow to the municipality and these benefits can be
measured reliably, except when specifically stated
otherwise.
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods
and services in the ordinary course of the munic-
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ipality’s activities. Revenue is shown net of valueadded tax, returns, rebates and discounts.
The municipality recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the municipality and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the municipalities activities
as described below. The amount of revenue is not
considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The municipality bases its estimates on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of
each arrangement.
Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrued to the municipality directly in
return for services rendered/goods sold, the value
of which approximates the consideration received
or receivable.
Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers
to transactions where the municipality received
revenue from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange. Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally
recognised to the extent that the related receipt
or receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset
and there is no liability to repay the amount.

10.2 Revenue from Exchange Transactions
10.2.1 Service Charges
Service charges relating to solid waste, sanitation
and sewage are levied in terms of the approved
tariffs.
Service charges relating to electricity and water
are based on consumption. Meters are read on
a monthly basis and are recognised as revenue
when invoiced. Provisional estimates of consumption, based on the consumption history, are made
monthly when meter readings have not been performed. The provisional estimates of consumption
are recognised as revenue when invoiced, except
at year-end when estimates of consumption up to
year-end are recorded as revenue without being
invoiced. Adjustments to provisional estimates of
consumption are made in the invoicing period in
which meters have been read. These adjustments
are recognised as revenue in the invoicing period.
In respect of estimates of consumption between
the last reading date and the reporting date, an
accrual is made based on the average monthly
consumption of consumers.
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Service charges relating to refuse removal are
recognised on a monthly basis in arrears by applying the approved tariff to each property that has
improvements. Tariffs are determined per category of property usage, and are levied monthly
based on the number of refuse containers on each
property, regardless of whether or not all containers are emptied during the month.
Service charges from sewerage and sanitation are
based on the type of service and the number of
sewer connections on all developed property, using the tariffs approved by Council and are levied
monthly.

10.2.5 Income from Agency Services
Income for agency services is recognised on a
monthly basis once the income collected on behalf of agents has been quantified. The income
recognised is in terms of the agency agreement.

10.2.6 Sale of Goods (including Houses)
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when all the following conditions have been met:
• The municipality has transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods.

In circumstances where services cannot readily be
measured and quantified, a flat rate service charge
is levied monthly on such properties.

• The municipality retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold.

10.2.2 Pre-paid Electricity

• The amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sale of electricity pre-paid meter
cards are recognised at the point of sale. Revenue
from the sale of electricity prepaid meter cards
is made on an average monthly sale before year
end and is recognised based on an estimate of the
prepaid electricity consumed as at the reporting
date.

• It is probable that the economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the municipality.

Furthermore other services rendered are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
the transaction at the reporting date.

Revenue from the rental of facilities and equipment is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease agreement.

10.2.3 Finance income

10.2.8 Dividends

Interest earned on investments is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance on the
time proportionate basis that takes into account
the effective yield on the investment.

Dividends are recognised on the date that the municipality becomes entitled to receive the dividend
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreement, where applicable.

Interest earned on the following investments is
not recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance:
• Interest earned on trust funds is allocated directly to the fund.
• Interest earned on unutilised conditional
grants is allocated directly to the creditor: unutilised conditional grants, if the grant conditions indicate that interest is payable to the
funder.”

• The costs incurred, or to be incurred, in respect
of the transaction can be measured reliably.

10.2.7 Rentals

10.2.9 Royalties
Royalties are recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreement. Royalties determined on a time basis are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the agreement. Royalty arrangements that are
based on production, sales and other measures
are recognised by reference to the underlying arrangement.

10.3 Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions

10.2.4 Tariff Charges

10.3.1 Rates and Taxes

Revenue arising from the application of the approved tariff of charges is recognised when the
relevant service is rendered by applying the relevant authorised tariff. This includes the issuing of
licences and permits.

Revenue from property rates is recognised when
the legal entitlement to this revenue arises. Collection charges are recognised when such amounts
are legally enforceable. Penalty interest on unpaid
rates is recognised on a time proportion basis
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with reference to the principal amount receivable
and effective interest rate applicable. A composite
rating system charging different rate tariffs is employed. Rebates are granted to certain categories
of ratepayers and are deducted from revenue.

10.3.2 Fines
Fines constitute both spot fines and summonses
for which revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will be received.
Fines are recognised on the best estimate of the
recovery of fines issued.

10.3.3 Public contributions
Revenue from public contributions is recognised
when all conditions associated with the contribution have been met or where the contribution is
to finance property, plant and equipment, when
such items of property, plant and equipment are
brought into use.
Where public contributions have been received
and the municipality has not met the condition, a
liability is recognised.

10.3.4 Other Donations and Contributions
Donations are recognised on a cash receipt basis
or where the donation is in the form of property,
plant and equipment, when such items of property, plant and equipment are available for use.

10.3.5 Revenue from Recovery of Unauthorised, Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful
Expenditure
Revenue from the recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is based
on legislated procedures, including those set out
in the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act
No. 56 of 2003) and is recognised when the recovery thereof from the responsible councillors or
officials is virtually certain. Such revenue is based
on legislated procedures.

11. Conditional Grants and Receipts
Income received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to
the extent that the municipality has complied with
any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement.
To the extent that the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met, a liability is recognised.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the municipality with no future related
costs are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance in the period in which they become
receivable.
Interest earned on investments is treated in accordance with grant conditions. If it is payable to
the funder it is recorded as part of the creditor and
if it is the municipality’s interest it is recognised
as interest earned in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

12. Provisions
A provision is defined as a liability of uncertain
timing and amount. Provisions for environmental
restoration, rehabilitation, restructuring costs and
legal claims are recognised when the municipality
has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
or service potential will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the obligation.

10.4 Transitional Provisions

Future events that may affect the amount required
to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount
of a provision where there is sufficient objective
evidence that they will occur. Gains from the expected disposal of assets are not taken into account in measuring a provision.

Revenue is initially recognised at fair value for
the year ended 30 June 2009 (and retrospectively,
where practicable) by discounting all future receipts using an imputed rate of return in accordance with the requirements of GRAP 9, GRAP 3
and SAICA circular 09/2006.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses. The present obligation under an onerous
contract is recognised and measured as a provision. An onerous contract is a contract in which
the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits
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expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract
reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower
of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from
failure to fulfil it - this unavoidable cost resulting from the contract is
the amount of the provision to be recognised.
Provisions are reviewed at reporting date and the amount of a provision
is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle
the obligation. When the effect of discounting is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money. The impact of
the periodic unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance as a finance cost as it occurs.

Provision for Restructuring cost
A provision for restructuring costs is recognised only when the following
criteria over and above the recognition criteria of a provision have been
met:
(a) The municipality has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring
identifying at least:
• the business or part of a business concerned;
• the principal locations affected;
• the location, function, and approximate number of employees
who will be compensated for terminating their services;
• the expenditures that will be undertaken;
• when the plan will be implemented; and
(b) The municipality has raised a valid expectation in those affected that
it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan
or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

Environmental rehabilitation provisions
Estimated long-term environmental provisions, comprising rehabilitation and landfill site closure, are based on the entity’s policy, taking into
account current technological, environmental and regulatory requirements. The provision for rehabilitation is recognised as and when the
environmental liability arises. To the extent that the obligations relate
to the asset, they are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Any
subsequent changes to an obligation that did not relate to the initial
related asset are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.

13. Employee Benefits
13.1 Short-term Employee Benefits
Remuneration to employees is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance as the services are rendered, except for non-accumulating
benefits, which are only recognised when the specific event occurs.
The municipality treats its provision for leave pay as an accrual.
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The costs of all short-term employee benefits such
as leave pay, are recognised during the period in
which the employee renders the related service.
The liability for leave pay is based on the total accrued leave days at year end and is shown as a
creditor in the Statement of Financial Position.
The municipality recognises the expected cost of
performance bonuses only when the municipality
has a present legal or constructive obligation to
make such payment and a reliable estimate can
be made.

13.2 Post employment benefits
The municipality provides retirement benefits for
its employees and councillors in terms of defined
benefit plans.

13.3 Defined Benefit Plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

13.3.1 Post-retirement Health Care Benefits
The municipality has an obligation to provide
Post-retirement Health Care Benefits to certain of
its retirees. According to the rules of the Medical
Aid Funds, with which the municipality is associated, a member (who is on the current Conditions
of Service), on retirement, is entitled to remain
a continued member of the Medical Aid Fund, in
which case the municipality is liable for a certain
portion of the medical aid membership fee.
The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of
the present value of the defined benefit obligation and unrecognised actuarial gains and losses,
reduced by unrecognised past service costs. The
plan is unfunded. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method, incorporating actuarial
assumptions and a discount rate based on the
government bond rate. Valuations of these obligations are carried out every year by independent
qualified actuaries.
Actuarial gains or losses are accounted for using
the “corridor method”. Actuarial gains and losses
are eligible for recognition in the Statement of Financial Performance to the extent that they exceed
ten per cent of the present value of the gross defined benefit obligations in the scheme at the end
of the previous reporting period. Actuarial gains
and losses exceeding ten per cent are spread over
the expected average remaining working lives of
the employees participating in the scheme.
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Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
income, unless the changes to the pension plan
are conditional on the employees remaining in
service for a specified period of time (the vesting
period). In this case, the past-service costs are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period.

13.3.2 Long-service Allowance
The municipality has an obligation to provide Longservice Allowance Benefits to all of its employees.
According to the rules of the Long-service Allowance Scheme, which the municipality instituted
and operates, an employee (who is on the current Conditions of Service), is entitled to a cash
allowance, calculated in terms of the rules of the
scheme, after 10, 15, 20, 25 and 30 years of continued service. The municipality’s liability is based
on an actuarial valuation. The projected unit credit method has been used to value the liabilities.
Actuarial gains and losses on the long-term incentives are accounted for through the statement of
financial performance.

13.3.3 Provincially-administered Defined
Benefit Plans
The municipality contributes to various Nationaland Provincial-administered Defined Benefit Plans
on behalf of its qualifying employees. These funds
are multi-employer funds (refer to Note 49 of the
Annual Financial Statements for details). The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of
retirement benefits are charged against revenue in
the year they become payable. These defined benefit funds are actuarially valued triennially on the
Projected Unit Credit Method basis. Deficits are recovered through lump sum payments or increased
future contributions on a proportional basis from
all participating municipalities.

14. Leases
Lease Classification
Leases are classified as finance leases where substantially all the risks and rewards associated with
ownership of an asset are transferred to the municipality.
Leases of property, plant and equipment, in which
a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases.
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14.1 The Municipality as Lessee
Finance leases
At inception of an arrangement, the Municipality determines whether
such an arrangement is or contains a lease. A specific asset is the subject of a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use
of that specified asset. An arrangement conveys the right to use the asset if the arrangement conveys to the Municipality the right to control
the use of the underlying asset. At inception or upon reassessment of
the arrangement, the Municipality separates payments and other consideration required by such an arrangement into those for the lease
and those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If
the Municipality concludes for a finance lease that it is impracticable to
separate the payments reliably, an asset and a liability are recognised at
an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. Subsequently
the liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance
charge on the liability is recognised using the Municipality’s incremental borrowing rate.
Where the Municipality enters into a finance lease, Property, plant and
equipment or Intangible Assets subject to finance lease agreements are
capitalised at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased asset or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. Corresponding liabilities are included
in the Statement of Financial Position as Finance Lease Liabilities. The
corresponding liabilities are initially recognised at the inception of the
lease and are measured as the sum of the minimum lease payments due
in terms of the lease agreement, discounted for the effect of interest. In
discounting the lease payments, the municipality uses the interest rate
that exactly discounts the lease payments and unguaranteed residual
value to the fair value of the asset plus any direct costs incurred. Lease
payments are allocated between the lease finance cost and the capital
repayment using the effective interest rate method. Lease finance costs
are expensed when incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the leased assets are accounted for in
accordance with the stated accounting policies applicable to property,
plant, equipment or intangibles. The lease liability is reduced by the
lease payments, which are allocated between the lease finance cost and
the capital repayment using the effective interest rate method. Lease
finance costs are expensed when incurred. The accounting policies
relating to derecognition of financial instruments are applied to lease
payables. The lease asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life or the lease term.

Operating leases
The municipality recognises operating lease rentals as an expense in
the statement of financial performance on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an
operating lease asset or liability.
In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
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straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

14.2 The Municipality as Lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
or instalment sale agreements are recorded as
receivables at the amount of the Municipality’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease or instalment sale income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate
of return on the Municipality’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases or instalment
sale agreements.
Operating lease rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

15. Borrowing Costs
The municipality capitalises borrowing costs incurred that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset as part of the cost of that asset in accordance with the requirements of GRAP 5.
It is considered inappropriate to capitalise borrowing costs where the link between the funds
borrowed and the capital asset acquired cannot
be adequately established - the municipality expenses borrowing costs when it is inappropriate
to capitalise it.
The municipality ceases to capitalise borrowing
costs when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for its intended use has been completed. Where the construction of the qualifying asset is completed in
parts and each part is capable of being used while
construction continues on other parts, the entity
shall cease capitalising borrowing costs when it
completes substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that part.

16. Grants-in-Aid
The municipality transfers money to individuals,
organisations and other sectors of government
from time to time. When making these transfers,
the municipality does not:
• receive any goods or services directly in return, as would be expected in a purchase or
sale transaction;
• expect to be repaid in future; or
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• expect a financial return, as would be expected
from an investment.
These transfers are recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance as expenses in the period that the events giving rise to the transfer occurred.

17. Value Added Tax
The Municipality accounts for Value Added Tax on
the payment basis.

18. Unauthorised Expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that
has not been budgeted, expenditure that is not in
terms of the conditions of an allocation received
from another sphere of government, municipality
or organ of state and expenditure in the form of
a grant that is not permitted in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No 56 of
2003). Unauthorised expenditure is accounted for
as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance.

19. Irregular Expenditure
Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act
(Act No 56 of 2003), the Municipal Systems Act
(Act No 32 of 2000), the Public Office Bearers Act
(Act No 20 of 1998), or is in contravention of the
Municipality’s or Municipal Entities’ supply chain
management policies. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance.

20. Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure
that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. Fruitless
and wasteful expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance.

21. Changes in Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Errors
Changes in accounting policies that are effected by
management have been applied retrospectively in
accordance with GRAP 3 requirements, except to
the extent that it is impracticable to determine the
period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of
the change in policy. In such cases the municipality
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shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for
the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.
Refer to note 38 for details of changes in accounting policies.
Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements. Details of changes in estimates are
disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements where applicable.
Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the
error has occurred in accordance with GRAP 3 requirements, except to
the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the error. In such cases the municipality
shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for
the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.
Refer to Note 37 to the Annual Financial Statements for details of corrections of errors recorded during the period under review.

22. Related Parties
Individuals as well as their close family members, and/or entities are
related parties if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or jointly control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and/or operating decisions. Key
management personnel is defined as the Municipal Manager, Chief Financial Officer and all other managers reporting directly to the Municipal
Manager or as designated by the Municipal Manager.

23. Events after the Reporting Date
Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events
have been accounted for in the Annual Financial Statements. The events
after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events after
the reporting date have been disclosed in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements.

24. Foreign Currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the prevailing exchange rate on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in such foreign currencies are converted at the
rates prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange differences are included
in the Statement of Financial Performance.

25. Comparative Information
25.1 Current year comparatives:
Budgeted amounts have, in accordance with GRAP 1, been included in
the financial statements and forms part of the audited Annual Financial
Statements.

25.2 Prior year comparatives
When the presentation or classification of items in the Annual Financial
Statements is amended, prior period comparative amounts are reclassified. The nature and reasons for the reclassification are disclosed.
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26. Contingent Assets and Contingent
Liabilities
Contingent liabilities represent a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by an occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity.
A contingent liability can also arise as a result of
a present obligation that arises from past events
but which is not recognised as a liability either
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of
the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability. Contingent assets represent possible
assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by an occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed
in the notes to the annual financial statements.

27. Commitments
“Commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial performance but are included in the disclosure notes.
Commitments are disclosed for:
• Approved and contracted commitments, where
the expenditure has been approved and the
contract has been awarded at the reporting
date.
• Approved but not yet contracted commitments,
where the expenditure has been approved and
the contract has yet to be awarded or is awaiting finalisation at the reporting date.
• Items are classified as commitments where the
municipality commits itself to future transactions that will normally result in the outflow of
resources.
• Contracts that are entered into before the reporting date, but goods and services have not
yet been received are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the financial statements.
• Other commitments for contracts are be noncancellable or only cancellable at significant
cost contracts should relate to something other than the business of the municipality.”
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2010
1.

General Information

Sol Plaatje Municipality (the municipality) is a local government institution in Kimberley, Northern Cape.
The addresses of its registered office and principal place of business are disclosed under “General Information”
included in the Annual Financial Statements. The principal activities of the municipality are prescribed by
The Constitution.

2.

Inventory

Inventory Stores - at cost

2010

2009

14,798,478

15,388,920

Water - at cost

934,840

860,918

Total Inventory

15,733,318

16,249,838

Inventory water has been restated to include the volume of water included in the water reticulation system.
Refer to Note 39 on “Correction of Error” for details of the restatement.
The above water inventory at cost is seen as the fair value less cost to sell.
The cost of Inventories recognised as an expense (included in general expenses) in respect of write downs
of Inventory to Net Realisable Value and which was approved by Council amounted to:
77,932

145,393

24,895,425

26,907,684

Other Assets Held-for-Sale

596,460

-

Net Assets classified as Held-for-Sale

596,460

-

The cost of Inventories recognised as an expense during the period was:

3.

Non-current Assets Held-For-Sale

3.1 Property Held-for-Sale
The municipality intends to dispose some of its Property, Plant and Equipment through public auction
within the next ten months. No impairment loss was recognised on reclassification of the property as
held-for-sale at 30 June 2010
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4.

Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Gross
Balances

Provision for
Impairment

Net
Balances

Service Debtors:

534,814,183

387,703,432

147,110,751

Electricity

65,812,093

42,720,161

23,091,932

Refuse

43,657,195

32,138,358

11,518,837

Sewerage

52,998,063

39,072,894

13,925,170

Water

123,856,707

88,361,199

35,495,508

Miscellaneous

248,490,125

185,410,820

63,079,305

879,328

421,460

457,868

13,900,899

10,214,884

3,686,015

549,594,410

398,339,776

151,254,634

Gross
Balances

Provision for
Impairment

Net
Balances

Service Debtors:

448,149,366

285,626,646

162,522,720

Electricity

57,149,780

32,405,118

24,744,662

Refuse

36,195,440

23,734,330

12,461,110

Sewerage

43,094,925

28,258,510

14,836,416

Water

105,972,389

66,321,476

39,650,914

Miscellaneous

205,736,832

134,907,212

70,829,619

590,098

386,943

203,155

10,859,866

7,121,108

3,738,758

459,599,330

293,134,698

166,464,633

As at 30 June 2010

Market
Housing Debtors
Total Consumer Debtors

As at 30 June 2009

Market
Housing Debtors
Total Consumer Debtors

Consumer Debtors are billed monthly, latest end of month. No interest is charged on trade receivables for
the first 30 days from the date of the invoice. Thereafter interest is charged at a rate determined by council
on the outstanding balance. The municipality strictly enforces its approved credit control policy to ensure
the recovery of Consumer Debtors.
The municipality receives applications that it processes. Deposits are required to be paid for all water accounts
opened. There are no consumers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of Consumer Debtors.
The Municipality does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables, except for consumer
deposits made by consumers with the connection of water and electricity services.
The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Consumer Debtors
approximate their fair values.
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4.1 Ageing of Consumer Debtors
2010

2009

Electricity: Ageing
Current:

0 - 30 days

24,942,532

19,961,015

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

5,092,732

4,541,717

61 - 90 Days

2,691,120

2,048,153

33,085,710

28,995,243

65,812,093

55,546,128

+ 90 Days
Total

Refuse: Ageing
Current:

0 - 30 days

2,356,223

2,228,399

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

1,478,348

1,382,188

61 - 90 Days

1,383,230

1,235,719

38,439,394

31,349,134

43,657,195

36,195,440

+ 90 Days
Total

Sewerage: Ageing
Current:

0 - 30 days

2,835,884

2,760,149

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

1,872,642

1,739,716

61 - 90 Days

1,802,530

1,583,709

46,487,008

37,011,351

52,998,063

43,094,925

13,233,943

15,916,364

+ 90 Days
Total

Water: Ageing
Current:

0 - 30 days

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

7,458,312

7,093,896

61 - 90 Days

4,934,768

5,067,241

98,229,683

77,894,889

123,856,707

105,972,389

+ 90 Days
Total

Miscellaneous: Ageing
Current:

0 - 30 days

9,680,387

15,692,381

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

6,648,137

6,339,351

61 - 90 Days

7,351,992

5,502,514

225,688,937

178,792,683

249,369,453

206,326,930

+ 90 Days
Total

Housing Rentals: Ageing
Current:

0 - 30 days

496,980

451,829

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

387,584

364,201

61 - 90 Days

388,775

338,383

12,627,559

9,705,453

13,900,899

10,859,866

+ 90 Days
Total
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4.2 Summary of Consumer Debtors by Customer Classification (Exchange and Non-Exchange
Transactions)
Household
R

Industrial/
Commercial
R

National and
Provincial
Government
R

Total
R

As at 30 June 2010
Current:

0 - 30 days

65,327,803

17,280,803

3,651,853

86,260,459

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

19,632,538

4,903,537

2,384,215

26,920,290

16,027,882

3,953,582

2,005,528

21,986,992

410,869,733

50,095,173

57,000,618

517,965,524

Sub-total

511,857,956

76,233,095

65,042,214

653,133,265

Less: Provision for Impairment

396,079,739

2,260,037

-

398,339,776

Total Debtors by Customer Classification

115,778,217

73,973,058

65,042,214

254,793,489

61 - 90 Days
+ 90 Days

As at 30 June 2009
Current:

0 - 30 days

46,129,422

8,184,836

10,245,136

64,559,393

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

20,056,807

2,368,788

1,300,618

23,726,213

15,492,795

1,605,230

422,458

17,520,482

361,216,096

45,043,173

13,322,680

419,581,949

Sub-total

442,895,119

57,202,027

25,290,891

525,388,037

Less: Provision for Impairment

290,807,507

2,327,191

-

293,134,698

Total Debtors by Customer Classification

152,087,612

54,874,836

25,290,891

232,253,339

61 - 90 Days
+ 90 Days

The amount for debtors past due more than the impairment loss provided for is seen as recoverable, therefore
no impairment loss has been provided for this excess amount. Management is of the option that the current
debtors is fully recoverable.

4.3 Reconciliation of the Provision for Impairment

2010

2009

Balance at beginning of year

293,134,698

193,137,160

Impairment Losses recognised

104,693,453

99,997,538

-

-

Amounts written off as uncollectable

(58,176)

-

Amounts reversed

569,802

-

398,339,776

293,134,698

Impairment Losses reversed

Balance at end of year

In determining the recoverability of debtors, the municipality has placed strong emphasis on verifying
the indigent status of consumers. Provision for impairment of Consumer Debtors has been made for
all consumer balances outstanding based on the payment ratio over twelve months per service type. No
further credit provision is required in excess of the Provision for Impairment.
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4.4 Ageing of impaired Consumer Debtors

2010

2009

0 - 30 Days

16,152,343

15,720,097

31 - 60 Days

7,043,359

483,909

+ 90 Days

375,144,074

276,930,691

Total

398,339,776

293,134,698

103,538,855

65,788,706

11,137,276

-

5,070,261

5,361,739

119,746,393

71,150,445

-

-

119,746,393

71,150,445

5.

Trade Receivables from Non-exchange Transactions

Assessment Rates
Government Subsidy Claims
Miscellaneous debtors
Less: Provision for Impairment
Total Other Debtors

Management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of trade receivables from nonexchange transactions approximate their fair value.
The average credit period for Government Grants and Subsidies is dependent on the Government Department
involved and the nature of the claim. No interest is charged on outstanding Government Grants and Subsidies. The subsidies are payable to the municipality due to allocations made in the DORA or based on
agreements between the municipality and the relevant departments.

5.1 Ageing of Consumer Debtors
Rates: Ageing
Current:

0 - 30 days

10,797,129

6,514,639

Past Due:

31 - 60 Days

3,955,318

2,292,397

61 - 90 Days

3,412,904

1,752,516

85,373,505

55,229,155

103,538,855

65,788,706

51,238,735

16,738,735

(25,067,445)

(2,349,909)

26,171,290

14,388,826

+ 90 Days
Total

6.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bank Overdraft
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and Cash
Equivalents include Cash-on-Hand and Cash in Banks, net of outstanding Bank Overdrafts.
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6.1 Current Investment Deposits

2010

Call Deposits
Notice Deposits
Total Current Investment Deposits

2009

48,910,000

14,410,000

2,297,808

2,297,808

51,207,808

16,707,808

Call Deposits are investments with a maturity period of less than three months, and earn interest rates
varying from 1.6% to 6.65% per annum.
Notice Deposits are investments with a maturity period of less than twelve months and earn interest rate
of 7.35 % per annum.
A fixed deposit of R 2 297 808 (2009: R 2 297 808) was made as a security to the Self-Insurance Workman
Compensation reserve as required by the Department of Labour - Compensation Commissioner.

6.2 Bank Accounts
Cash book balance
Cash book balance at beginning of year
Cash book balance at end of year

(2,349,909)

(32,757,359)

(25,067,445)

(2,349,909)

The following disclosures in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) section 125 2(a):
Current Account (Primary Bank Account)
The Municipality has the following main bank account:
Standard Bank Kimberley Old Main Road
Account Number 040065367

Primary Bank account 040065367
Bank statement balance at beginning of year / (overdrawn)
Bank statement balance at end of year / (overdrawn)

7,353,379
2,210,113

4,029,982
7,353,379

58,529
6,407

83,866
58,529

-

-

(33)
-

(30)
(33)

(33)
(240)

(4,019)
(33)

(33)
-

(30)
(33)

Sub account -Resort 040039072
Bank statement balance at beginning of year / (overdrawn)
Bank statement balance at end of year / (overdrawn)

Sub account -Traffic 040036340
Bank statement balance at beginning of year / (overdrawn)
Bank statement balance at end of year / (overdrawn)

Sub account -Stores 040065405
Bank statement balance at beginning of year / (overdrawn)
Bank statement balance at end of year / (overdrawn)

Sub account -Salary 040065391
Bank statement balance at beginning of year / (overdrawn)
Bank statement balance at end of year / (overdrawn)

Sub account -Market 040065383
Bank statement balance at beginning of year / (overdrawn)
Bank statement balance at end of year / (overdrawn)

Interest on overdrawn current accounts are charged at the bank’s prime rate per annum. Interest is earned
at different rates per annum on favourable balances.
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6.3 Cash and Cash equivalents

2010

2009

Cash Floats and Advances

30,927

30,927

Cash on hand in Cash Floats, Advances and Equivalents

30,927

30,927

The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Bank Balances, Cash and
Cash Equivalents recorded at amortised cost in the Annual Financial Statements approximate their fair
values.

7.

Operating Lease Assets/Receivables

Operating Leases are recognised on the straight-line basis as per the requirement of GRAP 13. In respect
of Non-cancellable Operating Leases the following assets have been recognised:
Balance as at 30 June

82,741

70,220

Operating Lease expenses recorded

514,248

446,623

Operating Lease payments effected

(512,938)

(434,102)

84,051

82,741

Total Operating Lease Assets

Operating Lease Assets have been restated to due to an error in the prior year. Refer to Note 39.1 on “Correction
of Error” for details of the restatement.

7.1 Leasing Arrangements
The Municipality as Lessor:
Operating Leases relate to property owned by the municipality with lease terms of between 1 to 10 years.
The lessees do not have an option to purchase the property at the expiration of the lease period. Operating
lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event that the lessee exercises its option to renew.
Rental Revenue earned from Investment Property

25,200

25,200

7.2 Amounts receivable under Operating Leases
At the Reporting Date the following minimum lease payments were receivable under Non-cancellable
Operating Leases for Property, Plant and Equipment, which are receivable as follows:
Up to one year

448,098

409,373

Two to five years

710,721

618,651

38,957

32,468

1,197,776

1,060,492

More than five years
Total Operating Lease Arrangements

The impact of charging the escalations in Operating Leases on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease has been an increase in current year income of R1,310 (2009: R12,521).The following restrictions
have been imposed by the municipality in terms of its lease agreements:
(i) The lessee shall not have the right to sublet, cede or assign the whole or any portion of the premises
let.
(ii) The lessor or its duly authorised agent, representative or servant shall have the right at all reasonable
times to inspect the premises let.
(iii) The lessee shall use the premises let for the sole purpose prescribed in the agreement.
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8.

VAT Receivable from Exchange Transactions

VAT Receivable from Exchange Transactions

2010
3,836,063

2009
1,578,101

VAT is payable on the payment basis. Only once payment is received from debtors, is VAT paid over to
SARS. No interest is payable to SARS if the VAT is paid over timeously, but interest for late payments is
charged according to SARS policies. The municipality has financial risk policies in place to ensure that
payments are effected before the due date.
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9.

Property, Plant and Equipment

30 June 2010
Reconciliation of Carrying Value
Description

Infrastructure

Community

Other

R

R

R

Leased
Infrastructure
R

Total
R

Carrying values at 01 July 2009

425,870,131

75,941,908

57,809,225

6,677,732

566,298,997

Cost

697,694,757

96,486,845

77,739,103

8,913,239

880,833,944

661,883,359

94,817,498

77,739,103

8,913,239

843,353,199

- Under Construction

35,811,398

1,669,347

-

-

37,480,745

Accumulated Depreciation:

(271,824,626)

(20,544,937)

(19,929,878)

(2,235,507)

(314,534,948)

- Cost

(271,824,626)

(20,544,937)

(19,929,878)

(2,235,507)

(314,534,948)

Acquisitions

60,423,174

-

2,081,856

-

62,505,030

43,795,685

2,327,253

-

-

46,122,938

43,795,685

2,327,253

-

-

46,122,938

(15,188,460)

(3,573,550)

(8,525,964)

(1,142,202)

(28,430,176)

(15,188,460)

(3,573,550)

(8,525,964)

(1,142,202)

(28,430,176)

-

(596,460)

-

(596,460)

- Completed Assets

Capital under Construction Additions
- Cost
Depreciation:
- Based on Cost

Carrying value of Transfers to Held-for-Sale:
- Cost

(961,776)

- Accumulated Depreciation

-

-

- Based on Cost

365,317

(961,776)
-

365,317

365,317
365,317

Capital under Construction - Completed
(6,953,742)
Other Movements

6,953,742

- Cost

6,953,742

(6,953,742)
-

-

-

6,953,742
6,953,742

Carrying values at 30 June 2010

514,900,531

74,695,610

50,768,657

5,535,531

645,900,329

Cost

801,913,616

98,814,097

78,859,183

8,913,239

988,500,136

729,260,275

94,817,498

78,859,183

8,913,239

911,850,196

- Under Construction

72,653,341

3,996,600

-

-

76,649,941

Accumulated Depreciation:

(287,013,085)

(24,118,487)

(28,090,526)

(3,377,709)

(342,599,807)

(287,013,085)

(24,118,487)

(28,090,526)

(3,377,709)

(342,599,807)

- Completed Assets

- Cost
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30 June 2009
Description

Infrastructure
R

Community

Other

R

R

Leased
Infrastructure
R

Total
R

Carrying values at 01 July 2008

381,486,698

56,961,623

67,753,607

5,711,049

Cost 645,206,195

108,850,196

70,793,544

7,400,212

832,250,146

645,206,195

108,850,196

70,793,544

7,400,212

832,250,146

(263,719,497)

(51,888,573)

(3,039,937)

(1,689,163)

(320,337,170)

(263,719,497)

(51,888,573)

(3,039,937)

(1,689,163)

(320,337,170)

591,608

(15,608,073)

(4,721,886)

21,740

(19,716,610)

5,324,454

34,880,259

(9,815,369)

507,917

30,897,261

01 July 2008

387,402,760

76,233,809

53,216,352

6,240,706

523,093,627

Acquisitions

16,085,556

1,575,374

11,667,445

1,491,287

30,819,663

35,811,398

1,669,347

-

-

37,480,745

28,001,388

9,479,357

-

(13,429,583)

(3,536,623)

(7,074,572)

(1,054,261)

(25,095,039)

(13,429,583)

(3,536,623)

(7,074,572)

(1,054,261)

(25,095,039)

Carrying values at 30 June 2009

425,870,131

75,941,908

57,809,225

6,677,732

566,298,997

Cost

697,694,757

96,486,845

77,739,103

8,913,239

880,833,944

661,883,359

94,817,498

77,739,103

8,913,239

843,353,199

- Under Construction

35,811,398

1,669,347

-

-

37,480,745

Accumulated Depreciation:

(271,824,626)

(20,544,937)

(19,929,878)

(2,235,507)

(314,534,948)

(271,824,626)

(20,544,937)

(19,929,878)

(2,235,507)

(314,534,948)

- Completed Assets
Accumulated Depreciation:
- Cost

511,912,976

Correction of error (Note 39)
- Cost
- Accumulated Depreciation
Restated carrying values at

Capital under Construction - Additions
- Cost
Depreciation:
- Based on Cost

- Completed Assets

- Cost

37,480,745

Refer to Appendices “B, C and E (2)” for more detail on Property, Plant and Equipment, including those in
the course of construction.
The Municipality unbundled its Asset Register which previously depicted its assets at globular amounts
(per asset category) to individually componentised items (per asset category) during the current financial
year. The unbundling process resulted in a number of movements within the respective asset categories,
details of which are disclosed in Note 39 - “Correction of Errors”, and Appendices “B, C and E (2).”
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9.1 Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and Equipment retired
from active use and held for disposal
2010

2009

Other

596,460

-

Carrying Value of PPE retired from active use and held for disposal

596,460

-

9.2 Assets pledged as security
The municipality’s obligations under Finance Leases (see Appendix B) are secured by the lessors’ title to
the leased assets, which have a carrying amount of:
5,535,531
6,677,732

10. Intangible Assets
At Cost less Accumulated Amortisation and Accumulated Impairment Losses
3,425,872

4,560,172

The movement in Intangible Assets is reconciled as follows:
Computer
Software

Total

Carrying values at 01 July 2009

4,560,172

4,560,172

Cost

6,228,770

6,228,770

(1,668,598)

(1,668,598)

128,453

128,453

128,453

128,453

(1,262,753)

(1,262,753)

(1,262,753)

(1,262,753)

Carrying values at 30 June 2010

3,425,872

3,425,872

Cost

6,357,222

6,357,222

(2,931,350)

(2,931,350)

Carrying values at 01 July 2008

4,223,192

4,223,192

Cost

4,721,886

4,721,886

Accumulated Amortisation

(498,695)

(498,695)

Acquisitions during the Year:

1,506,883

1,506,883

1,506,883

1,506,883

(1,169,903)

(1,169,903)

(1,169,903)

(1,169,903)

Carrying values at 30 June 2009

4,560,172

4,560,172

Cost

6,228,770

6,228,770

(1,668,598)

(1,668,598)

Accumulated Amortisation
Acquisitions during the Year:
Purchased
Amortisation during the Year:
Purchased

Accumulated Amortisation

Purchased
Amortisation during the Year:
Purchased

Accumulated Amortisation

The amortisation expense has been included in the line item “Depreciation and Amortisation” in the Statement
of Financial Performance (see Note 31).
All of the municipality’s Intangible Assets are held under freehold interests and no Intangible Assets had
been pledged as security for any liabilities of the municipality.
No restrictions apply to any of the Intangible Assets of the municipality.
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11. Investment Property

2010

At Cost less Accumulated Depreciation

2009

51,625,367

47,858,733

47,858,733

47,969,600

47,969,600

47,969,600

(110,867)

-

-

-

Acquisitions during the Year

3,877,500

-

Depreciation during the Year

(110,867)

(110,867)

The movement in Investment Property is reconciled as follows:
Carrying values at 1 July
Cost
Accumulated Depreciation
Accumulated Impairment Losses

Impairment Losses during the Year -

-

Carrying values at 30 June
Cost
Accumulated Depreciation
Accumulated Impairment
Estimated Fair Value of Investment Property at 30 June

51,625,367

47,858,733

51,847,100

47,969,600

(221,733)

(110,867)

-

-

52,326,796

47,969,600

Revenue and Expenditure disclosed in the Statement of Financial Performance include the following:
Rental Revenue earned from Investment Property

25,200

25,200

All of the municipality’s Investment Property is held under freehold interests and no Investment Property
had been pledged as security for any liabilities of the municipality.
There are no restrictions on the realisability of Investment Property or the remittance of revenue and proceeds of disposal.
There are no contractual obligations on Investment Property.
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12. Long-Term Receivables
Gross
Balances
R

Provision for
Net
Impairment Balances
R
R

As at 30 June 2010
Car Loans

-

-

-

-

-

-

Less: Current Portion transferred to Current Receivables:

-

Car Loans

-

Total Long-term Receivables

-

As at 30 June 2009
Car Loans

113,424

-

113,424

113,424

-

113,424

Less: Current Portion transferred to Current Receivables:

113,424

Car Loans

113,424

Total Long-term Receivables

-

Car Loans
Staff are entitled to car loans which attract interest at 8% for senior and 10% for junior staff per annum
and which are repayable over a maximum period of 6 years. These loans have been repaid.

13. Consumer Deposits
Electricity and Water

10,225,457

8,980,853

Total Consumer Deposits

10,225,457

8,980,853

2,375,610

2,404,346

Guarantees held in lieu of Electricity and Water Deposits

Consumer Deposits are paid by consumers on application for new water and electricity connections. The
deposits are repaid when the water and electricity connections are terminated. In cases where consumers
default on their accounts, the municipality can utilise the deposit as payment for the outstanding account.
No interest is paid on Consumer Deposits held.
The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Consumer Deposits approximate their fair values.
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14. Provisions

2010

2009

Current Portion of Post-retirement Medical Aid
Benefits Liability (See Note 19 below)

2,905,680

2,634,996

Current Portion of Non-Current Provisions
(See Note 20 below):

2,394,004

2,017,860

-

-

2,394,004

2,017,860

-

-

5,299,684

4,652,856

Trade Creditors

62,282,903

47,443,936

Payments received in Advance

23,244,937

14,035,042

5,884,932

5,469,585

52,884

53,632

Accrued Leave

15,670,232

11,208,015

Total Creditors

107,135,888

78,210,210

Ex-Gratia Arrangements
Long-term Service
Rehabilitation of Land-fill Sites
Total Provisions

15. Creditors

Staff Bonuses
Other Creditors

Accrued leave has been restated due to a calculation error as at 30 June 2009. Refer to Note 39 on
“Correction of Error” for details on the restatement of accrued leave as at 30 June 2009.
The average credit period on purchases is 30 days from the receipt of the invoice, as determined by the
MFMA. No interest is charged for the first 30 days from the date of receipt of the invoice. Thereafter interest
is charged in accordance with the credit policies of the various individual creditors that the municipality
deals with. The municipality has financial risk policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within
the credit timeframe.
The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Creditors approximate
their fair values.
Accrued Leave accrues to the staff of the municipality on a monthly basis, subject to certain conditions.
The accrual is an estimate of the amount due at the reporting date.

16. Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts
16.1 Conditional Grants from Government

3,436,299

6,377,864

2,381,493

1,977,095

Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG)

255,596

-

Provincial Grants

799,211

4,400,769

16.2 Other Conditional Receipts

-

51,381

Lotto Grant

-

51,381

3,436,299

6,429,245

Frances Baard District Municipality Grant (FBDM Grant)

Total Conditional Grants and Receipts

See Note 26 for the reconciliation of Grants from Other Spheres of Government. The municipality complied
with the conditions attached to all grants received to the extent of revenue recognised. No grants were
withheld. Refer to Appendix “F” for more detail on Conditional Grants.
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17. VAT Payable from Exchange Transactions

2010

VAT Payable from Exchange Transactions

2009

41,664,918

35,014,636

VAT is payable on the payment basis. Only once payment is received from debtors, VAT is paid over to
SARS. No interest is payable to SARS if the VAT is paid over timeously, but interest for late payments is
charged according to SARS policies. The municipality has financial risk policies in place to ensure that
payments are affected before the due date.

18. Long-term Liabilities
Annuity Loans

66,591,061

65,238,116

5,181,428

6,628,702

71,772,488

71,866,818

8,163,443

7,024,588

Annuity Loans

6,190,928

5,577,314

Finance Lease Liabilities

1,972,514

1,447,274

63,609,046

64,842,231

Finance Lease Liabilities
Sub-total
Less: Current Portion transferred to Current Liabilities:

Total Long-term Liabilities

The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Long-term Liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the Annual Financial Statements approximate their fair values.
Refer to Appendix “A” for more detail on Long-term Liabilities.

18.1 Obligations under Finance Lease Liabilities
The Municipality as Lessee:
Finance Leases relate to Office Equipment with lease terms of between 3 and 5 years (2009: 3 and 5 years).
The effective interest rate on Finance Leases is between 1.51% and 15.7% (2009: 1.51% and 15.7%).
The municipality does not have an option to purchase the leased Office Equipment at the conclusion of
the lease agreements. The municipality’s obligations under Finance Leases are secured by the lessors’ title
to the leased assets.
The obligations under Finance Leases are as follows:
Minimum Lease Payments

Present Value of Minimum
Lease Payments
2010
2009
R
R

2010
R

2009
R

Within one year

3,905,490

3,883,963

1,972,514

1,447,274

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

5,397,563

8,650,988

3,208,914

5,181,428

-

-

-

-

9,303,053

12,534,950

5,181,428

6,628,702

Less: Future Finance Obligations

4,121,625

5,906,248

-

-

Present Value of Minimum Lease Obligations

5,181,428

6,628,702

5,181,428

6,628,702

1,972,514

1,447,274

3,208,914

5,181,428

Amounts payable under finance leases:

Over five years

Less: Amounts due for settlement within 12 months (Current Portion)
Finance Lease Obligations due for settlement after 12 months
(Non-current Portion)
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The municipality has finance lease agreements for the following significant classes of assets:
- Office Equipment
Included in these classes are the following significant leases:
(i) Itec Digital Copier
- Instalments are payable monthly in advance
- Average period outstanding

27 months

- Average effective interest rate

4.08%

- Average monthly instalment

32,000

(ii) Samsung Office Server 500
- Instalments are payable monthly in advance
- Average period outstanding

14 months

- Average effective interest rate

2.67%

- Average monthly instalment

22,890

19. Retirement Benefit Liabilities
19.1 Post-retirement Health Care Benefits Liability
Balance at beginning of year

2010

2009

113,425,731

98,197,330

Contributions to Provision

(2,634,996)

(2,405,988)

Expenditure incurred

17,434,617

16,159,532

Actuarial (gain)/loss

(11,179,188)

1,474,857

Balance at end of Year

117,046,164

113,425,731

(2,905,680)

(2,634,996)

114,140,484

790,735

Transfer to Current Provisions
Total Post-retirement Health Care Benefits Liability

Retirement Benefit Liabilities have been restated to adhere to the disclosure provisions of IAS 19. Refer to
Note 39 on “Correction of Error” for details of the restatement.
The municipality provides certain post-retirement health care benefits by funding the medical aid contributions of qualifying retired members of the municipality. According to the rules of the Medical Aid Funds,
with which the municipality is associated, a member (who is on the current Conditions of Service) is entitled
to remain a continued member of such medical aid fund on retirement, in which case the municipality
is liable for a certain portion of the medical aid membership fee. The municipality operates an unfunded
defined benefit plan for these qualifying employees. No other post-retirement benefits are provided to
these employees.
The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation
were carried out at 30 June 2010 by Mr C Weiss, Fellow of the Actuarial Society of South Africa. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were
measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
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The members of the Post-employment Health Care Benefit Plan are made up as follows:
2010
In-service (employee) members

2009

1,329

1,329

In-service (employee) non-members

614

614

Continuation Members (retirees and widowers)

148

148

2,091

2,091

In-service Members

86,450,752

82,215,909

Continuation Members

30,595,412

31,209,822

117,046,164

113,425,731

Total Members
The liability in respect of past service has been estimated as follows:

Total Liability

The municipality makes monthly contributions for health care arrangements to the following Medical Aid
Schemes:
- Bonitas
- Hosmed
- Key Health
- LA Health
- Samwumed
The Current-service cost for the year ending 30 June 2010 is R7,375,261, whereas interest-cost for the year
is R10,059,356 the cost for the ensuing year is estimated to be R7,441,600 and R10,636,792 respectively
(2009: R5,800,469 and R10,359,063 respectively).

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
Discount Rate

10.68%

8.97%

Health Care Cost Inflation Rate

9.56%

7.69%

Net Effective Discount Rate

1.02%

1.19%

Expected Rate of Salary Increase

5.51%

5.51%

Expected Retirement Age - Females

58

58

Expected Retirement Age - Males

62

62

Movements in the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation were as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year

113,425,731

98,197,330

7,375,261

5,800,469

10,059,356

10,359,063

Contributions from plan participants

-

-

Past-service costs

-

-

(2,634,996)

(2,405,988)

(11,179,188)

1,474,857

Losses/(gains) on curtailments

-

-

Liabilities extinguished on settlements

-

-

117,046,164

113,425,731

-

-

117,046,164

113,425,731

Current service costs
Interest cost

Benefits paid
Actuarial losses/(gains)

Present Value of Fund Obligation at the end of the Year
Actuarial losses/(gains) unrecognised
Total Recognised Benefit Liability
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The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are as follows:
2010

2009

Present value of fund obligations

117,046,164

113,425,731

Total Benefit Liability

117,046,164

113,425,731

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance are as follows:
Current service cost

7,375,261

5,800,469

Interest cost

10,059,356

10,359,063

Total Post-retirement Benefit included in Employee Related Costs (Note 29)

17,434,617

16,159,532

The history of experienced adjustments is as follows:
2010
R

2009
R

2008
R

2007
R

2006
R

Present Value of Defined
Benefit Obligation

117,046,164

113,425,731

98,197,330

-

-

Fair Value of Plan Assets

-

-

-

-

-

117,046,164

113,425,731

98,197,330

-

-

Deficit

In accordance with the transitional provisions for the amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits in December
2004, the disclosures above are determined prospectively from the 2008 reporting period.

The effect of a 1% movement in the assumed rate of health care cost inflation is as follows:
2010
R

2009
R

Increase:
Effect on the aggregate of the current service cost and
the interest cost
Effect on the defined benefit obligation

20,279,600

18,623,389

132,363,000

130,158,000

14,790,900

14,007,129

102,739,000

97,988,000

Decrease:
Effect on the aggregate of the current service cost and
the interest cost
Effect on the defined benefit obligation

Refer to Note 49 “Multi-employer Retirement Benefit Information” to the Annual Financial Statements for
more information regarding the municipality’s other retirement funds that is Provincially and Nationally
administered.
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20. Non-Current Provisions

2010

Provision for Ex-Gratia Arrangements

381,297

413,564

6,674,375

6,752,934

Provision for Rehabilitation of Land-fill Sites

27,720,000

25,060,000

Total Non-current Provisions

34,775,672

32,226,498

Provision for Long Service Awards

2009

Non-current Provisions have been restated to adhere to the disclosure provisions of IAS 19. Refer to Note
39 on “Correction of Error” for details of the restatement.

The movement in Non-current Provisions are reconciled as follows:
Ex-Gratia
Arrangements
R

Long Service
Awards
R

Land-fill
Sites
R

413,564

8,770,794

25,060,000

-

1,634,749

-

38,071

712,659

-

-

(2,017,860)

2,660,000

(70,338)

(31,963)

-

381,297

9,068,379

27,720,000

-

(2,394,004)

-

381,297

6,674,375

27,720,000

396,597

8,371,062

25,060,000

43,454

1,455,066

-

Interest cost

-

820,482

-

Expenditure incurred/Contribution

-

(1,830,231)

-

(26,487)

(45,585)

-

413,564

8,770,794

25,060,000

-

(2,017,860)

-

413,564

6,752,934

25,060,000

30 June 2010
Balance at beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Expenditure incurred/Contribution
Actuarial Loss/(Gain)
Transfer to current provisions
Balance at end of year
30 June 2009
Balance at beginning of year
Current service cost

Actuarial Loss/(Gain)
Transfer to current provisions
Balance at end of year

20.1 Ex-Gratia Arrangements
Ex-gratia pensions are pensions that are paid by the Municipality from its revenue i.e. they are not funded
or paid from one of the Municipality’s pension arrangements. Provision has therefore not been made in
this valuation for the possibility that future employees might be entitled to these annuities.
The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation
were carried out at 30 June 2010 by Mr C Weiss, Fellow of the Actuarial Society of South Africa. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were
measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
At year end, two employees were eligible for ex-gratia arrangement awards.
The interest-costs for the current year is estimated to be R38,071 (2009: R43,454).
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The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
2010

2009

Discount Rate

9.01%

9.21%

Cost Inflation Rate

5.60%

5.64%

Net Effective Discount Rate

3.22%

3.37%

Expected Rate of Salary Increase

5.55%

5.55%

Expected Retirement Age - Females

58

58

Expected Retirement Age - Males

62

62

Movements in the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation were as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year

413,564

396,597

38,071

43,454

Actuarial losses / (gains)

(70,338)

(26,487)

Present Value of Fund Obligation at the end of the Year

381,297

413,564

-

-

381,297

413,564

Interest cost

Actuarial losses / (gains) unrecognised
Total Recognised Benefit Liability

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance are as follows:
Interest cost

38,071

43,454

Actuarial losses / (gains)

(70,338)

(26,487)

Total Post-retirement Benefit included in Employee Related Costs

(32,267)

16,967

The history of experienced adjustments is as follows:
2010
R

2009
R

2008
R

2007
R

2006
R

381,297

413,564

396,597

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

381,297

413,564

396,597

-

-

Present Value of Defined
Benefit Obligation
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Deficit

In accordance with the transitional provisions for the amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits in December 2004, the disclosures above are determined prospectively from the 2008 reporting period.
The effect of a 1% movement in the assumed rate of long service cost inflation is as follows:

Increase:
Effect on the aggregate of the interest cost
Effect on the defined benefit obligation

417,709

456,616

42,034

48,290

348,021

374,511

34,476

39,096

Decrease:
Effect on the aggregate of the interest cost
Effect on the defined benefit obligation
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20.2 Long Service Awards
A long-service award is granted to municipal employees after the completion of fixed periods of continuous
service with the Municipality. The provision represents an estimation of the awards to which employees
in the service of the Municipality may become entitled to in future, based on an actuarial valuation
performed.
The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation
were carried out at 30 June 2010 by Mr C Weiss, Fellow of the Actuarial Society of South Africa. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were
measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
At year end, 1,943 employees were eligible for Long-service Awards.
The current service cost for the year is estimated to be R1,634,749 (2009: R1,455,066), whereas the interestcosts for the current year is estimated to be R712,659 (2009: R820,482).
2010

2009

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
Discount Rate

10.97%

9.16%

Cost Inflation Rate

9.09%

6.57%

Net Effective Discount Rate

1.72%

2.42%

Expected Rate of Salary Increase

5.55%

5.55%

Expected Retirement Age - Females

58

58

Expected Retirement Age - Males

62

62

Movements in the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation were as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year

8,770,794

8,371,062

Current service costs

1,634,749

1,455,066

712,659

820,482

Contributions from plan participants

-

-

Past-service costs

-

-

(2,017,860)

(1,830,231)

(31,963)

(45,585)

Losses / (gains) on curtailments

-

-

Liabilities extinguished on settlements

-

-

9,068,379

8,770,794

-

-

9,068,379

8,770,794

Interest cost

Benefits paid
Actuarial losses / (gains)

Present Value of Fund Obligation at the end of the Year
Actuarial losses / (gains) unrecognised
Total Recognised Benefit Liability

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are as follows:
Present value of fund obligations

9,068,379

8,770,794

Total Benefit Liability

9,068,379

8,770,794

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report 2009/2010

109

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance are as follows:
2010

2009

1,634,749

1,455,066

712,659

820,482

-

-

(2,017,860)

(1,830,231)

Actuarial losses / (gains)

(31,963)

(45,585)

Vested past service costs

-

-

Losses / (Gains) arising from curtailments or settlements

-

-

Adjustments for restrictions on the defined benefit asset

-

-

297,585

399,732

Current service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Benefits paid

Total Post-retirement Benefit included in Employee Related Costs (Note 29)

The overall expected rate of return is a weighted average of the expected returns of the various categories
of plan assets held. The management’s assessment of the expected returns is based on historical return
trends and analysts’ predictions of the market for the asset in the next twelve months.
The actual return on plan assets was R0 (2009: R0).

The history of experienced adjustments is as follows:
Present Value of Defined Benefit
Obligation

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

R

R

R

R

R

9,068,379

8,770,794

8,371,062

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

9,068,379

8,770,794

8,371,062

-

-

Fair Value of Plan Assets
Deficit

In accordance with the transitional provisions for the amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits in December
2004, the disclosures above are determined prospectively from the 2008 reporting period.
2010

2009

R

R

The effect of a 1% movement in the assumed rate of long service cost inflation is as follows:

Increase:
Effect on the aggregate of the current service cost and the interest cost

2,456,845

2,381,376

Effect on the defined benefit obligation

9,486,000

9,167,000

Effect on the aggregate of the current service cost and the interest cost

2,247,076

2,178,342

Effect on the defined benefit obligation

8,680,000

8,403,000

Decrease:
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20.3 Rehabilitation of Land-fill Sites
In terms of the licensing of the landfill refuse sites, the municipality will incur the following licensing and
rehabilitation costs to restore the site at the end of its useful life, estimated to be in 2025 (provision has
been made for the net present value of this cost, using the average cost of borrowing interest rate):
27,720,000

25,060,000

An independent valuator performed the valuation. The valuator based his calculations on the rehabilitation costs incurred on a similar site in the Border area.

21. Accumulated Surplus
The Accumulated Surplus consists of the following Internal Funds and Reserves:
2010
Capital Replacement Reserve (CRR)

2009

1,591,726

74,851

16,817,826

16,733,761

7,856,696

7,549,079

Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) due to the results of Operations

609,054,567

516,216,367

Total Accumulated Surplus

635,320,814

540,574,058

Self-insurance Reserve
COID Reserve

The Capital Replacement Reserve is a reserve to finance future capital expenditure and is fully cash
backed.
The Self-insurance Reserve covers all internal and external insurance claims against Council. Council is
externally insured for catastrophic events.
The COID Reserve arises on the exemption from making contributions to the Compensation Commissioner for Occupational Injuries and Diseases in terms of Section 84 of the COID Act. A fixed deposit as
determined by the Commissioner was made as a security to the Self-Insurance Workman Compensation
Reserve.
Refer to Statement of Changes in Net Assets for more detail and the movement on Accumulated Surplus.

22. Property Rates
Property Valuations

Actual Levies

July 2010

July 2009

July 2010

July 2009

Residential

9,029,693

8,723,457

61,973,170

59,549,607

Business

1,775,045

1,659,674

42,590,438

32,250,792

Residential Business

259,252

266,798

3,712,231

3,110,599

Rural

291,440

299,619

359,479

211,105

Industrial

116,911

116,407

3,891,032

3,393,148

PSI

613,840

694,438

1,187,780

1,343,738

1,312,664

645,981

75,184,120

28,453,508

3,995

3,959

525,696

4,128,988

366,463

282,928

13,769,304

12,693,261

189,423,946

132,441,486

State
Mining Areas
Exempt
Total Assessment Rates
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Valuations on land and buildings are performed every four years in terms of the Municipal Property Rates
Act (MPRA) (Act No 6 of 2004). The last general valuation came into effect on 1 July 2007. Supplementary
valuations are processed when necessary to take into account changes in individual property values due
to alterations, subdivisions, etc. Rates are levied on an annual basis with the final date of payment being
30 September each year. Ratepayers can apply to pay rates monthly.
A general valuation has been performed during the financial year and will be applied with effect 1 July 2011.
Assessment Rates are levied on the value of land and improvements, which valuation is performed every
four years. Interim valuations are processed on an annual basis to take into account changes in individual
property values due to alterations and subdivisions.
A rebate of 20,00% (2008/2009: 20,00%) was allowed on residential properties for pensioners based on the
annual income of the ratepayer’s household.

23. Interest Earned
2010
R

2009
R

External Investments:
Interest

3,984,460

5,916,648

Outstanding Debtors

39,476,418

36,334,394

Total Interest Earned

43,460,878

42,251,042

Outstanding Debtors:

Interest Earned on Financial Assets, analysed by category of asset, is as follows:
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

3,984,460

5,916,648

39,476,418

36,334,394

43,460,878

42,251,042

Sale of Electricity

317,857,006

229,521,917

Sale of Water

102,037,221

119,111,946

Refuse Removal

29,329,663

26,788,032

Sewerage and Sanitation Charges

39,920,760

36,381,981

315,789

31,734

489,460,439

411,835,609

Loans and Receivables

24. Service Charges

Other
Total Service Charges

The amounts disclosed above for revenue from Service Charges are in respect of services rendered which
are billed to the consumers on a monthly basis according to approved tariffs.

25. Rental of Facilities and Equipment
Rental Revenue from Facilities and Equipment

11,126,139

10,786,956

Total Rental of Facilities and Equipment

11,126,139

10,786,956

Rental revenue earned on Facilities and Equipment is in respect of Non-financial Assets rented out.
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26. Government Grants and Subsidies

2010
R

2009
R

Provincial Equitable Share

95,167,000

78,163,784

Provincial Health Subsidies

2,301,000

2,184,000

Other Subsidies

1,545,000

1,454,000

Operational Grants

99,013,000

81,801,784

Conditional Grants

119,626,955

72,978,274

National: FMG

750,000

950,082

National: MIG

39,207,404

23,624,969

National: Grants

3,339,197

2,808,690

National: EPWP

5,728,100

-

69,422,879

40,929,435

Local Government: Local Municipalities Grant

1,127,994

4,175,948

Other Spheres of Government: Various Grants

51,381

489,151

218,639,955

154,780,058

26.1 National: Equitable Share

95,167,000

78,163,784

Equitable Share

95,167,000

78,163,784

Provincial: Grants

Total Government Grants and Subsidies

Operational Grants:

This unconditional grant is partly used to subsidise the provision of basic services to registered and verified indigent community members.

26.2 Provincial: Health Subsidies
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts - included in Public Health vote
- Environmental Health
- Primary Health
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue
Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

2,301,000

2,184,000

208,000

197,000

2,093,000

1,987,000

(2,301,000)

(2,184,000)

-

-

The Municipality renders health services on behalf of the Provincial Government and is refunded the gazette
amount. This grant has been used exclusively for health services (included in Appendix F).

26.3 Other Subsidies
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts:

1,545,000

1,454,000

- Library

1,001,000

938,000

544,000

516,000

(1,545,000)

(1,454,000)

-

-

- Provincial Resort subsidy
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue
Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

The Municipality renders services on behalf of the Provincial Government and is refunded the gazette
amount. This grant has been used exclusively for resort expenditure (included in Appendix F). The conditions of the grant have been met.
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Conditional Grants:

26.4 National: FMG Grant
2010
R
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Operating Expenses
Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

2009
R
-

200,082

750,000

750,000

(750,000)

(950,082)

-

-

The Financial Management Grant is paid by National Treasury to high capacity municipalities to help
implement the financial reforms required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA), 2003. The
FMG Grant also pays for the cost of the Financial Management Internship Programme (e.g. salary costs of
the Financial Management Interns).
The grant is spent in accordance with National Treasury guidelines (included in Appendix F). No funds
have been withheld.

26.5 National: MIG Funds
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Operating Expenses
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Capital Expenses
Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

-

10,124,969

39,463,000

13,500,000

(923,095)

(866,562)

(38,284,310)

(22,758,407)

255,596

-

This grant was used for various projects (included in Appendix F). No funds have been withheld.

26.6 National: Funds
Balance unspent at beginning of year

146,393

-

Current year receipts

3,192,804

2,955,083

Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Operating Expenses

(996,393)

(588,607)

(2,342,804)

(2,220,083)

-

146,393

Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Capital Expenses
Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

This grant was used for various projects (included in Appendix F). No funds have been withheld.

26.7 National - EPWP
Balance unspent at beginning of year
Current year receipts
Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Operating Expenses

5,728,100

-

(5,728,100)

-

Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Capital Expenses -

-

Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

-

-

This grant was used for various projects (included in Appendix F). No funds have been withheld.
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26.8 Provincial: Grants
2010
R
Balance unspent at beginning of year

2009
R

4,254,376

15,310,662

65,967,714

29,873,148

Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Operating Expenses

(23,582,773)

-

Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Capital Expenses

(45,840,106)

(40,929,435)

799,211

4,254,376

Current year receipts

Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

The grant is spent in accordance with business plans approved by the Provincial Government (included in
Appendix F). No funds have been withheld.

26.9 Local Government - Local Municipalities
Balance unspent at beginning of year

1,977,095

1,376,117

Current year receipts

1,532,392

4,776,926

Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Operating Expenses

(113,767)

(1,746,680)

(1,014,226)

(2,429,267)

2,381,493

1,977,095

Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Capital Expenses
Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

The grant is spent in accordance with business plans approved by the Frances Baard District Municipality
(included in Appendix F). No funds have been withheld.

26.10 Other Government
Balance unspent at beginning of year

51,381

540,532

Current year receipts

-

-

Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Operating Expenses

-

-

(51,381)

(489,151)

-

51,381

Conditions met - transferred to Revenue: Capital Expenses
Conditions still to be met - transferred to Liabilities (see Note 16)

The grant is spent in accordance with business plans approved by the Lotto (included in Appendix F).
No funds have been withheld.

26.11 Changes in levels of Government Grants
Based on the allocations set out in the Division of Revenue Act, (Act No 2 of 2008), government grant funding is expected to increase over the forthcoming three financial years.

27. Public Contributions and Donations
Donations Received

3,877,500

-

Total Public Contributions and Donations

3,877,500

-

Donations Received comprise of a farm that was donated to the Municipality during the current year.
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28. Other Income

2010
R

2009
R

Premiums received and claims recovered

3,151,891

2,835,460

Burial fees

1,305,796

1,163,039

Disconnections

5,989,940

4,720,466

Dues

3,340,479

2,976,717

Miscellaneous revenue

7,154,102

7,808,766

Sale of goods and land

11,793

2,735,132

4,014,641

3,898,383

24,968,641

26,137,964

Other Income
Total Other Income

The amounts disclosed above for Other Income are in respect of services, other than described in Notes
22 to 26, rendered which are billed to or paid for by the users as the services are required according to
approved tariffs.

29. Employee Related Costs
Employee Related Costs - Salaries and Wages

178,750,706

154,837,428

Employee Related Costs - Contributions for UIF and Medical Aids

21,486,515

18,580,192

Employee Related Costs - Contributions for Pensions

27,033,124

23,448,503

Travel, Motor Car, Accommodation, Subsistence and Other Allowances

49,460,020

42,679,186

2,201,948

2,835,569

10,922,840

8,216,425

Long-service Awards

5,712,254

5,024,522

Defined Benefit Plan Expense:

8,538,607

19,881,319

9,010,010

7,255,535

10,810,086

11,222,999

(11,281,489)

1,402,785

304,106,014

275,503,145

Housing Benefits and Allowances
Overtime Payments

Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Net Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised
Total Employee Related Costs

The comparative figures for Employee Related Costs have been restated to correct an error contained in
the 2008/2009 Annual Financial Statements. Refer to note 39 on Correction of Errors for details of the
restatement. No advances were made to employees. Loans to employees are set out in Note 12.

Remuneration of the Municipal Manager
Annual Remuneration

1,054,991

477,780

-

-

Car Allowance

126,822

227,888

Company Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

189,885

203,499

1,371,697

909,167

Performance Bonus

Total
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2010
R

2009
R

484,483

209,232

-

-

Car Allowance

186,219

106,677

Company Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

109,115

72,755

Total

779,817

388,664

548,797

418,464

-

-

Car Allowance

206,599

204,375

Company Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

100,210

156,749

Total

855,606

779,588

399,072

418,464

-

-

191,168

204,375

99,493

160,049

689,733

782,888

491,204

-

-

-

Car Allowance

188,443

-

Company Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

107,836

-

Total

787,483

-

549,516

418,704

-

-

204,375

204,375

87,349

145,158

841,240

768,237

Remuneration of the Director: Finance
Annual Remuneration
Performance Bonus

The post is vacant. Salary shown here is for the person acting in this position.

Remuneration of the Director: Corporate Services
Annual Remuneration
Performance Bonus

Remuneration of the Director: Strategy, Economic Development and Planning
Annual Remuneration
Performance Bonus
Car Allowance
Company Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds
Total

Remuneration of the Director: Community Services
Annual Remuneration
Performance Bonus

Remuneration of the Director: Technical Services
Annual Remuneration
Performance Bonus
Car Allowance
Company Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds
Total
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The following compensation was payable to key management personnel in terms of IAS 19 as at 30 June:
2010
R

2009
R

Staff Leave Benefits
Municipal Manager

75,593

-

Chief Financial Officer

-

-

Director Community

-

-

Director Corporate

58,392

33,351

Director SED

36,782

86,341

Director Technical

89,329

25,271

260,097

144,964

Executive Mayor

505,658

434,009

Speaker

407,775

419,150

9,650,044

7,931,147

906,508

789,689

11,469,985

9,573,995

Total

30. Remuneration of Councillors

Councillors
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds and
sundry allowances
Total Councillors’ Remuneration
In-kind Benefits

The Councillors occupying the positions of Executive Mayor and Speaker serve in a full-time capacity.
They are provided with office accommodation and secretarial support at the expense of the municipality
in order to enable them to perform their official duties. Both have use of a Council owned vehicle for official duties.

31. Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation: Property, Plant and Equipment
Amortisation: Intangible Assets
Depreciation: Investment Property
Total Depreciation and Amortisation

28,430,176

25,095,039

1,262,753

1,169,903

110,867

110,867

29,803,795

26,375,808

104,693,453

99,997,538

104,693,453

99,997,538

-

-

104,693,453

99,997,538

32. Impairment Losses
32.1 Impairment Losses on Financial Assets
Impairment Losses Recognised:
Consumer Debtors
Other Debtors
Total Impairment Losses
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33. Finance Costs

2010
R

2009
R

Loans and Payables at amortised cost

6,494,138

6,565,741

Finance Leases

2,436,689

2,305,048

Total Interest Expense

8,930,826

8,870,789

-

-

8,930,826

8,870,789

168,913,892

125,796,282

27,310,497

17,350,160

196,224,388

143,146,442

Less: Amounts included in the Cost of qualifying Assets
Total Interest Paid on External Borrowings

34. Bulk Purchases
Electricity
Water
Total Bulk Purchases

Bulk Purchases are the cost of commodities not generated by the municipality, which the municipality
distributes in the municipal area for resale to the consumers. Electricity is purchased from Eskom whilst
Water is purchased from the Department Water Affairs and Forestry.

35. Grants and Subsidies Paid
Subsidy paid to SPCA

350,000

300,000

Total Grants and Subsidies

350,000

300,000

The subsidy to the SPCA is to assist the municipality to care for stray animals and other related tasks. The
subsidy is paid on an annual basis.

36. General Expenses
Audit fees

2,838,929

2,161,807

908,730

761,069

Claims paid

1,133,848

666,454

Clarification

2,854,225

2,353,413

Conferences and seminars

2,920,070

2,750,542

Course fees /Central training fund

1,613,972

2,260,761

24,809,590

14,627,140

Fuel

6,678,789

7,640,315

Hire of labour

1,957,816

1,323,436

Indigent subsidy

14,221,993

14,986,851

Insurance - other

2,445,773

2,389,968

617,966

282,025

5,820,037

8,632,025

798,044

846,495

18,007,053

6,774,767

1,477,504

1,062,358

Bank charges

Electricity

Insurance - vehicles
Job creation cleaning project
Legal expenses
Loss of income bypassed electricity meters
Membership fees
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2010
R

2009
R

Postage

1,452,188

1,586,703

Printing and stationary

2,192,755

1,666,237

Professional fees

20,995,239

10,419,764

Projects

30,585,418

47,970,478

1,017,146

788,013

918,421

506,545

1,252,175

1,028,435

23,582,773

-

412,351

1,528,557

4,704,658

5,027,924

854,306

1,835,831

78,334

5,555,595

713,086

1,226,237

Water

5,297,898

4,890,499

Ward committee activities

1,151,865

870,310

Workmen’s compesation insurance

1,158,708

1,128,781

Other General Expenses

6,577,632

7,432,182

192,049,294

162,981,515

Protective clothing
Sanitation
Stores
Subsidy services Projects
Sundries
Telephone expenditure
Training
Transport costs
Uniforms

Total General Expenses

The comparative figures for General Expenses have been restated to correct an error contained in the
2008/2009 Annual Financial Statements. Refer to note 39 on Correction of Errors for details of the restatement.
The amounts disclosed above for Other General Expenses are in respect of costs incurred in the general
management of the municipality and not direct attributable to a specific service or class of expense.

37. Discontinued Operations
No operations have been discontinued.

38. Change in Accounting Policy
There were no changes in accounting policy during the current financial year.
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39. Correction of Error
Corrections were made and appropriated to the Accumulated Surplus Account during the financial year
ended 30 June.
Details of the appropriations are as follows:
2009
R

Unappropriated Surplus Account:
Corrections to Post Retirement Liabilities

(106,964,989)

Corrections to External Loans

(16,527)

Corrections to Other Income

87,087

Corrections to Amortisation on Intangible Assets

(498,695)

Corrections to Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

30,897,261

Corrections to Income

43,960

Corrections to Intangible assets

4,721,886

Corrections to Investment Property

47,969,600

Corrections to Property, Plant and Equipment

(19,716,610)

Increase / (Decrease) in Unapprropriated Surplus Account

(43,477,026)

Increase / (Decrease) in Accumulated Surplus Account

(43,477,026)

39.1 Restatement of Revenue
The prior year figures of Revenue Classes have been restated to correctly classify the nature of Revenue of
the municipality. Refer to note 39.9 for further details regarding the nature of these errors and how they
were rectified.
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
2009
Revenue

2009
Correction

Restated
Amount

406,650,596

5,185,013

411,835,609

Rental of Facilities and Equipment

10,760,696

26,260

10,786,956

Other Income

25,385,668

752,296

26,137,964

442,796,960

5,963,568

448,760,529

Service Charges

39.2 Restatement of Expenditure
The prior year figures of Expenditure Classes have been restated to correctly classify the nature of Expenditure of the municipality. Refer to notes 39.6 and 39.10 for further details regarding the nature of these
errors and how they were rectified.
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
2009
Expenditure
259,603,835

2009
Correction
15,899,310

Restated
Amount
275,503,145

Depreciation and Amortisation

47,833,480

(21,457,671)

26,375,808

Impairment Losses

74,000,000

25,997,538

99,997,538

124,278,987

12,079,633

136,358,620

505,716,301

32,518,810

538,235,111

Employee Related Costs

General Expenses
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39.3 Restatement of Statement of Financial Position
The prior year balances of items on the Statement of Financial Position have been restated to correctly
classify the nature of the balances.
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
2009
Financial Position

2009
Correction

Restated
Amount

Accumulated Surplus

635,207,408

(94,633,350)

540,574,058

Long-term Liabilities

64,956,808

(114,577)

64,842,231

Retirement Benefit Liabilities

-

110,790,735

110,790,735

Non-Current Provisions

-

32,226,498

32,226,498

Provisions

-

4,652,856

4,652,856

73,651,397

4,558,813

78,210,210

6,893,483

131,104

7,024,588

534,158,260

32,140,736

566,298,997

Intangible Assets

-

4,560,172

4,560,172

Investment Property

-

47,858,733

47,858,733

15,791,080

458,758

16,249,838

247,292,854

(80,828,221)

166,464,633

12,521

70,220

82,741

Creditors
Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities
Property, Plant and Equipment

Inventory
Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Operating Lease Assets

39.4 Recognition of Retirement Benefit Liabilities and Non-current Provisions
The Municipality offers post-employment health care benefits to employees, retirees and their registered
dependents. The valuation has been performed and the prior year figures have been adjusted.
The Municipality has an obligation to rehabilitate its landfill site at an expected date of closure of 2025.
The Municipality had not previously accounted for this liability in prior financial years. A valuation has
been performed by an independent valuator to quantify the Municipality’s exposure - the prior year figures
have been adjusted to include this estimate.
The Municipality offers employees a Long-service Award (LSA) for every five years of service completed,
from 10 years of service to 25 years, inclusive. The valuation has been performed and the prior year figures
have been adjusted.
Ex-gratia pensions are pensions that are paid by the Municipality from its revenue i.e. they are not funded
or paid from one of the Municipality’s pension arrangements. The valuation of the arrangement was carried
out for the first time on 30 June 2010.
The current portion of the non-current provisions in respect of the post-employment health care benefits
and Long-service Awards have also been restated as a result of the first time recognition of these provisions
as explained above. The quantum of these restatements are as indicated below (all restatements had the
effect of reducing the accumulated surplus):
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:

Provisions

Retirement
Liabilities

Non-current
Provisions

-

-

-

Recognition of liabilities to reflect the nature of
non-current liabilities

4,652,856

110,790,735

32,226,498

Balances as per current AFS published for 2008/2009

4,652,856

110,790,735

32,226,498

Balances as per AFS previously published for 2008/2009
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39.5 Restatement of Finance Lease Liabilities
A Finance Lease contract was erroneously excluded from the total Finance Lease Liability during the
prior financial year. Finance Lease Liabilities have been restated to rectify this oversight, while the interest
expense increased by R2,579, Hire of Equipment decreased by R6,000 and Accumulated Surplus increased
by R1,791

The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:

Finance
Lease
Liabilities

Balances as per AFS previously published for 2008/2009

6,612,175

Restatement of Finance Lease Liabilities

16,527

Balances as per current AFS published for 2008/2009

6,628,702

39.6 Restatement of Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation
The Municipality unbundled its Asset Register during the current financial year. As a result, Property, Plant
and Equipment (see note 9) and the Depreciation expense (see note 31) has been restated to reflect these
changes for the 2008/2009 year as well as against Accumulated Surplus as indicated above.

The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
Balances as per AFS previously published for 2008/2009
Restatement of Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation
Balances as per current AFS published for 2008/2009

Property, Plant
and Equipment

Depreciation

534,158,260

47,833,480

32,140,736

(22,738,441)

566,298,997

25,095,039

39.7 Recognition of Intangible Assets and Investment Property
The Municipality erroneously did not account for its Intangible Assets (see Note 10) and Investment Property (see Note 11) for the prior year due to its Asset Register not being individually componentised. The
Asset Register has since been unbundled and Intangible Assets and Investment Property are now recognised for the first time.

The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:

Intangible
Assets

Investment
Property

-

-

Recognition of Intangible Assets and Investment Property

4,560,172

47,858,733

Balances as per current AFS published for 2008/2009

4,560,172

47,858,733

Balances as per AFS previously published for 2008/2009

39.8 Restatement of Inventory - Water
Water Inventory (see note 2) has been restated due to an error which was included in the prior year yearend inventory balance. The calculation thereof has been amended and the amount thereof restated.
The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:

Inventory
Water

Balances as per AFS previously published for 2008/2009

401,999

Restatement of Water Inventory

458,918

Balances as per current AFS published for 2008/2009

860,918
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39.9 Adjustment of Revenue
Included in the restated prior year figure for Service Charges (see Note 24) is an increase in revenue from
the estimated revenue foregone due to bypassed electricity meters of R6,7 million (previously stated as R nil)
as well as a decrease in revenue of R1,6 million (previously stated as R nil) due to an error in assumptions
made in relation to estimated electricity revenue in terms of the year-end cut-off procedures.
Included in the restated prior year figures for Other Income (see Note 28) is an amount of R0,6 million in
relation to amounts previously erroneously classified as unknown deposits that have now been reclassified
as revenue.
The prior year balance for Rental of Facilities and Equipment has been restated due to an erroneous journal
entry that was passed during the prior year. The restatement has resulted in an increase in Revenue and
the Operating Lease Asset for the 2008/2009 year as well as Accumulated Surplus.
The prior year balance for Rental of Facilities and Equipment has been restated due to an erroneous journal
entry that was passed during the prior year. The restatement has resulted in an increase of R26,620 in
Revenue and the Operating Lease Asset for the 2008/2009 year as well as Accumulated Surplus.

The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:

Revenue as per AFS previously published for
2008/2009
Adjustment of prior period revenue
Revenue as per AFS currently disclosed for
2008/2009

Service
Charges

Other
Income

Rental of
Facilities
and
Equipment

406,650,596

25,385,668

10,760,696

5,185,013

752,296

26,260

411,835,609

26,137,964

10,786,956

39.10 Adjustment of Expenses
The prior year figure for the impairment of Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions (refer to Note
5) have been restated due to erroneous assumptions being included in the prior year calculations. The
balances of Impairment Losses (refer to note 32) as well as Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions
have, as a result, been restated.
The prior year figures of Employee Related Costs (Note 29) have been restated due to an error included in
the prior year calculation of the Accumulated Leave Benefits, accounting for Retirement Benefit Liabilities
for the first time.
The prior year figures of General Expenses (Note 36) have been restated due to a number of prior period
errors discovered in the current financial year. Included in the restated amount, is an estimation of
electricity revenue foregone due to bypassed electricity meters of R6,7 million (previously stated as R nil)
as well as a settlement amount paid to IMS of R5 million (previously stated as R nil).

The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
Expenses as per AFS previously published for
2008/2009
Adjustment of prior period expenses
Expenses as per AFS currently disclosed for
2008/2009
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Impairment
Losses

Employee
Related Costs

General
Expenses

74,000,000

259,603,835

124,278,987

25,997,538

15,899,310

12,079,633

99,997,538

275,503,145

136,358,620

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report 2009/2010

39.11 Long-term Liabilities & current portion of Long-term Liabilities
Long-term liabilities have been adjusted for an error included in the calculation in the short-term portion
thereof (decrease in long-term portion and increase in short-term portion of R114,577). The short-term
portion of long-term liabilities has further been restated (increase of R16,527) due to an error included
within the finance lease liabilities during the prior financial year (refer to note 39.5 as above).

The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:

Balances as per AFS previously published for 2008/2009

Long-term
Liabilities

Short-term
portion of
Long-term
Liabilities

64,956,808

6,893,483

(114,577)

131,104

64,842,231

7,024,588

Adjustment for prior period error
Balances as per current AFS published for 2008/2009

39.12 Creditors
Included in the prior year’s restated creditors’ balance is an amount of R5 million (increase in creditors
and general expenses - refer to note 39.10) in respect of a settlement paid to IMS, R0,6 million in respect of
previously unknown deposits recognised as revenue (decrease in creditors and increase in revenue - refer
to note 39.9) and R0,15 million in respect a creditor that was erroneously not raised during the previous
financial year (increase in creditors and general expenses).

The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:

Creditors

Balances as per AFS previously published for 2008/2009

73,651,397

Adjustment for prior period error

4,558,813

Balances as per current AFS published for 2008/2009

78,210,210

39.13 Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Included in the prior year’s restated balance for Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions is an
amount of R28 million (decrease in Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions and increase in impairment
losses - refer to note 39.10) in respect of erroneous assumptions applied in the prior year impairment
calculations, as well as an amount of R1,6 million (decrease in Trade Receivables from Exchange Transactions
and Service Charges) due to an error in the assumptions applied in relation to the estimated electricity
revenue at year end (refer to note 39.9).

The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:

Trade Receivables from
Exchange Transactions

Balances as per AFS previously published for 2008/2009
Adjustment for prior period error
Balances as per current AFS published for 2008/2009

247,292,854
(80,828,221)
166,464,633

39.14 Accumulated Surplus
The municipality erroneously applied fund accounting principles in relation to the Capitalisation Reserve
and the Government Grant Reserve during prior years. As these accounting principles are not allowed in
terms of GRAP, these reserves were transferred to the Accumulated Surplus account. These transfers had
the effect of increasing the accumulated surplus balance by R55,3 million (Capitalisation Reserve) and
R269,3 million (Government Grant Reserve) respectively.

The effect of the Correction of Error is as follows:
Balances as per AFS previously published for 2008/2009
Adjustment for prior period error
Balances as per current AFS published for 2008/2009
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Capitalisation Reserve Government Grant Reserve
50,648,597

317,670,184

(50,648,597)

317,670,184

-

-
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40. Change in Accounting Estimates
40.1 Depreciation Expenditure
The residual values and estimated useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment were reviewed during the
current financial year. Adjustments to the residual values and useful lives affect the amount of
depreciation for the current and previous financial years, and is expected to affect future periods as well.
Due to limited information available from the previous Asset Register (asset categories reflected at globular
amounts), it is impracticable to illustrate the impact of the change in these estimates on the current and
previous financial years.

41. Cash Generated by Operations
2010
R
Surplus / (Deficit) for the Year

2009
R

89,348,826

9,915,728

-

2,082,109

29,803,795

26,375,808

104,693,453

99,997,538

Bad Debts Recovered

569,802

-

Bad Debts Written-off

(58,176)

-

(43,460,878)

(42,251,042)

8,930,826

8,870,789

189,827,647

104,990,930

516,520

(3,390,175)

(Increase)/Decrease in Consumer Debtors

(89,995,079)

(82,599,784)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Debtors

(48,595,947)

(56,532,130)

(Increase)/Decrease in VAT Receivable

(2,257,962)

2,554,541

(1,310)

(12,521)

1,244,604

274,352

Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors

28,925,679

19,568,749

Increase/(Decrease) in Conditional Grants and Receipts

(2,992,945)

(21,123,117)

(increase)/Decrease in provisions

6,545,751

13,627,240

Increase/(Decrease) in VAT Payable

6,650,282

11,451,845

89,867,238

(11,190,069)

Adjustment for:
Adjusting non cash flow items prior errors
Depreciation and Amortisation
Contribution to Impairment Provision

Investment Income
Finance Costs
Operating surplus before working capital changes
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

(Increase)/Decrease in Operating Lease Assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Consumer Deposits

Cash generated by/(utilised in) Operations
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2010
R

2009
R

991,068,134

788,846,294

Investment income

(43,460,878)

(42,251,042)

(Increase)/decrease in Consumer Debtors

(89,995,079)

(82,599,784)

Bad Debts Recovered

569,802

-

Bad Debts Written-off

(58,176)

-

(1,310)

(12,521)

1,244,604

274,352

(48,595,947)

(56,532,130)

(Decrease)/Increase in conditional grants and receipts

(2,992,945)

(21,123,117)

Cash receipts from ratepayers, government and other

807,778,202

586,602,053

Expenditure for the year

901,719,308

778,930,566

29,803,795

26,375,808

104,693,453

99,997,538

Income for the year

Adjustment for:

(Increase)/Decrease in Operating Lease Assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Consumer Deposits
(Increase)/Decrease in other debtors

Adjustment for:
Depreciation
Contribution to bad debt provision
Adjusting non cash flow items prior errors Interest paid

2,082,109
8,930,826

8,870,789

758,291,233

641,604,322

516,520

(3,390,175)

28,925,679

19,568,749

(Increase)/Decrease in provisions

6,545,751

13,627,240

(Decrease)/Increase in VAT

4,392,320

14,006,386

717,910,964

597,792,122

89,867,238

(11,190,069

Operating expenditure before working capital changes:
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
(Decrease)/Increase in creditors

Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated by/(utilised in) operations

42. Non-Cash Investing and Financing Transactions
The municipality did not enter into any Non-cash Investing and Financing Transactions during the financial
year.

43. Financing Facilities
Unsecured Bank Overdraft Facility payable at call:
- Amount used
- Amount unused
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-

-

400,000

400,000

127

44. Utilisation of Long-term Liabilities Reconciliation
Long-term Liabilities (See Note 18)
Used to finance Property, Plant and Equipment - at cost

71,772,488

71,866,818

(71,772,488)

(71,866,818)

-

-

Long-term Liabilities have been utilised in accordance with the Municipal Finance Management Act.

45. Unauthorised, Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure Disallowed
45.1 Unauthorised Expenditure
To management’s best of knowledge no Unauthorised Expenditure was incurred during the year under review.
2010
R

2009
R

2008
R

1,778,280

1,778,280

69,500

Unauthorised Expenditure current year

-

-

1,708,780

Approved by Council or condoned

-

-

-

1,778,280

1,778,280

1,778,280

2010
R

2009
R

Reconciliation of Unauthorised Expenditure:
Opening balance

Unauthorised Expenditure awaiting authorisation

45.2 Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

Reconciliation of Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure:
Opening balance
Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure current year
Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure awaiting condonement
Incident

669,351

-

57,938

669,351

727,289

669,351

Disciplinary Steps / Criminal Proceedings

Termination of contract for the
construction of SMME Galeshewe.

The project is still in the IDP and Budget of the municipality;
the value of work done not written off.

Overpayments to Councillors on
implementation of the upper limits
gazette.

Item submitted to MEC Of COGHTA and Council for
ratification.

Failure to produce quality work on
contract awarded.

A report was delivered by Rehoboth but was not sufficient
(scope of work was not detailed enough).

Interest paid on late payments (DBSA
and employee benefits).

Project could not start in time for various reasons. DBSA
charged commitment fee on funds secured and not drawn
according to agreement.

Late payment of pension fund
contributions.

The messenger responsible for cheque depositing was
counselled.
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45.3 Irregular Expenditure

2010
R

2009
R

2008
R

Opening balance

48,697,855

30,737,536

-

Irregular Expenditure current year

47,955,068

17,960,319

30,737,536

-

-

-

96,652,923

48,697,855

30,737,536

Reconciliation of Irregular Expenditure:

Condoned or written off by Council
Irregular Expenditure awaiting condonement

46. Additional Disclosures in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act
46.1 Contributions to organised local government - SALGA

Opening Balance

2010
R

2009
R
-

-

1,467,624

1,058,308

(1,467,624)

(1,058,308)

Amount Paid - previous years

-

-

Balance Unpaid (included in Creditors)

-

-

-

-

2,838,929

2,161,807

(2,838,929)

(2,161,807)

Amount Paid - previous years

-

-

Balance Unpaid (included in Creditors)

-

-

Council Subscriptions
Amount Paid - current year

46.2 Audit Fees
Opening Balance
Current year Audit Fee
Amount Paid - current year

46.3 VAT
VAT inputs receivables and VAT outputs receivables are shown in Note 8 and 17. All VAT returns have been
submitted by the due date throughout the year.

46.4 PAYE and UIF
Opening Balance

-

-

29,718,762

30,025,998

(29,718,762)

(30,025,998)

Amount Paid - previous years

-

-

Balance Unpaid (included in Creditors)

-

-

-

-

71,961,371

61,485,093

(71,961,371)

(61,485,093)

Amount Paid - previous years

-

-

Balance Unpaid (included in Creditors)

-

-

Current year Payroll Deductions
Amount Paid - current year

46.5 Pension and Medical Aid Deductions
Opening Balance
Current year Payroll Deductions and Council Contributions
Amount Paid - current year
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46.6 Councillor’s arrear Consumer Accounts
The following Councillors had arrear accounts outstanding for more than 90 days as at:
30 June 2010

Total

Outstanding
up to
90 days

Outstanding
more than
90 days

MJ Beylefeld

682

682

-

KJ de Kock

507

398

109

LE Kruger

21,632

3,065

18,568

MM Leven

1,737

1,737

-

PJF Louw

1,600

1,600

-

SC Mashodi

2,254

983

1,271

E Mathe

5,448

868

4,580

LT Matsekete

28,989

3,218

25,771

KB Mohulatsi

244

244

-

RT Morwe

11,224

1,861

9,362

J Motsage

8,147

3,290

4,857

WN Ngobeza

128

128

-

MS and GR Nkomo

940

940

-

V Settley

2,202

159

2,043

F Swanepoel

7,499

719

6,779

LE Williams

11,277

1,390

9,887

104,509

21,282

83,226

30 June 2009

Total

Outstanding
up to
90 days

JL Steyn

13,857

0

13,857

LT Matsekete

5,624

1,370

4,254

EM Mathe

4,048

1,105

2,944

WE de Kock

1,100

1,036

64

J Motsage

1,758

572

1,187

LE Mafooa

1,158

0

1,158

I Davids

4,919

4,505

414

J Oliphant

2,613

554

2,059

35,078

9,142

25,936

Total Councillor Arrear Consumer Accounts

Total Councillor Arrear Consumer Accounts

Outstanding
more than
90 days

46.7 Non-Compliance with Chapter 11 of the Municipal Finance Management Act
No known matters existed at reporting date.
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46.8 Deviation from, and ratification of minor breaches of, the Procurement Processes
In terms of section 36(2) of the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations any deviation from the
Supply Chain Management Policy needs to be approved/condoned by the Municipal Manager and noted
by Council.
The Municipality has deviated from the procurement policy, the details of which was reported to council
(refer to appendix G).

46.9 Material losses
In terms of section 125(d)(i) of the Municipal Finance Management Act disclosure regarding water losses
as a result of various factors for example burst pipes and stand pipes not metered is 35.38% (2009 :28%)
is disclosed to the amount of:
10,126,587

5,034,159

47. Commitments for Expenditure
47.1 Capital Commitments
2010
R

2009
R

Commitments in respect of Capital Expenditure:
- Approved and Contracted for:

6,644,905

9,617,251

6,644,905

9,617,251

533,862,000

246,465,513

Infrastructure

349,042,000

149,329,513

Community

122,600,000

3,993,000

62,220,000

93,143,000

540,506,905

256,082,764

External Loans

230,000,000

38,826,000

Government Grants

263,506,905

211,156,764

-

1,000,000

47,000,000

5,100,000

540,506,905

256,082,764

8,099,845

5,235,020

Infrastructure
- Approved but not yet Contracted for:

Other
Total Capital Commitments
This expenditure will be financed from:

District Council Grants
Own Resources

47.2 Lease Commitments
Commitments under Finance Leases are disclosed in Note 18.

47.3 Other Commitments
Retention Money (not included in creditors)
Retentions refer to construction contracts.
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48. Financial Instruments
48.1 Classification
In accordance with IAS 39.09 the Financial Assets of the municipality are classified as follows:

Financial Assets

2010
R

2009
R

Classification

Consumer Debtors
Electricity

Loans and receivables

23,091,932

24,744,662

Refuse

Loans and receivables

11,518,837

12,461,110

Sewerage

Loans and receivables

13,925,170

14,836,416

Water

Loans and receivables

35,495,508

39,650,914

Miscellaneous

Loans and receivables

63,079,305

70,829,619

Market

Loans and receivables

457,868

203,155

Housing Debtors

Loans and receivables

3,686,015

3,738,758

Assessment Rates

Loans and receivables

103,538,855

65,788,706

Government Subsidy Claims

Loans and receivables

11,137,276

-

Miscellaneous debtors

Loans and receivables

5,070,261

5,361,739

Other Debtors

Bank, Cash and Cash Equivalents
Call Deposits

Available for sale

48,910,000

14,410,000

Notice Deposits

Held to maturity

2,297,808

2,297,808

Cash Floats and Advances

Available for sale

30,927

30,927

84,051

82,741

-

113,424

2,297,808

2,297,808

2,297,808

2,297,808

Operating Lease Assets
Operating Lease Assets / Receivables Loans and receivables
Current Portion of Long-term Receivables
Car Loans

Loans and receivables

Summary of Financial Assets
Held to maturity:
Short-term Investment Deposits
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2010
R

2009
R

103,538,855

65,788,706

Loans and Receivables
Consumer Debtors

Assessment Rates

Consumer Debtors

Electricity

23,091,932

24,744,662

Consumer Debtors

Refuse

11,518,837

12,461,110

Consumer Debtors

Sewerage

13,925,170

14,836,416

Consumer Debtors

Water

35,495,508

39,650,914

Consumer Debtors

Miscellaneous

63,079,305

70,829,619

Consumer Debtors

Market

457,868

203,155

Consumer Debtors

Housing Debtors

3,686,015

3,738,758

Other Debtors

Government Subsidy Claims

11,137,276

-

Other Debtors

Miscellaneous debtors

5,070,261

5,361,739

Operating Lease Assets

Operating Lease Assets/Receivables

84,051

82,741

Current Portion of Long-term
Receivables

Car Loans

-

113,424

271,085,078

237,811,243

30,927

30,927

48,910,000

14,410,000

48,940,927

14,440,927

322,323,813

254,549,978

Available for Sale
Bank Balances and Cash

Cash Floats and Advances

Short-term Investment Deposits Call Deposits
Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
In accordance with IAS 39.09 the Financial Liabilities of the municipality are classified as follows:
Financial Liabilities

Classification

Long-term Liabilities
Annuity Loans

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

60,400,132

59,660,803

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

10,225,457

8,980,853

Trade Creditors

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

62,282,903

47,443,936

Other Creditors

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

52,884

53,632

Payments received in Advance

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

23,244,937

14,035,042

Staff Bonuses

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

5,884,932

5,469,585

Accrued leave

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

15,670,232

11,208,015

Consumer Deposits
Electricity and Water
Creditors
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Financial Liabilities

2010
R

2009
R

Classification

Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts
Conditional Grants from Government

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

3,436,299

6,377,864

Other Conditional Receipts

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

-

51,381

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

25,067,445

2,349,909

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

6,190,928

5,577,314

Bank Overdraft
Bank Overdraft
Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities
Annuity Loans
Summary of Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
Long-term Liabilities

Annuity Loans

60,400,132

59,660,803

Consumer Deposits

Electricity and Water

10,225,457

8,980,853

Creditors

Trade Creditors

62,282,903

47,443,936

Creditors

Other Creditors

52,884

53,632

3,436,299

6,377,864

-

51,381

Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts Conditional Grants from Government
Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts Other Conditional Receipts
Bank Overdraft

Bank Overdraft

25,067,445

2,349,909

Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities

Annuity Loans

6,190,928

5,577,314

Creditors

Payments received in Advance

23,244,937

14,035,042

Creditors

Staff Bonuses

5,884,932

5,469,585

Creditors

Accrued leave

15,670,232

11,208,015

167,656,049

130,495,692

167,656,049

130,495,692

Total Financial Liabilities

48.2 Fair Value
The Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are determined as follows:
• the fair value of financial assets and liabilities were determined after considering the standard terms
and conditions of agreements entered into between the municipality and other parties as well as the
current payment ratios of the municipality’s debtors.
The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the Annual Financial Statements approximate their fair
values. The fair value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities were determined after considering the
standard terms and conditions of agreements entered into between the municipality and other parties as
well as the current payment ratios of the municipality’s debtors.
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30 June 2010
Carrying
Fair
Amount
Value
R
R

30 June 2009
Carrying
Fair
Amount
Value
R
R

51,207,808

51,207,808

16,707,808

16,707,808

48,910,000

48,910,000

14,410,000

14,410,000

2,297,808

2,297,808

2,297,808

2,297,808

271,085,078

271,085,078

237,811,243

237,811,243

254,793,489

254,793,489

232,253,339

232,253,339

16,207,537

16,207,537

5,361,739

5,361,739

84,051

84,051

82,741

82,741

-

-

113,424

113,424

30,927

30,927

30,927

30,927

30,927

30,927

30,927

30,927

322,323,813

322,323,813

254,549,978

254,549,978

247,150,823

247,150,823

175,564,800

175,564,800

Unsecured Bank Facilities:

85,467,577

85,467,577

62,010,712

62,010,712

- Annuity Loans

60,400,132

60,400,132

59,660,803

59,660,803

- Bank Overdraft

25,067,445

25,067,445

2,349,909

2,349,909

161,683,245

161,683,245

113,554,088

113,554,088

10,225,457

10,225,457

8,980,853

8,980,853

141,830,561

141,830,561

92,566,677

92,566,677

- Unspent Conditional Grants

3,436,299

3,436,299

6,429,245

6,429,245

- Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities

6,190,928

6,190,928

5,577,314

5,577,314

247,150,823

247,150,823

175,564,800

175,564,800

Financial Assets
Held to maturity:
Call Deposits
Notice Deposits
Loans and Receivables
Consumer Debtors
Other Debtors
Operating Lease Assets
Current Portion of Long-term Receivables
Available for Sale
Bank Balances and Cash
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Designated as FVTPL:

Trade and Other Payables:
- Consumer Deposits
- Creditors

Total Financial Liabilities

79,494,773
Total Financial Instruments

75,172,990

45,069,108
75,172,990

78,985,178

78,985,178

Unrecognised Gain/(Loss)

48.3 Capital Risk Management
The municipality manages its capital to ensure that the municipality will be able to continue as a going
concern while delivering sustainable services to consumers through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The capital structure of the municipality consists of debt, which includes the Long-term Liabilities disclosed in Note 18, Bank, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Equity, comprising Funds, Reserves and Accumulated Surplus as disclosed in Note 6 and the Statement of Changes in Net Assets.
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Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio at the year-end was as follows:

2010
R

2009
R

Net Debt

247,150,823

175,564,800

Equity

629,922,885

540,574,058

39.24%

32.48%

Net debt to equity ratio
Debt is defined as Long- and Short-term Liabilities, as detailed in the notes.

Equity includes all Funds and Reserves of the municipality, disclosed as Net Assets in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

48.4 Financial Risk Management Objectives
The Directorate: Financial Services monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations
through internal policies and procedures. These risks include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. Compliance with policies and procedures is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous basis,
and annually by external auditors. The municipality does not enter into or trade financial instruments for
speculative purposes.
Internal audit, responsible for initiating a control framework and monitoring and responding to potential
risk, reports periodically to the municipality’s audit committee, an independent body that monitors the
effectiveness of the internal audit function.

48.5 Significant Accounting Policies
Details of the significant Accounting Policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition,
the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each
class of Financial Asset, Financial Liability and Equity Instrument are disclosed in the Accounting Policies
to the Annual Financial Statements.

48.6 Market Risk
The municipality’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates (see Note
48.6 below). No formal policy exists to hedge volatilities in the interest rate market. There has been no
change to the municipality’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures
the risk.

48.6.1 Foreign Currency Risk Management
The municipality’s activities do not expose it to the financial risks of foreign currency, and therefore has
no formal policy to hedge volatilities in exchange rate fluctuations.

48.6.2 Interest Rate Risk Management
Interest Rate Risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows associated with a financial
instrument will fluctuate in amount as a result of market interest changes.
Potential concentrations of interest rate risk consist mainly of fixed deposit investments, long-term receivables, consumer debtors, other debtors, bank and cash balances.
The municipality limits its counterparty exposures from its money market investment operations by only
dealing with well-established financial institutions of high credit standing. The credit exposure to any
single counterparty is managed by setting transaction/exposure limits, which are included in the municipality’s Investment Policy.
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Consumer debtors comprise of a large number of ratepayers, dispersed across different industries and
geographical areas. Consumer debtors are presented net of a provision for impairment.
In the case of debtors whose accounts become in arrears, it is endeavoured to collect such accounts by
“levying of penalty charges”, “demand for payment”, “restriction of services” and, as a last resort, “handed
over for collection”, whichever procedure is applicable in terms of Council’s Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy.
Long-term Receivables and Other Debtors are individually evaluated annually at Balance Sheet date for
impairment or discounting. A report on the various categories of debtors is drafted to substantiate such
evaluation and subsequent impairment/discounting, where applicable.
The municipality is exposed to interest rate risk as the municipality borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the municipality by maintaining an appropriate mix between
fixed and floating rate borrowings.
The municipality’s exposures to interest rates on Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are detailed in
the Credit Risk Management section of this note.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity analysis below was determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the reporting
date. For variable rate long-term instruments, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the instrument outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point increase
or decrease was used, which represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

Sensitivity Analysis - Interest Rate
Effect of a change in interest rate on interest bearing financial assets and liabilities
Financial Assets

Classification

2010
R

2009
R

Call Deposits

Held to maturity

48,910,000

14,410,000

Notice Deposits

Held to maturity

2,297,808

2,297,808

Bank Balances

Available for Sale

30,927

30,927

51,238,735

16,738,735

3,984,460

5,916,648

8%

35%

External investments

Interest received
Interest Earned - External Investments
Interest rate

Effect of a change in interest rate on interest earned from external investments
Effect of change in interest rate

%

Effect of change in interest rate

Rand value

Effect of change in interest rate

%

Effect of change in interest rate

Rand value
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7%

34%

3,472,073

5,749,260

9%

36%

4,496,847

6,084,035
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Outstanding debtors
2010
R

2009
R

Consumer Debtors

Loans and receivables

254,793,489

232,253,339

Other Debtors

Loans and receivables

16,207,537

5,361,739

Current portion - Long-term Receivables Loans and receivables

-

113,424

271,001,027

237,728,503

39,476,418

36,334,394

15%

15%

Interest received
Interest Earned - Outstanding Debtors
Interest rate

Effect of a change in interest rate on interest earned from outstanding debtors
Effect of change in interest rate

%

Effect of change in interest rate

Rand value

Effect of change in interest rate

%

Effect of change in interest rate

Rand value

Financial Liabilities

14%

14%

36,766,408

33,957,109

16%

16%

42,186,429

38,711,679

Classification

Long-term Liabilities
Annuity Loans

Not valued at FVTPL

60,400,132

59,660,803

Annuity Loans - current portion

Not valued at FVTPL

6,190,928

5,577,314

66,591,061

65,238,116

8,930,826

8,870,789

13%

14%

12%

13%

8,264,916

8,218,408

14%

15%

9,596,737

9,523,170

Interest paid
Long-term Liabilities
Interest rate %

Effect of a change in interest rate on interest paid on long-term liabilities
Effect of change in interest rate

%

Effect of change in interest rate

Rand value

Effect of change in interest rate

%

Effect of change in interest rate

Rand value
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Description

Fixed Rate Instruments
Bank Facilities
Loan No 10112: DBSA
Loan No 10113: DBSA
Loan No 10616: DBSA
Loan No 101452: DBSA
Loan No 1: DBSA
Loan No 2: DBSA
Loan No 3: DBSA
Loan No 4: DBSA
Loan No 4: DBCM
Loan No 5: DBCM
Loan No 6: DBCM
Loan No 7: DBCM
Loan No 8: DBCM
Loan No 9: DBCM
Loan No 10: DBCM
Total Fixed Rate Instruments
Variable Rate Istruments
Short-term Investment Deposits
Bank Balances and Cash
Housing guarantees
Total Variable Rate Instruments

30 June 2010

10.00%
12.00%
12.00%
10.91%
12.61%
13.12%
6.75%
6.75%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%

Average
effective
Interest Rate
%

51,207,808
30,927
230,600
51,469,335

66,591,061
11,908,635
10,779,936
4,380,336
11,490,516
15,821,851
5,774,831
2,880,248
3,403,515
11,472
666
42,264
32,791
51,589
6,939
5,471
66,591,061

Total
R

30,927

30,927

11,472

11,472

11,472

6 Months
or less
R

51,207,808

51,207,808

666

666

666

6 - 12
Months
R

-

75,055

42,264
32,791

75,055

1-2
Years
R

-

.
51,589
6,939
5,471
11,972,634

11,972,634
11,908,635

2-5
Years
R

230,600
230,600

54,531,233

10,779,936
4,380,336
11,490,516
15,821,851
5,774,831
2,880,248
3,403,515

54,531,233

More than
5 Years
R

In accordance with IAS 32.67(a) and (b) the following tables indicate the average effective interest rates of Income-earning Financial Assets and
Interest-bearing Financial Liabilities at the reporting date and the periods in which they mature or, if earlier, reprice:

48.7 Effective Interest Rates and Repricing Analysis

48. Financial Instruments (Continued)
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Description

Variable Rate Instruments
Short-term Investment Deposits
Bank Balances and Cash
Housing Guarantees
Total Variable Rate Instruments

Fixed Rate Instruments
Bank Facilities
Loan No 10112: DBSA
Loan No 10113: DBSA
Loan No 10616: DBSA
Loan No 101452: DBSA
Loan No 1: DBSA
Loan No 2: DBSA
Loan No 3: DBSA
Loan No 4: DBSA
Loan No 2: DBCM
Loan No 3: DBCM
Loan No 4: DBCM
Loan No 5: DBCM
Loan No 6: DBCM
Loan No 7: DBCM
Loan No 8: DBCM
Loan No 9: DBCM
Loan No 10: DBCM
Total Fixed Rate Instruments

30 June 2009

10.00%
12.00%
12.00%
10.91%
12.61%
13.12%
6.75%
6.75%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%

Average
effective
Interest Rate
%

16,707,808
30,927
354,120
17,092,855

65,238,116
15,315,931
13,302,718
5,253,340
12,155,664
5,639,747
6,456,635
2,945,960
3,899,733
1,775
35,168
32,618
1,264
66,821
46,684
68,583
8,790
6,686
65,238,116

Total
R

30,927

30,927

-

-

6 Months
or less
R

16,707,808

16,707,808

36,944

1,775
35,168

36,944

6 - 12
Months
R

-

33,881

32,618
1,264

33,881

1-2
Years
R

-

190,878

66,821
46,684
68,583
8,790

190,878

2-5
Years
R

354,120
354,120

6,686
64,976,414

64,976,414
15,315,931
13,302,718
5,253,340
12,155,664
5,639,747
6,456,635
2,945,960
3,899,733

More than
5 Years
R

48.8 Other Price Risks
The municipality is not exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments as the municipality
does not trade these investments.

48.9 Liquidity Risk Management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Council. The municipality manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. Included in the note is a listing of additional
undrawn facilities that the municipality has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk (cash).

Liquidity and Interest Risk Tables
The following tables detail the municipality’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
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Non-interest Bearing
- Consumer Deposits
- Creditors
- Unspent Conditional Grants
Variable Interest Rate Instruments
- Bank Overdraft
Fixed Interest Rate Instruments
Loan No 10112: DBSA
Loan No 10113: DBSA
Loan No 10616: DBSA
Loan No 101452: DBSA
Loan No 1: DBSA
Loan No 2: DBSA
Loan No 3: DBSA
Loan No 4: DBSA
Loan No 4: DBCM
Loan No 5: DBCM
Loan No 6: DBCM
Loan No 7: DBCM
Loan No 8: DBCM
Loan No 9: DBCM
Loan No 10: DBCM
Finance Lease Liabilities
Total
10.00%
12.00%
12.00%
10.91%
12.61%
13.12%
6.75%
6.75%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%

1,686,506
1,390,120
504,931
987,050
753,827
375,658
12,118
362
15,702
9,383
12,122
1,394
967
137,953,473

25,067,445

25,067,445
20,621,464
17,595,911
7,474,452
18,730,565
14,190,958
9,633,514
4,271,371
4,130,347
12,118
724
62,807
56,289
60,613
8,368
6,770
9,303,053
252,024,412

107,135,888

10,225,457
107,135,888
3,436,299

3,373,012
2,780,239
1,009,863
1,974,100
788,387
1,507,653
328,567
751,317

31,403
18,762
24,244
2,789
1,934
12,592,270

1,686,506
1,390,120
504,931
987,050
394,193
753,827
164,284
375,658
362
15,702
9,383
12,122
1,394
967
3,905,490
13,638,287

3,436,299

18,762
12,124
2,791
2,902
5,397,563
42,973,555

10,119,037
8,340,718
3,029,589
5,922,299
2,365,160
4,522,960
985,701
2,253,951

44,866,826

3,756,403
3,694,714
2,425,137
8,860,067
10,643,219
2,095,248
2,792,820
373,762

10,225,457

based on the earliest date on which the municipality can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
30 June 2010
Average
Description
effective
6 Months
6 - 12
1-2
2-5
More than
Interest Rate
Total
or less
Months
Years
Years
5 Years
%
R
R
R
R
R
R
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Description

Non-interest Bearing
- Consumer Deposits
- Creditors
- Unspent Conditional Grants
Variable Interest Rate Instruments
- Bank Overdraft
Fixed Interest Rate Instruments
Loan No 10112: DBSA
Loan No 10113: DBSA
Loan No 10616: DBSA
Loan No 101452: DBSA
Loan No 1: DBSA
Loan No 2: DBSA
Loan No 3: DBSA
Loan No 4: DBSA
Loan No 2: DBCM
Loan No 3: DBCM
Loan No 4: DBCM
Loan No 5: DBCM
Loan No 6: DBCM
Loan No 7: DBCM
Loan No 8: DBCM
Loan No 9: DBCM
Loan No 10: DBCM
Finance Lease Liabilities
Total

30 June 2009

10.00%
12.00%
12.00%
10.91%
12.61%
13.12%
6.75%
6.75%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%
11.25%

Average
effective
Interest Rate
%

1,686,506
1,390,120
504,931
987,050
753,827
375,658
1,877
19,081
12,118
362
15,702
9,383
12,122
1,394
967
86,331,216

2,349,909

2,349,909
20,958,776
20,376,150
8,484,315
20,704,665
14,979,345
9,791,167
4,599,938
4,881,663
1,877
38,162
36,355
1,446
78,507
56,292
84,857
11,157
8,704
12,534,950
213,598,542

78,210,210

6 Months
or less
R

8,980,853
78,210,210
6,429,245

Total
R

3,373,012
2,780,239
1,009,863
1,974,100
788,387
1,507,653
328,567
751,317

12,119
722
31,403
18,765
24,244
2,789
1,934
12,605,114

19,081
12,118
362
15,702
9,383
12,122
1,394
967
3,883,963
16,640,905

1-2
Years
R

1,686,506
1,390,120
504,931
987,050
394,193
753,827
164,284
375,658

6,429,245

6 - 12
Months
R

15,701
18,762
36,368
5,580
4,836
8,650,988
46,271,648

10,119,037
8,340,718
3,029,589
5,922,299
2,365,160
4,522,960
985,701
2,253,951

2-5
Years
R

51,749,659

4,093,715
6,474,953
3,435,000
10,834,167
11,431,606
2,252,901
3,121,387
1,125,078

8,980,853

More than
5 Years
R

48.10 Credit Risk Management
Credit Risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the municipality.
Potential concentrations of credit rate risk consist mainly of variable rate deposit investments, long-term
receivables, consumer debtors, other debtors, bank and cash balances.
The municipality limits its counterparty exposures from its investment operations (financial assets that are
neither past due nor impaired) by only dealing with well-established financial institutions of high credit
standing. The credit exposure to any single counterparty is managed by setting transaction/exposure limits, which are included in the municipality’s Investment Policy.
Trade Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries in the geographical area of the municipality. Periodic credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of
accounts receivable and, where appropriate, credit guarantee is increased accordingly.
Consumer Debtors comprise of a large number of ratepayers, dispersed across different industries and
geographical areas within the jurisdiction of the municipality. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed
on the financial condition of these debtors. Consumer debtors are presented net of a provision for impairment. In the case of debtors whose accounts become in arrears, it is endeavoured to collect such accounts
by “levying of penalty charges”, “demand for payment”, “restriction of services” and, as a last resort,
“handed over for collection”, whichever procedure is applicable in terms of Council’s Credit Control and
Debt Collection Policy.
Long-term Receivables and Other Debtors are evaluated annually at balance sheet date for impairment.
The municipality does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group
of counter parties having similar characteristics. The municipality defines counterparties as having similar
characteristics if they are related entities. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings.
The table below shows the balance of the five major counterparties at the balance sheet date. Management is of the opinion that, although these parties are the five counterparties with highest outstanding
balances, no significant credit risk exposure exists
Counterparty and Location

30 June 2010
Carrying
Amount
R

30 June 2009
Carrying
Amount
R

Call investment deposits

51,207,808

16,707,808

Department of Housing and Local Government

15,357,717

13,615,606

Promadev (Pty) Limited

2,109,843

1,839,626

Diamond Knitting (Pty) Limited

1,968,868

1,731,040

11,017,600

8,475,876

National Road Agency

Except as detailed in the following table, the carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the Annual
Financial Statements, which is net of impairment losses, represents the municipality’s maximum exposure
to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained:
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2010
R

2009
R

Fixed Deposit Investments

51,207,808

16,707,808

Finance Lease Receivables

1,197,776

1,060,492

Consumer Debtors

151,254,634

166,464,633

Other Debtors

119,746,393

71,150,445

Bank, Cash and Cash Equivalents

30,927

30,927

Operating Lease Assets

84,051

82,741

230,600

354,120

323,752,189

255,851,166

The maximum credit and interest risk exposure in respect of the
relevant financial instruments is as follows:

Housing guarantees
Maximum Credit and Interest Risk Exposure

49. Multi-Employer Retirement Benefit Information
All participating councillors belong to the Pension Fund for Municipal Councillors.
Employees belong to a variety of approved Pension and Provident Funds as described below.
These schemes are subject to either a tri-annual, bi-annual or annual actuarial valuation, details which
are provided below.
The Municipal Councillors Fund and the Cape Retirement Fund are defined contribution plans, whereas
the other funds are defined benefit plans. All of these afore-mentioned funds are multi-employer plans.
Sufficient information is not available to use defined benefit accounting for the pension and retirement
funds, due to the following reasons:
(i) The assets of each fund are held in one portfolio and are not notionally allocated to each of the participating employers.
(ii) One set of financial statements are compiled for each fund and financial statements are not drafted for
each participating employer.
(iii) The same rate of contribution applies to all participating employers and no regard is paid to differences
in the membership distribution of the participating employers.
It is therefore seen that each fund operates as a single entity and is not divided into sub-funds for each
participating employer.
The only obligation of the municipality with respect to the retirement benefit plans is to make the specified
contributions. Where councillors/employees leave the plans prior to full vesting of the contributions, the
contributions payable by the municipality are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.
The total expense recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance represents contributions payable
to these plans by the municipality at rates specified in the rules of the plans. These following contributions
have been expensed:
27,033,124

23,448,503

The Retirement Funds have been valued by making use of the Discounted Cash Flow method of valuation.
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None of the following Funds are State Plans.

Municipal Councillors Pension Fund
The actuarial valuator of the Pension Fund for councillors on 30 June 2008 stated that it is in a sound financial position.
The Municipal Councillors Pension Fund operates as a defined contribution scheme. The contribution rate
paid by the members (13,75%) and Council (15,00%) is sufficient to fund the benefits accruing from the
fund in the future.
No further details could be provided for after the last valuation, being 30 June 2008.

Cape Joint Pension Fund
The scheme is subject to a bi-annual actuarial valuation. The last statutory valuation was performed as at
30 June 2009 and has been valued by making use of the Discounted Cash Flow method of valuation.
The statutory valuation performed as at 30 June 2009 revealed that the fund had a surplus of R0 (30 June
2008: R182,7 million), with a funding level of 100% (30 June 2008: 106.5%). The recommended total contribution rate of 32.1% of pensionable salaries exceeds the total current contribution of 27% of salaries.
This shortfall translates to about R9.2 million per year.
The Cape Joint Pension Fund had a shortfall from its actual earnings on investment for the period ended
30 June 2009. The Municipality’s portion of the total liability of R195,856,424 amounts to R11,477,186.

Cape Retirement Fund
The 30 June 2009 valuation states that Cape Retirement Fund is in a sound financial condition.
The Cape Retirement Fund operates as a defined contribution scheme. The last actuarial valuation performed for the year ended 30 June 2009 revealed that the fund has a funding level of 100.3% (30 June 2008
- 103.3%). The contribution rate paid by the members (9%) and Municipalities (18%) is sufficient to fund
the benefits accruing from the fund in the future.

SALA Pension Fund
At the valuation date of 1 July 2009 the SALA pension fund was 96% (1 July 2006: 110%) funded. The valuator indicated that although the fund was less than 100% funded at the valuation date, no additional action
was required at that stage to rectify the situation. The valuator recommended that the employers continue
to contribute at the current rate.

Municipal Employees Pension Fund
No details could be provided on the fund or any valuation performed.

South African Municipal Workers Union National Provident Fund
The SAMWUN Provident Fund operates as a defined contribution fund. At the last valuation date of 30 June
2005 the Fund was 100% funded. The valuator recommended that to retain a sound financial position, the
members and employer continue to contribute at the current rate.
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50. Related Party Transactions
50.1 Interest of Related Parties
Councillors and/or management of the municipality have relationships with businesses as indicated below:
Name of Related
Person

Designation

Description of Related Party Relationship

Bogacwi, KA

Executive Director:
Infrastructure

Directorships & Partnerships – Learamele Investment Pty Ltd,
Ditsamme Trade & Invest (Close corporation), Isnakolo Farming
(Close corporation), Kammona Consulting (Close corporation).

Molepo, NP

Chief Internal Auditor

Directorships & Partnerships – Rebaummogo Bed & Breakfast.

Sebolecwe, KR

Executive Director:
Community Services

Directorship & Partnerships – Clisa 22 CC (Commercial).

Stols, MM

IDP Manager

Directorships & Partnerships – Leopont 553 Properties (Pty)
Ltd (no income).

Tyabashe, N

Executive Director: SED

JM & N Trading (CC member), Nqobile Planners &
Development Specialists T/a N12 (CC member).

Akharwaray, GH

Municipal Manager

Directorships - GHA Property Investment, Gulshin
Properties, Price Smart Cash and Carry, PARMTRO
Investment, Swanvest 356, Vecto Trade 465,
Price Smart Technologies.

Mahloko, ZL

Acting CFO

50% interest in Intelligence Combinations Trading CC.

Chwarisang, M

Councillor

Directorship – Thara Shera & Imvusa Trading Company
(dormant).

Diraditsile, MV

Councillor

Directorship – Kutlwanong Civic integrated Housing Trust;
IMVume CC21 (Dormant); Sponsorships & Grants – Pikwana
Diamonds, Bafana Supporters Sports Shirts.

Everyday, P

Councillor

Directorships & Partnerships – Oliday Mining (not yet operational).

Fourie, OC

Councillor

Shares – Rooiheuwels Sand (Bpk) Minerals; Directorships &
Partnerships – ERO Sales, Services & Manufacturing CC
(Engineering) (Dormant).

Leven, MM

Councillor

Shares – Linri Enterprises SA (Pty) Ltd (Sole proprietor).

Louw, PJF

Councillor

Directorships & Partnerships PM Family Trust, Gentec, Wibec.

Mbasa, W

Councillor

Directorships & Partnerships – Coalition Trading.

Nhlapo, MG

Councillor

Shares – 60% Gopelang Cleaning Service; Directorships &
Partnerships – Gopolang Cleaning Service.

Sebolai, LM

Councillor

Shares – Mot Quick Pulse; Directorships & Partnerships –
Mot Quick Pulse.
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50.2 Services rendered to Related Parties
During the year the municipality rendered services to the following related parties that are related to the
municipality as indicated:
Service
Charges
R

Sundry
Charges
R

103,882

540,410

-

104,509

55,846

150,067

-

4,529

159,728

690,477

-

109,038

Councillors

63,106

178,615

-

35,078

Municipal Manager and Section 57 Personnel

28,889

80,523

-

-

Total Services

91,995

259,138

-

35,078

Rates

Outstanding
Charges
R

Balances
R

For the Year ended 30 June 2010
Councillors
Municipal Manager and Section 57 Personnel
Total Services
For the Year ended 30 June 2009

The services rendered to Related Parties are charged at approved tariffs that were advertised to the public.
No Bad Debts were written off or recognised in respect of amounts owed by Related Parties.

50.3 Loans granted to Related Parties
In terms of the MFMA, the municipality may not grant loans to its Councillors, Management, Staff and
Public with effect from 1 July 2004.

50.4 Compensation of Related Parties
Compensation of Key Management Personnel and Councillors is set out in Notes 29 and 30 respectively, to
the Annual Financial Statements.

50.5 Purchases from Related Parties
The municipality bought goods from the following companies, which are considered to be Related Parties:
2009
R
Purchases
for the year

Name
Supplier

Related
Person

N B Mechanical Sales

S Barnes

Nursing Sister

6,416,394

9,810,456

S&R Enterprises

S Barnes

Nursing Sister

1,812,003

780,492

Irrigation Equipment

B Julius

Demand Manager

433,621

250,648

Land Irrigation Suppliers

B Julius

Demand Manager

1,262,405

521,052

Benlin Computers

V Gous

IT

287,737

482,770

Qongo TG Trading

Mother

Nursing Sister

306,942

-

Naledi Chemicals

D De Haast

Department of Education

238,068

-

Linri Enterprises

MM Leven

Councillor

57,684

-

10,814,854

11,845,418

Total Purchases
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Municipal
Capacity

2010
R
Purchases
for the year
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51. Contingent Liabilities
51.1 Guarantees

2010
R

2009
R

The municipality pledged the following amounts as guarantee for employees’ housing bonds:
230,600

354,120

The validity of these bonds in terms of the original conditions at which they were issued could not be verified with the respective banks. The banks have misplaced the guarantee documents and have exonerated
the municipality from such liability. For instances where bank confirmation could not be obtained, a possible liability exists.

51.2 Liability arising from underfunded pension funds
In terms of rule 17(5) of the Cape Joint Pension Fund Rules pertaining to the Defined Benefit Section (Part
A of the rules), local authorities associated with the fund are under obligation to contribute pro rata to the
fund for any shortfall between actual earnings and an investment return of 5.5% on all of its assets. The
Cape Joint Pension Fund had a shortfall from its actual earnings on investment for the period ended 30
June 2009. The Municipality’s portion of the total liability of R195,856,424 amounts to R11,477,186.

51.3 Court Proceedings
51.3.1

High Court matters

56,152,160

25,517,553

8,183,798

325,280

2,500

173,394

620,000

270,000

369,535

566,510

65,327,993

26,852,737

Various claims and litigation are in process.
51.3.2

Litigation and claims
Various claims and litigation are in process.

51.3.3

Various attorney representation
Various claims and litigation are in process.

51.3.4

Labour matters (SALGBC)
A case of unfair promotion is referred to the Labour Court.

51.3.5

Magistrate court matters
Various cases involving Council.

All the above cases are being defended.

51.4 Other liabilities
51.4.1 Various cases: Salga relating to issues regarding Task’s implementation date and possible back pay,
as well the unions taking Salga on about the difference between the increases of 11.5% and 13%.
51.4.2 Upgrade cases: Various claims between employees and Council is in process.

52. Contingent Assets
The municipality was not engaged in any transaction or event during the year under review involving Contingent Assets.

53. In-kind Donations and Assistance
The municipality received the following in-kind donations and assistance during the year under review:
(i)

A secondment of a finance expert and an engineer by the DBSA.

54. Comparison with the Budget
The comparison of the municipality’s actual financial performance with that budgeted, is set out in Annexures “E (1) and E (2)”.
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55. Private Public Partnerships
The municipality was not a party to any Private Public Partnerships during the 2009/10 financial year.

56. Events After the Reporting Date
Management have not identified any matter or circumstance (adjusting or non-adjusting) since the end of
the financial year, that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations, the results of
those operations, or the state of affairs of the municipality in future financial years.

57. Comparative Figures
The comparative figures were restated as a result of the effect of Prior Period Errors (Note 39).

58. Standards and Interpretations in Issue not yet Adopted
At the date of authorisation of these Annual Financial Statements the municipality has not applied the following GRAP standards that have been issued, but are not yet effective:
GRAP 18 Segment Reporting - issued March 2005
GRAP 21 Impairment of Non-cash-generating Assets - issued March 2009
GRAP 23 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers) - issued February 2008
GRAP 24 Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements - issued November 2007
GRAP 25 Employee Benefits - issued December 2009
GRAP 26 Impairment of Cash-generating Assets - issued March 2009
GRAP 103 Heritage Assets - issued July 2008
GRAP 104 Financial Instruments - October 2009
Application of all of the above GRAP standards will be effective from a date to be announced by the Minister of Finance. This date is not currently available.
Management has considered all the GRAP standards issued but not yet effective and anticipates that the
adoption of these standards will not have a significant impact on the financial position, financial performance
or cash flows of the municipality.
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DBCM Loan @ 11.25%
DBCM Loan @ 11.25%
DBCM Loan @ 11.25%
DBCM Loan @ 11.25%
DBCM Loan @ 11.25%
DBCM Loan @ 11.25%
DBCM Loan @ 11.25%
DBCM Loan @ 11.25%
DBCM Loan @ 11.25%
Sub total DBCM
Total Annuity loans
Lease Liability
Various Finance Leases
Total External Loans

Long-term Liabilities
Annuity Loans
DBSA Loan @ 10%
DBSA Loan @ 12%
DBSA Loan @ 12%
DBSA Loan @ 10.91%
DBSA Loan @ 12.61%
DBSA Loan @ 13.12%
DBSA Loan @ 6.75%
DBSA Loan @ 6.75%
Sub total DBSA

External Loans

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

10112
10113
10616
101452
1
2
3
4

Loan
Number

30-09-2009
31-03-2010
30-09-2010
31-03-2011
30-09-2011
31-03-2012
30-09-2012
31-03-2013
30-09-2013

10,463,371

10,463,371

6,628,702
71,866,818

10,463,371

10,463,371

Received
during the
during the
period
R

1,775
35,168
32,618
1,264
66,821
46,684
68,583
8,790
6,686
268,389
65,238,116

15,315,931
13,302,718
5,253,340
12,155,664
5,639,747
6,456,635
2,945,960
3,899,733
64,969,728

R

R

31-03-2015
31-03-2016
31-03-2017
31-12-2019
31-12-2028
31-12-2015
31-12-2023
31-12-2015

Balance at
30/06/09
period

Redeemable
Date

Schedule of External Loans as at 30 June 2010

Appendix A

1,447,274
10,557,701

1,775
35,168
21,145
598
24,558
13,893
16,994
1,850
1,215
117,197
9,110,427

3,407,296
2,522,782
873,004
665,148
281,267
681,804
65,711
496,217
8,993,230

R

Redeemed
written off

5,181,428
71,772,488

0
0
11,472
666
42,264
32,791
51,589
6,939
5,471
151,192
66,591,061

11,908,635
10,779,936
4,380,336
11,490,516
15,821,851
5,774,831
2,880,248
3,403,516
66,439,869

Balance at
30/06/10

5,535,531
75,579,642

70,044,111

70,044,111

0
0

0

Carrying
Other Costs
Value of in accordance
Property,
with the
Plant & Equip
MFMA
R
R

Appendix B

Analysis of Property Plant and Equipment as at 30 June 2010
Cost
Directorate

Opening
Balance

Work in
Progress
Additions

Additions

Work
Opening
Balance

Disposals

Infrastructure
Electricity

140,311,890

16,229,980

3,338,876

16,227,496

Roads

212,007,780

33,343,200

6,669,288

7,765,997

Sewerage

83,816,234

605,528

31,148,222

8,213,805

Street lights

17,079,441

334,875

Storm water

51,870,145

Landfill site

25,060,000

2,660,000

167,549,268

7,249,592

2,639,298

697,694,757

60,423,174

43,795,685

Water

0
93,621
3,510,480
0

35,811,398

Community Assets
Community Buildings
Parks and Gardens
Recreational Facilities

55,826,197

881,285

1,125,170

558,574

39,535,478

887,394

96,486,844

1,669,347

0

2,327,253

0

1,669,347

0

0

0

0

Heritage Assets
Heritage Assets

0

Leased Assets
Various

8,913,239
8,913,239

Other Assets
Bins and Containers

20,526

Other Buildings

18,975

Emergency Equipment

29,788

138,192

Furniture & Fittings

12,663,609

279,509

Office Equipment

13,281,151

285,323

Kitchen Equipment

976,122

38,425

Laundry Equipment

77,108

Medical Equipment

290,858

33,415

1,527,857

255,734

47,042,508

859,508

1,591,754

180,274

25,438

11,476

Maintenance Equipment
Motor vehicles
Office Equipment
Plant and Equipment
Software
Water Craft
Total

152

(961,776)

152,558
40,849
77,739,103

2,081,856

0

(961,776)

0

880,833,944

62,505,030

46,122,938

(961,776)

37,480,745
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Cost
in

Accumulated Depreciation
Carrying
Value

Progress
Closing
Balance

Closing
Balance

Opening
Balance

Additions

Disposals

742,774

18,823,598

159,880,746

65,790,732

2,382,061

68, 172,793

2,512,021

11,923,264

252,020,268

54,847,521

5,809,543

60,657,064

191,363,204

188,467

39,173,559

115,569,983

38,790,013

1,500,426

40,290,439

75,279,544

0

17,414,316

4,642,748

480,254

5,123,002

12,291,314

93,621

51,870,145

36,127,198

1,009,891

37,137,089

14,733,056

0

27,720,000

0

1,566,250

1,566,250

26,153,750

3,510,480

2,639,298

177,438,158

71,626,414

2,440,034

74,066,448

103,371,710

6,953,742

72,653,341

801,913,617

271,824,626

15,188,460

287,013,086

514,900,531

2,550,632

56,707,482

11,428,627

2,333,065

13,761,692

42,945,790

558,574

1,683,744

3,125

37,507

40,632

1,643,112

887,394

40,422,872

9,113,185

1,202,979

10,316,163

30,106,708

3,996,600

98,814,097

20,544,937

3,573,550

24,118,487

74,695,610

0

0

0

0

0

8,913,239

2,235,507

1,142,202

0

3,377,709

5,535,531

0

8,913,239

2,235,507

1,142,202

0

3,377,709

5,535,531

0

20,526

427

3,695

4,121

16,404

0

157,168

1,586

2,743

4,329

152,838

0

29,788

1,326

2,681

4,008

25,781

0

12,943,118

1,543,097

1,422,874

2,965,971

9,977,147

0

13,566,474

1,544,596

2,521,544

4,066,141

9,500,334

0

1,014,548

141,651

103,612

245,263

769,285

0

77,108

5,012

4,627

9,639

67,469

0

324,273

9,522

27,235

36,757

287,516

0

1,783,591

476,425

294,766

771,191

1,012,400

0

46,940,240

15,798,286

3,884,348

19,317,318

27,622,922

0

1,772,029

253,341

253,541

506,882

1,265,146

0

36,914

382

2,868

3,250

33,664

0

152,558

152,558

0

152,558

0

0

0
0

40,849
78,859,183

1,668
19,929,878

1,429
8,525,964

(365,317)

3,098
28,090,526

37,752
50,768,657

6,953,742

76,649,941

988,500,136

314,534,948

28,430,176

(365,317)

342,599,807

645,900,329

Commissioned

0

0
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Closing
Balance

0

0

(365,317)

91,707,952
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Appendix C
Segmental Analysis of Property, Plant and Equipment
as at 30 June 2010
Cost
Directorate

Opening
Balance

Work in
Progress
Additions

Additions

Disposals

Work
Opening
Balance

Executive and Council

427,764

-

-

-

-

Municipal General

838,880

59,031

-

-

-

Municipal Manager

1,562,976

23,980

-

-

-

Corporate Services

18,569,214

128,725

-

52,888

-

Community Services

75,575,842

335,212

2,327,253

188,112

1,669,347

Financial Services

16,810,129

1,134,585

-

-

-

Strategic and Economic Development

34,558,860

111,319

-

437,744

-

Infrastructure and Services

732,490,280

60,712,179

43,795,685

283,032

35,811,398

TOTAL

880,833,944 62,505,030.31

46,122,938

961,776

37,480,745
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Cost
in
Commissioned

Accumulated Depreciation

Progress
Closing
Balance

Closing
Balance

Opening
Balance

Additions

Disposals

Closing
Balance

Carrying
Value

-

-

427,764

54,776

55,806

-

110,581

317,182

-

-

897,910

201,830

90,267

-

292,096

605,814

-

-

1,586,956

333,141

193,543

-

526,685

1,060,271

-

-

18,645,051

6,024,614

1,321,349 21,596

7,324,367

11,320,684

-

3,996,600

78,050,195

20,222,430

4,124,256 86,301

24,260,385

53,789,810

-

-

17,944,713

2,342,786

2,409,613

-

4,752,399

13,192,314

-

-

34,232,436

9,157,706

1,967,035 140,406

10,984,335

23,248,101

6,953,742

72,653,340

836,715,111

276,197,665

18,268,307 117,013 294,348,959

542,366,152

6,953,742

76,649,940

988,500,136

314,534,948

28,430,176 365,317 342,599,807

645,900,329
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94,137,270

49,349,620

22,893,191

467,126,051

808,124,234

(29,193,670)

20,482,540

140,710,454

8,594,482

422,746,183

788,846,294

778,930,564

29,193,670

27,097,684

2,152,507

788,846,294

-19,277,940

10,404,619

1,204,849

9,915,730

(44,379,869)

(14,298,708)

91,360,834

(73,654,730)

(24,945,177)

(9,199,770)

75,728,180

117,218,421

192,946,601

(19,888,699)

2009
Surplus/
(Deficit)
R

19,897,377

2009
Actual
Expenditure
R

8,678

2009
Actual
Income
R

Total

Less Inter-Dep Charges

Sub Total

Infrastructure and Services

Strategic and Economic Development

Financial services

Community Services

Corporate Services

Municipal Manager

Municipal General

Executive and Council

Directorate

991,068,134

991,068,134

522,788,922

7,491,676

198,378,376

19,740,517

2,094,919

1,328,016

239,184,329

61,381

2010
Actual
Income
R

Segmental Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2010

Appendix D

901,719,307

(40,690,929)

942,410,236

548,827,523

24,668,514

53,071,512

95,074,478

29,840,716

8,478,630

156,328,944

26,119,918

2010
Actual
Expenditure
R

89,348,827

40,690,929

48,657,898

(26,038,602)

(17,176,838)

145,306,863

(75,333,961)

(27,745,797)

(7,150,614)

82,855,384

(26,058,537)

2010
Surplus/
(Deficit)
R
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Net Surplus for the Year

Revenue
Property rates
Service charges
Rental of facilities and equipment
Interest earned - external investments
Interest earned - outstanding debtors
Fines
Licenses and permits
Income for Agency Services
Government grants and subsidies
Public Contributions and Donations
Other income
Total Revenue
Expenditure
Employee related costs
Remuneration of Councillors
Impairment Losses
Collection costs
Depreciation
Repairs and maintenance
Finance Costs
Bulk purchases
Grants and subsidies paid
General expenses - other
Total Expenditure
117,595,512

300,269,021
11,523,385
89,000,000
1,095,000
48,191,482
53,097,340
12,221,964
202,000,000
1,350,000
183,029,582
901,777,774

304,106,014
11,469,985
104,693,453
265,302
29,803,795
53,826,250
8,930,826
196,224,388
350,000
192,049,294
901,719,308
89,348,826

190,313,244
488,541,307
12,722,508
4,000,000
43,250,000
5,280,000
2,491,100
2,322,800
225,222,561
0
45,229,766
1,019,373,286

2010
Budget (R)

189,423,946
489,460,439
11,126,139
3,984,460
39,476,418
3,776,691
3,089,183
3,244,760
218,639,955
3,877,500
24,968,641
991,068,134

2010
Actual (R)

(28,246,686)

3,836,993
(53,400)
15,693,453
(829,698)
(18,387,687)
728,910
(3,291,138)
(5,775,612)
(1,000,000)
9,019,712
-58,466

(889,298)
919,132
(1,596,369)
(15,540)
(3,773,582)
(1,503,309)
598,083
921,960
(6,582,606)
3,877,500
(20,261,125)
(28,305,152)

2010
Variance (R)

-24%

1%
0%
18%
-76%
-38%
1%
-27%
-3%
-74%
5%
0%

0%
0%
-13%
0%
-9%
-28%
24%
40%
-3%
0%
-45%
-3%

2010
Variance (%)

Mainly due to the increase in the impairment
of debtors, general expenses and a decrease
in other income

Due to public grants not made.
Non qualifying assets expenditure transferred.

Due to savings.

Due to unbundling of asset register.

Impairment of debtors being increased.

Due to implementing post retirement provisions.

Farm received as a donation not budgeted.
Various miscellaneous income not realising.

Due to declining interest rate.
Due to fines not realising.

Due to rentals and hire income not realising.

Explanation of Significant Variances
greater than 10% versus Budget

Actual Versus Budget (Revenue and Expenditure) for the year ended 30 June 2010

Appendix E(1)
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128,725
335,212

Corporate Services

Community Services

60,712,179
62,505,030

TOTAL

111,319

Infrastructure and Services

Strategic and Economic Development

1,134,585

23,980

Municipal Manager

Financial Services

59,031

0

Municipal General

Executive and Council

R

2010
Actual

46,122,938

43,795,685

0

0

2,327,253

0

0

0

0

2010
Under
Construction
R
0

108,627,968

104,507,864

111,319

1,134,585

2,662,465

128,725

23,980

59,031

2010
Total
Additions
R

161,693,163

121,126,872

112,000

1,140,000

6,183,000

129,000

24,000

60,000

32,918,291

R

2010
Budget

(53,065,195)

(16,619,008)

(681)

(5,415)

(3,520,535)

(275)

(20)

(969)

(32,918,291)

R

2010
Variance

-33%

-14%

-1%

0%

-57%

0%

0%

-2%

-100%

%

2010
Variance

Non qualifying assets expenditure
transferred to operational budget.

Various projects in the process of
construction being rolled over.

Swimming pool upgrade being
rolled over.

Non qualifying assets expenditure
transferred to operational budget.

Explanation of Significant Variances
greater than 5% versus Budget

Actual Versus Budget (Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment) for the year ended 30 June 2010

Appendix E(2)
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Provincial

Provincial

Provincial

Provincial

Provincial

National

National

National

National

National

Municipality

Provincial

Lotto

Library Services

Primary Health

Subsidy Resort

EPWP

COGTHA Funding

Equitable Share

Department Water Affairs

Financial Management Grant

MIG

MSIG

Frances Baard Municipality

Provincial projects

Lotto

51,381

45,840,106

1,127,993

996,393

39,207,405

750,000

2,342,804

N/A

23,582,773

5,728,100

544,000

2,093,000

215,765,902 123,472,955

0

42,384,941

1,651,284

850,000

39,463,000

750,000

2,342,804

95,167,000

23,582,773

5,728,100

544,000

2,093,000

1,001,000

Total
208,000

Total
208,000
1,001,000

Total
Expenditure
for the Year

Total
Receipts
for the Year

N/A

N/A

N/A

850,000

39,463,000

750,000

N/A

95,167,000

N/A

5,285,000

544,000

2,093,000

1,002,000

Total
208,000

Gazette
amount
Municipal
year

11,137,276 145,362,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

9,215,276

0

0

0

1,749,000

0

Total
173,000

Delay
withheld

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

Revenue accrued

Payment not yet received.

None

None

None

Late Payment. Revenue accrued.

None

Late Payment. Revenue accrued.

Reason for delay/
withholding of funds

The EPWP grant is a job creating grant to alleviate poverty and unemployment approved by Provincial Government.

*

Yes

Yes

N/A

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes / No
Yes

National and Provincial grants are spent in accordance with business plans approved by the various Government Departments.

* Did the municipality comply with the grant conditions in terms of grant framework in the latest Division of Revenue Act.

Total

Provincial

Environmental Health

Name of Grants

Name of
organ of
state or
municipal
entity

Grants and Subsidies received for the year ended 30 June 2010

Disclosure of Grants and Subsidies in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act

Appendix F

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

Reason
for noncompliance

Appendix G
Disclosures of Deviations from Procurement Policy
For the year ended 30 June 2010

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Doc
No.
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53

9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34

No.
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Service Provider

Service Rendered / Product Purchased

Actaris
Bell Equioment
Premier Auto(Kimberley)
Price WaterHouse Cooper
C-Pac Pumps
C-Pac Pumps
Kimberley Cremation
Actaris Measurement System

Replacement of prepaid meters
Repairs of the machine (Refuse Compactor)
Purchase of transmission for Refuse Compactor
Business Plan for LED Unit
Repair 30 KW Flygt Pump
Repair 30 KW Flygt Pump
Cleaning of cemeteries
Implementation of an interim vendor

54
55

Coalition Trading 722
Johann Moolman Sculptor

56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79

C – Pac Valves
Lexis Nexis
Umonde
John William’s Commercial Vehicles
Tourism Blue Print
Transtech
Crystal Enterprises
Yo Hee Trading
John William’s Commercial Vehicles
Transtech
Merck (Pty)Ltd Chemicals Division
Finger Printed Creations
Karona Trading
Techno Graphics
C-Pac Pump & Valve
Lexis Nexis
Orange Toyota
Orange Toyota
Vuduka Trading Enterprise
Orange Toyota
Lategan Memorials
Big Five
Masiqhame Trading 1223 CC
Coalition trading 722

Cleaning and Removal of illegal dumped refuse
Appointed to construct the base and mount the statue
of Solomon T Plaatje
Emergency repair of the pump at Rietvale
Amendments in the road traffic Legislation
Celebration of women’s month
Service and repair faults on the Freightliner Truck
Design and printing of Brochures
Emergency repair on refuse compactor
Procure branded track suits
Catering
Urgent repairs to fire fighting vehicle (F101)
Emergency repair MKA Compactor Tailgate
Procure chemicals
Event Management Services – Sol Plaatje Monument
The Launch of “Taxi to Galeshewe”
Delivering of T-shirts and Caps
Repairs to Pump
Amendments to the Road Traffic Act 93/1993
Repairs to refuse Compactor
Repair to refuse compactor
Renovations to Langley Pleasure Resort
Repairs to Refuse Compactor
The extra work on the Monument of Sol Plaatje
Poles needed for the 2010 event
Hire Flat back Trucks
Urgent need to hire tipper Trucks from outside
service providers
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Financial
Implications
5,145,000
225,150
108,300
79,800
79,797
55,209
180,000
7,600,406
296,400
354,651
40,723
43,052
250,000
40,197
54,720
63,423
71,033
33,150
186,992
131,891
139,432
1,518,218
67,472
82,194
79,572
54,925
191,826
33,523
79,893
86,306
93,632
31,350
71,280
47,520

Line Manager

Motivation

D Mooketsi
MP Arthur
P Gray
P Sithole
D Jacobs
D Jacobs
N Moatswi
A Klopper
H Niemann & W Ludik
N Moatswi
L Suipers

An Emergency, Sole Provider
Sole Provider
Sole Provider
Sole Provider
Exceptional cases
Babcock Equipment
Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases

DH Leeuw
CFM Langford
N Moatswi
MW Pretorius
N Poolo
Y Snyders
N Moatswi
G Corns
MW Pretorius
Y Snyders
N Bogacwi
L Suipers
N Poolo
N Poolo
D H Leeuw
CFM Langford
Y Snyder
K Williams
G Lesenyo
Y Snyder
L Suipers
C Bosman
B Dhluwayo
B Dhluwayo

Exceptional cases
Sole Provider
Exceptional cases
Sole Provider
Sole Provider
An Emergency, Sole Provider
Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases
Sole Provider, An Emergency
An Emergency, Sole Provider
Sole Provider
An Emergency
Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases
An Emergency
Sole Provider
Sole Provider
An Emergency, Sole Provider
Exceptional cases
Sole Supplier
Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases
An Emergency
An Emergency

Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases
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Doc
No.
35 80

Coastal Hire

36

81

Coastal Hire

37
38
39
40

82
83
84
85

Tourism Blueprint
Seasons Find CC
Lexis Nexis
Joe’s Electrical

41

86

Joe’s Electrical

42
43
44
45
46
47

87
88
89
90
91
92

Botlhale Communications
Premier Auto Kimberley
Coalition Trading 722
Season Finds cc
Super Armature Winding
Mr. Norman Ashley Smith

48

93

Kabelo Abel Metsimetsi

49

94

Mr. Richard Hekenyane

50

95

Ronre Electrical Enterprises

51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64

96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
9
10
19
30
31
32

Kimberley Masters
Kgatelopele
ICTV & Radio
Bell Equipment Sales SA limited
Barloworld
Masingita
Aqua Transport and Hire
Aqua Transport and Hire
Tsameka Entertainment
Tsameka Entertainment
ICTV & Radio
ICTV & Radio
ICTV & Radio
ICTV & Radio

No.
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Service Provider

Service Rendered / Product Purchased
Urgent need to hire bomags (rollers) from outside
service providers
Urgent need to hire compressors from outside
service providers
Request of a reprint of 2 000 kbly brochures
Hiring of (Bulldozer)
Amendments in the Road Traffic Act 93/1996
Repairs of all electrical infrastructure at the Langleg
pleasure resort
Repairs to all electrical infrastructure at the Langleg
pleasure resort
Diamonds and Dorings Festival
Repairs to refuse compactor
Cleaning the landfill site
Supply 1 Bulldozer to Clamont, Cleansing Department
Refurbish of motor
Rendering of a services as a professional at the coaching
clinics and served as ambassador
Rendering services for coaching as well as being a
soccer ambassador
Rendering services for coaching as well as soccer
ambassador
Supply, Delivery, Installation of Injection Equipment
transmitter
Sol Plaatje municipality welcomes Uruguay match
50 days count down event (2010 World Cup)
The Diski Dance Truck was used for Diski Dance Road show
Attend to Hydraulics and repair R801
Install Engine of front end Loader
Hiring of a private compactor
Hiring of a private compactor
Hiring of a private compactor
Staging of Public Viewing Events (2010 W Cup)
Staging of Public Viewing Events (2010 W Cup)
Hiring of Diski Dance Truck
Hiring of Diski Dance Truck
Hiring of Diski Dance Truck
Hiring of Diski Dance Truck

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report 2009/2010

Financial
Implications
38,880

B Dhluwayo

An Emergency

70,200

B Dhluwayo

An Emergency

55,176
60,000
30,008
130,227

N Poolo
KD Williams
CFM Langford
D Jacobs

Sole Provider
An Emergency
Sole Provider
An Emergency

219,447

D Jacobs

An Emergency

1,000,000
180,635
409,260
76,000
292,893
10,000

N Poolo
K Williams
N Moatswi
K Williams
S Coetzee
C Bosman

Exceptional cases
An Emergency, Sole Provider
Exceptional cases
An Emergency
An Emergency
Work of Art or Historical Object, Exceptional Cases

10,000

C Bosman

Work of Art or Historical Object, Exceptional Cases

10,000

C Bosman

Work of Art or Historical Object, Exceptional Cases

800,000

D Mooketsi

Sole Local Provider

40,000
60,000
68,400
283,855
154,828
69,255
100,109
158,506
289,680
353,874
34,200
34,200
39,900
68,400

C Bosman
C Bosman
C Bosman
C Lamont
C Lamont
K D William
K D William
K D William
C Bosman
C Bosman
C Bosman
C Bosman
C Bosman
C Bosman

Sole Supplier
Sole Supplier
Exceptional cases
Sole Supplier
Sole Supplier
Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases
Exceptional cases
Exceptional Cases
Exceptional Cases
Exceptional Cases
Sole Provider/ Exceptional Cases
Sole Provider/ Exceptional Cases
Sole Provider/ Exceptional Cases

Line Manager

Motivation
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4.5 Audit Committee Report
for the year ended 30 June 2010
1.

Overview

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 30 June 2010.

2.

Audit Committee Members and
Attendance

The Audit Committee consists of the members listed hereunder and meets as often as it deems necessary as per the approved terms of reference.
During the period under review, eight meetings
were held.

matters were reported that indicated material deficiencies in the system of internal control or any
deviations therefrom.
Accordingly, we report that the system of internal control o ver financial reporting for the period
under review was not efficient and not effective.
Furthermore, management attitude to the control
environment was lacking in many instances. This
is evidenced by the fact that many issues raised
by the Auditor-General and internal audit have not
been adequately resolved to date.

Attendance at Audit committee meetings

Viren Magan

Number
Date
of
Position
attended meetings
Member
Chairperson June 2008
8

In some cases, some of the executive directors did
not attend all the meetings, and where representation was made by a subordinate to attend, they
would often come either unprepared or only partially prepared.

Thiru Mudaly

AC member June 2008

8

5.

Oupa Makhale AC member June 2008

6

Name of the
Appointed

3.

Audit Committee Responsibility

Submission of in-year management
and monthly/quarterly reports in
terms of the Municipal Finance
Management Act and the Treasury
Regulations

The Audit committee has fulfilled its responsibilities as stipulated in the Municipal Finance Management Act in conjunction with the Treasury
Regulations. The committee has adopted an appropriate formal charter which regulate its affairs.
It has also discharged its responsibilities in compliance with the approved audit charter.

The committee has been informed by management that the monthly/quarterly in-year management reports were compiled and submitted timeously as required in terms of legislation.

4.

• Reviewed and discussed the audited annual
financial statements to be included in the annual report, with the Auditor-General South
Africa and the Accounting Officer.
• Reviewed the Auditor-General South Africa’s
management report and management’s response thereto.
• Reviewed changes in accounting policies and
practices.
• Reviewed the municipality’s compliance with
legal and regulatory provisions.
• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting
from the audit.

The effectiveness of internal control

In line with the MFMA and the King II Report on
Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides the Audit Committee and management
with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means
of the risk management process, as well as the
identification of corrective actions and suggested
enhancements to the controls and processes.
From the various reports of the Internal Auditors,
the Audit Report on the Annual Financial Statements and the management report of the AuditorGeneral South Africa, it was noted that significant
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6.

Evaluation of Financial Statements

We have:
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We concur with and accept the Auditor-General of South Africa’s report on the annual financial statements, and are of the opinion that the
audited annual financial statements should be accepted read together
with the report of the Auditor-General South Africa.

7.

Internal audit

We are satisfied that the internal audit function is operating efficiently
and effectively and that it has audited the risks pertinent to the municipality in its audits.

8.

Auditor-General South Africa

We have met with the Auditor-General South Africa to ensure that there
are no unresolved issues.

9.

Appreciation

The committee expresses its sincere appreciation to the Honourable
Mayor, Municipal Manager, Senior management team Internal Audit and
the Auditor General of South Africa.
V Magan
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Date: 10 December 2010

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report 2009/2010

165

4.6 Auditor-General Report
Report on the financial statements

Disclaimer of opinion
4.

1.

Introduction

I was engaged to audit the accompanying financial
statements of the Sol Plaatje Local Municipality,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2010, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net
assets and cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, as set
out on pages 61 to 150.

2.

Accounting Officer’s responsibility for
the financial statements

The accounting officer is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with South African
Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practise (SA Standards of GRAP) and in the manner required by the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No.56 of 2003) (MFMA). This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable
in the circumstances.

3.

Auditor-General’s responsibility

As required by section 188 of the Constitution of
South Africa and section 4 of the Public Audit Act
of South Africa and section 126(3) of the MFMA,
my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
financial statements based on conducting the
audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and General Notice 1570 of
2009 issued in Government Gazette 32758 of 27
November 2009. Because of the matters described
in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs,
however, I was not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion.
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Property, plant and equipment

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to conclude on the completeness, existence and valuation of and the rights to ownership
of property, plant and equipment amounting to
R645 900 329 (2009: R566 298 997), as disclosed
in note 9 to the financial statements, due to the
following:
(a)
(i) The fixed asset register of the municipality
was completely reconstructed during the
current financial year. This register was used
as a basis for the preparation of the financial
statements as the process, which included
the identification and valuation of assets
that had not previously been included in the
financial statements, was substantially completed for property, plant and equipment
disclosure purposes. An expert was used to
value the infrastructure assets in terms of
Directive 7.
The assumptions used by the expert to value the assets regarding deemed cost price,
useful life and remaining useful life of the
assets were not made available for audit.
I was not provided with appropriate sufficient audit evidence that the expert’s methodology was appropriately and consistently
applied due to the lack of supporting documentation in this regard.
The municipality reduced the valuation
amounts provided by the expert to the previous cost prices per asset as at 1 July 2008.
The decision to deviate from the values determined by the experts is not supported by
verifiable evidence that the older numbers
were more appropriate or in compliance
with the accounting standards. This cast
significant doubt as to the overall reliability
of the value of property, plant and equipment disclosed in the financial statements.
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The municipality included in the prior year error note a correction
to property, plant and equipment amounting to R19 719 910 and
accumulated surplus amounting to R30 897 261. Due to the limitations experienced regarding the valuation of property, plant and
equipment, supporting documentation could not be obtained to
confirm the accuracy of this disclosure.
(ii) Sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the value of assets included in additions, work in progress and other assets for
2009-2010 and 2008-2009 were not submitted. Due to a lack of
supporting documentation alternative procedures could not be
performed.
(b) Property, plant and equipment amounting to R8 095 813 could not
be verified due to unique identifying markers not being allocated
to assets and the correct global positioning co-ordinates not being
included in the fixed asset register.
(c) Certain physically identified infrastructure assets could not be traced
to the fixed asset register due to the co-ordinates of the located assets not being traceable. Un-bar-coded movable assets, identified
during physical verification, could not be located on the fixed asset
register. Municipal properties as per the valuation roll could not be
traced to the fixed asset register.
Alternative procedures were attempted, including obtaining supporting
documentation for similar assets to verify valuation and tracing the assets for which completeness could not be confirmed to municipal maps,
the global positioning system and toolbox system. However, despite
these alternative procedures having been attempted, the valuation and
completeness of assets could still not be confirmed. Alternative procedures could not be performed for the assets that could not be physically
verified due to a lack of supporting documentation.

5.

Revenue

The completeness of revenue amounting to R718 857 669 (2009: R581 002 014)
as disclosed in the statement of financial performance could not be confirmed. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained as:
(a) Properties were identified in the valuation roll for which rates have
not been charged due to the fact that they were incorrectly indicated
as municipal property. After an investigation of the ownership of the
property it was determined that the property was not in the name
of the municipality and rates should have been charged against the
owners of the property. Alternative procedures could not be performed due to the fact that the category of these properties could
not be reliably determined and that accurate municipal valuations
did not exist for certain of these properties.
(b) Reconciliations for the income regarding a festival held by the municipality were not prepared. The municipality did not implement
alternative controls to enable the verification of the completeness of
revenue. Alternative procedures could not be performed due to the
lack of available documentation.
(c) Meters were identified during the physical verification of water and
electricity meters, which were not included in the meter reading list-

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report 2009/2010

167

ings. The readings on these meters had not
been recorded, indicating a potentially material understatement of revenue. Alternative
procedures could not be performed due to the
lack of documented evidence regarding the
reading of these meters.
(d) Contracts between the municipality and companies who advertise on municipal poles and
rents stalls (containers) were not updated after the contracts expired and the municipality
was not able to provide a complete listing of
all poles and stalls that were rented out for
the year under review. Alternative procedures
could not be performed due to the lack of
available documentation.
(e) A listing of land sold by the municipality during the year could not be provided to determine the completeness of revenue from land
sales. Due to the lack of supporting documentation and differences identified between the
valuation roll and asset register (refer to par
4(c)), alternative procedures could not be performed.

6.
Paragraph 20 of GRAP 9, revenue from exchange transactions, states that when the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of
services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the transaction shall be recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the reporting date. Revenue as disclosed in the statement of financial performance
is understated by an amount of R34 314 412 and
receivables from exchange transactions as disclosed in the statement of financial position are
understated by the same amount due to the following:
(a) Incorrect capturing of water and electricity
consumption lead to errors in the billing of
debtors.
(b) Rental of property was not calculated in accordance with tariff listings.
(c) Sewerage points were not calculated in accordance with the municipality’s sewerage policy.
This resulted in sewerage revenue not being
charged at the correct tariffs for non-residential properties.

7.

Receivables

The existence, completeness and valuation of receivables from exchange and non-exchange transactions
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amounting to R271 001 027 (2009: R237 615 078)
according to the statement of financial position
could not be confirmed as sufficient appropriate
audit evidence was not available to support the
valuation of receivables from exchange transactions amounting to R39 701 856. The municipality did not sufficiently assess its consumer debtors
on an individual basis for impairment, as required
by IAS39 – Impairment of assets. Alternative procedures performed could not ensure the adequate
provision for bad debt in terms of the categories
into which the municipality has classified its debtors.

8.

Expenditure

The occurrence and accuracy of expenditure
amounting to R14 547 432 (2009: R155 757 194),
included in the general expenditure amounting to
R192 049 294 (2009: R162 981 515) according to
the statement of financial performance, could not
be confirmed, as it is not supported by sufficient
appropriate audit evidence. Documentation was
not available due to a lack of controls over the
safeguarding of documentation. There were no alternative procedures that could be performed to
verify the reported expenditure.

9.

The occurrence, completeness and accuracy
of depreciation amounting to R29 803 795 (2009:
R26 375 808) as disclosed in the statement of financial performance could not be confirmed due
to the limitations experienced regarding the valuation of property, plant and equipment (refer to
paragraph 4). The municipality’s records did not
permit the application of alternative procedures.

10. Investment property
The valuation of investment property amounting
to R51 625 367 (2009: R47 858 733) as disclosed
in note 11, investment property, could not be confirmed as sufficient appropriate audit evidence
could not be provided to confirm the assumptions
used by the expert regarding the size of the property and the rate per square metre used to value
the property. The municipality submitted documentation that did not agree or was incomplete
as support for assumptions used in the valuation
of investment property. Alternative procedures
were performed which included confirmation of
the property size through inspection of municipal
maps, the performance of deed searches and confirmation of market related prices. However, these
procedures could not provide me with the neces-
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sary assurance regarding the valuation of investment property.

11. Long-term liabilities
Paragraph 40, GRAP 13, Leases, requires that the
minimum lease payments shall be apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge shall be
allocated to each period during the lease term so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
leases are understated with an unknown amount
due to the following:
(a) The municipality breached its contract with the
finance lease service provider which resulted
in the long-term liabilities being overstated
and current liabilities being understated with
an amount of R5 181 428.

(a) Current year payments made, amounting to
R8 428 302, for which procurement processes
were not followed as required by the supply
chain management regulations were detected.
(b) Undisclosed irregular expenditure amounting
to R8 366 039, for which procurement processes were not followed as required by the supply
chain management regulations were detected
relating to the 2008-2009 financial year.
(c) Undisclosed irregular expenditure amounting
to R4 582 677, for which procurement processes were not followed as required by the supply
chain management regulations were detected
relating to the 2007-2008 financial year.

15. Commitments

(c) Interest charged had been calculated at incorrect percentages on finance leases.

The completeness, existence and valuation of
capital commitments amounting to R6 644 905
(2009: R9 617 251), as disclosed in note 47 to the
financial statements, could not be confirmed as
sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be
submitted for audit purposes. The municipality’s
records did not permit the application of alternative procedures.

12. Employee cost

16. Disclaimer of opinion

The occurrence and accuracy of employee related
cost and overtime as disclosed in the prior year
amounting to R205 082 549, as disclosed in note
29 could not be confirmed as supporting documentation for journals, overtime payments, and
salary payments could not be obtained. The municipality’s records did not permit the application
of alternative procedures.

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, I have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion. Accordingly, I do not express an
opinion on the financial statements.

13. Irregular expenditure

I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion
is not modified in respect of these matters:

The completeness of irregular expenditure disclosed as R96 652 923

18. Unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and
wasteful expenditure

(b) Payments included in the amortisation tables
could not be confirmed to actual payments
made by the municipality.

(2009: R48 697 855) in note 45, irregular expenditure, could not be confirmed as sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained to
confirm that the municipality adhered to proper
supply chain management processes. The weaknesses in the system over document control did
not permit the application of alternative procedures.
14. Irregular expenditure disclosed in note 45 to
the financial statements is understated as the following payments made were deemed to be irregular and were not disclosed in terms of section 125
of the MFMA:

17. Emphasis of matter

As disclosed in note 45, to the financial statement,
fruitless and wasteful expenditure to the amount
of R57 938 (2009: R669 351) was incurred, due to
the municipality not making payments within the
agreed timeframes.

19. Restatement of corresponding figures
As disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements,
the corresponding figures for 30 June 2009 have
been restated as a result of errors discovered during 2010 in the financial statements of the Sol
Plaatje Local Municipality at, and for the year ended, 30 June 2009.
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20. Additional matters
I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion
is not modified in respect of these matters:

21. Unaudited supplementary information
The supplementary information set out in appendixes A to G on pages 151 to 163 does not form
part of the financial statements and is presented as additional information. I have not audited
these schedules and accordingly I do not express
an opinion thereon.

22. Annual report
I have not obtained the other information included in the annual report and have not been able
to identify any material inconsistencies with the
financial statements.

Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements
In terms of the PAA of South Africa and General
notice 1570 of 2009, issued in Government Gazette No. 32758 of 27 November 2009, I include
below my findings on the report on predetermined objectives, compliance with the following
key laws and regulations: MFMA, Division of Revenue Act, 2009 (Act No. 12 of 2009)(DoRA), Municipal Regulations, Municipal Systems Act, 2000
(Act No. 32 of 2000)(MSA), Municipal Structures
Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998) and financial management (internal control).

late during the year. Another audit committee was
not utilised as the performance audit committee
during the period for which a performance audit
committee was not in place. The performance audit committee had one meeting for the year and
could therefore not effectively discharge its mandate.

26.

Municipal Systems Act Number 32, 2000

Contrary to the requirement of section 41 the system applied by the municipality was not devised in
such a way that it may serve as an early warning
indicator of underperformance.

27. Usefulness of reported performance information
The following criteria were used to assess the usefulness of the planned and reported performance:
• Consistency: Has the municipality reported on
its performance with regard to its objectives,
indicators and targets in its approved integrated development plan, i.e. are the objectives,
indicators and targets consistent between
planning and reporting documents?
• Relevance: Is there a clear and logical link between the objectives, outcomes, outputs, indicators and performance targets?
• Measurability: Are objectives made measurable by means of indicators and targets? Are
indicators well defined and verifiable, and are
targets specific, measurable, and time bound?

23. Predetermined objectives

The following audit findings relate to the above
criteria:

Material findings on the report on predetermined
objectives, as set out on pages 19 to 30, are reported below:

28. Planned and reported performance targets are not specific, measurable and
time-bound

24. Non-compliance with regulatory and
reporting requirements
Included below are the findings related to material non-compliance with the acts as indicated:

Municipal Planning and Performance
Management Regulations, 2001
25. Existence and functioning of a performance audit committee
Contrary to the requirement of regulation 14(2)
of the Municipal Planning and Performance Management Regulations the municipality appointed
and budgeted for a performance audit committee

170

For the selected key performance area:
(a) 50% of the planned and reported key performance indicators were not measurable in
identifying the required performance; and
(b) 86% of the planned and reported key performance indicators were not time-bound in
specifying the time period or deadline for delivery.

29. For key performance indicators set out by

Northern Cape Provincial Growth and Development Strategy 2004-2014:

(c) 33% of the planned and reported key performance indicators were not measurable in
identifying the required performance.
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30. Planned and reported indicators not well-defined
For the selected key performance area, 64% of the planned and reported
key performance indicators were not clear, with an unambiguous definition to allow for data to be collected consistently.

31. Planned and reported indicators not consistent
For performance indicators set out by the Northern Cape Provincial
Growth and Development Strategy 2004-2014, 33% of the planned and
reported key performance indicators were not consistent with the targets set by provincial government.

Compliance with laws and regulations
Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, No 56 of 2003
(MFMA)

32. Payments not made within 30 days
Contrary to regulation 65 (2) (e) of the MFMA, payments amounting to
R9 201 208,46 were made in excess of 30 days from receipt of the invoices.

33. Payments from organs of state not settled within 30 days
Contrary to regulation 64 (3) of the MFMA, the municipality did not individually report to National Treasury amounts outstanding from organs
of state which exceeded the 30 days payment period.

34. Irregular expenditure not investigated by a committee of
council
Contrary to regulations 32(1) (d) and 32 (4) of the MFMA, irregular expenditure, amounting to R96 652 923 was not yet investigated by a committee of council. The accounting officer did not implement steps to
recover or rectify such expenditure and to prevent a recurrence of such
expenditure.

35. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure not investigated by a
committee of council
Contrary to regulations 32(1) (d) and 32 (4) of the MFMA, fruitless and
wasteful expenditure, amounting to R727 289 had not yet investigated
by a committee of council. The accounting officer did not implement
steps to recover or rectify such expenditure and to prevent a recurrence
of such expenditure.

36. Supply Chain Management legislative requirements were
not implemented or not adhered to
Contrary to the requirements of section 62(1)(b) of the MFMA, proper
record keeping and management was not in place resulting in requested
information not being available or supplied with a significant delay.

37. Contrary to the requirements of section 41(2) of the MFMA, no
risk assessment was performed for the identification, consideration and
avoidance of potential risks in the supply chain management system.
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38. The financial statements were not prepared in accordance with applicable
legislation
Contrary to the requirements of section 62(1)(c)
of the MFMA, the municipality did not maintain
effective, efficient and transparent systems of internal control for assets and liabilities, debtors
and revenue, creditors and payments, guarding
against fraud, theft and financial mismanagement.

39. It could not be confirmed that the munici-

pality prepared financial statements in accordance with the legislative requirements to fairly
present the state of affairs of the municipality, its
performance against its budget, its management
of revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities, its
business activities, its financial results, and its financial position as at the end of the financial year,
as required by section 122(1) of the MFMA.

40. Expenditure was incurred in contravention of or not in accordance applicable
legislation resulting in irregular expenditure
Expenditure was incurred which was not in accordance with the requirements of the municipality’s
supply chain management policy resulting in irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the
MFMA.

41. Expenditure incurred was made in vain
or could have been avoided resulting
in fruitless and wasteful expenditure

INTERNAL CONTROL
44. I considered internal control relevant to my

audit of the financial statements and the report on
predetermined objectives and compliance with the
MFMA, DoRA, Municipal Regulations, MSA, Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998)
but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control.

45. The matters reported below are limited to
the significant deficiencies regarding the basis for
disclaimer paragraphs, the findings on the report
on predetermined objectives and the findings on
compliance with laws and regulations.

46. Leadership
Among finance staff there was an insufficient understanding of the accounting framework. This
contributed towards qualifications in the financial
statements of the municipality.

47. The leadership did not take timeous and
adequate action to address weaknesses in the finance and supply chain management directorate,
which resulted in non-compliance with applicable
legislation and gave rise to irregular expenditure.

48. The chief financial officer did not sufficiently
monitor the recording and reconciliation of the financial records. Sufficient control measures were
not developed by the chief financial officer, in
conjunction with her support team, to address the
qualifications reported in the prior years as identified in the action plan.

Expenditure was incurred which could have been
avoided had reasonable care been exercised resulting in fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as
defined in section 1 of the MFMA.

49. Inadequate monitoring of the municipality’s

42. Sale of land entered into in contravention with the moratorium

50. Financial and performance management

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not
be obtained that these land sales were done at
market value as required by section 14(2) of the
MFMA.

43. Division of Revenue Act, No 12 of 2009
Contrary to the requirements of sections 11 and
12 of the DoRA, the accounting officer did not
perform his duties with regard to the receipt of
allocations as set out in the relevant legislation.
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compliance with laws, regulations and internally
designed policies and procedures. As a result, significant non-compliance issues were noted.

Effective performance systems, processes and
procedures and the management thereof have not
been adequately implemented. The financial statements were also subject to material adjustments.
Documentation supporting amounts disclosed in
the financial statements disclosed in the annual
report was not available.

51. Governance
The financial statements were subject to material
corrections resulting from the audit, which are at-
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tributable to the lack of risk assessment performed, weaknesses in the
design and implementation of internal control in respect of financial
management, and financial reporting and weaknesses in the information systems. This also resulted in the prior year audit findings, in certain instances, not being substantially addressed.

52. A performance audit committee not in operation for the entire fi-

nancial year. This resulted in the committee not being able to adequately
fulfil its responsibilities.

OTHER REPORTS
53. Investigations
An investigation is being conducted by the public protector in the current financial year. The investigation was initiated based on alleged misconduct at the municipality. The scope of the investigation addresses
the following matters:
• Diamond cutting tender
• Sale of land
The investigation is currently in process and the results of these investigations were not available at the time of this report.

Kimberley
30 November 2010
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4.7 Summary of the Action Plan – Operation Clean
Audit 2010
Management of Sol Plaatje Municipality undertook an exercise of developing a detailed action
plan as well as monthly/quarterly and annual
checklist as a strategy to address issues raised by
the Auditor-General relative to the following categories:
1. Qualification
2. Control Environment
3. Compliance
4. Emphasis of matter
5. Continuous improvement
The action plan focuses on the following matters:
1. Asset Management and Compliance to GRAP
17
2. Revenue Management – Control Environment
and Compliance to GRAP 1 and other GRAP
standards
3. Supply Chain Management – Control Environment and Compliance
4. Human Resources – Control Environment
(procedures and policies)

Action Plan
The Assets Management Section organisational
structure has been approved by Council and the
proposed positions will be filled with incumbents
that meet the criteria set for those individual
posts.
The valuation of investment property is a specialised exercise and the municipality will appoint
external service providers to assist with the valuation of such. The appointed service provider will
work with the Municipal Property Valuer to ensure
transfer of skill.
The valuation methodology followed by the municipality will be reviewed in the policy and ensure
that we comply with Directive 4 and GRAP 17 as
issued by the Accounting Standards Board. Further discussion will be held with the office of the
Auditor-General to resolve this matter.
The spatial viewer will remain the major instrument for identification of infrastructure assets and
the registers will be updated continuously as assets are identified.

5. Payroll – Control Environment and Compliance (MFMA, Income Tax Act and IAS 19)

Moveable assets are verified by means asset count
that will take place as and when required and for
audit purposes, this is done from April to June
each year.

6. Matters of Governance

Revenue Management

High Level Summary of Action Plan

Action Plan

Compliance to GRAP 17

The internal control environment of revenue management division will be reviewed in its entirety by
an external service provider to ensure reliance by
Auditor-General on information provided.

The major issues raised by Auditor-General with
regard to compliance with GRAP 17 are as follows:
1. Completeness issues found in the asset registers
2. Valuation method followed by Sol Plaatje Municipality
3. Non-municipal owned assets disclosed at R0
in the valuation roll
4. Valuation of investment properties
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This stretches from drawing up procedure manuals from cashiers right up to the staff responsible
for reconciliations etc. The levels of authority of
staff members, separation of duties and general
supervisory controls will be reviewed.
Document management environment is under
scrutiny, and procedures and custodians of such
documents are being identified and job descriptions will be reviewed accordingly.
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Supply Chain Management
Action Plan
Corrective action on supply chain and expenditure
depends solely on the following:
• Review of policy by Council
• The review and reorganisation of Supply
Chain, Contracts and Expenditure in terms of
both the organisational structure and accommodation
• Mapping of transaction flow and job descriptions
• Training and re-training/re-skilling
• Responsibilities and authority
All of the above will inform the supply chain procedure manual accordingly. Everything from Financial Services Directorate has been submitted.
1. The process of policy review has been completed – process closed on 11 February 2010
2. Tabling of policy to Council – 17 February 2010:
Special Council Meeting (SCM)
3. Tabling of Organisational Structure that is informed by the policy – SCM 17 February 2010
4. Advertisement of positions/job offers – immediately after approval of organisational structure
5. Followed up by job descriptions
6. Delegation of Supply Chain responsibilities by
Accounting Officer – immediately
Responsible officials will be tasked with the implementation of the action plan within two months as
well as review of all SCM activities since July 2009
to ensure compliance and availability of minutes,
documents etc.

Human Resources/Payroll
Action Plan
The internal control environment of Human Resources needs review to ensure that Auditor-General places reliance on information provided.
A reconciliation of staff in terms of payroll will be
performed to ensure that employees on the Payroll
have an employee file at Human Resources and
that necessary documents are available at Payroll
authorising payment of salary and all deductions.

Leave records are currently not up to date and Human Resources will speed up the process of leave
form capturing, confirm leave days with each employee in terms of pay slips, and this will increase
Auditor-General reliance on the provision for leave
in the financial statements.
Other administrative matters are dealt with in detail in the action plan.

Compliance
Action Plan
A compliance checklist (external service provider)
with relevant legislative requirements will be developed during February to March, a tick box exercise will be conducted by relevant directorates
and corrective action taken where compliance was
not achieved.
Action Plan deals with those items identified by
Auditor-General in his report, but this is not conclusive. Management also resolved to fill the vacant post of the Compliance Manager who will
report directly to the Municipal Manager and the
focus of the post will be on the following;
• Municipal Systems Act Compliance
• Municipal Finance Management Act
• Supply Chain Regulations
• Risk Management
• Internal control environment and many other
tasks and compliances

Irregular Expenditure
Management has tabled to Council a register of all
irregular expenditure that was disclosed in the annual financial statements. Council has resolved on
these and amendments will be made in the 2011
financial statements.
The focus here is to curb the occurrence of the
irregular expenditure through setting a team and
controls in the Expenditure Section that has thorough understanding of Supply Chain Management
Policy and to report to the Executive Director’s
instances of non-compliances with such a policy
and holding back of payments until those instances are properly resolved and cleared.
The involvement of National Treasury in terms of
Section 170 of MFMA is beyond municipal control
and due consideration of their inputs will be taken
into account before any write off or condonement
is considered.
A detailed action plan is available at the municipality for review.
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Chapter 5

Functional Area Service Delivery Reporting
General information
Reporting Level

Detail

Overview:

See overview in Chapter 1.4

Information

Geography:
1

Geographical area in square kilometres

Total

1,873

Demarcation Board
Demography:
2

Total population

245,606

Statistics SA, Community Survey 2007
3

Indigent Population

74,147

Global Insight, August 2008
4

Total number of voters

97,281

IEC: Voter Turnout Report: Local Government Elections 2000
5

Age breakdown:
- 65 years and over

12,512

- between 40 and 64 years

52,052

- between 15 and 39 years

92,335

- 14 years and under

57,967

Global Insight, August 2008
6

Household income:
- over R3,499 per month

33,465

- between R2,500 and R3,499 per month

5,088

- between R1,100 and R2,499 per month

10,350

- under R1,100 per month

6,705

Global Insight, August 2008

Key Performance
Area

Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against
Actual Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance

Current
Target

See Performance Highlights in Chapter 2
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Function: Executive and Council
Reporting Level

Overview

Detail
The Sol Plaatje Municipality chose to adopt an Executive Mayoral system.
The following committees form part of Council’s structure:
- Finance
- Aesthetic and Development, Planning and Infrastructure Committees
- Housing
- Local Economic Development
- MIG/IGR
- Organisational Development
- Security and Protection Services
- Social Development and Health
- Sport, Arts and Culture
- Policy
Council consists of 55 members, 26 female and 29 male
The function of Executive and Council within the municipality is administered as follows and includes:
The Municipality, categorised as ‘B’, has an Executive Mayor as head of Council which consists of 55
members of which 28 are ward representatives and 27 elected on a proportional basis.
The Executive Mayor is assisted by a Mayoral Committee consisting of ten members (apart from
Executive Mayor). The members of the Mayoral Committee are the Chairpersons of the committees of
Council as set out in the Overview.

Description of
the Activity

The Speaker of the Council is a councillor elected as Chairperson of Council (within legislation) and
presides over the meetings of Council. The Speaker ensures compliance in the Council and Council
Committees according to the Code of Conduct, Schedule 5 of the Local Government Municipal
Structures Act, (Act 117 of 1998).
The Municipality has a mandate to:
- Provide democratic and accountable government for local communities
- Ensure the provision of services to communities in a sustainable manner
- Promote social and economic development
- Promote a safe and healthy environment
- Encourage the involvement of communities and community organisations in the matters of local
government.

Analysis of
the Function

Statistical information:
Councillor detail:
Total number of Councillors
Number of Councillors on Mayoral Committee
Total Councillor cost to SPM
Councillor costs: Salaries
Councillor costs: Social contributions
Ward detail:
Total number of Wards
Number of Ward Meetings:
Special Meetings
Ward Committee Meetings
Community Meetings
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55
10
11,469,985
7,201,172
4,268,813

28
56
112
168
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Number and type of Council and Committee meetings:
Aesthetic
Development, Planning & Infrastructure

Finance
Housing
Local Economic Development

MIG & IGR
Ordinary / Special / Informal Council

Organisational Development
Security & Protection Services
Social Development & Health
Sport, Arts & Culture
Policy

Oversight
Audit
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1 incl 1 No quorum
13 incl 2 No quorum
1 Special
1 Postponed
11 incl
1 Postponed
11 incl 1 No quorum
15 incl 1 No quorum
2 Special
1 Postponed
1 Advanced
12 incl 3 No quorum
1 Special
26 incl
11 Special
1 Postponed
3 Informal
12 Incl
1 Special
10 incl 1 No quorum
12 Incl 1 No quorum
6 Postponed
11 Incl
1 Postponed
18 incl
5 Special
1 No quorum
10 Incl 1 Ad hoc
8 Incl
2 Special
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Finance and Administration
Financial Services
Detail
The Directorate of Financial Services is responsible for the following key performance areas:
• Ensuring sustained financial viability for maximum development support
• Sound financial administration
• Financial monitoring and reporting
• Internal control over Council’s financial activities and provision of financial advisory support to all internal stakeholders.
The Directorate consists of the following subdirectorates: Finance Administration, Revenue Management, Expenditure
Management, Budget & Treasury Office, Asset & Risk Management, Contract Management, Supply Chain Management
and ICT Management.
The function of finance within the Municipality is administered as follows and includes:
Directorate Finance: This Directorate is mainly responsible for the effective and efficient oversight and management of the
Council’s assets, liabilities, revenue and expenditure according to prescribed legislation.
Expenditure Management: Solely responsible for the effective and efficient management of expenditure and payroll management.
Revenue Management: Solely responsible for the effective and efficient management of revenue including the general valuation roll & debt collection; providing and administering indigent support services to the community.
Budget & Treasury Office: Primarily responsible for the municipality’s financial reporting and budgeting as per MFMA requirements and guidelines provided by National Treasury. The unit also plays a significant financial management support role to
Council and all internal and external stakeholders. The unit is also responsible for implementation of the newly developed
financial and budgeting reforms framework adopted and prescribed by National Treasury.
Asset and Risk Management: Provides assistance to Management and officials of Sol Plaatje Municipality on asset related
issues, and ensures consistent, effective and efficient asset management principles.
Strategic Objectives:
To ensure sound financial management in accordance with the MFMA and related matters.
Key Issues for 2009/2010:
Operation Clean Audit: Complete action plan on Clean Audit Report Strategy to be tabled to Council in June 2010.
Revenue enhancement: Develop a revenue enhancement strategy by August 2010.
Debt management: The debt collection policy has been reviewed and was adopted by June 2010
Cash flow management: Eight weeks coverage
To improve on the total percentage spent on capital projects to 85%
Indigent register: Indigent policy to be reviewed and adopted by May 2010 and to increase the number of indigents to 17,000.
Submission of Annual Financial Statements (AFS) for audit purposes: To have submitted the AFS to AG by 31 August 2010.
General valuation roll: Progress with valuation of properties in preparation of new general valuation roll for 2011, 80% of
properties must be revalued by December 2010.
Asset management: Asset Management policy is approved by Council Asset register to be GRAP compliant by 31 August
2010.
Infrastructure assets unbundled by 23 June 2010.
Supply Chain Management: Complete the review process of the policy by March 2010. Approval of policy by Council.
Tabling of a revised organogram of Supply Chain that encompasses functions and responsibilities executed in the Contracts
Department.
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Statistical information:
Details of tender committees:
Bid Adjudication Committee
Chairperson: Acting CFO ZL Mahloko
Members
Acting Executive Director: R Sebolecwe
Executive Director: K Bogacwi
Executive Director: L Fouche
Head of Supply Chain Division: F Barnard
Acting Chief Town Planner (Senior Manager): G de Bruin
Bid Evaluation Committee
Chairperson: City Engineer OJ Maimane
Members
EMC Baise, Senior Manager Budget and Treasury Office
J Samuels, Senior Official Supply Chain
A Klopper, Revenue Management
User department official (co-opted member)
Bid Specification Committee
Chairperson, EMC Baise (Budget Office)
R Brooker, Senior official Supply Chain
User department officials (co-opted)

Number and cost to employer of all personnel:
Total number of employees
Employee Related Costs: Salaries
Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to
Improve Performance
Percentage of procurement budget spend on procuring from local SMMEs and BEEs

Total

Rand

242

45,295,856
37,086,663
8,209,193

Current

Target

-

60%

The present financial system cannot provide this information and the service providers are in the
process of rectifying this for the 2010/2011 financial year.

To maximise the number of indigent households receiving free basic water by 2011/2012
To maximise the number of indigent households receiving free basic electricity by 2011/2012
To maximise the number of indigent households receiving free basic alternative energy by 2011/2012
Percentage increase in payment levels

8,956
8,956
0
77%

17,000
17,000
100
87%

Due to current economic conditions payment levels remain low. The Municipality, however,
focused on debt collection older than 90 days which improved the payment levels to 81%

Percentage of the operational budget spend annually
Depreciation on assets decreased due to the assets unbundling process. The low collection rate
and impairment of debt also increased.
Percentage of the capital budget spent annually

90,53%

100%

67%

85%

After correcting the actual assets created an item will be taken to Council. This correction entails
taking off the maintenance expenditure, housing development as well as operating expenditure in
the capital Budget. After this correction actual capital spend is 84,32%.

Ratio of debt coverage
Ratio of outstanding service debtors to revenue
Ratio of cost coverage
A fully functional electronic financial system in operation by 1 July 2008
Develop long term financial plan for Council approval by December 2009
To increase own funding to fund own municipal social and development initiatives
Alignment of the budget with the IDP and SDBIP and the respective reporting systems by August 2009
Improve turnaround time of SCM process
Implementation of the MIS

2,54:1
1:292

2:1
4:5
1:1; or
1:0,84
maintain
current status
95%
100%
25%
100%
6,83%
5%
90%
90%
12 weeks
8 weeks
0%
100%

Due to financial constraints this project cannot be completed within the 2009/2010 budget year.
If the necessary budget can be secured, this project will be completed by 30 September 2010 as
part of the municipality’s IDP.
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Function: Finance and Administration
ICT Management
Reporting Level
Overview

Description of
the Activity

182

Detail
The ICT Unit of the municipality provides a comprehensive range of ICT services to the municipality.
The function of ICT Unit within the municipality is administered as follows and includes the services
indicated below:
1. Network Services: Local and wide area network services using wired and wireless technologies.
2. Email Services: sending and receiving of email, electronic diary and calendar functions and sharing
of public folders.
3. Log-on Services: Providing desktop log-on for enhanced PC security and traceable network use.
4. Internet Services: Provisioning of safe internet access including management of bandwidth and
firewalls.
5. File Services: Provisioning of common file storage to enable secure backups and sharing of files.
6. Computer Services: Provisioning of desktop computers and thin clients for the delivery of municipal
services.
7. User Support Services: Help desk services to support users in their day-to-day computer tasks and
operations.
8. Hosting Services: Provisioning of a secure and stable, redundant environment for the hosting of
departmental and transversal software systems such as E-Venus, Payday and Intenda.
9. Archiving, Backup and Business Continuity Services: Ensuring business continuity by providing a
fire resistant, secure environment for hardware and network services.
10. GIS Services: Provisioning of Geographic Information Systems
11. Software Maintenance and Development Services: Development and enhancements to software
systems such as GIS, Web and E-Venus.
12. Software Support Services: Providing a central port of call for support and interacting with suppliers
and vendors of systems in the municipality, such as E-Venus, Payday, Prepaid Electricity System, etc.
13. Installing and Accrediting Services: Evaluating and installing of upgrades and new systems on the
technical infrastructure.
Strategic Objectives:
To provide stable, secure, efficient and well-supported ICT infrastructure, systems and services to the
Municipality capable of reinforcing its strategic objectives.
Key Issues for 2009/2010:
Listed below are some of the key achievements of the ICT Unit during the course of the 2009/2010
financial year:
Establishment of an IT Steering Committee
Subsequent to approval from Executive Management, an ICT Steering Committee was established with
the following persons appointed as standing members of the committee:
·
Executive Director: Finance (Sponsor)
·
Manager: Information Technology Unit (Chairperson)
·
Manager: Asset Management Unit
·
Manager: Project Management Unit
·
Manager: Risk Management Unit
·
Manager: Internal Audit
·
Manager: IDP Unit
·
GIS Manager (IT)
·
Systems Manager (IT)
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The committee will:
1. Be responsible for overseeing the development, implementation and maintenance of the Municipal
Strategic Management Information Systems plan.
2. Be responsible for IT governance and the development of IT related policies.
3. Be responsible for overseeing the development, maintenance and implementation of the ICT
Disaster Recovery plan.
4. In respect to Municipal Strategic Management Information Systems plan, review the adequacy and
allocation of ICT resources in terms of funding, personnel, equipment, and service levels.
5. Approve and monitor major ICT projects, ICT budgets, priorities, standards, procedures,
procurements, contracts and overall IT performance.
6. Ensure that ICT risk forms part of the Municipality’s risk management activities.
7. Co-ordinate priorities between the ICT department and user departments.
8. Regularly report back to the Executive Management team in respect of the above.
ICT Disaster Recovery Plan
During 2009/2010, the ICT Unit completed the first draft of the Municipal ICT Disaster Recovery plan.
On 3 June 2010, the ICT Steering Committee adopted the Municipality’s first ever ICT Disaster Recovery
Plan.
The plan has since been approved by the Accounting Officer and will be implemented and improved
through the course of the next two financial years.
Municipal Strategic Management Information Systems plan
On 3 June 2010, the ICT Steering Committee of the Municipality, adopted the Municipal Strategic
Management Information Systems Plan (SMISP).
The purpose of the SMISP is to communicate the municipal strategies and action plans required to
achieve its service delivery and efficiency objectives for key programmes and services from the point of
view of its information systems.
It should be understood that this plan does not represent an end state, but rather the first iteration of a
living strategy, which will be adjusted and enhanced to reflect the experience and lessons learned as
projects move forward.
Furthermore, this plan presents a strategic blueprint for the deployment of information services within
the Municipality to meet the future needs of Sol Plaatje Municipality.
It sets priorities and focuses on the municipal key initiatives to make the best use of limited IT-minded
resources. As such it will direct and guide the budget and planning process for IT; and provide
employees, clients, and business partners with a point of reference for their planning efforts.
ICT Policies
Several new ICT policies were developed by the ICT unit during the course of the 2009/2010 financial
year and adopted by the ICT Steering Committee on 3 June 2010. These policies are:
1. Information Systems Change Management
2. Information Systems Incident Management
3. Information Systems Server Baseline and Security
4. Information Systems Network Maintenance
5. Information Systems Patch Management

Reporting Level
Analysis of the
Function:

Detail
Number and cost to employer of all personnel:
Total number of employees
Employee Related Costs: Salaries
Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions
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Total
12

Rand
3,369,756
2,743,707
626,049
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Key Performance
Area

Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
To ensure that the Council adopted MIS Strategy is fully implemented by
2009/2010

Current

Target

65%

100%

95%

100%

Due to financial constraints this project cannot be completed within the
2009/2010 budget year. If the necessary budget can be secured, this project
will be completed by 30 September 2010 as part of the municipality’s IDP.

A fully functional electronic financial system in operation by 1 July 2008
The General Ledger, Payroll system are functional. Problems are still being
experienced with implementing the Intenda. The target is that by end of
August 2010 all systems should be working effectively.

Municipal
Institutional
Development and
Transformation

184

Annual audit conducted
100%
Viruses reported attended to
100%
Daily, weekly and monthly back-up
100%
Percentage of problems solved within two working days
98%
Daily updates as per schedule
100%
Quarterly meetings held
4
98% network availability
98%
Plans to improve performance:
An ITIL IT Services Management System will be implemented during the course of the 2010/2011
financial year to ensure that ICT Incident Management and ICT Change Management are conducted
according to best practice methodology. The implementation of said policies and systems will be
integrated and a process of alignment initiated to ensure that systems, policies and processes are
supportive of each other.
The ICT Steering Committee also approved amendments to the following policies:
1. Information Systems Security
2. Information Systems Backup
The decisions of the ICT Steering Committee have been ratified by the Accounting Officer and strict
implementation of above-mentioned policies will commence in the 2010/2011 financial year.
Understaffing and budget constraints remain key challenges to be dealt with. Despite said challenges
the ICT Unit continues to make a concerted effort to provide a quality ICT service to the Municipality.
Key areas that will be addressed during the 2010/2011 financial year are: Improving on IT governance,
implementation of ICT change control policy and procedures, implementation and improvement of
the ICT Disaster Recovery plan and the implementation and maintenance of the Municipal Strategic
Management Information Systems plan
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Function: Finance and Administration
Revenue Services
Reporting Level

Overview

Description of
the Activity

Detail
The Revenue Management Department is the largest in the Financial Services Directorate with 162 staff
members. It has several highly technical and strategic professions viz.
1. Property Taxation Division
- Property Valuations
- Property Rates
2. Billing Division
- Customer Services
- Debtors Control
- Water and Electricity
3. Debtors Management
- Indigent Management
- Legal Collections
- Credit Control
The Department was formed in 2008 with the amalgamation of several sections, divisions and functions.
The Department has since been restructured to be aligned with the IDP objectives of the municipality and
continues to evolve both in function and internal structure to improve on its historical performances.
The function of revenue within the municipality is administered as follows and includes:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Property
Taxation
Division

Creation and maintenance of a general valuation roll
Imposition of property rates on fixed property within Sol Plaatje Municipal boundary
Support to Property Services with ad hoc valuations
Provision of specialized valuation services to the municipality e.g. Valuations for updating of Fixed
Asset Register
Billing Division
1.
Monthly billing of trade and other services
2.
Customer Services
Debtors Management
1.
Maintenance of Municipality’s Debtor’s Book
2.
Provision of assistance to indigent customers
3.
Protection of SPMs income
Strategic Objectives:
Property Taxation Division
1.
Increase the skills level within the division.
2.
Increase the tax base.
Billing Division
1.
Improve the accuracy of monthly billing.
2.
Increase the skills level within the division.
3.
Improve relationship and reputation with customer base.
Debtors Management
1.
Reduce the outstanding debtor’s book.
2.
Increase the skills level within the division.
3.
Provide a compassionate and fair/uniform service to the defaulting debtors.
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Key Issues for 2009/2010:
Property Taxation Division
1.
Critical vacant positions.
2.
Critical shortage of office accommodation.
Billing Division
1.
Staff discipline in some sections critically deficient.
2.
Lack of technology and modernised methodology to provide efficient services.
Debtors Management
1.
Critical vacant positions.
2.
Inadequate vehicle fleet.
3.
Weak credit control and debt collection policy.
Statistical information:

Debtor billings: number and value of annual billings on an average of
55,000 accounts per month:
Service

Analysis of the
Function

186

Property rates
Electricity
Water
Sanitation
Refuse
Interest Earned - Outstanding Debtors
Other Services
Total
Property rates (Residential):
Number and value of properties rated
Number and value of properties not rated
Number and value of rate exemptions
Rates collectible for the current year
Property rates (Commercial):
Number and value of properties rated
Number and value of properties not rated
Number and value of rate exemptions
Rates collectible for the current year
Property valuation:
- Year of last valuation
- Regularity of valuation
Indigent Policy:
- Quantity (number of households affected)
- Quantum (total value across municipality)
Number and cost to employer of all personnel:
Total number of employees
Employee Related Costs: Salaries
Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

Rand
2009/2010
191,756,259
232,786,151
115,708,738
39,325,405
31,482,670
40,610,939
14,256,567
665,926,729

Property Rates
(Residential & Commercial)
see page 109

1/01/2007
four years
Total
Rand
8,956
14,076,606
162

29,581,316
25,905,711
3,675,605

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report 2009/2010

Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
To maximise the number of indigent households receiving free basic water
by 2011/2012
To maximise the number of indigent households receiving free basic
electricity by 2011/2012

Current

Target

8,956

17,000

8,956

17,000

0
households

100
households

77%

87%

No indigent verification will take place this year. SPM decided to migrate to a

Key Performance different method of indigent verification and subsidy provision in the
new financial year which has been approved by Council. The revised
Area

policy will greatly improve our reach to the indigent community as well
as ease the burden of verification.

To maximise the number of indigent households receiving free basic
alternative energy by 2011/2012
No free alternative basic energy is available at this time and our efforts to
introduce such scheme require further investigation and funding.

Percentage increase in payment levels
Sustainable
Service Delivery

Critical Vacant Posts - City Valuer, Manager: Property Taxation, Manager:
Debt Management. System constraints - the prepaid meter vending
system is not integrated in the financial system. Macro-economic
influences of Eskom tariff hike, and local economic recession.

Plans to improve performance:
In terms of the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, Act 6 of
2004, a municipality must prepare a General Valuation Roll at least every
four years. Sol Plaatje Municipality has a valid and effective General
Valuation Roll dated 1 January 2007. We are currently concluding the
Financial Viability compilation of a General Valuation Roll to be dated 1 October 2010 to
and Management meet the minimum four year criteria. This roll will be submitted to the
Accounting Officer by 31 January 2011 and be implemented on 1 July 2011.
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Function: Finance and Administration
Supply Chain Management (SCM)
Reporting Level

Overview

Description of
Activities

Detail
Procurement is a managerial activity that goes beyond the simple act of buying, and it includes the
planning and policy activities covering a wide range of related and complementary activities. Included in
such activities are the research and development required for proper selection of materials and sources,
the follow up to ensure proper delivery, the inspection of incoming shipments to ensure both quantity
and quality compliance with the order, the development of proper procedures, methods and forms to enable
the acquisitioning section to carry out established policies. Other activities include traffic, receiving,
storekeeping, contract administration and accounting.
The function of Supply Chain Management within the municipality is administered as follows and includes:
Demand Management
Cost centre managers are assisted with need analysis, determining of specifications, cost analysis for
the budget process and planning the way forward.
Acquisition Management
Processes are followed for the selection of sources such as evaluation of quotations and bids, the
adjudication, making of awards and placing of orders.
Logistics and Disposal Management
This unit offers a distribution service to minimise or eliminate disruptions in service delivery. This must be
achieved with a minimum investment in reserve inventories.
Materials that have been classed as surplus or that have become obsolete for the cost centre managers
are disposed of by following the approved procedures.
Performance and Risk Management
Here the unit must provide an effective system for the identification, consideration and avoidance of
potential risks in the supply chain management system.
Suppliers performance are monitored and corrective actions are recommended where required.
Strategic Objectives
The two main objective of this unit can be summarised as follows:
To provide an uninterrupted flow of materials, supplies and services required to operate this organisation.
To keep inventory investment and loss at a minimum.
Key Issues for 2009/2010:
Objective Achievements
1. Key Objective: To keep write-off of obsolete and damaged stock less than 1% of stock value.
Achievement: An amount of R53 972,52 was written-off due to stock being obsolete or damaged.
This represents only 0.37% of total stock value.
2. Key Objective: To keep write-offs of stock losses with stocktake less than 4% of stock value.
Achievement: A amount of R24 009.07 was written off which represents only 0.17% of total stock
value.
3. Key Objective: To keep the turnover rate of the twenty highest value stock items above two times
in value per year.
Achievement: The turnover rate achieved was 2.18 times excluding emergency stock.
4. Key Objective: To have less than ten cases of zero stock levels
Achievement: Only six cases were recorded.
5. Key Objective: To keep turnover rate between requisition to order status less than one day.
Achievement: Only deviations due to system down-time were recorded, and delays from service
providers in submitting quotations.
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Reporting Level

Detail
Number and cost to employer of all personnel:
Total number of employees
Employee Related Costs: Salaries
Employee Related Costs: Social Contributions

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Area

Total

Rand
23

Current

3,847,074
3,416,794
430,280

Target

Improve turnaround time of SCM process to eight weeks
10
8
The SCM structures and processes have been reviewed and
implementation has started. Visible improvement will be noticed during
the first quarter of 2010/2011.
Stores records continuously kept up to date
100%
100%
Stock levels managed by re-ordering levels
100%
100%
Difference between stores records of stock and actual stock according to
annual stocktake not more than 10% in rand value
0.17%
5%
Support to departments within 72 hours
95%
Monitor procurement of goods in line with BEE target/policy
40%
Financial Viability Receipt of the original tax clearance before processing of order > than
100%
100%
and Management R30,000
SCM policy reviewed and updated
100%
100%
Challenges faced and plans to improve performance:
Challenges Experienced
The restructuring of the Supply Chain Management Unit and Contracts Division is in process and a proposal must still be tabled before Council. It was a huge task to merge all functions, process and responsibilities.
New Challenges faced
Once the restructuring is finalised, processes must be implemented and staff trained. Take-over of all
relevant duties will have to be arranged.
Projections
The aim is to establish a new Supply Chain Management Unit and to get all processes in place before
end December 2010.
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Function: Finance and Administration
Human Resources
Reporting Level
Overview

Description of
the Activity

Analysis of the
Function

Key Performance
Area

Detail
Administration of all human resource activities within the Municipality. (Note: Read in conjunction with
Chapter 3 on Human Resource Management.)
The function of human resource management within the Municipality is administered as follows and
includes:
Personnel Administration, Labour relations, Employee Assistance Programme, Organisation development, Employee equity, Ethics management, Recruitment and Selection.
The Municipality has a mandate to:
Handle its own administration
Conduct its own labour relations
Recruit and appoint its own personnel
Render its own EAP programme
Compile and implement its own WSP
Compile an equity plan in accordance with the guidelines of the Department of Labour
Enhance and conduct ethics interventions.
Strategic Objectives:
Ensure a smooth running of all personnel administration
Strive towards creating a stable workforce
Render an effective personnel recruitment function
Assist employees with specific psychological problems.
Key Issues for 2009/2010:
Completion of a Human Resource Strategy
Design and population of a micro-organisational structure.
Total number of employees
Employee related costs: Salaries
Employee related costs: Social contributions
Total employee related costs

Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance

Total

Rand

21

5,396,571
1,168,707
5,396,571

Current

Target

30%

100%

60%

60%

25%

100%

Council of the structure developed by ODA, it will be populated.)

75%

60%

Employment Equity Plan
Ensure that all levels of personnel on the organogram of SPM are 100%
representative and in line with the Employment Equity Plan of the
Municipality by June 2011.

60%

60%

Human Resource Strategy
Completion of an Integrated Human Resource Strategy aligned with the IDP.
(Service providers were appointed in May 2010 with one of the targets being the
draft of a HR Strategy, Draft HR Plan envisaged by September 2010. Confirmed
with IDP Manager & ODA Consultants.)

Section 57 Managers
Ensure that all Section 57 Managers comply with the minimum
competency levels as prescribed by the Municipal Regulations on
Minimum Competency Levels by 2012.
Organisational Structure
Design an organisational structure by 2009/2010. (The current structure that
was tabled before Council was held in abeyance. ODA appointed to deal with
structure. Awaiting outcome of exercise.)

Population of Organisational Structure
Populate the organisational structure by 2011/2012. (After approval by
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Function: Planning and Development
Economic Development : Office Of The Director (Functional Area Service Delivery)
Reporting Level

Core Function

Local Economic
Development

Detail
The core functions of Strategy, Economic Development and Planning are:
Guiding of infrastructure, service and development needs in accordance with the Spatial Development
Framework, Land Use Management System and Building Regulations.
Administration of alienation and rental of all muncipal land and fixed assets.
Creation of a platform for commission selling agents to compete for market share and enhance market
turnover.
Guiding development, lobby funding for GURP in accordance with the GURP business plan and other policies related to GURP.
To promote economic development through SMME support, developing strategies which will assist in developing a well-functioning CBD; and formulation and implementation of an Investment Incentives Policy.
The Directorate has a directive to:
Comply with market rules, by-laws and other legislative regulations.
Create job opportunities through developing the SMME sector in area of jurisdiction.
Develop the tourism potential of the Municipality.
Facilitate the growth of overal economy of Kimberley.
Strategic Objectives:
To implement the GURP as a means of creating a better life for all.
(1) Skills retention strategy
(2) Occupational Specific Dispensation (OSD) application in the directorate
Supporting staff in the director’s office.
To formulate and review spatial strategies and to administer the land use management system in accordance with the spatial development framework.
To administer the fixed assets of the Municipality.
To disseminate appropriate and relevant business information for SMME support

Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Total number of employees
Employee related costs: Salaries
Employee related costs: Social contributions

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Area
Socio-economic survey completed in 2010/11
EconoMonitor is the current tool being used for capturing socio-economic
indicator. We also completed a traffic impact assessment for the CBD, and
social limited survey.
Relationships formalised and number of working sessions
A relationship has been established with CIDB, Mangaung Local
Municipality, Matlosana Local Municipality, Living Stone (Belgium).
A working relationship has also been forged with NOCCI. During the month
of June the LED Unit hosted the Investment Summit, and the UDZ and
LED Forums. We also have a working relationship with NUM, which still
needs to be formalised through a MOU.
Maintaining data and quarterly reporting on economic indicators with BC
Maintenance has been facilitated through EconoMonitor which updates
information on quarterly basis.
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Total

Rand

4

1,045,739
933,226
112,513

Current

Target

100%

0%

8

3

100%

100%
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Sustainable
Service
Delivery

Municipal
Institutional
Development
and
Transformation

Sustainable
Service
Delivery

192

IDP, SDF and Sectoral plans aligned
The Municipality began a process of refining the alignment of its
Development Strategy with the view to develop its overall strategic
objectives in such a way that it provides a better framework for sectorspecific and joint work which is integrated and mutually supportive (SDF,
ITP, LED, WSDP etc). The process of refining the strategy accepts the
validity and urgency of the issues set out in the past and current IDPs, but
it argues that Sol Plaatje Municipality should address these issues from a
strong base, or common starting point (the Geographic Space-economy).
In terms of the strategic direction, Sol Plaatje did not develop its IDP in
isolation. A range of National, Provincial and District policy documents
informs IDP thinking and creates an important context for its own plans
and strategies.
100%
100%
The process of refining the strategy accepts the validity and urgency of
the issues set out in the past and current IDPs, but it argues that Sol
Plaatje Municipality should address these issues from a strong base,
or common starting point (the Geographic Space-economy).
In terms of the strategic direction, Sol Plaatje did not develop its IDP in
isolation. A range of National, Provincial and District policy documents
informs IDP thinking and creates an important context for its own plans
and strategies.
50%
50%
Man-days jobs provided: LED initiatives
113,596
100,000
The majority of jobs created through LED initiatives are part of the
National Skills Development Strategy, Objective II.
Man-days jobs provided: Projects
563,363
800,000
These jobs were mainly created through the EPWP incentive programme
Improvement on turmaround time on applications for building plan
approval fron date of receiving the correct and complete application
Moratorium on Development has influenced the slow progress in terms of
processing building plans.
2 weeks
3 weeks
Improvement on turnaround time on processing of land use applications:
from date of submission to the Development and Planning Committee
for recommendation, Council decision and notification of applicant.
12 weeks
16 weeks
The Moratorium on Development influenced the slow progress in terms of
the process of submitting items to Development and Planning Committee
for recommendation and Council for final decision.
GURP: Through the Galeshewe urban renewal programme the directorate secured R19.3 million for
project implementation, these funds were made available after submission of all business plans to
National Treasury.
Market: The market share has increased by R4.3 million compared to previous years, and the security at
the market has been improved with the installation of 48 high definition cameras.
Urban Planning: The target for the number of approved building plans was 900, and only 504 were be
achieved due to the moratorium on sale of land/new development.
Properties: A draft Land Policy was developed. Once all legal requirements have been met it will be
sent to Council for approval. A lease asset register has been completed, and is in line with all the GRAP
requirements.
Local Economic Development: Economonitor continues to be used as a measuring tool for socioeconomic development. An annual SMME Week was held successfully where SMME information was
disseminated. Improved marketing of the Urban Development Zone (UDZ) as a tax rebate for property
owners. Tram being operational after it had stalled due to both closure of Builtfontein Road and
mechanical faults - tourists can enjoy this spectacular experience. Increased revenue has been recorded
since its resuscitation. Another successful summit by LED Unit was the Investment Summit where
investment opportunities were shared with participants.
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Function: Strategy Economic Development and Planning
Urban Planning

Overview

Analysis of the
Function

The Urban Planning Division falls within the Directorate Strategy, Economic Development and Planning.
The Division falls within the Development Programme as specified in the Integrated Development Plan
(IDP) – Five-year Plan 2007/2008 to 2011/2012.
Principles to be addressed by the Urban Planning Division as per SPM vision statement:
• Urban efficiency and social integration
• Sustainability
• Impact towards the shared and inclusive economic growth of the City.
The Spatial Planning (Spatial Development Framework-SDF) and Land Use Management (Land Use
Management System - LUMS) are the main responsibilities of the Town Planning Section. This is in accordance with the legally required sector plans as indicated by the IDP. The Building Services Section is
responsible for the control of the built environment, as well as architecture design and maintenance of
municipal buildings within the LUMS.
The Core functions of Strategy, Economic Development and Planning is:
To guide infrastructure, service and development needs in accordance with the Spatial Development
Framework,Land Use Management System and Building Regulations.
The Municipality has a mandate to:
Prepare and administer a spatial development framework, land use management system and building
regulations, as well as to consider the approval of land use applications and building plans.
Strategic Objectives:
To formulate and review spatial strategies and administer the land use management system in accordance with the spatial development framework, To ensure that compliant and structurally sound buildings are constructed within the municipal area in accordance with the national building regulations and
standard.
Key Issues for 2009/2010:
General administration of the built environment (planning and building services), the submission of the
draft 2008 Spatial Development Framework for approval, and the almalgamation of different zoning
schemes in order to develop a new land use management system(LUMS).

Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Total number of employees
Employee related costs: Salaries
Employee related costs: Social contributions

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Area
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance

LED

The Spatial Development Framework was completed in August 2008; and
approved in May 2009.
The land use management system was completed in September 2008 and
was approved in November 2009.
- Number of building plans approved
- Value of building plans approved
The Spatial Development Framework was completed in August 2008 but
only approved in May 2009.
The land use management system was completed in September 2008 and
submitted to Council on 2 September 2009.
Provision was made for the planning and surveying of 500 erven but due to
delays in the procurement process this project did not materilise.
The high turnover of town planners hampers the execution of duties.
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Total

Rand

13

3,877,500
3,081,005
796,495

Current

Target

100%

100%

100%
618

40%
510,440,000

100%

100%

99%

100%
500 planned
and surveyed
erven.

00:00
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Function: Strategy Economic Development and Planning
Fresh Produce Market
Overview

Strategic
Objectives and
Key Issues

Include all activies, duties and functions associated with the service provision of, and managing and
administration of the Fresh Produce Market.
The overall performance of the fresh produce market is directly linked to both the SEDP, SDBIP and the
IDP objectives, i.e. LED. SPM should be an enabler of economic development and not a creator of
economic development. In realising its objectives the Market embarked on a performance audit exercise
that details how the Market should operate optimally. The activities that we engage are directly linked to
the latter - Performance Audit.
Through the Municipal by-Laws and APAC’s (Act of 1992), the Market is able to regulate competition,
enforce compliance and create a platform for new entrants such as more buyers, future farmers and possibly new PDI Commission selling agents and or wholesalers.
Volatilities and turbulances common across the industry dictate the fluctuations of supply and demand,
at its heart is the pattern of growth and sustainability.Ensuring the relevance of purpose as the prefered
channel of distribution,the preservation of the cold-chain and its subsequent improvement.

Total
Analysis of the
Function

Number and cost to employer of all personnel:
Employee related costs: Salaries
Employee related costs: Social contributions

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Target Against Actual
Area
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Local Economic
Development

194

The Market share increased by R4,3 million from the previous year
Quality assurance and quality control has been improved
Intensified farm and buyers’ visits

26

Rand
2,152,680
1,995,224
157,456

Current

Target

68%
80%
100%

90%
100%
100%
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Function: Strategy Economic Development and Planning
Properties
Overview

Includes all activities associated with property development
To guide property development in accordance with the SDF. Responsible for alienation, and rental of all
municipal land and fixed assets. To create job opportunities through property development.
The Municipality has a mandate to:
Comply with legislation policies and by-laws with regard to development. Facilitate the growth of the
overall economy of Kimberley.
Strategic Objectives:
To administer municipal fixed assets.
Key Issues for 2009/10:
To lift the moratorium on land sales which has been in place for the last four years.

Total
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Employee related costs: Salaries
Employee related costs: Social contributions

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Area

LED

Moratorium: The moratorium on the alienation of municipal owned land is
still in place and is currently hampering all development in the Sol Plaatje
Municipal area. It will be lifted once the land Policy is approved by Council
A further moratorium on all developments was placed on the Municipality
during the first quarter of 2009 by the Department of Water Affairs until
sewerage challenges are addressed. The latter is being addressed
through Council.
Asset register: A complete lease register compliant with all GRAP
standards was compiled.
Land Policy: A new land policy was completed and once all legal
requirements are met, the policy will be submitted to Council for adoption.
it is foreseen that the policy will be adopted towards the end of 2010 by
Council where after the moratorium will be uplifted by Council in order to
proceed with development in the Sol Plaatje Municipal area.
1. Macro Developments
2. Lease of church sites
3. Land policy completed and awaiting Council approval.
4. Performance audit completed (lack of funds to implement)
5. Land audit (80% completed) in process to finalise document
Details of improvements planned for next financial year
Upliftment of land sales moratorium
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4

Current

Rand
1,408,137
793,968
614,169

Target

80%

100%

100%

80%

80%
Total

100%
Rand

0
9

1
10
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Function: Strategy Economic Development and Planning
Local Economic Development (LED)
Reporting Level

LED
OVERVIEW

Analysis of the
Function:

Detail
Local Economic Development Unit is resposible for the promotion and the development of SMMEs, Tourism,
including Area Based Development formerly known as CBD. The other responsibility of LED is to attract, retain
business and investors in Sol Plaatje Municipality
The function of local economic development within the municipality is administered as follows and includes:
The SMME Support unit consists of three sub-units namely Tender Advice, Informal Trade and Enterprise
Development.This unit provides the following services to communities: Tendering advice to SMMEs through
tendering workshops, procurement opportunities through Tender Bulletins, SMME registration on the database
as new vendors in terms of the SPM Supply Chain Management Policy; economic infrastructure in terms of
hubs for informal sectors; an enabling environment for SMMEs, capacity building.
Tourism Promotion unit is responsible for positioning Sol Plaatje Municipality as a preferred tourist destination
through available marketing channels. The unit is responsible for the management of the Tourism Information Centre.
The Area-Based Development unit is responsible for the upgrading of the CBD, implementation bylaws within
the CBD in terms of advertisments, and all the business communities are serviced through CBD forum.
The Investment Promotion unit is responsible for positioning Sol Plaatje Municipality as a preferred competitive business and investment destination through an incentive strategy; Research on global and national
economic trends to ensure relevant economic sectors are promoted; Facilitation of partnerships and twinning
arrangements with other stakeholders at both national and international levels.
The LED Unit has a mandate to: Support and align its functions with national and provincial strategies and
policies; support the development agency created by national department.
Total
Rand
Number and cost to employer of all personell
35
3,721,707
Employee related costs: Salaries
3,196,547
Employee related costs: Social contributions
525,160

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Area

Current

Target

Local Economic Development: SMME Unit

LED

196

SMME Village Project - The SMME Village project is an initiative of Local
Economic Development (LED) which is directly aligned and implemented in
conjunction with the Galeshewe Urban Renewal Programme. The Neighbourhood Development Partnership Grant has allocated funds to this project.
Galeshewe: Implementation of the project went as far as the laying of the
foundation in the 2008/2009 financial year. The contract was terminated due to
poor performance. Minimal progress was achieved in the 2009/2010 financial
year, thereby remaining on 10% by 30 June 2009.
Ritchie Incubator: Entails the construction of the informal trade facilities for
the local residents. The intention is to house small enterprises and provide onthe-spot assistance. Lack of additional funding has halted the implementation
of the project.
SMME Satellite Offices: Offices serving as Enterpreneurial Information
Centres (EIC)
Ritchie: The office was serviced for two months in the 2009/2010 financial year.
Galeshewe: The office (Greater No. 5) was serviced for only two months in
2009/2010 financial year.
Riverton: Services were offered for one week in November 2009.
Greenpoint: The EIC has not yet been established in Roodepan due to lack
of office space on properties belonging to SPM.
Roodepan: The EIC has not yet been established in Roodepan due to lack
of office space on properties belonging to SPM.

10%

100%

0%

100%

3

5
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LED

Small Business Week: A week-long event dedicated to providing tangible
business information and support. A three-day business seminar was successfully completed. Internal funding of R165,000 was allocated for the initiative.
The aim of the event was to bring awareness regarding small business,
entrepreneurship and self sustainability initiatives in the form of profit-driven
businesses. The hosting of the SMME week event was procured from local
SMMEs in terms of supporting local business.
Informal traders were trained in basic business skills as an effort to improve their
business skills. Additional similar training initiatves will be arranged and conducted.
Galeshewe SMME Village
Ritchie Business Incubator
Small Business Week

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Area
Tourism Unit
Construction of a Bird-viewing Platform at Kamfersdam which is aimed at
the strengthening & development of current tourism portfolio of the city has
been one in partnership between SPM and Department of Economic Development and Tourism (DEDAT). Upon appointment of the service provider as
consultants (Birdlife SA) costed the project to the amount of R800,000. DEDET
provided the initial budget of R500,000, and SPM provided the top-up funding
of R300,000. The Memorandum of Understanding is in draft form, and will
be finalised between SPM and DEDAT once construction of the bird-viewing
platform is complete.
Partitioning of the Information Centre was completed as a temporay measure to curb the challenge of bus commuters staying outside the Information
Centre at night while waiting for buses to their respective destinations. This is
in the process of being finalised (@ 90%). Security has been deployed at the
Information Centre at night to ensure the safety of bus commuters (@ 100%).
Operational hours have been increased at Tourism Information Centre from
17:00 to 20:00 during the week and from 14:00 to 17:00 on Saturdays and
Public Holidays (@ 100%)
Gariep Festival: Tourism staff manned a stall and exhibited tourist attractions
at the festival, Tourism Information Centre increased operational hours to
20:00 for the duration of the festival.
The Barney Barnato Golf Tournament: A sponsorship of R10,000 was made
by SPM through Tourism office toward the successful hosting of the
tournament. The tournament brought 600 visitors to Kimberley for the
duration of a week.
Diamonds & Dorings Festival: A five-day programme of the festival was
succesfully completed. SPM funding totalled R1,118,000 and sponsorships to
the value of R2,654,000 were sourced in partnership with the organiser.
Trial run for PVA (Public Viewing Area): With the objective of testing the
readiness for hosting a PVA during the FIFA world cup, a succesful trial run
was held in Galeshewe at the car park. The venue had big screens and the PSL
soccer game was flighted in December 2009. Entertainment was provided by
local DJs and awareness of the Soccer World Cup was raised. All goods and
services were procured from local BEE and SMME service providers.
Tram Resuscitation: The objective is to position Kimberley as a preferred
tourist destination through the provision of the experience of riding on a Tram
which is unique to Kimberley. Logistical arrangements have been made to have
the Tram operational once again from June 2010. Currently the tram is running
from the Big Hole to Pniel Road, and arrangements are being made for it to run
right through to the City Hall. Engagements have been made with local tour
operators for inputs.
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1

Current
1,300,000.00
122,000
165,000

1

Target
3,300,000
1,300,000
150,000

Current

Target

80%

100%

96%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

75%

100%
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Total

LED

Type and number of grants and subsidies received:
Trial run for PVA (Public View Area) (DEDAT)
Launch of “Taxi to Galeshewe” (DEDAT)
Hosting of soccer match between Mangaung and Sol Plaatje
Municipalities (DEDAT)
Diamonds and Dorings Festival: NCTA
National Dept. of Sports, Arts & Culture
Provincial Dept. of Sports, Arts & Culture
Standard Bank
Department of Health
Tourism Projects
Gariep Festival
Woman-to-Woman show
Trial run for PVA (Public Viewing Area)
Launch of “Poetry on the Bus”
Launch of “Taxi to Galeshewe”
Diamonds and Dorings Festival
N12 Promotion
Barney Barnato Golf Tournament
Establishment of Bird-viewing platform at Kamfer’s Dam (Funding by
DEDAT = R500,000 ) and top-up funding SPM = R300,000)
National Tourism Shows (DSTV Getaway Show, Cape Outdoor Show, &
Indaba Trade and Tourism Show)
Advertising
Annual marketing fee to NCTA
Customer Care Training for front desk staff
Hosting of National Tourism celebration
Hosting of soccer match between Mangaung & SPM Municipalities
(R25 000 of the R62 254.60 was funded by DEDAT)
TOTAL
Number of people employed through job creation schemes:
Short-term employment
Long-term employment

Key Performance Performance during the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Area
LED

Area Based Development/CBD Unit
Due to the funds transfer from CBD to SMME not much was achieved. The
CBD framework document was completed.
A comprehensive traffic study was carried out to find ways to redirect the traffic
flow away from the CBD. With the finalisation of the framework document
Capital projects will be implemented.

Key Performance Performance during the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Area

LED

198

Investment Promotions Unit
Development of the UDZ Incentive Strategy in conjunction with SARS. Placing
the UDZ incentive scheme on the SPM website. A workshop marketing the UDZ
Incentive Scheme to stakeholders. A UDZ Billboard will be launched on 15 August
2010. The launching of the LED forum will complement the implementation of the
UDZ incentive strategy.
Through the relationship with the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI) in terms of
Business Process Outsourcing and Off-Shoring (BPO&O) and MBD Credit Solutions,
a call centre was established. As the result of this initiative 228 jobs were created,
and of the these 146 were female and 82 were male. While 208 people employed are
30 years old or younger that is 90%. The key stakeholders are Frances Baard District
Municipality and Department of Economic Development and Tourism.

Rand
2,534,000
70,000
40,000
25,000
85,000
1,034,000
900,000
160,000
220,000
8,600
50,000
46,700
19,593
27,972
1,118,000
11,970
10,000
800,000
133,350
220,648
59,000
250,000
37,255
2,793,088

150
0

Current

98%

Current

Target

100%

Target

80%

100%

100%

100%
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Function: Strategy Economic Development and Planning
Galeshewe Urban Renewal Programme
Overview

Description of the
Activity

Analysis of the
Function

Includes all activities associated with the Galeshewe Urban Renewal Programme
The function of the Galeshewe Urban Renewal Programme is to promote and guide development in Galeshewe, as
well as to lobby funding for GURP in accordance with the GURP Business plan and other policies related to GURP.
Strategic Objectives:
Implementing the GURP as a means of creating a better life for all.
Key Issues for 2009/2010:
Economic empowerment through opportunity. Environmental quality through infrastructure provision and management.
Caring and respect through community and education. Social Security through increased access to basic services
Total
Rand
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
7
1,045,739
Employee related costs: Salaries
933,226
Employee related costs: Social contributions
112,513
Type and number of grants and subsidies received:
Total 21,300,000
Neighbourhood Partnership Development Grant (National Treasury). R19,3 million
was gazetted for the implementation of Capital projects for year 2010/2011.
1
19,300,000
Allocation of R2 million was made available for completion of five technical assistance projects.
1
2,000,000

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual Achieved
Area
and Plans to Improve Performance

Sustainable
service Delivery

LED

Upgrading of Kekana Park
Maintenance of 12 parks in Galeshewe
Tyala shopping centre
Galeshewe Street Signage
CCTV Cameras - The Residents’ Consultants (KKM) recalled the service Provider
(Phatsimang Outsourcing Consulting) from site due to the following outstanding documents:
Public Liability; Safety Plan; Guaarantee certificate; Proof of registration with DoL;
Project Plan etc before the project could start.
The Contractor had also requested that his guarantee be deducted from his claims.
NDPG - Capital Project
Tender documentation is 95% complete - Implementation to take place in 2010/2011
NDPG - Technical Assistance: The overall projects are 90% complete
1) Crime prevention through urban upgrade, 2) Galeshewe Icons projects,
3) Galeshewe Light Industrial Park, 4) Galeshewe Tourism Business Plan.
Neighbourhood Partnership Development Grant (National Treasury)
Local Government and Housing (PIG

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual Achieved
and Plans to Improve Performance
Area

Local Economic
Development

ILO (say- jump)
Installation of 15 cctv cameras in Galeshewe
Fencing of Botsang, Percival jus, Kagisho, John Daka, Riveran Parks
Tyala Shopping Centre
Maintenance of Parks
Submision of Business case to NDPG for funding
Legislature
Science Centre
Hostels 100%100%
Studies conducted for GURP-NDPG
Public Invest Plan
Market Potential Analysis
Invest Strategy
GURP Knowledge
Surveys (Bus and HH)

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report 2009/2010

Current

Target

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

25%

100%

20%

100%

90%

100%

1
1

Current

10,250,000
7,500,000

Target

60%
10%
100%
70%
50%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%
95%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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Directorate: Community and Social Development Services
Personal Health Services (Clinics)
Reporting Level
Overview

Description of
the Activity

Analysis of the
Function

Detail
Includes all activities associated with the provision of personal health.
The function for the provision of personal health services within the
Municipality is administered as follows and includes:
Mother/child health. Reproductive Health. STD (HIV/Aids), TB control,
curative services, chronic diseases, mental health, rehabiliation, communicable
disease control, support services (HBC), professional development and
training including student and in-service training, ARV assessment and
treatment, health education, immunisation and child health, anti- and postnatal care, PMTCT, minor ailments, geriatrics, oral health, termination of
pregnancy education, VCT, trauma and injuries, nutritional services (PEM
scheme), specialised services including diabetes, epilepsy etc.
Strategic Objectives:
Improve personal health services. Monitor and plan strategically. Empower
the community to take responsibility for their own health.
Key Issues for 2009/2010:
More accessible, quality service to community. Decrease the number of
communicable diseases. Improve quality of health
Number and cost to employer of all personnel:
Employee related contributions: Salaries
Employee related contributions: Social contributions
Number, of public, private clinics servicing population:
- Public Clinics (owned by municipality)
Total annual patient head count for service provided by the municipality:
- 5 years and olderr
- under 5 years
Note: if no age range available, place to other
Estimated backlog in number of and costs to build clinics:
Only for extension of existing facilities
Note: total number should appear in IDP, and cost in future budgeted
capital works programme
Type and number of grants and subsidies received:
DOH
Note: total value of specific health clinic grants actually received during
year to be recorded over the five quarters - Apr to Jun last year, Jul to Sep,
Oct to Dec, Jan to Mar, Apr to Jun this year.

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Area
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Sustainable
service Delivery
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Number of patients reached
Variances are due to: inadequate infrastructure, increase in patients, staff
shortages, increase in staff absenteeism, no replacement of staff by DOH,
changes in disease patterns, no control over influx of patients from neighbouring areas.

Total

Total
10 clinics,
6 municipal
clinics,
4 provincial
clinics

Rand

245,000

40

8,909,161
7,309,084
1,600,077

6

1,053,000

325,075
48,057

6

3,514,000

2,197,000

Current
126,600

Target
373,132
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Directorate: Community and Social Development Services
Social Development
Reporting Level

Detail

Analysis of the
Function

Includes all activities associated with the Social Development Unit.
The function of provision of TB/STI/HIV/Aids, Youth and Poverty Alleviation services within the
Municipality is administered as follows and includes :
Provision of education to all employees regarding issues of TB/STI/HIV/Aids.
Education and Training
Voluntary Counselling and Testing for HIV
Condom distribution
Support
To commemorate Special Health days
Promotion and Awareness
Provision of support to infected and affected employees by Peer Educators.
Total
Rand
Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated with HIV/Aids:
3
952,767
Employee related costs: Salaries
590,380
Employee related costs: Social contributions
362,387

Key Performance
Area

Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance

Sustainable
Service
Delivery

Number of employees attending information sessions
Number of employees who voluntarily tested for HIV
Number of condoms distributed
Number of support groups
Number of Peer Educators trained
Number of households assisted with indigent funerals

Overview

Description of
the Activity
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Current
65%
50%
42,000
4
12
160

Target
70%
58%
50,000
4
10
175
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Directorate: Community and Social Development Services
Library and Research Services
Reporting Level
Overview

Description of
the Activity

Analysis of the
Function

Detail
Includes all activities associated with the provision of library and research services
The function of provision of library services within the municipality is administered as follows and
includes:
Library service points are spread over Kimberley to bring this service to the doorstep of each user.
Provide library and information services to all inhabitants.
Strategic Objectives:
To render a free library and information service to all inhabitants within the Sol Plaatje Municipal Area.
To establish a reading culture by means of outreach programmes and to do research for national and
international clients at the Africana Library.
Key Issues fpr 2009/2010:
To render an outreach programmes at all our services points to children to increase our membership. To
supply in all information needs of our users where possible. To improve services to students. To obtain
and keep skilled professional information workers (librarians).
Total
Rand
Number of cost to employer of all personnel
53
4,021,910
36 full-time employees, and 17 shift employees
Employee related costs: Salaries
3,540,720
Employee related costs: Social contributions
481,190
Nature and extent of facilities provided:
Library service points
10
Number of users
48,500
Staff
36

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Area
Sustainable
service Delivery

202

Number of enquiries handled by staff at counter
To create a balanced book stock
Number of children attending outreach programmes
Research done for clients at Africana Library
Available seating/tables for scholars and students

Current
29,437
75%
19,933
1,709
475

Target
30,000
75%
18,000
1,200
490
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Directorate: Community and Social Development Services
Emergency Services
Reporting Level
Overview

Description of
the Activity

Analysis of the
Function

Detail
Rendering of an all inclusive emergency services to the residents of Sol Plaatje municipal area.
The function of provision of emergency services within the municipality is administered as follows
and includes:
Effective emergency services (fire, rescue and disaster management) activities through the following sections : Operational, Public Safety, Training and Logistical.
Strategic Objectives:
To render an effective emergency service
Key Issues for 2009/2010:
Emergency service - operations activities, public safety, logistical management, training and disaster
management
Nature and extent of facilities provided:
Total
Rand
Four Fire stations
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
72
8,050,913
Employee related costs: Salaries
7,012,427
Employee related costs: Social contributions
1,038,486

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Area
Sustainable
Service
Delivery

Percentage compliance to the SANS 10040 (Parts T & W) (Aim : to promote
the public safety capacity of the municipality.

Percentage compliance to the Disaster Management Evaluation Tool guide
from the National Disaster Management Centre.
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Current

Target

Category 2
Brigade
85%

Category 3
Brigade
90%

60%

65%
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Directorate: Community and Social Development Services
Motor Registration and Licensing
Reporting Level
Overview

Description of
the Activity

Analysis of the
Function

Detail
Includes all activities associated with the provision of registration of motor vehicles, roadworthy and
licensing of motor vehicles, learner and driving licences.
Registrations of vehicles. Licencing of vehicle. Renewal of licence.Temporary and Special Permits. Roadworthy Certificate. Roadworthiness Test. Drivers Licence. Renewal of Drivers Licence card.
Strategic Objectives :
To ensure that all vehicles are registered and licenced and all drivers on national roads are licenced.
Total
Rand
Number and cost to employer of all personnel:
22
12,806,667
Employee related costs: Salaries
1
10,326,658
Employee related costs: Social contributions
1
2,480,009
Drivers:
Targets
Renewal of Licences
8,159
cannot be
Temporary Drivers Licences
2,906
set for these
Professional Drivers Licence Permit
2,009
functions,
Authorised Drivers Licence
5,728
however the
Authorised Learners Licences
7,414
actual is being reported
Total transactions for Drivers:
26,216
Registrations
Registrations:
15,066
Licence Renewals
58,664
Duplicate Licences
1,252
Temporary Permits
570
Special Permits
552
Scrapping
628
Total transactions for Registrations:
76,732
Roadworthy Tests:
536
Waiting period is now a minimum of 2 months.

Key Performance
Area

Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance

Current

Target

Sustainable
Service
Delivery

Improve waiting period for registrations (was 45 min)
Improve waiting period for drivers licences (was 90 days)

29 min
29 days

30 min
30 days
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Directorate: Community and Social Development Services
Traffic Services
Reporting Level
Overview

Description of
the Activity

Analysis of the
Function

Detail
Ensure a road safety environment with in SPM by means of law enforcement, road marking, signs, collection of fines.
Ensure safety environment within Sol Plaatje Municipality by means of :
Law enforcement
Road markings and signs
Collection of fines
Execution of municipal by-laws
Road blocks
Parking control
Strategic Objectives:
To ensure that all road users adhere to road traffic legislation by means of road blocks, speed law enforcement, execution of warrant of arrests. Also the erection of road traffic signs and markings.
Key Issues for 2009/2010:
Review policy to address service norms and standards.
Activities to improvement traffic and pedestrian safety.
Total
Rand
Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated with policing
68
20,623,260
and traffic control:
Employee related costs: Salaries
16,744,843
Employee related costs: Social contributions
3,878,417
Law Enforcement
Total hours worked
23,963
Percentage time on law enforcement
48.36%
Total cases handled
31,879
Statistics of Income:
Fines
149,541
Fines summonses
3,523,598
Unclaimed fines
322,542
Miscellaneous revenue
94,520
Total number of call-outs attended :
Emergency call-outs
15 p/week
Standard call-outs
75 p/week
Average response time to call-outs:
Emergency call-outs
7 min
Standard call-outs
10 min
Total number of targeted violations eg: traffic offences:
Speed, motor defects, driver fitness, drunk and driving, transportation,
hawkers, negligence and parking
50,000

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Area
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance

Basic Service
Delivery and
Infastructure
Development

Section 341 notices issued
Speed offences
Offences by camera : Speed and red robots
Section 56
Summonses issued
Warrants of arrests executed
Repainted Road Markings (per square metre)
Road signs replaced
New Road signs erected
Road signs repainted
Road signs cleaned
Road signs and poles re-erected
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Current
4,167
3,876
1,806
22,030
4,306
19,771
545
168
1,081
83
380

Target
4,200
4,500
1,700
21,000
9,000
5,000
20,000
600
170
1,000
100
400
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Directorate: Community and Social Development Services
Sustainable Energy and Climate Change Unit (SECCU)
Reporting Level
Overview

Description of
the Activity

Analysis of the
Function

Detail
To uphold and complement the city vision, policies and programmes identified in the Integrated Development Plan (IDP). To implement, evaluate and maintain the Sustainable Energy Strategy for the City and
all its communities. To address energy efficiency and climate change mitigation at a local authority level
thereby placing the focus on our diminishing energy resources and also global warming. To develop and
Integrated Environmental Management Plan (IEMP) for Sol Plaatje Municipality.
The function of provision of SECCU within the municipality is administered as follows and includes:
To stimulate sustainable energy approaches and practices within Sol Plaatje Municipality and the integration of energy efficiency objectives into all its functions.
To complement service delivery and financial sustainability in Sol Plaatje Municipality’s operations.
To improve the air quality, health and safety in communities by introducing and promoting economic and
innovative energy efficiency practices.
Key Issues for 2009/2010:
To initiate steps towards declaring Sol Plaatje Municipality a Solar City.
Forming of a Sol Plaatje Energy and Climate Change Committee (SPECCC) to oversee the implementation
of the SPECCS that provides a clear vision and direction for the city for the future.
Climate mitigation tree planting.
Collaboration with other government institutions, NGO’s and agencies.
Total
Rand
Number and costs to employer of personnel
2
776,146
Employee related costs: Salaries
671,820
Employee related costs: Social contributions
104,326

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Area
Develop an Integrated Environmental Management Plan by December 2009
Implement an integrated environmental management plan over the next ten years
Sustainable
Funding was made available in April 2010 to procure the services of a
Service Delivery service provider to assist the Municipality to prepare an IEMP
and Infrastructure
Development and implementation of a Sustainable Energy and Climate
Development
Change Strategy (SPECCS)
Implementation of a Sustainable Energy and Climate Change Strategy
(SPECCS)

206

Current

Target

10%
0%

100%
10%

100%

100%

10%

10%
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Directorate: Community and Social Development Services
Parks and Recreation Services
Reporting Level
Overview

Description of
the Activity

Analysis of the
Function

Detail
The provision of sport facilities, the provision of parks and gardens and other horticulturist services and to provide quality
cemetery facilities and services. Crematorium is privately owned and operated.
The function of provision of various parks and recreation services within the Municipality is administered as follows
and includes :
Provision of facilities, maintenance of facilities, preparation of facilities for sport. Provision, development and maintenance of
parks and gardens, open spaces, street trees, traffic islands/medians. To provide a service to the community for the dignified
interment and remembrance of human remains. Ensure that the Parks and Recreation Section delivers services effectively and
efficiently, thereby putting the Batho Pele principles into practice.
Strategic Objectives:
Ensure provision of services in a sustainable manner. Promote socio-economic development. Promote a safe and healthy
environment. Encourage community involvement. Provide and maintain adequate, safe swimming pools for recreational facilities in terms of Council’s policy. Establish and undertake medium and long-term planning for the provision of sport faciltiies.
Provide horticulturist services with specific reference to: development and maintenance of parks, open spaces and public
gardens, beautifiction of entrance routes and traffic islands/medians. Planting and maintenance of street trees. The control
and eradication of declared weeds and invader species. The maintenance of irrigation network and playground equipment.
The maintenance of plant material in a holding nursery. Prepare graves and burial of bodies. Maintain grounds and buildings.
Provide administrative support. Booking of burials, updating of records and to ensure effective revenue collection and banking
of services rendered.
Key Issues for 2009/2010:
To create awareness amongst the community regarding the various sporting codes, thereby promoting development of
sport. Promote accessibility of all facilities amongst the community and also to increase the number of play parks. To strive
for customer service excellence through continuous assessment, innovation and improvement. To act ethically with professionalism and courtesy. To trust, support and co-operate with each other and the community. Care for the cemetery environment.
Nature and extent of facilities provided :
Number of Users
Rand
Ten Other community halls/facilities
1,281
Twelve Cemeteries and crematoriums (crematorium private)
2,407
Two Sporting facilities (specify) Stadiums
301
Eight Sport Fields (Community Facility)
One Caravan Park
6,137
One Club
486
Four Swimming Pools
18,232
83 Parks, gardens, islands (60Ha)
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
105
19,336,434
Employee related costs: Salaries
17,490,213
Employee related costs: Social contributions
1,846,221

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Area

Sustainable
Service
Delivery

Set targets for Cemeteries insofar as the maintenance is concerned were achieved in
full during the first and second quarters of the year, but dropped to less than fifty
percent of the target during the final two quarters. This was due to above average
rainfall, resulting in the increased growth of natural grass.
The grass cutting programme target was also not achieved, especially during the third
and fourth quarters due to above average rainfall and an increase in the down-time of
cutting equipment due to the ageing equipment. Replacements have however been made.
No new parks have been developed during the past year due to no grant funding.
New maintenance equipment has however been purchased which will result in existing
parks being maintained to the desired standard in future.
The planting of trees and eradication of alien vegetation targets have been exceeded.
We are also happy to report that even though transport challenges were experienced,
all complaints/requests by the public were completed within the target timeframes.
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Current

Target

35%

50%

50%

100%

0%
100%

100%
100%

80%

100%
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Function: Community and Social Development Services
Cleansing Services
Reporting Level
Overview

Description of
the Activity

Analysis of the
Function

Detail
Includes refuse removal, solid waste disposal and landfill, street cleaning and recycling.
The refuse collection functions of the municipality are administered as follows and include:
Once per week refuse removal service. This is a door to door service & 6m3 Bulk Containers where access roads are not functional. These services extend to include Operation of Landfill Sites, cleaning of
open spaces and administration but do not take account of national roads which reside with the jurisdiction of local goverment. The Municipality has a mandate to operate in the Greater Kimberley, Ritchie,
Modderriver, Platfontein, Riverton & Langleg.
Strategic Objectives:
Provide a clean and healthy environment for inhabitants of above-mentioned areas.
Key issues for 2010/2011:
Upgrade the service of the CBD area and all main entrances and open spaces.
Total
Rand
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
166
13,512,727
Employee related costs: Salaries
12,371,346
Employee related costs: Social contributions
1,141,381
Number of households receiving regular refuse removal services, and
frequency and cost of service:
Removed by municipality at least once a week
57,000
3,617,790
Removed by municipality less often
6,240
Communal refuse dump used
0
Own refuse dump
2
No refuse disposal
nil
Total and projected tonnage of all refuse disposed:
Domestic/Commercial
124,173
Garden
1,675
Note: provide total tonnage for current and future years activity
Total number, capacity and life expectancy of refuse disposal sites:
Domestic/Commercial (number)
2
10 yrs
Garden (number)
1
ongoing
Anticipated expansion of refuse removal service:
Domestic/Commercial
156,629
Garden
1,690
Note: provide total number of households anticipated to benefit and total
additional operating cost per year to the municipality
Free Basic Service Provision:
Quantity (number of households affected)
9,836
Quantum (value to each household)
4,814

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Area
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Sustainable
Service
Delivery
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Develop an Integrated Waste Management Plan
Implement an integrated Waste Management plan over next ten years
Consultants have been appointed assist the Municipality in preparing the
IWMP. A first draft will be completed by end of August 2010 and a
workshop with relevant stakeholders is scheduled for the first week
in September 2010.

Current

Target

75%
0%

100%
10%
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Function: Infrastructure and Services
Housing
Reporting Level
Overview

Description of
the Activity

Analysis of the
Function

Detail
Housing sub-function includes all activities associated with provision of housing. Housing is not necessarily
a core function of the Municipality at its delivery wing, but accreditation would be able to bring that to full
competency. The Municipality is currently being conditionally accredited at level two, as the processes of
full accreditation unfolds once all requirements are met.
The function of provision of housing within the Municipality is administered as follows and includes:
Housing Administration:
Allocation of sites/transfers of properties to deserving beneficiaries, allocation of municipal stock e.g.
EEDBS programme. In order for the Municipality to be accredited (level 1-2), the Housing Demand Data
Base was one of the requirements which should be part of the Human Settlement Plan.
Housing Development:
Subsidy processing & construction of BNG houses
Strategic Objectives:
To ensure provision of all basic housing needs to deserving beneficiaries
Key Issues for 2009/2010:
To transfer some municipal stock to the immediate residents of these units, relocation of beneficiaries to
suitable land.
To build a substantial number of units of the BNG houses as per allocation from the Provincial Dept of Human Settlement
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Total
Rand
Number of employees
73
11,840,000
Employee related costs: Salaries
10,008,577
Employee related costs: Social contributions
1,831,423
Number of Units
Number and total value of housing projects planned and current:
Current (financial year after year reported on)
218
11,008,000
Planned (future years)
5,541
343,542,000
Note: provide total project and project value as per initial or revised budget
Total type, number and value of housing provided:
The following BNG houses were built during the financial year:
Dunston/Ubuntu 151; Donkerhoek 540; Phutanang 150; Tswelelang 38,
ZoneII 398. “
1,277
69,673,120
Note: total number and total value of housing provided during financial year
Total number and value of rent received from municipal owned rental units
<list details, including number of units handed over to residents>
Eugene
30
431,172
Krisant
32
290,232
Jonker
24
214,512
Eureka
20
220,692
Flamingo
48
269,412
Dingaan
189
47,630
Impala
52
467,400
Herculus
60
602,304
Holland
36
351,540
Newton
24
419,616
Tiffany
24
7,500
Santa
24
342,204
Roodepan
408
2,392,569
Total
971
6,056,783
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Reporting Level

Estimated backlog in number of (and costs to build) housing:
No. of Units
Incremental Formal Housing: Self-financed and improved housing
349
Communal/transitional Housing: Communal and transitional housing
146
BNG Housing: Municipal delivered stock for ownership in areas of high growth
5,541
Social Housing: Medium to high-density social housing in Hull Street and
Soul City
2,803
Formalised Home Ownership: mortgaged property for the Gap market
733
TOTAL (These figures are in terms of the draft IHSP)
9,572
Type of habitat breakdown:
number of people living in a house or brick structure
Detail
number of people living in a traditional dwelling
statistics
number of people living in a flat in a block of flats
not available
number of people living in a town/cluster/semi-detached group dwelling
number of people living in an informal dwelling or shack
number of people living in a room/flat let
Detail
Type and number of grants and subsidies received:
R34,897,325 Received from the Provincial Department at R54,560 per subsidy
54,560
Note: total value of specific housing grants actually received during year to
be recorded over the five quarters - April to June last year, July to
September, October to December, January to March, April to June this year.

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Area
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance

Sustainable
Service
Delivery

Sustainable
Service
Delivery
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Number of subsidised houses provided (Donkerhoek 540; Ubuntu 151;
Zone II 398; Phuthanang 150; Tswelelang 38). Housing development is
dependent on the number of subsidies approved by housing Provincial
Human Settlement Department. For this financial year only 1,277 housing
subsidies were approved.
Preparation and implementation of a five-year Integrated Human Settlement
Plan (IHSP) align with GDS by July 2010.
The Integrated Human Settlement Plan ( IHSP) has been developed during
the Financial Year and needs to be approved by Council.
No of subsidised houses provided (Donkerhoek 540; Ubuntu 151;
Zone II 398; Phuthanang 150; Tswelelang 38)Housing development is
dependent on the number of subsidies approved by housing Provincial
Human Settlement Department. For this Financial Year only 1277 housing
subsidies were approved.
Preparation and implementation of a 5-year Integrated Human Settlement
Plan (IHSP) align with GDS by July 2010
The Integrated Human Settlement Plan ( IHSP) has been developed during
the Financial Year it now need to be approved by Council.

Rand

34,897,325

Current

Target

1,277

3,358

100%

100%

1277

3358

100%

100%
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Function: Waste Water Management
Sewerage Services
Reporting Level
Overview

Detail
Includes provision of sewerage services not including infrastructure and water purification, also includes
toilet facilities
The sewerage functions of the municipality are administered as follows and include:
Management of Waste Water Treatment Works
Provision of Sanitation to Local Community
Maintenance of sewer pump station
Industrial effluent monitoring
Collection of Buckets

Description of
the Activity

Strategic Objectives:
To provide efficient and quality sanitation services to the community of Sol Plaatje Municipality.
The Municipality has a mandate to:
Provide sanitation service within the municipal area; Maintain the existing sewage infrastructure;
Treat waste water to national standards and investigate possible water recycling initiatives.
Key Issues for 2009/2010:
To provide sufficient bulk sanitation infrastructure as to unlock development.
Eliminate Bucket system
Assist in possible waste water recycling initiatives
To improve sewage reticulation system
To improve quality of sanitation service rendered to the community. “
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Number of employees

Total

Rand

157

Employee related costs: Salaries

10,510,240

Employee related costs: Social contributions
Number of households with sewerage services, and type and cost of
service:
Flush toilet (connected to sewerage system)

2,796,937
Number
of Toilets
49,650

Flush toilet (with septic tank)

168

Chemical toilet

N/A

Pit latrine with ventilation
Analysis of the
Function

Pit latrine without ventilation
Bucket latrine
No toilet provision

13,307,177

1,070
0
3,634
150

Anticipated expansion of sewerage:
Flush/chemical toilet

8,290

149,220,000

Pit latrine

0

-

Bucket latrine

0

-

No toilet provision

0

-

Free Basic Service Provision:
Quantity (number of households affected)
Quantum (value to each household)
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9,448
25

211

Reporting Level
Sustainable
service
delivery

Detail
The level of service provided in formal areas is a full service, which means
a flush toilet is provided for each household. A reduction in service cost is
also provided through the indigent subsidy. In informal areas a few toilets
are installed in a form of buckets; portable toilet and VIP toilets as a
temporary solution.

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Area

Sustainable
service
delivery

212

The number of households connected with sanitation services in formal
areas Donkerhoek 257; Ikageng Ritchie 200. Due to limited funding the set
target could not be reached.
Flush/chemical toilet (To be determined in terms of housing development
and private developers)
Free Basic Service Provision:
Quantity (number of households affected)
Quantum (value to each household)

Total

Rand

Current

Target

457

1,700

N/A
8,956
6 KL
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Function: Road Transport
Roads and Stormwater
Reporting Level
Overview

Description of
the Activity

Analysis of
the Function

Detail
Construction and maintenance of roads within the municipality’s jurisdiction
The road maintenance and construction responsibilities of the Municipality are administered as follows and include:
Upgrading of roads
Repair/reinstatement of trenches and potholes
Resurfacing of streets;
Unblocking of stormwater drainage systems
Repairs to roadside furniture
Maintenance of fences
Grading/regravelling of gravel roads
Construction of vehicle access to property (at owner’s expense)
Cleaning, unblocking and repairing of stormwater drains
Construction and repairing of pavements
Erecting and repairing of fences
Erecting and repairing of street names
The municipality has mandate to
To provide appropriate, cost effective, safe, efficient and also affordable roads, stormwater and transportation
infrastructure in Sol Plaatje Municipality in order to improve the quality of life and hence stimulate
economic growth.
Strategic Objectives:
Provide sufficient capacity for the movement of motorised traffic
Provide sufficient capacity for the movement of bicycles
Provide sufficient and safe capacity for the movement of pedestrians
Provide sufficient maintenance capacity to maintain all infrastructure in good capitalised condition.
Provide a stormwater management system for all areas
Maintain paved/surfaced roads and ensure that they are in an acceptable standard by patching and
resealing annually.
Maintain stormwater drains to ensure that run-off water is drained adequately from developed areas
Manufacture and construct stormwater intake frames to ensure that all broken stormwater intakes are
replaced
Maintain gravel roads to ensure that they are in an acceptable standard
Maintain streets names and information signs to ensure easy access to suburbs and business areas
Maintain pavements to ensure safe accessibility by pedestrians
Maintain municipal fences to ensure safety of pedestrians
Key Issues for 2009/2010:
Repairing and resurfacing of streets
Scraping and re-gravelling of gravel roads
Cleaning, unblocking and repairing of stormwater drains
Repairing of pavements
Construction of new roads
Maintenance of streets names
Patching of potholes
Number of
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
Rand
officials
168
12,002,000
Employee related costs: Salaries
9,031,815
Employee related costs: Social contributions
2,970,185
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Reporting Level

Total number, kilometres and total value of road projects planned and
Number
current:
of Kms
New bituminised (number)
3.157
Existing re-tarred (number)
32.9
New gravel (number)
0
Existing re-sheeted (number)
1.3
Bicycle lane project
1.8
Total kilometres and maintenance cost associated with existing roads provided Quantity
Tar
20,200m²
Gravel
4.813 Km
Estimated backlog in number of roads, showing kilometres and capital cost No. of Kms
Tar
300
Gravel
200
Detail
Total
Note: total number should appear in IDP, and cost in future budgeted road
construction programmed
Type and number of grants and subsidies received:
Municipal infrastructure grant
Department of Roads, Transport and Public Works and the Department
of COGHSTA

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Area

Sustainable
Service
Delivery

214

Repairing and resealing of streets
At least 5.8km of surfaced streets were targeted for maintenance in the
2009/2010 budget. More funds were allocated by the Department of Roads,
Transport and Public Works toward this function. This has improved the
condition of the roads perfomance. The roads infrastructure is a valuable asset
to the Municipality and has a high value; if not well-maintained, its lifespan will
decrease rapidly.
Re-gravelling of streets
30km of gravel roads were targeted for regravelling and re-shaping. This year
only 1.2km of gravel roads were graded, it is not possible to cover areas that
have been amalgamated with Sol Plaatje Municipality due to inadequate
resources and continuous breakdowns of dilapidated machinery.
Scraping of gravel roads
200km of gravel roads were targeted for scraping.This year only 3.5km of
gravel roads were scraped. It is also impossible to cover all areas in the
municipal area due to inadequate resources and continuous breakdown on
plant and machinery. The new procurement system should be improved to
increase the performance of this function
Cleaning and repairing of stormwater drains
Approximately 4379m² of lined canals/channels were cleaned. A large portion
of the budget allocated to this function is spent on internal labour and
temporary labour charge-outs. If personnel charges are sourced separately,
then more work will be achieved in a year.
Repairing of pavements
The internal maintenance team covered a total area of 2,483m² on repairing
pavements, including works orders from waterworks and electrical section.
Charge-outs on job orders should be properly monitored to improve the
performance of this function.
Patching of potholes
The internal maintenance team covered a total area of 20,200m².
Construction of roads
10km of roads were targeted for construction of roads, to date only 3.1km of
roads were paved.

Rand
5,600,000
35,500,000
1,300,000
2,488,000
9,690,000
2,140,000
105,000,000
400,000,000
Rand

6,250,000
34,800,000

Current

Target

32.9

5.8

1.2

30

3.5

200

4,379

13,000

2,483

5,000

20,200

50,000

3.157

10
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Function: Water
Water Distribution
Reporting Level
Overview

Description of
the Activity

Analysis of the
Function

Reporting Level

Detail
Includes the bulk purchase and distribution of water
The water purchase and distribution functions of the municipality are administered as follows and
include:
The operations and maintenance of the water infrastructure; Provision of new water Infrastructure to the
community.
Purification of bulk water:
Water quality monitoring to ensure that water complies with the SANS 241 requirements.
To ensure adequate water supply to the community and business.
Strategic Objectives:
To provide sufficient, safe and quality water services to the community of Sol Plaatje Municipality
To ensure sustainable service delivery in respect of water services to all residents of Sol Plaatje Municipality.
Key Issues for 2009/2010:
To reduce the percentage of water losses in the distribution network.
To provide quality and safe water service to the community.
To achieve a higher percentage blue drop status
Number and cost to employer of all personnel
No of Officials
Rand
181
14,252,016
Employee related costs: Salaries
11,978,293
Employee related costs: Social contributions
2,273,723
Percentage of total water usage per month
Raw water usage ( Average monthly usage)
2,041,335
Water sales per month(Average monthly sales)
1,923,498
Detail
Total
Rand
Number of households with water service:
Piped water inside dwelling
52,000
Piped water inside yard
148
Number of new connections
These connections are per number of new requests received for water
connections
73
Number of disconnections and reconnections
0
None
0
Number and total value of water projects planned and current
Number and total value of water projects planned (bulk infrastructure):
11 316,600,000
Number and total value of water projects planned ( yard connections):
3 123,752,000
Current (financial year after year reported on)
1
6,687,000
Planned (future years)
11 316,600,000
Anticipated expansion of water service
Piped water inside dwelling
8,290
99,480,000
Piped water inside yard
0
Piped water on community stand: distance < 200m from dwelling
0
Piped water on community stand: distance > 200m from dwelling
0
Estimated backlog in number (and cost to provide) water connection:
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Piped water inside dwelling
8,290
Piped water inside yard
0
Piped water on community stand: distance < 200m from dwelling
0
Piped water on community stand: distance > 200m from dwelling
0
Borehole
0
Free Basic Service Provision:
9,448 indigents
Quantity (number of households affected)
Quantum (value to each household)
12 Kl
The level of service provided in formal areas is a full services, which means
water is provided into the house of the beneficiary. In informal areas a
stand pipe is provided at a 200m walking radius for households to share.
Stand pipes provided in SPM are not far apart and therefore it is assumed
that at least 10 households share a stand pipe.

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Area
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance

Sustainable
Service Delivery
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Current

Number of households in formal areas provided with metered water
560
connections (Donkerhoek 360; Ikageng Ritchie 200).
Number of households connected to water in informal areas. It may be
246 Stand
assumed that one stand-pipe services a radius of ten households.
Pipes
= 2,460
If 246 were installed it means at least 2,460 households were serviced
Households
and therefore the target was exceeded.
Percentage reduction in water losses was not realised. A decrease in
water losses will only be visible after the implementation of the outcome
34%
of the Non-Revenue Water Minimisation (NRWM) study.
Free Basic Service Provision:
Quantity (number of households affected)
9,030
Quantum (value to each household)
6 kl free water
Note: Provide details of how many households receive the FBS provision,
and the average value it means per household. Describe in detail the level
of Free Basic Services provided.

99,480,000
-

Target
400

11,750

22%
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Function: Electricity
Electricity Distribution
Reporting Level
Overview

Description of
the Activity

Analysis of
the Function

Detail
Includes the bulk purchase and distribution of electricity.
The electricity purchase and distribution functions of the Municipality are administered as follows
and include:
These services extend to include Kimberley area, but do not take account of Ritchie which resides within
the jurisdiction of Eskom.
The municipality has a mandate to:
Provide and maintain the electrical infrastructure and to ensure the restoration of interrupted supply is in
accordance with NRS 047 and NRS 048 specifications. To provide all households access to basic electricity and to reduce electricity losses.
Strategic Objectives:
Ensure quality electrical network and supply to the community and promote access to all citizens to
these services, while simultaneously utilising the infrastructure to optimise revenue collection. To ensure
that staff is working in accordance with the OHS act.
Key Issues for 2009/2010:
Provide households with basic electricity utilising available funds, to reduce electricity losses and to
conduct maintenance on electrical infrastructure and associated equipment.
Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated with the
No of Officials
Rand
electricity distribution function:
90
18,151,931
Employee related costs: Salaries
14,687,811
Employee related costs: Social contributions
3,464,120
Total quantity and cost of bulk electricity purchases in kilowatt hours
and rand, by category of consumer
488,849,041 120,882,000
Residential
245,332,250
60,666,000
Commercial
68,693,030
16,986,000
Industrial
161,919,285
40,039,000
Street Lighting
12,904,476
3,191,000
Total quantity and receipts for bulk electricity sales in kilowatt hours
410,057,413 302,196,000
and rand, by category of consumer:
Household
205,273,006 192,832,000
Commercial
57,240,355
62,936,000
Industrial
136,753,440
39,467,000
Street Lighting
10,790,612
6,961,000
Total year-to-date electricity losses in kilowatt hours and rand
Average kWh losses
16.43%
52,823
Number of households with electricity access, and type and cost of service:
52,120
R0.9325 / kWh
Kimlite - Units
R0.6675 / kWh
Kimpower - Units
R115.8723
Kimpower - Basic Charge
R0.8034
/ kWh
Small Power - Units
R190. 02
Small Power - Basic Charge
R0.4263 / kWh
Large Power - Units
R415.60
Large Power - Basic Charge
R124.31
Large Power - Day kVA
R29.44
Large Power - Night kVA
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Reporting Level

Detail
Alternate energy source
Gas
Paraffin
Coal
Number and cost of new connections:
Soul City
Greenpoint

Total
134,350 GJ
161,607 GJ
106,480 GJ
136
107
29

Rand

3,233,000

Rand
Number and total value of electrification projects planned and current: No of Projects
Current (financial year after year reported on)
2
2,000,000
Planned (future years)
12
103,023,000
Anticipated expansion of electricity service:
Quantity
Rand
A formal application of 80Mva to Eskom to increase Sol Plaatje Municipality’s
Bulk Electricity service level agreement from 120Mva to 200Mva. A feasibility
quotation was submitted by Eskom and accepted by Sol Plaatje Municipality.
80 MVA
69,685,000
A budget quotation is currently being prepared by Eskom to finalise the
concept and design of the project.
Estimated backlog in number (and cost to provide) electricity connection:
Number of backlogs is based on the Housing Backlogs in terms of the
9,572
172,296
Draft Integrated Human Settlement Plan
Free Basic Service Provision:
Quantity (number of households affected)
12,226
Quantum (value to each household)
50 kWh
Type and number of grants and subsidies received:
Southridge Transformer - Loan
1
5,500,000
Electrification Soul City - Loan
1
1,750,000

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Area
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance

Sustainable
Service
Delivery
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Number of households provided with electricity connections
136 Houses were electrified in Soul City (107) and Greenpoint (29) with
own municipal funding and now applications are being prepared for
sourcing of funding for the remaining backlog.
Percentage reduction in electricity losses
Bypassed prepayment meters and old Plessey sequence meters to be
replaced to reduce the losses. This was not possible as meters could not
be procured due to a court interdict. Approximatley 5,000 pre-paid meters
were however replaced in this financial year which contributed towards
stabilising the losses during the year.

Current

Target

136

300

16.43%

12%
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Function: Electricity
Street Lighting
Reporting Level
Overview:

Description of
the Activity:

Analysis of the
Function:

Detail

Includes all activities associated with the provision of street lighting to
the community
Street lighting responsibilities of the municipality are administered as
follows and include:
The municipality has 3 street light attendants with elevated bucket
vehicles to maintain street light, high mast maintenance are conducted
by a contractor on a quotation basis. The community phones and report
faulty lights to the 24 hour control room, who in turn captures relevant
information on a daily report sheet which is sent to the foreman every
morning.
These services extend to include Kimberley and Riverton areas for both
street light and Hi Mast lighting, and Ritchie hi mast lighting but does not
take into account of Ritchie street lighting which resides within the jurisdiction of Eskom.
The municipality has a mandate to:
Ensure safety to road users and security to residents.
The strategic objectives of this function are to:
Ensure that street light are designed in the most cost effective and
energy efficient manner, and also to adhere to SANS 10098 -1. To conduct
maintenance on all reported lights.
The key issues for 2009/10 are:
To replace 400 watt mercury vapour fittings with 250 watt high pressure
sodium fittings on main roads. To replace 125 watt mercury vapour fittings
with 70 watt sodium vapour fittings on secondary roads. To replace high
mast lamps on newer poles and fittings on older poles.
Number and total operating cost of streetlights servicing
population:
Street lights
7 000
Note: total streetlights should be available from municipal inventory
Total bulk kilowatt hours consumed for street lighting:
kWh
10,790,612

Key Performance Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual
Area
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance
Sustainable
Service Delivery

Total

Installed street lights in Nxumalo Street
Installed Hi Mast lights in Tswelelang
Install street lights in Tlhageng
Relamped high mast lights
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Current

Rand

4,000,000
6,961,000

Target

6
1
6
89
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Chapter 6

Oversight Report for the 2009/2010 Annual Report
1.

Introduction

The Annual Report had to be tabled by the Executive Mayor before council by no later than 31
January 2011. This is a requirement stipulated in
section 127(2) of the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, No. 56 of 2003 (“the
MFMA”).

Regrettably no comments were received by the
Department Co-operative Governance, Human
Settlements and Traditional Affairs (“COGHSTA”),
Provincial Treasury and SALGA; notwithstanding
management’s contention that the Annual Report
was forwarded to the above.

The Annual Report was tabled on 20 December
2010, according to management.

No comments were forthcoming from the audit
committee on the Auditor-General’s (“AG”) report.

2.

4.

Objective

Key Comments/Responses/Questions

The objective is to submit to council the oversight
report on the Annual Report.

4.1 The Auditor-General Report (“the AG
Report”) and Response by Management

3.

The committee will not repeat the contents of the
AG Report, which is contained in the Annual Report. (Annexure “D”)

Background

3.1 Annual Report
The Annual Report so tabled was only in draft
form.

The following must however be noted with respect
to the AG report.

The Oversight Committee (“the committee”) developed a rollout plan for the oversight report on
the Annual Report (“Annexure A”).

4.1.1

It is unclear whether the Annual Report lay open
for inspection and comments by the community,
Provincial Treasury, SALGA, organised business
etc.

3.2 Oversight Report
The committee held several meetings in the oversight process which resulted in this report. Minutes of these meetings are attached herewith as
Annexures (“B” – “C”).
It is clear from the minutes that these meeting did
not quorate due to non-attendance by councillors. This is simply unacceptable as it frustrated
progress in the oversight process.
The committee could not conduct public hearings
as sufficient arrangements were not made by the
municipality for staging the hearings and as a result the very important participation by the public
could not be secured.
The committee could not interact meaningfully
with management due to non-compliance with
the rollout plan.

220

Irregular expenditure (par. 14 of AG
Report)

These items are recurring due to the consistent
failure by management to respond directly and
decisively to it.

4.2 Community
The community of Sol Plaatje did not participate in
the oversight process as a notice calling for public
comments was not published timeously or at all
and further, public hearings were not conducted
for the reasons previously stated herein above.

4.3 Provincial Treasury
No comments were submitted by Provincial Treasury.

4.4 Audit Committee
No comments were received from the audit committee.

4.5 Organised Business
No comments were received from organised business.

4.6 Members of the Committee
Comments are attached herewith as (Annexures
“E” & “E1”).
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4.7 Contents of the Annual Report
Chapter 12, Section 121(3) of the MFMA prescribes which components
the Annual Report must consist of. The above is augmented by an Annual Report checklist contained in the Terms of Reference document of
the committee as well as MFMA circular no. 32.

4.7.1

AG Report on the annual financial statements

This report is included in the Annual Report.

4.7.2

Assessment by the Accounting Officer on arrears on municipal taxes and service charges

Particulars of the above are contained in note 4.1 to the annual financial
statements.

4.7.3

Corrective action taken or to be taken in response to issues raised in the AG Report

The annual report contains no such information.
Council is however referred to paragraph 4.1 of this oversight report.

4.7.4

Municipal performance report

Chapter 2 of the annual report purports to deal with municipal performance.

The following information is however lacking:
Details of service agreements to determine whether performance targets were met are not included in the annual report.
There is no assessment of performance by service providers.
There is no information on long-term contracts and consequent levels
of liability to the municipality.
The annual report contains no information of a three (3) year capital
plan for addressing infrastructure backlogs in terms of the Municipal
Infrastructure Grant (“MIG”) Framework.
See further paragraph 4.1 of this oversight report.

It is Recommended
1

That the council having fully considered the annual report and representations thereon, adopts the oversight report; and

2

That the annual report be adopted with reservations as included in
the comments in the oversight report, paragraph(s) 4.1.1 and 4.7.
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Appendix A

Rollout Plan: Sol Plaatje Municipality
Oversight Report on the 2009/2010 Annual Report
1

Annual Report (2009/2010) tabled in council
on 20 December 2010 and 02 February 2011.

2

4 March 2011

4

- Oversight Committee convenes to consider
response by management to comments on
Annual Report by committee.

- Notice published in local press advising
that 2009/2010 Annual report will lay open
for inspection until 25 March 2011 at designated public places.
- Public invited to submit written and/or verbal comments.
3

- Committee considers notices of oral submissions if any to be delivered at public
hearings.
5

6

25 March 2011
- Oversight Committee convenes to consider
written submissions from parties referred
to in paragraph 3 above.

- Inputs and/or comments to be forwarded
to management forthwith.
- Notice to all stakeholders including Provincial Treasury; Audit Committee; Auditor-General; Department of Co-operative
Governance, Human Settlements, & Traditional Affairs (“COGHTA”); Business Chamber; NGOs etc. to submit written comments
/ inputs within 14 days i.e. no later than 23
March 2011

26 & 27 March 2011
- Oversight Committee conducts public hearings to consider any submissions by public
and other interested parties.

9 March 2011
- Oversight Committee convenes to discuss
Annual Report and provides inputs and/or
comments if any.

25 March 2011

7

29 – 30 March 2011
- Oversight Committee convenes to finalise
oversight report.

8

31 March 2011
- Oversight report presented to council.

and
- Public hearings to be held on 26 & 27 March
2011 at venues to be announced where all
interested parties may make oral submissions.
- Parties wishing to make oral submissions
must notify the Oversight Committee of
such intention on or before 23 March
2011.
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Appendix B

Minutes of an Oversight Committee Meeting
Held on tuesday, 1 march 2011 at 12:00
(Established in terms of council resolution C212/07; C354/07 and C446/07)

PRESENT:
Members Sol Plaatje Municipality
Speaker (Cllr M Thole) (Chairperson)
Cllr PJ Vorster

Community Members
Mr R Matthews
Mr AKA Bhyat

Sol Plaatje Officials
Manager: Committee Services
Control Administrative Assistant: Committee Services (M Theron)

A.

APOLOGIES:
Cllr MM Leven
Cllr HP Melakeco
ABSENT:
Cllr W Mbasa

B.

BUSINESS:

Rollout Plan: Oversight Report on the 2009/10 Annual Report.
The Rollout Plan: Oversight Report on the 2009/10 Annual Report was agreed to as follows:
1. Annual Report (2009/2010) tabled in council on 20 December 2010 and 02 February 2011.
Note: The members requested a copy of the Annual Financial statements and management responses
before the meeting scheduled for 9 March 2011.
2. 4 March 2011
- Notice published in local press advising that 2009/2010 Annual report will lay open for inspection
until 25 March 2011 at designated public places.
- Public invited to submit written and/or verbal comments.
3. 9 March 2011
- Oversight Committee convenes at 16:00 to discuss Annual Report and provides inputs and/or comments if any.
- Inputs and/or comments to be forwarded to management forthwith.
- Notice to all stakeholders including Provincial Treasury; Audit Committee; Auditor-General SA; Department of Human Settlements, Co-operative Governance & Traditional Affairs (“COGHTA”); Business Chamber; NGOs etc. to submit written comments/inputs within 14 days i.e. no later than 23
March 2011 at 16:00.
and
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- Public hearings to be held on 26 & 27 March 2011 where all interested parties may make oral submissions. That the same venues as previously be used i.e.:
Roodepan Multi Purpose Centre;
R C Elliott Hall;
Stockroos Street;
City Hall;
Mayibuye Social Centre;
Greenpoint Hall;
Riverton;
Platfontein;
Ritchie.
Note: The members requested that the Speaker ensure that a reliable scribe attends the meetings.
- Parties wishing to make oral submissions must notify the Oversight Committee of such intention on
or before 23 March 2011 at 09:00.
4. 25 March 2011
- Oversight Committee convenes at 16:00 to consider response by management to comment on the
Annual Report and written submissions from parties referred to in paragraph 3 above.
- Committee considers notices of oral submissions if any to be delivered at public hearings.
5. 26 & 27 March 2011
- Oversight Committee conducts public hearings to consider any submissions by public and other
interested parties.
6. 29 – 30 March 2011
- Oversight Committee convenes to finalise oversight report.
7. 31 March 2011
- Oversight report presented to council at a Special Council meeting to be held at 10:00.
The meeting closed at 13:35.
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Appendix C

Minutes of an informal Oversight Committee Meeting
Held on wednesday, 24 march 2011 at 15:00
(Established in terms of council resolution C212/07; C354/07 and C446/07)

Present:
Members:
The Speaker, Cllr MK Thole (Chairperson)
Cllr PJ Vorster

Community Members
Mr R Matthews
Mr AKA Bhyat

Sol Plaatje Officials
Chief: Committee Services (C Burger)
Administrative Officer: Committee Services (S Africa)
Control Administrative Assistant: Committee Services (M Theron)

A.

APOLOGIES:
Cllr MM Leven
Cllr HP Melakeco
Cllr W Mbasa

ABSENT:
None

B.

OPENING/WELCOME

The Speaker welcomed all present and requested that a moment of silent prayer be observed.

C.

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

RESOLVED:
1. That the minutes of the Informal Oversight Committee meeting held on 19 January 2011 be adopted
and approved.
2. That the minutes of the Informal Oversight Committee meeting held on 1 March 2011 be adopted and
approved.
3. That the minutes of the Oversight Committee meeting scheduled for 9 March 2011 (no quorum) be
noted.

D.

INFORMAL DISCUSSIONS

Mr. Matthews indicated that by looking at the status of the roll-out plan, the Annual Report 2009/10 had
not been advertised as was agreed to on 4 March 2011. He suspected that the report was not forwarded to
National Treasury, Provincial Treasury, CoGHSTA and DPLG for inputs.
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He had later learnt that notices were not advertised to public for public participation dates as per the
roll-out plan. He was informed that the Oversight Committee could not meet the next day with the EMT
for their inputs since there was an Audit Committee meeting as well as a Mayoral Committee meeting
scheduled for 25 March 2011. It was noted that the Acting CFO was responsible for the above-mentioned
processes.
Mr. Matthews stated that due to the lack in following due processes, the Oversight Report will not be ready
for tabling to Council on 31 March 2011. He stated that he would write a letter to Treasury for requesting
extension for submission of the Oversight Report and will mention reasons for the delay in the process.
Time-frames will be given to Treasury as to when the Oversight process and report will be completed.
The Speaker stated that on 18 April 2011, Council will dissolve due to the election period. Mr. Matthews
stated that outstanding work that needs to be completed will be done before 18 April 2011 provided that
he gets cooperation from management in this regard. He suggested that the Oversight process continues
and that public hearings will have to take place on 3 and 4 April 2011. The Annual Report must then be
forwarded to relevant stakeholders for inputs, as well as the EMT.
The Speaker was concerned that the Annual Report process was not being followed according to deadlines
specified by law. She indicated that she would report to the National Auditor-General SA that the Oversight
Committee seems to have been taken for granted. She tasked Mr. Matthews to draft a memorandum and
e-mail it to her office indicating the date of the next Oversight Committee meeting for the Section Committee Services to circulate to the relevant members.
After discussion it was –

AGREED:
1. That Mr. Matthews write a letter to National Treasury requesting extension for submission of the Oversight Report with substantive reasons and that a time-frame for the completion of the oversight process and Oversight Report be given.
2. That the oversight process continues in that the Annual Report 2009/10 be submitted to stakeholders
for inputs and that it be advertised for public participation. The Oversight process to be completed before 18 April 2011 when Council will dissolve.
3. That a formal Oversight Committee meeting be scheduled for Tuesday, 29 March 2011 at 16:00 and that
notices be circulated to members and the EMT.
4. That the business of the next meeting be as follows:
• Management response on A-G report
• Matters to be included in the Annual Report 2009/10
The meeting closed at 17:05.
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Appendix D

Auditor’s report of the Auditor-General to the
Northern Cape Provincial Legislature and Council
of Sol Plaatje Local Municipality
Report on the financial statements
Refer to Chapter 4 - Section 4.6 on page 166 - 173
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Appendix D

Oversight Process for the 2009/2010 Annual Statement

In the quest to achieve a clean audit report, the
need is to examine those issues of problems leading to disclaimers and qualifications.
The turnaround strategy requires total commitment, dedication, determination and devotion of
all the people connected to the municipality.

1.

Maintaining a GRAP 17 Compliant
Asset Register

The main focus in recent years has been the preparation of a GRAP 17 Compliant Register of Property, Plant and Equipment, and considerable effort and financial resources have been channeled
towards the compilation of the asset register. All
this will be in vain if the asset registers are not
continuously updated and maintained. There is
too much focus on preparing the asset register
and too little focus on the post preparation process. The pertinent question is asked: The asset
register is tabled, it passes the audit process, but
what happens next? It is important to note that
after the numerous training processes, workshops
on the methodology and principles applied on the
future maintenance of the Asset Register, it is also
enquired if, after all the process, what capacity is
left behind to ascertain the readiness of the municipality to continue to produce an asset register
which is not only fully compliant with relevant accounting standards, but also serves as an asset
management tool. Asset management needs to be
broken down into its four pillars:

• Asset Management System
Whilst it is merely a recording and reporting
tool, providing critical information as per accounting standards requirements, the system
needs to be “fed” with relevant and accurate
information and cannot stand on its own.

• Movable Assets
Collectively these items carry a small value
compared to the total value of the asset register, they usually make up the larger quantity of
line item entries in the asset register, and due
to their movable nature are more difficult to
keep track of.
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• Immovable Assets/Infrastructure Assets
These are regarded as the big issue, or headache, for municipalities, because of the value,
technical nature of the various components
and skill levels required to recognising these
components. Infrastructure Assets have been
and will remain to be the main area of concern
throughout all municipalities.
In addition to compliance to the accounting
standards, infrastructure maintenance plans
also forms a fundamental part of the infrastructure management and cannot be seen in
isolation from the asset register.

• Asset Management Unit
It is the opinion that it is here where the success or failure of a municipality to maintain its
asset register lays. Gone are the days of the
Asset Register being the responsibility of one
official within the finance section.
Asset Management can no longer be seen as
a function of Finance. An Asset Management
Unit/Committee, including at least one representative from each department, will establish
responsibility within these departments for
those assets which falls under their control.
Taking into account the Four Pillars of Asset Management, there are a number of difficult questions
that need to be asked concerning the implementation of the initial Asset Register as well the structure and processes surrounding asset management within each municipality.

• Does the Municipality have the necessary
capacity?
Capacity building and training of staff is or
should be part and parcel of every appointment and service level agreement with an external service provider.
The issues are:
• What practical guidance and post-compilation
training was provided by a service provider?
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• Does the municipality have the staff to properly maintain the Asset Register System, to
perform annual impairment tests and Remaining Useful Life assessments?

• What is the cost of maintaining a GRAP
17 compliant asset register?
This question is crucial. It is commonly said
that the officials within the municipality have
the capacity to fulfill this function, but simply
do not have the time.

• Does the municipality have sufficient capacity within each department to partake in
the Asset Management Unit?

The function cannot be delegated to the first
available person. Implementation of a GRAP
compliant asset register is a costly exercise,
which is only the beginning.

Only sufficient answers by the municipality can
identify to what extent the municipality’s staff
is ready to continue from the platform created
by the service provider.

• Have appropriate processes and guidelines been developed to address the
structure and requirements of the Municipality?
Irrespective of the internal structure and capacity within the municipality, structured processes need to be followed in order to ensure
uniformity throughout the municipality. This
refers to:

The financial implications of subsequent compliance and asset management are often overlooked. The budget must address subsequent
costs.

1.1

What are the options available to
municipalities to overcome the various
challenges
• Forming an internal asset management
committee

• Informing the Asset Management System

• Capacitation and skilling of asset managers

• Addressing the information required to update the maintenance plans

• Putting in processes to ensure acquisitions
at the component level

• Satisfying the requirements of accountability and authorisation.
It is, however, very important that the municipality, through its Asset Management Unit,
have the ability and will to enforce adherence
to the processes and procedures.

• Do all roleplayers understand the importance of asset management and the
extent to which it influences daily operations?
The important issues being:

The municipality must put systems into
place to ensure that the componentisation
process starts as early as the procurement
phase.
This will ensure that Supply Chain Management will be able to determine the components of an asset during the construction
thereof and once the asset is completed, the
Technical department should provide information relating to the value and lifespan of
each component. This will then ensure that
the unbundled asset register is well maintained.

• There needs to be equal responsibility from
the senior to junior officials.

• Contracting in service providers to undertake asset register maintenance

• Do officials work closely with the Technical
Department with regard to infrastructure
assets?

This is an option open to the municipality
to utilise a service provider to ensure that
the asset register is updated at least on a
monthly basis.

• Updating of the asset register on an annual
basis in order to finalise the financial statement.
The basis being the placing of an accurate
and complete asset register on the table.
The acquisition and derecognition of infrastructure assets needs to be identified.
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The municipality will have the responsibility
of ensuring that all the required information
relating to asset acquisitions are submitted
timeously to the service provider for updating on the assets register.
• Consider outsourcing
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1.2

Other turnaround strategy issues
• Transferred properties
It is very important to align the data of all
transferred properties in the municipality
with the data held by the Deeds Office to
ensure that all properties are rated. This
is an important contribution to the Turnaround Strategy as “missing” properties in
lower billings or lower payments being received. In all circumstances it is important
to increase the income base of the municipality and thereby keep a check on tariff increases. The reconciliation process should
be regarded as urgent and continuous.
• Implementing a control framework in the
municipality
The municipal manager must maintain effective, efficient and transparent systems of
financial management.
• The risk and control framework
Leading organisations strive to define the
risk management and internal control
framework that is appropriate for their organisation. In establishing a sound risk and
control environment, organisations recognise that this can contribute to:
• reducing costs
• improving performance
• enhancing the overall governance
• strengthening confidence of stakeholders
(including the community).
The framework must be designed to identify
where improvements are required in order
to move from the current level of maturity
to the desired level of maturity in relation
to risk and control within the following key
areas:
• Governance
Establishing an effective governance framework across the municipality, functional
activities and business processes.
• People
Having the right people throughout the
municipality.
• Methods and Practices
Building methods and practices to support
efficient and effective ways of doing business within the constraints of a clearly defined risk and control framework.
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The purpose of instituting controls and processes is to address the issues that are leading
to impaired delivery and cash burn.
Lack of credible financial information, ineffective budget management, weak supply chain
management practices are all contributors to
these problems in the municipality.
The introduction of sound control principles
and practices will initially invoke disciplines in
the conduct of their operations. The disciplined
approach will lead to accurate recording and
the practice of proper procedures. Accurate
recording will lead to a sound foundation for
informed decision making.
The practice of proper procedures will give
a measure of comfort to the leadership and
stakeholders that the affairs of the municipality are being conducted in a responsible and
effective manner.
Ultimately, these factors pave the way for the
municipality to swing the pendulum from right
to left, i.e. form the foundation of an efficient
and effective organisation.

2.

The Auditor-General’s report
Aim towards clean audit

The disclaimer again is a disappointment. The issues leading to the disclaimer are recurring on a
yearly basis and reveals lack of application and
commitment from those responsible in the municipality.
Whilst there has been improvement, the lack of
providing verifiable documentation is inexcusable. It is possible to obtain clean audit reports if
the financial management and governance good
practices are in place and constantly monitored
by the leadership. The municipality can overcome
the challenges and obtain clean audit opinions by
focusing on three basic focus areas of leadership,
financial management and governance:

2.1 Leadership
The executive mayor must identify the key controls
that will drive clean audit outcomes and monitor
these controls daily and on a monthly basis. The
Auditor General in turn will review and report on
the effectiveness of these key controls of municipalities on a quarterly basis.
The executive mayor must act decisively to implement corrective measures.

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report 2009/2010

The executive mayor must assess the effectiveness
of the structures of the finance units, internal audit units and audit committee, as well as risk management.

An open discussion with the National Office can
bring about uniformity on problem issues.

2.2 Financial management

In reviewing the annual financial statements, the
following salient features predominate:

Enhance the capacity of the finance management
units to produce reliable monthly financial statements and management information that must be
evaluated and monitored at appropriate leadership levels to enable quality decision making and
service delivery.
Finance units must adhere to basic financial controls throughout the financial year, i.e. the proper
and regular filing of documentation supporting
the financial statements and management information, daily processing of transactions, monthly
reconciliations of accounts and the review thereof, as well as the monthly preparation of schedules which support/analyse items in the financial
records.
Finance units must produce an audit file to support the figures and disclosures in the financial
statements to the external auditors at the commencement of the audit process.

2.3 Governance arrangements
Audit committee and internal audit units must be
strong through the employment of persons with
the appropriate knowledge, skills and experience
to effectively discharge their responsibilities.
Effective risk assessment management strategies
including fraud prevention must be established.
The challenges are certainly not insurmountable,
clean audit opinions are within the reach of the
municipality within a short period of time. It entails a structured, systematic and simple monitoring approach by the municipal leadership.
Improved audit outcomes of the municipality
should ensure that service delivery also follows
suit, which in turn will lead to improved lives for
all. It will also instill confidence within the community the municipality serves. This will make the
efforts and dedication all the more worth it in the
end.

A matter of consideration
There does not seem to be consistency of expression of opinion on common audit issues amongst
the different provincial offices of the Auditor General.

Sol Plaatje Municipality Annual Report 2009/2010

3.

Review annual financial statements

• The actual revenue charged out for rates and
other levies amount to .............R 189,423,946
• The actual revenue charged out for services
amount to .................................R 489,460,439
• giving total revenue of .............R 678,884,385
• The total cash generated by the charge outs
amount .................................. R 575,150,113
• realising a shortfall of ........... R 103,734,272
• resulting in about 80% of return on charge
outs.
Taking into account the overall economic situation and past results, prospect of better results is
not encouraging. Debtors amount will increase all
the time.
Part of the shortfall is subsidised by the government
Equity Share of R95,167,000 to cover indigents subsidy of R14,221,993 and electricity meters by-passed
amounting to R18,007,053.
• Employee costs amount to 35% of operating
expenses.
• Municipality’s general expenses have increased
by R30,000,000.
The overall result is that the municipality is unable to generate sufficient funds from operations
towards infrastructure developments.

4.

What actions to implement

Tariff adjustments on a yearly basis only covers
annual increases in costs and does not effectively
provide additional revenue. At the same time tariffs should not be too burdensome on consumers.
The municipality needs to look at its cost structure and introduce control measures and deal
with those sections of the institution that are uneconomic.
More and more emphasis is being placed on the
Municipality’s ability to render sustainable services. Its duty is to put the necessary measurements in place to achieve this outcome. This is
only possible if the Municipality understands the
cost associated with a service unit and here the
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introduction cost and management accountants
might be the answer to the requirement.

• Total overview of other departments, in particular labour related.

Cost accounting is the determination of the actual cost per unit of services rendered, which
represents the primary form of effectiveness and
efficiency. A unit is the determination of quantity
(length, time or value) adopted as a standard of
measurement.

It is the duty of the Municipality to see that the
city functions in an orderly manner. It must also
facilitate development and provide for investment
opportunities. In its effort to improve the bulk infrastructure, planning must be well forward. In
this respect the planned much needed University
in the city must be taken into account. There will
be the influx of students, teaching staff and related personnel which will result in more vehicles on
our roads, additional water, electricity, sanitation,
refuse and other needs. Suitable spatial and infrastructure planning will have to be done.

Managerial accounting is the collecting and analysing of economic and performance information
in additional to financial information to meet the
goals and objectives in the IDP.
The Municipal System’s Act stipulates that the
Municipality must administer its affairs in an economical, effective, efficient and accountable manner. It is very clear all expenditure incurred must
be measured against the price. The effectiveness
can be verified by evaluating the tangible benefits
produced by the money spent on those benefits.
To ensure that services are provided cost effectively we need to ensure this was done efficiently,
and here the measurement would be if the desired
outcome was achieved. Quality must also be taken into account. It is very clear that managers and
the council must know what it cost to provide one
unit of service.
With regard to the Service Delivery and Budget
Implementation Plan for 2009/2010, as at the year
ended June 2010, the Municipality achieved capital spend of 64% which does not represent effective performance.

5.

Uneconomic sections

• Vehicle Testing Station
For the financial year the number of vehicles
tested amount to 723 providing an income of
about R200,000 for the year. The cost of operating the station is probably over a million
rands. It is prudent to outsource the station.
• Municipal Workshop, in particular Vehicle
Costing of work performed is well above that
in the private sector.
• Administration of Municipal Housing Section
The Municipality needs to consider the feasibility of transferring ownership to the lawful
tenants. The administration costs and related
problems does not provide for an economic
investment.
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6.

Supplementary information relating to revenue improvement, cost
saving and improved financial
performance

The Government is largely reliant on local government for the successful implementation of its
policies and the delivery of services. Because of its
critical role, the financial health of local government is of particular importance to national government and all SouthAfricans.

7.

Interesting facts and possible
solutions

Many municipalities have battled to rise to the
challenge of service delivery and financial irregularities have compromised the ability of many municipalities to deliver on their mandates.
Indeed it seems as though there are sophisticated syndicates that come up with more and more
innovative ways to defraud taxpayers and divert
funds from service into their own pockets. It is
concluded that procurement fraud in the public
sector has the potential to be very large. Efforts
are directed to overcome the problem with the
launch of Operation Clean Audit 2014, which is a
programme to clean up governance and enhance
service delivery at both local and provincial levels
of government. The goal of the project is that by
2014 all municipalities within the nine provinces
will achieve clean audits on their financial statements.
One of the challenges of Operation Clean Audit
is the capacity to do everything that is necessary. Fortunately there is mature, proven software
available that can assist municipal chief financial
officers and their staff to utilise one of the most
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potent weapons in their armoury. The software is
known as Data Analytics. Using data analytics, financial executives can quickly and easily pinpoint
key issues and then take the actions necessary to
rectify them. In the process they could improve
billings and collections, save the municipality substantial amounts of money, eliminate wasteful expenditure, and improve productivity and effectiveness.

Unfortunately, owing to the large sums involved,
the attentions of the most skilled fraudsters is attracted. Data analytics can play an important role
to see that proper financial reporting is done by:

• Choose the right vendors.
It is very important that the municipality has
the right people in the procurement department. There should be full disclosure during
the pre-contract process, check information,
review financial statements, do credit checks,
check references and make sure that the company’s primary business is related to the tender. Data analysis can also be used to explore
the relationships between individuals in the
vendor company and the municipality’s own
employees.

7.1 What is the impact of data analytics
Revenue Assurance
By analyzing the data housed in the various municipal systems, it is possible to find out whether
the municipality is billing all those to whom it is
delivering services, and that it is billing them at the
correct rate and amount.

• Continuously monitor transactions relating to the contract

Cost Saving
Municipalities are interested in reducing cost especially if it can do so without affecting the quality
of the service it delivers to its citizens. Data analysis can be used to eliminate duplicate payments
and also fraud. It can be used to improve business
processes and save money.

This is to ensure that systems and controls
operate as intended and transactions are processed as prescribed. Data analytics can be
utilised to effect control.
Council should consider exploring the programme.

Payroll
Analytics software can improve the entire payroll
process.
• Identify ghost employees by specific techniques.
• Reconcile overtime issues.
• Any other relevant matters.

7.2 Preventing procurement fraud. Guide.
When the municipality contracts for goods or services, it must do so in accordance with a system
which is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive
and cost effective.
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